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Over the last 100 years, we have been at the
forefront of the UK’s waste industry, collecting

15,000 tonnes of rubbish every day from 76,000
businesses and around 2.2 million households.

But our skills and capabilities stretch well

bevond the bins.

Today our operations span the entire breadth
of the waste management process including
collection, recycling, treatment, disposal and

energy generation.

We believe our 8,000+ team can lead the way in

achieving a sustainable future for the UK, helping
to change the way people think about waste.
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Performance Highlights

Continued growth

Financial Highlights

Non-Financial Highlights

Statutory Revenue
(£m)

£1,163.1m

NetRevenue Underlying
(Erm) Cperating Profit (£m)

£1,102.8m £90.5m

Lost Time Injury Rate CO,e Emissions
[*) {scope 1&2) (ktns)

0.23% 572ktns

Underlying
Free Cash Flow [£m)

£53.6m

Leverage Ratio (x) Statutory Profit
after Tax (Em]

2.4x £45.6m

Employee Total Renewable
Engagement (%) Energy Generated [MW)

58% 423MW

Dividend
per Share (pence]

2.47p

Statutory Earnings Underlying Earnings
per Share (pence) per Share [pence)

18.3p 23.1p
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1. Fortechnicalterms and abbreviations please refer to the
glossary on pages 161 to 162.

2. The impact of IFRS 16 an FY20 results has been to increase
Underlying EBITDA by £18.9m, Underlying Operating
Profit by £2.8m, reduce Profit after Tax by £1.1m and
Underlying EP5 by 0.5p. Net Debt has increased by £143m.
The impact on leverage is 0.6:x.

3. Lost time injury rate refers to the number of lost time
injuries relative to the number of ernployees calculated
gver a specified time period.

4. Our total energy generated reduced as we diverted less
waste to landfill resulting in less landfill gas (which we
use to generate energy).
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At aGlance

Creating value for
our stakeholders

Biffa has an efficient and sustainable
business model. Our ability to capture
value from the waste we collect and
through recycling, energy recovery

or safe disposal, is both profitable
and environmentally sustainable.

A business model with
sustainability at its core

Our business is formed of two divisions: 'Collections’ and ‘Resources
and Energy’ {R&E). Collections encompasses our Industrial and
Cormercial (I&C), Specialist Services and Municipal businesses
and provides collection, disposal and other services for businesses
and households. R&E which includes Recycling, Organics, Inerts and
Landfill Gas, focusges on sorting, treating, processing and recycling
wasts streams. See pages 21 to 24.

We have a strong track record of reinvesting in our business, people,
infrastructure and systems and processes, whilst providing positive
returns to pur shareholders over the long-term.

We believe our strong heritage, brand and reputation give us a
competitive edge and makes it challenging for new and existing
players to compete with us, As with most businesses across both
the UK and the globe, COVID-19 is undoubtedly testing the resilience
of our business model. Howaver, wa believe we have responded well
to the challenges (as detailed on pages 6 to 7) and continue to be
well placed. This is undoubtedly due to our swift response and the
hard work our peaple put in every day.

We have a deep and unrivalled understanding of the UK waste
market, which cores with over a century of experience. Our
expertise is often sought not only from our custorners, but

from the UK Government which values Biffa's opinion at a local
and national level. This, along with our scalable infrastructure,
distinguishes us from our competitors and is why we belisve we
have an exciting growth journey ahead.

Collect

We collact general waste and recyclate materials

Revenue sources
m Service fees for collection and disposal of cornmercial waste

m Outsourced provision of household collection services

Costs

@ Gate fees payable to third-party operators
(if waste cannot be processed at a Biffa facility)

m Vehicle, personnel and associated support services

Biffa Annual Report and Accounts 2020




100+ Leader

70

I&C depots

Polymers plastic recycling facilities

years of heritage in industry health & safety 156 Soil treatment and composting facilities
performance .
38 I&C waste transfer stations
N :I : ! 8 O 0 11 Hazardous waste facilities
0 a ’ Operating landfill sites
for I&C collections vehicles 4 Materials recycling facilities
8 O O O 9 5 0/ 33 Landfill gas sites generating electricity
’ I 0 3 Anaerobic digestion plants
employees UK postcode coverage 35 Municipal collections contracts
Process Produce

We process and treat waste and recycling
atour facilities

Where we cannot recycle material at our sites,
we send to Energy from Waste facilities or, as
a last resort, dispose of to landfill

Revenue sources

m Gate fees for processing and treating waste

We generate renewable energy and recycled materxials

Revenue sources

m Sale of commodity products

m Sale of renewable energy

Costs

m Processing and treatment costs
(including equipment and personnel costs)

m Landfill tax

m Gate fee disposal costs for certain products

Biffa Annual Report and Accounts 2020
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Our Stakeholders

Engaging our
stakeholders

Positive relationships with our stakeholders,
who have an interest in our business and
may be impacted by the decisions we make,
are key to our long-term success.

Employees

We therefore engage with them to understand what matters

to them and take this into account when setting strategy and
also in our day-to-day business operations. Our key stakeholder
groups are identified below. We have set out on these pages

how the business engages with these stakeholders, the key
interests raised and the outcomes of that engagement.

Customers

Shareholders

How we engage

We regularly engage with our employees
face-to-face and through a nurnber of
channels including our employee app,
employee roadshows, all employee calls,
newsletters and our intranet. We conduct
anannual employee engagemernt survey
and held focus groups toshare results and
gain teadback.

Key interests raised
m Pay and benefits

Cornraunication

"
m Development opportunities
& Employee fundraising

n

Business performance and
customer information

m Health and Safety (H&S) progress

Outcames of engagement

m Introduced our employee
app 'Biffa Beat’

wm Launched ‘Safer Together'
H&S campaign to build a
stronger safety culture

w Smarter Ways of Working
programme to support flexible
working and worklife balance

m Improved benefits and
employee discounts

m Introduced new cornprehensive
online suite of training and
development materials

m Partnered with the charity WasteAid

Where to find more information
See our People section
on pages 29 to 31

How we engage

Ensuring that we work collaboratively
with our customers is of vital importance.
We communicate regularly via customer
meetings, newsletters, blogs and social
media updates,

Key interests raised
m Service delivery

m Strategy and growth opportunities
m Support with sustainability ambitions
» HES

m Ability to self-serve online and more
digital products

m Electric vehicles and alternative fuels

COutcomes of engagement

m Customer gvents held to update
customers on business strategy
and opportunities

m Launched Sustainability Strategy
‘Resourceful, Responsible”

» Developing an online training product

to support our custorners in how to

segregate their waste

Trialling SMS text alert service with

national custorners, letting them

know when their coilection is due

» Introduced new e-commerce enabled
waste collection service called Skoup

Where to find more information
See our Operating Review
on pages 21 to 24

How we engage

The Executive Directors and Investor
Relations team meet [(in person or
via conference call]) with existing and
potential investors. We also provide
webcasts, ermail blasts and events
throughout the year.

Kevy interests raised
= Financial results

m Business wodel/strategic direction
m Capital allocation

u Merger & Acquisition potential

m Competition in the industry

& Sustainability Strategy

Gutcomes of engagement

m High number of meetings held
throughout the year

m Held Gapital Markets Day for key
stakeholders (including online
webcast) to outline growth strategy
and introduce members of Biffa's
Executive team

m Launch of Sustainability Strategy
“Resourceful, Responsible”

m Developed investor section af the
website to include alert service

Where to find more information
See our Shareholder Engagement
on page 52

Biffa Annual Report and Accounts 2020



Section 172 statement

During the year, the Directors have acted to promote the success of the Company
for the benefit of shareholders, whilst having regard to the following matters:

m Likely long-term consequences
@ Interests of the Company's employees

® Business relationships with suppliers and customers

® Impact on the community and environment

® Reputation for high standards of business conduct

m Acting fairly between sharcholders

Where to find out more (page}

6t0710to11, 39
4t05,7.291031,48
4105,7,21to24, 48
4t0b5,7,25t0 31,48

68107,13,48
7,48,52

Government and Regulators

Suppliers

Communities

How we engage

We have regular contact with Government
and regulatory stakeholders and participate
in various expert working groups,
Governrnent consultations, waste sector
liaison groups and councillor training.

Keyinterests raised
m Environmental policy and compliance

m Waste and resources policy
and regulation

m Sustainability issues, including
climate change, circular economy
and bioplastics

m Landfill tax issues
m Tackling modern day slavery and H&S

Outcomes of engagement

m Input to, and member of, industyy
working groups

m Responses to statutory consultations
and calls for evidence

m Liaison over new national policy
and regulation issues

a Publication of Biffa “Reality Cheack"
report series on website

m Launch of Sustainability Strategy
“Resourceful, Responsible”

How we engage

We look to secure excellent value

for money, whilst minimising risk in
our supply chain. Our Procurement
team hosts events and ensures a positive
two way corumunication process with
our suppliers.

Key interests raised
m Business model/strategic direction

m Sustainability strategy, including
use of electric vehicles

m Stamping out modern slavery
in the supply chain

» Support of Biffa’s charity
partner WasteAid

Outcomes of engagement

®» Suppliers provided electric and
hybrid vehicles on trial and Biffa
provided feedbaclk to product
development teams

m Launch of Sustainability Strategy
“Resourceful, Responsible”

m WasteAid/Slave Free Alliance joint
supplier day. Cornmitment from
suppliers to join the alliance and
help support our charitahle efforts

How we engage

We are proud to give something back

to the communities in which we serve.

We attend parish council and local

liaison meetings, invite community
members to visit our sites, provide regular
commmunity newsletters and participate in
volunteering and fandraising initiatives.

Key interests raised
m Local site specific environmental and
operational issues and complaints

» Funding of local projects through Biffa
Award Landfill Cammunities Fund

® Sustainability issues including
waste plastic management and
circular economy

s Support of Biffa's charity
partner WasteAid

Qutcormes of engagement

m Working relationships with
local communities

» Direct contributions through
cornmunity volunteering,
sponsorship and fundraising

m Local project funding through
Biffa Award scheme

®» Biffa “Reality Check” series of reports

® Launch of Sustainability Strategy
“Resourceful, Responsible”

Where to find more information
See our website for further information:
www.biffa.couk/publications

Where to find more information
See how the Board engages with
Stakeholders on pages 48 to 49

Where to find more information
See our People section
on pages 29 to 31

Biffa Annual Report and Accounts 2020
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COVID-19 Response

Decisive action in
challenging circumstances

The COVID-19 outbreak is one
of the biggest challenges Biffa
has faced in its long history.

Since the crisis began, we have taken decisive action,
focusing on the following three immediate priorities:

m Protecting the health, safety and wellbeing of gur
employees and the comrmunities we serve,

m Ensuring our husiness operations are able to continue
with minimal disruption and that customers gontinue
toreceive the essential services that we provide.

= Protecting the financial strength of the Group.

The response of the entire Biffa team in ensuring we have
been able to successfully balance these three challenging
prigrities has heen exceptional.

Volumes are beginning to recover and COVID-i9-related
absence is reducing. See ‘Ensuring Continuity of Business
Operations’ for further information.

COVID-19 Response timeline

Protecting Health, Safety and Wellbeing

Riffa contributed to and supported the development of
national Health & Safety guidance. The UK Government and public
health authorities provided H&S-based instructions and guidance
and the Executive and Waste Industry Safety and Health [WISH)
bady, of which Biffa is a leading member, have also established
sector-specific H&S guidance.

We provided a comprehensive suite of Biffa H&S protocols and
supporting guidanee, such as social distancing, cleaning standards
and good hygivie lo our management, offico and front line teams
We were, like most businesses, faced with the challenge of gbtaining
supplies of cleaning products and hand sanitiser in the early days
of the crisis. We worked with our supply chain partners to ensure

we had reasonable timeframes for deliveries and prioritised depots
that were in short supply. We also educated our workforce on what
alternative options they could utilise, such as spap and bottled
water for handwashing when hand sanitisers were not available,

We put measures in place to safeguard our ernployees who met

the vulnerable and extremely vulnerable category criteria and
implernented pay enhancements for these people to enable

them to keep safe. We also developed an individual employee case
tracker to help maonitor and advise individuals within these groups.

The business made a huge effort to enable and support home working,
by issuing over 230 new laptops and supporting an increase in remote
connections to the Biffa network from (on average] 10010 1,300 a

day. Technical guidance was developed to help people during the
transition along with tips and arvice on looking after their wellbeing
during these challenging times,

Ensuring Continuity of Business Operations

In our Collections division, the Industrial & Commercial
business has continued to serve custormers, providing essential
services such as food manuiacture and retail, distribution,
health and utilities. It is however, the mast severely impacted
part of Biffa's business, with almost all revenues from customers

March

4 March 2020 Pre-close Trading
Update and regular Leadership
Team calls begin

B March Additional Safety, Health
and Quality cleaning and hygiene
protocols introduced

6 March Internal response team set
up to coordinate business response

16 March Trade unions briefed
on Biffa's action plan

April

20 March Michael Topharm, CEO
begins weekiy coronavirus video
updates for employees

25 March Additional Trading Update

26 March Letter to gvary Biifa
employee outlining priorities
and the financial support available

1 April ‘Hi-Vis Heroes’ campaign launched
to provide appreciation for pur employees

31March Business Continuity
Staternent published on website

Biffa Annual Report and Accounts 2020



affected by the lockdown ceasing for the time being, across sectors
including hospitality, leisure, transport and non-food retail. Overall,
revenues were initially down around 50% from their position prior
to COVID-19, however volumes are now beginning to recover with
revenues now c. 40% down.

The Municipal business has remained resilient, with revenues
remaining stable. The business has worked with clients to ensure
continuity of almost all services and the team is performing
admirably despite the inevitable increased employee absence
due to COVID-19. Increased absence levels with COVID-19 related
absence peaked at ¢.17%, now they are ¢.6%.

The impact across Resources & Energy is varied, with the most
notable impact being on Biffa's landfill operations, which rely on
the construction industry for a large proportion of their business
and saw revenues reduce by around 50% from their position prior
to COVID-19. Volumes are now heginning to recover with revenues
now c. 40% down. The other areas of the business, whilst impacted,
are holding up well.

For further information see our Operating Review on pages 21 to 24.

Protecting Financial Strength

We took swift and decisive action to mitigate the impact of the
crisis on trading performance and to protect the Group’s finances,
including:

w rightsizing I&C operations by re-routing trucks, taking c40%
of the front line fleet off the road;

m sll M&A activity was suspended;

m all non-essential and uncomrmitted capital expenditure
was deferred,;

m 1,500 staff, predominantly in or supporting our I&C business,
were furloughed under the Government's Coronavirus Job
Retention Scheme;

m the Board, Executive and Leadership Teams have taken pay
cuts, whilst we continue with the Government’s Coronavirus
Job Retention Scheme;

m all uncommitted pay increases were cancelled;

m FY20 bonuses, for the most senior participants, are to be settled
in shares and FY21 bonus schemes have been suspended;

m all areas of operating costs were reviewed and non-essential
costs curtailed;

m the Group agreed deferrals in payrments of indirect taxes with
HMRC; and.

m no final dividend has been recommended for FY20.

In addition, the Group's banks have been very supportive. Covenant
amendments and an additional £60rm (in principal) liquidity
headroorn has been agreed.

Stakeholder Management

All of our stakeholders were affected in some way by the
COVID-19 crisis. Our swift action and clear engagement with
all stakeholders has enabled Biffa to endure these challenging
circumstances in the best way possible, whilst ensuring we have
continued to support these stakeholders and act fairly at all times:

Employees - our internal effort to protect our people was our top
priority. From adapting staff benefits where relevant, utilising the
Coronavirus Government Retention Scheme, creating an internal
response team, utilising our employee app to proactively engage
with our tearns, offering wellbeing support and other engagement
methods including letters, appreciation videos and much more.

Custaomers — we actively worked with customers to minirmise service
disruption and support them where possible. We have also enjoyed
good levels of new business wins.

Shareholders - we sought to engage proactively with shareholders,
participating in nurmerous calls with them as well as briefing broker
sales teams, and releasing three RNS announcements in relation
to the crisis. Our share price reaction has been consistent with our
sector and the FTSE 250 overall.

Suppliers - we are extremely grateful to the many long-standing
suppliers who have supported our operations through the crisis.
We worled, proactively with key suppliers to agree rebates, payment
deferrals and discounts where appropriate.

Government and Regulators - we proactively engaged with the
Government and Regulators and other industry operators to pull
together as an industry, helping to develop industry guidelines and
best practice in response to the crisis.

Communities - our key workers are providing an essential service
to businesses and households. We were overwhelmed by the support
we received from our customers and members of the public (in the
forrm of hand-written notes, pictures and social media posts) who
have expressed their gratitude for our front line workers.

You can read more on:

Principal risks on pages 34 to 38

Viability staternent and going concern on page 39

How the Board Engages with Stakeholders on page 47

—_—
rd

2 April Biffa provides waste collection
sarvices for the first temporary COVID-19
hospital, NHS Nightingale in London

{the first of three NHS hospitals we

are supporting)

6 April Remuneration measures
Trading Update

B April Regular rhythm of all-employee
calls begin

6 April Furlough process introduced

Biffa Annual Report and Accounts 2020

15 April Biffa receives letter from MP
Rebecca Pow, the Parliamentary Under
Secretary of State for Defra, thanking
the industry for the vital services we
are delivering

22 April Issued wellbeing guidance to
managers and podcasts to ernployees
to offer additional support

4May Bank covenant amendments agreed

6May COVID-19 Financing and
Reporting Trading Update

June

5June Full year results announced
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Chairman’s Statement

Maintaining a strong
business foundation

Ken Lever
Chairman

Last year, my Chairman’s Statement had the
strapline “Well positioned for the future”
and 2019/20 was another good year for Biffa,
building on the progress made since our IPO
in 2016 and establishing a clear path for
future growth against our vision, to ‘lead the
way in UK sustainable waste management’

It was not until the final couple of weelts of the year that the
impacts of COVID-19 became truly apparent. Biffa's management
reacted swiftly to the changing economic circumstances and the
significant reduction in demand that the business has experienced
since the year end, especially in the Industrial and Commercial
(I&CJ Collections and landfill operations businesses.

0f paramount importance to the Board and the management
is protecting the health, safety and wellbeing of our emplayees
and the communities we service. I am proud to say that [, and
the rest of the Board, are confident that we have taken the right
steps to do this whilst ensuring the continuity of the critical
services that we provide,

At the end of the financial year, we had over £150m of available
liquidity. This strong liquidity position, combined with the decisive
action taken to control costs, leaves Biffa well placed to weather
these unprecedented trading conditions.

Business and Markets

We understand the increasing scrutiny placed on businesses and
households to manage their waste responsibly. That is why we are
committed to providing our custormers with efficient, reliable and
sustainable waste managernent. Central to our business is the
collection of industrial, commercial, and domestic waste which
we process, prioritising its recycling and energy recovery, with
safe disposal to landfill as a last resort.

The markets in which we operate provide us with a number of
opportunities for organic and inorganic growth. Our business spans
each area of the waste hierarchy, which means we are well placed
to take advantage of these opportunities when they arise.

At the beginning of the last financial year we re-organised the Group
into two divisions - Collections and Resources & Energy. This has
created a more efficient, focused structure and positioned us for
growth in the areas where we have advantaged positions. We have
made good progress in both divisions, delivering our pian for the
year and performing inline with expectations, despite the initial
impact of COVID-19 in the last month of the year. You can read

more in pur Operating Review on pages 21 to 24.

Strategy and Capital Allocation

Biffa has a clear strategy for growth hased on threa strategic pillars;
grow our market share; develop services and infrastructure; and
optimise systems and processes. These are underpinned by a focus
on three specific opportunities - growing our collections business;
expanding gur plastics recycling business Biffa Polymers; and
investing in energy from waste (EfW]. The strategy fully supports
Biffa's purpose to ‘change the way people think about waste' and
our vision to 'lead the way in UK sustainable waste managernent’
and is underpinned by our Sustainability Strategy, ‘Resourceful,
Responsible), which we were delighted to launch in March 2020.

One of the highlights of the year for me was attending the official
opening of the first phase of Biffa's new 57kt PET recycling facility
in Beaham, County Durham, in Januvary 2020. This is progressing
well, despite the COVID-19 putbreak and we still see significant
opportunity for further investrment in our Polymers plastics
business over the next few years.

We have also continued to comrnit capital to bolt-on acquisitions
in the Collections business, which are central to Biffa's combined
organic and inorganic growth strategy.

You can read more about our gverall strategic focus on
pages 12 to 13,

Biffa Annual Report and Accounts 2020



Shareholder Returns

We had planned to see an increase in the dividend for the year
ended 27 March 2020, but due to cash conservation measures
in response to COVID-19, the final dividend of 2019/20 has
been cancelled. The Board believes this to be prudent in the
circumstances and aspires toreturn to dividend payments

as soon as more normal trading conditions allow.

Health & Safety

The waste management industry carries inherent Health & Safety
(H&S) risks and we are committed to keeping our people, our
customers and the general public safe and well. Protecting the
health, safety and wellbeing of our people has been our top priority
throughout the COVID-19 pandemic. Biffa has always been an
industry leader, setting extremely high safety standards. The Board
was delighted to see the achievement of the planned year-on-year
reduction in the Lost Tirne Injury rate as well as the introduction

of a new H&S culture change programme, ‘Safer Together

Corporate Governance

We set out in some detail later in the Corporate Governance
Report (see pages 40 to 85), our approach to corporate governance
and compliance with the UK Corporate Governance Code. The
increasing cost associated with meeting such requirements must
he recognised. We seek to ensure an appropriate balance between
pragmatic compliance and the associated cost, whilst upholding
the highest governance standards in those areas that truly add
value to the business.

The Board

Last year we made a number of changes to the Board. This year
we have seen these changes successfully embedded and Board
members working and interacting well together and building
strong relationships. Inevitably the COVID-19 crisis has challenged
the Board and the Group Executive Team, but it is at times of crisis
that the high quality of our tearm and leadership is apparent.

Biffa Annual Report and Accounts 2020

Employees

Dur people are the core of our organisation. It is the hard work they
put in every day which makes the difference. Identified by the
Government as 'key workers' our people have continued to work
throughout the COVID-13 crisis, highlighting their commitment,
dedication and loyalty. The Board thanks all our employees for this
and for the sacrifices they have made to ensure we have been able
to continue to operate and support our customers and communities
during this time.

it has heen regrettable that as a result of the downturn in business,
some of our employees have been put into the Governrment Furlough
Scheme. Biffa has provided enhanced benefits, designed to ensure
that no employee suffers undue hardship whilst unable to work

due to COVID-19. Our executive and senior leadership teams have
also taken adjustments to their remuneration and I would like to
recognise the contribution they have made at this difficult time.

Employee engagement continues to be of key importance to the
organisation. I was delighted that David Martin, our Board mermber
who has respaonsibility for workforce engagerment, attended two
emplovee roadshows, conducted a focus group with a cross section
of employees and attended the annual employee awards event,
along with several other activities enabling him access to a large
number of employees.

You can read more about this on pages 29 to 31

Looking to the Future
We are mindful that the immediate future of Biffa is very much affected
by the current uncertainty in rarkets attributed to COVID-19.

However, Biffa is a strong company, built on solid foundations, with
a dedicated and committed management team and a clear strategy
for growth. The immediate focus of the Board is very much to protect
and preserve the fundamental value of the business so that we can
return to business as usual and deliver further progress against our
strategic growth plans, once we are through these difficult times.

Ken Lever
Chairman

4 June 2020
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In Conversation with our CEO

Supporting customers
and communities
through the crisis

Michael Topham
Chief Executive Officer

How would you summarise the year for Bitfa?
Events since March have, for obvious reasons, cormpletely
overshadowed what was otherwise a very successful year for
Biffa. We delivered a strong set of financial results, continued
to execute our exciting growth strategy, and committed to

an arbitious 10-year Sustainability Strategy, ‘Resourcetul,
Responsible’ which will see the Group unlock £1.25bn 6f
investrnent in green economy infrastructure by 2030.

We continued to make good progruss in our (U business, tlirvugh
a combination of organic growth, a number of acquisitions and a
standout performance in pur Specialist Services business. The
Municipal business stabilised with some excellent new business
wins and contract extensions. In Resources & Energy, a strong
performance in our Biffa Polymers business offset some weakness
in the recycling facilities that arose from ongoing softness in
cornmodity prices. You can read more about this on pages 21to 24,

We combined strong business performance and strategic delivery,
with committed leadership in helping to tackle broader issues
affecting our industry including rough sleeping, modern day
slavery, managing waste in the developing world, and diversity
and inclusion in the workplace. We also delivered our best ever
safety performance.

We were admitted to the FTSE 250 Index in March 2020 and I'm
proud of what we have achieved in the vear, and even more so
by our response to the COVID-19 crisis.

What are Biffa's strategic priorities and what progress
has been made in their delivery in the year?

In Septermnber 2019 we held a Capital Markets Day event, our first since
the TPO in 2016. The materials presented on the day are available in
tha Investors section of pur website. At the event, along with members
of the Group Executive Team, we explored the key themes of our
strategy, including the growth of our leading I&C Callections platform,
investing to grow our award-winning plastics recycling business

Biffa Polymers, and investing in EfW infrastructure.

During the year we made good progress in all three areas:

10

m Qur I&C business operates in a fragmented market where
scale delivers significant benefits. Our focus on growing, both
organically and through synergistic acquisitions, rerains central
to Biffa's strategy. In the year we delivered strong acquisition growth
of 8.3% of revenue, integrating the acquisitions completed in the
prior year and completing five further bolt-on acquisitions. We
also rnade good progress in evolving our offering to enable us
to drive further organic growth by developing enhanced digital
capabilities and launching new products to market.

a Our Polymers business operates in an exciting sactor, with
demand for the closed-loop, food-grade recycled plastic that
we manutacture growing rapidly. In the year we successfully
built and cormmissioned the first phase of our PET plastic bottie
recyeling plant at Seaham in County Durham. The plant can
process the equivalent of 1.3bn plastic bottles each yeay, turning
them into food-grade recycled raw materials for reuse here in the
UK. We also announced a £7m investrment in nearby Washington,
in a plant to process plastic pots, tubs and trays. The Polymers
business has again combined the delivery of a strong operational
performance with the developrment and execution of an exciting
growth strategy.

u In Efw, the UK continues to have under-capacity to treat non-
recyclable waste for energy recovery. Biffa, as one of the UK's
largest controliers of waste feedstock through its Collections
husiness, is well placed to unlock the development of this much-
needed infrastructure. I'was delighted that we reached financial
close on our Newhurst project in Leicestershire (£45m for 50%
equity commitment). Plant construction is now under way and
scheduled to e cottipleied in 2023, We continue to progroos our
second opportunity, Protos in Cheshire, and are at an advanced
staga of this evaluation.

Tam pleased with our strategic progress and rermain confident
about the future growth opportunities ahead.

Biffa recently launched its Sustainability Strategy.
What are the key parts of the strategy and how does

it align with Biffa's growth strategy?

Sustainability isn't new to us - it has been core to our business and
investment plans gver since the business and the wider industry
began to move away from landfill disposal and into recycling and
renewable energy.

We launched ‘Resourceful, Responsible’, aur 10-year Sustainability
Strategy, in March 2020, The strategy, which is aligned to the UN's
Sustainable Development Goals, is centred around three key
pillars: building a circular economy; tackling climate change; and
caring for our people and supporting our conumunities. It includes
a cormmmitment to unlock £1.25bn of investment in green economy
infrastructure, whilst reducing our CO: emissjons by a further 50%
in the coming decade. When combined with what we've achieved
inthe last 15 years, that will amount to a reduction in our CO:
emissions by over 80%.

‘Resourceful, Responsible’ is inextricably linked to our strategic
framework and the investment in green economy infrastructure
includes the plans already outlined in our growth strategy,
including: plastics recycling- which reduces the carbon intensity
of packaging; Collections acquisitions- which reduce the carbon
intensity of business collections as well as improving local air
quality and reducing traffic congestion; and EfW- which helps
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reduce the UK's dependence on fossil fuels. In addition to those
existing plans we have outlined our arnbition to invest in solar
energy across our legacy landfill land banlk, and our commitment
to phase out the purchase of diesel refuse vehicles by 2030.

It's a bold and ambitious plan, but it is grounded in known
technologies and solid investment opportunities that we are
well positioned to deliver.

Biffa has refreshed its vision and purpose.

What does this mean for the organisation?

Iam fortunate tolead such a committed team of individuals,
who share a clear vision and purpose for our business.

Our vision is simple - to lead the way in UK sustainable waste
management. We wish to lead in business performance and
returns, innovation, reputation and in how we tackle broader
societal issues relevant to our industry. In the year we have
proved we are worthy of the mantle, through the delivery of

a strong business performance, the ongoing execution of our
ambitious strategic growth plans, the articulation of our 10-year
Sustainability Strategy, and the exceptional commitment and
resilience the team has exhibited through the COVID-19 crisis.

Our purpose is - to change the way people think about waste. This
embodies what drives us as an organisation. We understand that waste
matters to people in a way that it didn't use to. We see the opportunities
that exist in our sector and believe that our role is to help people
understand therm 5o that together we can make them happen.

I believe that together our vision and purpose are a great embodiment
of what life at Biffa is all about and they help to drive our teams to
dothe best that they can do.

You've mentioned the COVID-19 epidemic.

Whatimpact has it had on the business and

what are you doing to mitigate this?

The COVID-19 crisis is of course unprecedented, and it has had

a significant impact on our business. Since the emergence of the
crisis we have focused on three priorities: protecting the health,
safety and wellbeing of our people and the communities we serve;
ensuring our business operations are able to continue with minimal
disruption and that customers continue to receive the essential
services that we provide; and protecting the financial strength

of the Group.

We took swift action to protect our people, including a rapia shift to
home working where possible and the introduction of new protocols
to ensure that social distancing was observed where practical in our
frontline aperations. At all times we have been glosely invoived in the
development of, and of course have strictly observed, industry and
Government advice and guidelines. In addition to ensuring we kept
our people as safe as possible, we offered enhanced financial benefits
for those unable to work due to COVID-19-related sickness or absence.

The impact has varied across the range of services we provide. Qur
most severely impacted business is I&C, where we experienced a
significant reduction in demand for our services and a 50% revenue
decline during the lockdown period, versus pre-C0OVID levels.
Demand for our Municipal services was relatively unaffected
however, ensuring services could continue in the face of significant
workforce absence has been challenging, Qur Resources & Energy
business has been most notably affected in our Inerts business,
with landfill revenues down c50%, versus pre-COVID levels, due to
reduced volumes particularly from the construction sector. Other
parts of the division have been less impacted.

Dverall, Group revenues for the period of lockdown were down
30% versus pre-COVID levels. However, the Group saw an early
stabilisation of these trends and in recent weeks we have seen
increases in revenues, with revenue levels in both I&C and landfill
operations now down about 40% from pre-COVID levels.

To support short-term cash praservation we have taken a number of
proactive measures, deferring all discretionary capital and operating
expenditure and other strategic investments such as acquisitions,
settling the majority of earned bonuses from the 2019/20 year in
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equity, pay reductions for the Board, Executive Team and other
leaders, the suspension of bonus schemes for the 2020/21 year
and cancelling our year-end dividend. We have benefited from
Governrent support through the deferral of indirect tax payments
and furloughed approximately 1,500 people. As cutlined in our
Chief Financial Officer's Review, we negotiated waivers of lending
covenants and secured agreement to £60m of additienal headroom
financing lines from cur existing lending banks, should they be
required. When combined, these measures have ensured that the
Group is positioned to withstand the impact of the crisis and will
help to ensure that we ermerge strongly when the crisis passes.

{would like to offer my thanks and appreciation to all of Biffa's
stakeholders, in particular our employees, for their exceptional
response to the COVID-19 crisis.

As aresult of all the actions taken to control costs and enhance
liquidity, the Group rernains EBITDA positive and is seeing only
modest monthly cash burn. As a result of mitigating actions, the
Group has taken, we are confident that we can manage through FY21
without seeing a marked increase in debt. Consequently, the Group
is in a position to weather the unprecedented operating backdrop
and trade through all modelled scenarios.

However, it is clear that COVID-19 is having a very significant impact
on some of the Group's markets and the duration of the pandermic’s
impact and the ongoing effect it may have on the Group's financial
performance remains uncertain.

As a result, our balance sheet and liquidity planning is based upona
cautious base case scenario, which assumes lockdown restrictions
continue to beimposed for the duration of Q1 FY21 and are fellowed
by a subdued and incoraplete recovery over the rermainder of the
year. Under this scenario:

w The I&C division is expected to recover slowly as customers begin
to renew activity, exiting the FY21 year with run rate revenues of
~80-90% of FY20, and remaining at these levels as we enter FY22.

m The Resources & Energy division is expected to experience a
continued and rmore marked decline in Landfill Gas revenues during
FY22, based on known volume reductions and current electricity
prices. The Group expects its recycling business to cantinue to grow
across FY21 and FY22, with the new Seaham PET plant coming
on-line and Material Recycling Facility contract improvements.

The impact of reduced EBITDA would see leverage increase at the
end of FY21 to ¢.3x on the base case and 4x on worst case scenario
(hoth on a pre-IFRS 186 basis).

As a consequence of the covenant amendments agreed with lenders,
we have agreed a number of restrictions, relating to levels of capex,
M&A and shareholder distributions, which we expect toremain in
place for ¢.12-18 months. The Company is therefore continuing to
consider its funding options on an ongoing basis, including raising
equity capital, to allow it to continue with all the previously outlined
growth investment opportunities across 1&C, closed loop plastic
recycling and Energy from Waste, without delay.

What are your core priorities over the next year?

Our immediate priorities remain those associated with navigating
the COVID-19 crisis. I am however hopeful and confident that as
the year continues, and given the extensive measures we have
taken, we will be able to refocus on delivering our strategic growth
plans, make further progress against our Sustainahility Strategy
and ensure Biffa emerges as a stronger and better business.

COVID-19 will eventually pass and we will be able to restore
underlying profitability over time, but the climate emergency
is a continuing global challenge that will still be with us, and
we at Biffa understand the vital role we have to play in helping
the UK to address it.

Michael Topham
Chief Executive Officer

4 June 2020
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Our Strategic Framework

Driving progress
through strategy

Our purpose

To change the way people

think about waste

Read more on page 11

Our vision

Tolead the way in UK sustainable
waste management

Read more on page 11

Our strategy for the future is built on three key pillars:

Grow our
market share

Biiffa seeks to drive organic growth
across all of its businesses by gaining
new customers and by upselling
services to existing customers.

In its I&C business, Biffa has a clear
focus to grow by acquisition, as

a natural consolidator within

a fragmented market,

Read more on page 13

Develop
services and
infrastructure

Biffa looks to leverage the control

of waste feedstock from its collections
operations to invest in sustainable
waste processing infrastructure.

The expanded capacity and service
offerings that this brings will help
deliver the sustainability ambitions
of both Biffa and its custorners whilst
providing the Group with long terrm
sources of earnings.

Read more on page 13

Optimise
systems and
processes

Biffa aims to maximise margins by
operating its business as efficiently

as possible. Optimising Biffa's systems
and processes includes activities such
as integrating acquisitions on to Biffa
systems, delivering strong levels of
customer service to minimise customer
churn, leveraging e-commerce
opportunities and ensuring that
projects meet investment criteria and
help deliver our Sustainability Strategy.

Read more on page 13

Focused on three specific investment areas:

Collections
ar owth
m Scale and capabilities position
us well for organic growth
m Proventrack record of M&A

m Platform gives unique
synergy opportunities

Leading in UK
plastic recycling
m Operational and developraent
track record
m Conirol of materials
m Trusted offtake partnerships

Developing
energy from waste
intrastructure
u Proven market need
& Control of waste and consanted sites
w Underpins I&C business

Underpinned by an extremely powerful sustainability story:

We are unlocking c.£1.25bn of investment in the green economy, supported by fundable and deliverable investment plans. See pages 2510 26.

Building a circular
economy

= Quadrupling our plastic
recycling capability
m Investing in energy from waste

12

Tackling climate
change
m Efficient low carbon collections

m Transitioning to EV/alternative fuels
m Solar development

Caring for our people,
supporting our
communities

® Reduce Lost Time Injuries

m Top quartile business for
employee engagernent

& Manage 30% of astate for biodiversity
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Our strategy for growth sets us on a clear path to lead the way
in UK sustainable waste management.

Grow our
market share

What we achieved

Biffa has continued its strong track record of
delivering both organic and inorganic growth,
delivering good levels of new contract wins

in all areas of the business and by acquiring
and successfully integrating acquisitions in
our I&C business.

During the year, we achieved some flagship
Collections division custormer wins including
Transport for London and Centér Parcs in

our I&C business, Winchester and Cornwall
Council in our Municipal business, and North
London Waste Authority and Miller in our
Resources & Energy division.

We acquired the trade and assets of

five small businesses for a combined
consideration of £5.1m, which takes our
total number of successfully integrated
businesses up to 22 since 2016, with £102m
invested and £132.6m in revenue acquired.

We made good progress in integrating
acquired businesses from the prior year
with all integrations on track. In particular,
the integration of Weir Waste has seen
strong operational synergies by reducing
the size of the combined trade waste

fleet by 24% and in SWR, where we have
benefited significantly from additional
revenues into our collection network,

FY20 Acquisitions

June 2019 Thamesdown Recycling
July 2019 TWMS Waste Collgction.com
Septermber 2019 Ribbex

Novernber 2019 Kier Somerset trade waste

Jan 2020 Winchester City Council
Trade Waste Business

Priorities

We have a strong track record in delivering
on our M&A programme. The market
remains fragmented and once we emerge
from the COVID-19 crisis we will be well
placed to continue with our strategy.

As at March 2020, we had several potential
acquisitions that were significantly
progressed, but those processes were put
on hold due to the impact of COVID-18.

We are confident that as the vear progresses,
we will be able to further progress our
strategic growth plans in this area.

Risks
See pages 32t0 38
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Develop
services and
infrastructure

What we achieved

A particular area of focus for the Group
is in plastics recycling, where we have
the operational track record, control of
feedstock materials and the deep trusted
partnerships with our customers that
position us for success in this critical
and growing sector. Similarly our focus
is in EfW, where our control of feedstock
and consented sites give us the potential
to unlock the development of this much
needed infrastructure.

In January 2020, we opened and
commissioned the first phase of our new
£27.5m PET plastics recycling facility in
Seaharmn, County Durham. In the next year,
Biffa intends to progress the second phase
of this facility in addition to building a £7m
facility in Washington, which will expand our
recycling capahilities for plastic pots, tubs
and trays. These cornbined investments
will increase Biffa's total recycled plastic
processing capability to 140,000 tonnes
per annum.

We also made good headway in growing

our EfW assets, reaching financial close

for our facility in Newhurst, Leicestershire
in February 2020, a commitment by Biffa
ofc.£45m. The plant is now in construction
and is expected to be operational in 2023.
Our second project, the Protos EfW in Cheshire,
is at an advanced stage of evaluation.

In response to the COVID-19 crisis, we
deferred all non-essential and uncornmitted
capital expenditure. We anticipate that
this will have only a modest impact on the
timing of our plastics expansion plans and
EfW prograrmme.

Priorities

Our strategic priorities continue to remain
as outlined in our Capitai Markets Day in
September 2018, the presentation for which
is included on our website. We intend to
proceed at pace with these plans once the
COVID-19 crisis passes.

Risks
See pages 32 to 38

Optimise
systems and
processes

What we achieved

At the beginning of the financial year

we restructured our business into two
operating divisions - Collections and
Resources & Energy. The restructure has
delivered real benefits and synergies in
particular with closer working between the
1&C and Municipal businesses and between
our Landfill and Landfill Gas operations.

Increasing efficiency was a key

focus throughout the year which we
accomplished in many areas, including
our finance back office by deploying a
Robatic Process Automation [RPA) using
UT Path. The tool automates repetitive
tasks and increases the speed of
completing certain finance processes.

From a customer perspective, we experienced
low levels of churr, in pur I&C business,
with key renewals including John Lewis
Partnership, Baxter Healthcare, Greene King
and Mitchells & Butlers. We also deployed
customer facing Power BI reporting across
64 corporate custormers which enables
them to report on their overall spend,
volumes, carbon consumption and other
detailed activity. Itis proving to be a real
differentiator for new business versus
competitors, adding to Biffa's unique and
quality service offering,

We successfully integrated prior year
acquisitions, together with five additional
businesses bought in year, averseen by

our experienced management team. Our
excellent M&A track record and integration
capabilities have been key success factors
in ensuring we can quickly benefit from the
synergies that these acquisitions deliver.

We have also been progressing ‘Project
Fusion) the Group's system replacement
programme. More on this can be found
on page 20.

Priorities

Our investment focus remains on
improving efficiency of Collections,
processing and back office function
operations. We also seek to reduce

the level of manual intervention in
operational day-to-day tasks so that our
resource can provide more added value
elsewhere. We will implement RPA in
other areas of the business in the coming
year to drive increased efficiency and will
explore potential efficiency opportunities
using our internal BrightSparks innovation
process which generates new ideas.

Risks
See pages 32t0 38
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Key Performance Indicators

Measuring our progress

Financial

Underlying Organic Acquisition Net Underlying Operating

Net Revenue Growth (%) Revenue Growth (%) Profit Margin (%)
2020 2.5 2020 4.5 2020 7.8
2019 15 2019 2.8 2019 7.5
2018 2.1 2018 4.4 2018 7.5

Definition

.

The increase/(decrease] in
Net Revenue in the period
excluding Net Revenue from
acquisitions completed in
tha period and Net Revenue
from acquisitions completed
in the priar period up to the
anniversary of the relevant
acquisition date, to the
extent such Net Revenue
falls in the current period.
Where cormparative periods
differ in duration, the KPlis
adjusted on a pro-rata basis.

Acquisition Net Revenue
Growth in any period
represents the Net Revenue
Growth in the relevant
period from (i} acquisitions
completad in the relevant
period and (ii] any
acquisitions completed in
the 12 months prior to the
relevant period up to the
12-month anniversary of
the relevant acquisition
date (to the extent such Net
Revenue falls in the current
period]). Acguisition Revenue
Growth is caloulated on the
same basls, using revenue
in place of Net Revenue.

Profit hefare exceptional
iterns, amortisation of
acquisition intangibles,
impact of real discount
rate changes (o lundiiil
provisions, finance costs
and taxation expressed
as a percentage of sales.

Performance The Group had a strong We acquired the trade The Underlying Profit Margin
vear of organic growth with and assets of five small remained stable, despite
some flagship customer businesses for a combined cornrnodity price headwinds
wins. Int our Collectioris constderation uf £5.1m. and diepusal cost pressnre,
division thesgincluded On a pre-1FRS 168 basis the
Transport for London and We alsa mej\da good.p 1ogress margin far the current year
Center Parcs in the 1&0C n 1r}tegratmg acquued. was 7.5%.
business and Winchester busme.sses frlom the Prmr
and Cornwall Council in vear with all integrations
our Municipal business. on track.

In our Resources &Energy As at March 2020, we
division, we had some had several potential
important contract renewals acquisitions that were
that will underpin ongoing significantly progressed,
organic growth including but those processes were
Miller, Arla and North put on hold due ta the
London Waste Authority. impact of COVID-19,

Target CPL+1% > 2.5% Continuous improvernent.

Remuneration Linkage Associated with annual Associated with annual Associated with annual
bonus financial or bonus financial or bonus financial or
personal metrics, personal metrics. personal metrics.

Link to Strategy
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Return on Operating Assets

{%)

2020 19.4

2019 26.5

2018 27.2
Underlying Operating

Profit divided by the average
of opening and closing
tangible fixed assets plus
net working capital.

Return on Operating
Assets decreased due to
the inclusion of £134.9m of
IFRS 16 Right of Use assets,
On a pre-IFRS 16 basis
ROOA improved to 26.4%.

See page 122,

Grow to over 20% and
maintain above this level.

Associated with annual
honus financial or
personal metrics.
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Return on Capital Employed
(%)

2020 8.9
2019 9.4
2018 9.8

Underlying Earnings
per Share (pence])

2020 23.1
2019 20.8

2018 18.2

Leverage Ratio

()

2020 24
2019 21
2018 1.9

Operating Profit excluding
exceptional iterns and the
impact of real discount rate
changes to landfill provisions
divided by the average

of opening and closing
sharsholders’ equity plus

Net Debt (including lease
liabilities), pensions and
environmental provisions.

Underlying Profit After Tax
divided by the number of
shares in issue.

Net Debt: Underlying
EBITDA.

Whilst operating profits have
increased year-on-year, due
to IFRS 16, Capital Employed
has increased by £141m. On
a pre-IFRS 16 basis ROCE

Underlying Earnings per
Sharerose by 121% to 23.1
pence. This is driven by
higher underlying profits
and lower underlying

Leverage has increased in
the year due to the inclusion
of £141rn of IFRS 16 finance
leases. On a pre-IFRS 16
basis leverage reduced

improved to10.3%. financing costs. from 2.1x to 1.8x as aresult
of strong underlying cash

See page 122, See page 102. flow generation and lower
M&A expenditure.
See note 27 on page 143.

Grow to over 10% and Consistent growth. <2.5x and to return to s2x over

maintain above this level.

medium term [pre-IFRS 16).

Assgociated with annual
bonus financial or
personal metrios.

LTIP - Earnings Per Share 50%.

Associated with annual
bonus financial or
personal metrics.
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Key Performance Indicators continued

Definition

.

Performance

Financial

Non-Financial

Underlying Free Cash Flow
(Em])

2029 63.5
2019 417
2018 44.4

Dividend per Share

(pence)
2020 2.47
2019 7.20
2018 6.70

Net cash and cash
equivalents plus
dividends, acguisition
spend, restructuring, EVP
and exceptional spend
moverment in financial
assets less net borrowings.

Underlying Free Cash Flow

increased by £5.9m in the
year, due to lower finance
costs and working capital
improverments.

Dividend declared divided
by the total number of
shares in issue.

Tonnes of waste processed
(ktns)

2020 4,065
2019 4,031

2018 3,693

Target

Remuneration Linkage

v

Link to Strategy

Maximising conversion
of underlying PAT to cash

{currently 93%).

Annual bonus.

TDue to the impact of
GOVID-19, the Board is

not recommending a final
dividend for the FY20

vyear. As a result, the only
dividend for the period was
the interim dividend of
2.17 pango par sharp

Growth over time.

Assogiated with annual
bonus financial metrics.

Tonnages received in

the period subjected to
processing activities, such
as sorting, bailing, plastics
recyeling ete. at

Biffa operated sites.

Tonnage processed
increased by 1% this year.
A decrease in transfer
station volumes was
oftfset by increased soil
treatment volurnes.

Growth.

Associated with annnal bonus
financial or personal metrics.
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Tonnes of waste collected Lost Tirme Injury Rate CO.e emissions reduction Employee engagement (%)
(ktns) (%) (ktns)
2020 4,052 2020 0.23 2020 183 2020 58
2019 4,007 2019 0.39 2019 27 2018 58
2018 4,124 2018 0.27 2018 109 2018 53
Total waste tonnages LTIs are defined as workplace Greenhouse gas [GHG) Thelevels of employee

collected from customers

by Biffa operations. Excludes
sub-contracted services and
haulage/internal movements.

injuries which resulted in
the injured person taking
time off work to recover
from their injuries.

emissions data is captured
which is then converted

to CO: equivalents using
Government emission
conversion factors for

GHG reporting published
by the Departrment for
Business, Energy &
Industrial Strategy.

engagement as measured
through the Kincentric
Employee Engagement Index.

Tonnes of waste collected
has increased by 1%, I&C
volurnes remain static
with an increase in
Municipal tonnage.

During the year we had our
best ever H&S performance,
significantly reducing the
number of LTIs across the
organisation by 42%. This
achievement was the result
of great efforts by all our
employees, supported by our
'Watch your Step’ campaign,
which resulted ina 50%
reduction in the number

of slips, trips and falls from
the previous year.

Wereduced carbon
ernissions by 23% in the
vear. We achieved this
through a combination

of landfill gas reduction
(with a 31% decrease in
methane emissions) and

an irmprovement in how we
capture gas for renewable
energy generation purposes.

The 2020 result from
a survey carried outin
February 2020 was an
ernployee engagement
score of 58%.

Growth.

5% reduction in LTI rate.

Year-on-year reduction in
overall carbon emissions.

A 2%increase to an employee
engagement score of 60%.

Associated with annual bonus
financial or personal metrics.

Annual bonus personal
metric [6%).

Associated with annual bonus
financial or personal retrics.

Annual bonus personal
rmetric (6%).

See page 28 for
more information

See page 26 for
more information

See page 30 for
more information
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Financial Review

Positioned well ahead
of the downturn

A reconciliation fram Underlying Profit After Tax to Statutory
Profit After Tax is set out below:

Richard Pike
Chief Financial Officer

Group Performance

Iam pleased to be able to present another strong set of financial
results. Compared with the prior year, Statutory Revernue was up 7%,
Statutory Operating Profit increased 63% and Statutory Profit before
Tax was up 163%, resulting in Earnings per Share (EPS) increasing
154%. Looking at underlying performance rmeasures, Underlying
Operating Profit (pre-IFRS 16) was up 7.3% and Underlying EPS
increased 14.6%.

Other Items

To enable a better understanding of business performance, certain
iterns are excluded when calculating the Group's underlying
measures of performance. These items are explained further in
Note 3 to the consolidated Financial Staterents and include:

(i) exceptional iterns; and

(ii) Other nen-underlying items that recur most years but
that the Group feels will aid the user by excluding from
underlying performance- amortisation of acquisition
intangibles and movement on landfill provisions as
aresult of discount rate changes.

These Alternative Performance Measures [APMs) are alsp used
to enhance the comparability of information between reporting
periods and the Group's divisions, by adjusting for non-recurring
or uncontrollable factors which affect IFRS measures, to aid the
user in understanding the underlying perforrance,

18

IFRS 16 Pre
FY20 Adj I[FRS 16 FY19
£m £m £m £m

Underlying Profit
After Tax 5.4 11 658.5 51.5
Acquisition-
related costs 1) - (11) (28]
Arnortisation
of acquisition
intangibles {16.9) - [(16.9) {16.5)
Impact of changes
in real discount
rate on landfill
provisions 4.9 - 4.9 e
Strategy and
restructuring cost {4.8) - 4.8) (21)]
Onerous contracts 15 - 1.5 (10.2)
Pensions GMP
equatisation - - - (31
Finance charges 11 - 11 (6<)
Taxation impact
on other items 35 - 3.5 2.0
Statutory Profit
After Tax 45.6 11 46.7 18.0
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Finance Charges

Underlying financing costs fell significantly compared with the prior
year, as a result of renegotiated loan horrowing and bonding facilities
and the natural decline of the number of older, more expensive lease
liabilities. A breakdown in net finance charges is below:

IFRS 16 Pre
FYz0 Adj's IFRS16 FY19
£m £m £m £m
Interest on net
borrowings 9.0 - 9.0 9.9
Interest on lease
liabilities a.2 - 4.2 5.0
IFRS 16 leases 4.2 (4.2) - n/a
Bond premiums 16 - 1.8 1.8
Provision discount
unwind/other (0.3) - (0.3) 1.0
Net underlying
finance charges 18.7 4.2} 14.5 177
Discount unwind
on EVP instrument
and IPO costs (1.1) - (1.1) 2.4
Unamortised
arrangement fees
on old facility - - - 3.8
Net finance
charges 176 (4.2) 13.4 23.9
Taxation

The Group's tax strategy is approved annually by the Board and is
available on the Group's websita. The Group remains cornmitted
to fully discharging its responsibilities in respect of all relevant
tax legisiation in a clear and transparent manner based ona
collaborative relationship with all tax agencies.

The statutory effective tax rate was 19.2%, slightly higher than

the prevailing rate due to certain charges being disallowed for UK
corporation tax. Payments in respect of corporation tax in the year
were [£0.2m] (prior year £0.2m). The Group's deferred tax balance

of (£17.3m) includes balances totalling (£39.9m]) in respect of
Accelerated Capital Allowances, previously written off goodwill and
losses which will continue to moderate tax payrments in future years.

Earnings per Share

Underlying Earnings per Sharerose by 12.1% to 23.1 pence from
20.6 pence inthe prior year. In addition, Total Earnings per Share
increased to18.3 pence, over 154% higher than the prior year

7.2 pence, as a result of improved trading performance and lower
exceptional, non-underlying itemns.

Retirement Benefits

The Group operates defined pension schemes for certain employees.

These are closed to new members and to future accrual (except for

a small number of members who have protected entitlements under
local Governrment contracts), At 27 March 2020, the net retirerment
surplus was £124.7m (prior vear £79.0m). The Biffa Pension Scherne
had an actuarial deficit of £28.2m at the time of the last valuation

in March 2018 [compared with £66.7m in March 2015), and an
inflation-linked annual payment of £4.3m has been agreed with

the Trustee of the scheme.
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Capital Allocation

The Group seeks to balance the allocation of its discretionary capital
between shareholder returns, acquisitions and organic growth
opportunities.

Due to the impacts of COVID-19, and the prudent prioritisation of
cash conservation, the Board is not recommending a final dividend
for the FY20 year. As a result, the only dividend for the period was
the interim dividend of 2.47 pence per share.

Prior to putting all M&A activity into abeyance, due to the impending
impacts of COVID-19, the Group had continued to deliver against

its growth strategy by completing five small acquisitions for £5.1m
during the year. As the SWR business was acquired on 12 March
2019, the integration of this business, and the other six acquisitions
last year, has been a significant focus for the Group.

Cash Flow

Another year of focus on strong cash flow delivery in the year
enabled the Group to exit the year with a further strengthened
balance sheet and reduced leverage.

A sumrnary of the Group’s cash flows is shown below:

IFRS 16 Pre
FY20 Adj's IFRS 16 FY19
£fm £m £m £m
Underlying EBITDA 174.0 {18.9) 155.1 150.7
Working capital
moverment 12.8 - 12.8 [3.2)
Net capital
expenditure (65.8) - (55.8) (45.2]
Net interest paid (16.9) 4.2 (127 (18.0)
Lease principal
payments (50.2) 14.7 [35.5) (33.0)
Pension deficit
payments a1} - 4.1 [4.0)
Advance for
purchase of own
shares for share
awards (6.0) - (6.0) [1.4)
Tax paid re
acquisitions {0.2) - [0.2) [0.2)
Underlying Free
Cash Flow 53.6 - 53.6 477
Restructuring and
exceptional items 4a.2) - 14.2) (4.5)
Acquisitions (5.1) - (5.1) [41.5)
Investment in
associates {5.0) - (6.0) -
Changes in
borrowings 0.5 - 0.5 45,1
Movement in
financial assets 101 - 101 [4.4)
Dividends (18.3) - (18.3) (17.0)
Net increase/
(decrease] in
cash and cash
equivalents 21.6 - 21.6 25.4
19
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Financial review continued

Underlying Free Cash Flow increased by £5.9m in the year, driven

by working capital inflow and reduced interest costs, which offset
increased capital expenditure and purchase of own shares for share
awards. Net cashflow {excluding movement in borrowings) is stronger
thanlast year as a result of lower M&A spend, offset by the Hazardous
waste landfill tax payment to HMRC (detailed further below) and the
initial equity investment in the Newhurst Ef facility.

Systems Replacement Programme

We have made sormne substantial changes to ‘Project Fusion) the
Group's systems replacement prograrme, during the year. We were
not satisfied with the progress to date and as a result, we pausad
the programme in May 2019 in order to reassess the constituent
elements, ordering and project milestones. The increased costs
associated with this pause are included in Other Items: Strategy and
restructuring costs. We replaced the Systems Integration delivery
partner and recommenced the programme with a2 new partner in
November 2019. The programme has been paused again in April
2020 as a result of COVID-19.

Net Debt and Financing Facilities

In March 2019, the Group refinanced its bank borrowings with a new
unsecured revolving credit facility (RCF) of £3560m. This facility
had an initial five-year term and was extended by a further year

to March 2025 during the period. The RCF provided the Group with
alower than average cost of debt compared with the prior year, an
increased maturity profile and irnproved covenants. As previously
reported, after the year end, an agreement was reached with the
Group’s banks 1o revise covenants and increase liquidity headroom
for FY21 to provide appropriate flexibility to cope with the impacts
af COVID-15 in order to cater for all modeiled scenarios:

& An amended pre-IFRS 16 Net debt: EBITDA covenant for FY21 H1
of 5.5x (compared to the previous covenant of 3.5x) and an
interest cover covenant unchanged at 4x;

w An agreement that in relation to FY21 H2, the Group will be

afforded a 30% covenant headroom over and above Biffa's

forecast profit run rate as calculated in September 2020,

to cater for the current lack of visibility around the post

lackdown run rate of profitability; and

In addition, whilst the Group has sufficient liquidity to cover the

various modelled scenarios, its banks have agreed in principle,

to an additional £60m committed liguidity headroom facility,
should it be required.

Reported Net Debt at year-end breaks down as:

IFRS 16 Pra

Reported Net Debt FY20 adj’s IFRS16 FY19
(£rn) £rm £m £m £m
Cash 87.8 - 878 B68.2
Loans {249.0) - {249.0) f248.0)
Lease liabilities (258.0) 141.0 (117.0) (122.6)
EVP preference

instrument 6.3) - (6.3) (6.3)
Total {425.5) 141.0 (284.5) (310.7)

Reported Net Debt excludes £41.3m [prior year £42.3m) of EVP
preference instrument liability in respect of the EVP Dispute
(see Note 33). £6.3m of these costs is inciuded in Reported Net
Debt as it will be payable irrespective of the outcome of the
dispute and is therefore considered core debt.
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Landfill Tax Matters
The Group is currently engaged in the following disputes with HMRC:

EVP: The Group is engaged in a dispute with HMRC concerning
historical landfill tax, Biffa was successful in its appeal at the Upper
Tax Tribunal hearing held in Novernber 2019. HMRC has appealed
this decision to the Court of Appeal. This is covered in more detail
in note 34 of the accounts.

Hazardous Waste: As previously disclosed, HMRC assessed Biffa
for £8.5m of landfill tax relating to the period 2012 to 2018, Biffa
paid these monies to HMRC in Decernber 2019 and is appealing the
assessment, The cash payment is within exceptional cash flows
and is held on the balance sheet within prepayments as we expect
to successfully defend this case.

Financial Reporting Council {FRC) Information Request
In February 2018, the Group received a request for information on
the reporting treatment of certain areas from the FRC, following a
review of the Group's 2018 Annual Report and Accounts. The request
focused on four main areas—- APMs, landfill restoration and aftercare
provisions, pension schemes, and service concession arrangernents.
The Group responded fully and on a timely basis to the FREC, enabling
it tn close its enquiry in early May 2019, As a result of the enquiry, the
Group made a number of smail disclosure changes in the prior year
Financial Statements, which have also been incorporated this year.

IFRS 186

The Group has adopted IFRS 16 with effect from the start of this year.
It has not restated the prior year Financial Statements. Adoption

of IFRS 18 has no effect on how the business i5 yun, nor on the cash
flows for the Group.

The Balance Sheet impact of IFRS 18 is:

IFRS16 Pre

FY20 adj's IFRS16 FY19
(£m) £m £Em £m £m
Property, plant
and equipment 527.7 (139.4) 388.3 365.4
Lease Liability (258.0) 141.0 (117.0) (122.8)
Other 141.3 (0.6) 140.8 117.3
Net Assats 411.0 11 412.1 360.1

The impact to the trading staternent of IFRS 18 is:
IFRS 16 Pre

FY20 adj’s IFRS 16 FY19
(Em] Em £m £m £m
Underlying EBITDA 173.0 {18.9) 155.1 150.7
Depreciation (83.5) 16.1 (67.4) (69.0)
Underlying
Operating Profit 90.5 (2.8) 877 817
Underlying Profit
before tax ny 1.4 731 54.0
Underlying profit
after tax 574 11 58.5 51.5

Richard Pike

Chief Financial Officer

4 June 2020
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Operating Review

Collections Division

Jeff Anderson
Chief Operating Officer, Collections Division

The Gollections division cormprises the Industrial & Commercial
(I&C), Municipal and Specialist Services businesses. Collection
services are provided for local authority and commercial customers,
together with commuodity recycling and a wide range of additional
services including hazardous waste collection.

Industrial & Commercial

The I&C business provides waste
collection and materials handling
services for commercial customers.

Performance Summary

The I&C business performed extrernely well in the year, with revenue
growing by 7.8% to £603.7m. Organic growth of 1% was supplemented
by 8.3% from acquisitions.

In the year, we benefited significantly from SWR revenues (which

we acquired in March 2019]. We successfully integrated seven
acquisitions from FY19 into our business and made a further five small
acquisitions during the current year. Integration of these acquisitions
is progressing well and we had a strong pipeline of future opportunities
in March 2020, prior to putting all acgquisitions on hotd.

We were pleased to achieve a further year of excellent customer
retention [overall churn of 5.2%]), as well as a number of flagship
customer wins including: Transport for London, Center Parcs, SSE,
Malmaison, Barratt Homes and Skanska.

In our Small to Medium Enterprise (SME] market we had a record
year. The growth was largely driven by strong performance from our
telesales team and good progress in our lead generation capability.
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Market Conditions

(verall Biffa remnains aleader in a fragmented Collections market,
benefiting from our scale, route densities and lower operating
costs. We are seeing increasing reguirerents frorm customers

to help manage their sustainability performance, specifically
around landfill diversion and carbon emissions. Our smarter
logistics mapping aliows for constant reconfiguration of routes

to help reduce carbon ‘waste miles’ and our integrated position
means our custormers have full visibility of the waste supply chain.

Volatility in the global commodity markets depressed the value
received for recycled materials in the year. In addition, we also saw
the introduction of import tariffs on refuse derived fuel in both the
Netherlands and Sweden. Market pricing responded accordingly,
and these costs were successfully mitigated, demonstrating the
resilierice of the business model.

As discussed at cur Capital Markets Day, the I&C business intends to
reduce volume into some European export refuse derived fuel (RDF)
markets over time, and expects more UK incinerator volume, including
EfW developments planned by Biffa, to increasingly become available.

Strategy and Outlook

The I&C business has been significantly impacted by the COVID-18
crisis as many customers, particularly those in hospitality, leisure
and non-food retail, ceased or reduced trading, with revenues falling
by approximately 50% in the weeks since the financial year end.

By taking rapid action to reduce costs, we have been able to ensure
that service levels continue to be maintained at their normal very
high standards, with over 97% of services successfully provided first
time. In addition, despite these challenges, new business wins have
continued at high levels, as some smaller operators have struggled
to ensure continuity of service.

We have a clear strategy to grow the Collections business through
organic growth and the development of additional services,
supported by complementary acquisitions.

We are developing a number of new routes to market, innovating
and hroadening our digital capabilities. We are strengthening our
e-commerce capability, by adding additional custorner features on
our seif-serve web portals and introducing more digital products
to market. During the year, a new reactive wasts collection service
‘Skoup’ was introduced which enables residential and commercial
customers in the UK to order a skip, van cotlection or bag service
online. You can find out more about Skoup here: www.skoup.couk
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Operating Review continued

Collections Division continued

Specialist Services

The Specialist Services business provides
specialist, tailored and niche services to
customers who have more complex waste
requirements. It was formed through the
amalgamation of Integrated Resource
Management {IRM) and our Hazardous Wasie
operation, together with Biffpack, our plastic
packaging compliance service business.

Performance Summary

Specialist Services delivered a strong performance through
operational synergies, customer retention and some encouraging
new business wins, Revenue grew by 23.9% to £89.8m. [n IRM

we continued to secure more cormplex customers including
manufacturers such as Britvic and food processors such as Avara
Foods. We improved underlying performance in Hazardous Waste by
leveraging Biffa’s I&C customer base to provide additional collection
and treatment services to customers and this was further supported
by some encouraging new contract wins, including Royal Mint.

Through Biffpack we have a role to play in helping businesses
to meet their legal compliance with packaging regulations.
We offered free compliance workshops in the year on topics
including WEEE and batteries, to help custorners understand
the regulatory requirements.

Market Conditions

The market for Specialist Services is growing and Biffa's unique
position in having a fully integrated waste management platform
means we can tale advantage of cross-selling services from our
I&C customer base.

Going forward we will continue to engage with the UK Governrnent,
to ensure our opinions on packaging compliance reforms are
considerad during the development of new waste policy and
regulatory measures, including the Resources and Waste Strategy
in England.

Strategy and OQutlook

Specialist Services is holding up well in the current circumstances,
with IRM continuing to provide an extremely valuabie service to
the food manufacturing sector in particular, with Hazardous Waste
collections and end of life processing continuing, albeit around 20%
down on pre-COVID-19 crisis levels.

Going forward, the business has a good opportunity for growth,
particularly in the Hazardous Waste arena. This will be reflected in
our acquisition pipeline, once we ernerge from the COVID-19 crisis.

22

Municipal

The Municipal business provides household
waste and recycling collections, street
cleaning and ather services for households,
on behalf of local authorities.

Performance Summary

We have made significant progress in stabilising the business,
winning new contract tenders, building our strong order book and
achieving good operational delivery. Revenue grew by 7.7% to £177.3m.

We successfully mohilised our East Sussex and Waverley contracts,
delivering good levels of customer service and ensuring strict
Health & Safety protocols are in place. In addition, key contract
wins in the year include the waste and cleansing contracts for
Cornwall, Tandridge and Winchester Coungiis, which have added
over £300rm to the order hook.

Market Conditions

Our Municipal business is number two in the UK dornestic market,
with 35 municipal contracts and is regarded by local authorities

as a key partner, delivering a high-quaility service. The market
remains competitive; however, we are seeing a shift in approach
and some parties are now exiting the market, resulting in increased
stabilisation. This in turn is leading to more maturity in the sales
and procuremaent processes and a more equitabie risk balance
between the public and the private sactor.

The business is well placed to benefit from the Government's
Resources and Waste Strategy (RWS) in the next few years as
dernand for recycling services frorm local authorities increases.

We are also seeing more willingness from local authorities to
increase their budgets for waste contracts as they appreciate that
a sustainable quality service is more beneficial over the long term.
Labour supply, including driver availability continues to be a key
risk, but we are confident that we have the best team in place to
manage our business needs.

Strategy and Outlook

The Municipal business has remained resilient in the current
market conditions, with revenues remaining stable. The business
has worked with clicnts to ensure continvity of almost all services
and the team is performing admirably despite the inevitable
increased employee absence due to COVID-18.

Going forward, the business will continue to focus on delivering an
efficient, high-quality service, keeping costs firmly under control
and delivering efficiencies through the increased use of technology.

We will continue to build our complementary and adjacent Non-
Local Government revenue strearas whilst delivering high quality,
cornrmercially robust and risk appropriate tenders for new business
in our core market.

We have enhanced gur technolagy capabilities by investing in
the rernote monitoring of vehicles to improve safety performance
and customer service.

Inline with our sustainability ambitions, we are supporting
Manchester City Council with the implernentation of electric
refuse collection vehicles. We are committed to being at the
forefront of this innovation and ermbracing this technology
forms a key part of Biffa's Sustainability Strategy and our
target to reduce carbon emissions by 50% by 2030. You can
read more on this here: www.biffa.co.uk/sustainability
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Operating Review continued

Resources & Energy Division

Mick Davis
Chief Operating Officer, Resources & Energy Division

The R&E business, which includes Recycling,
Organics, Inerts and Land{ill Gas, focuses

on the treatment, recycling, energy recovery
and ultimate disposal of waste. Net revenue
in the year was £232.1m.

Biffa Annual Report and Accounts 2020

Performance Summary

Recycling

Our recycling facilities comprise our Polymars plastics business
and our materials recycling facilities (MRFs).

In our Polymers business we have seen increasing demand for
recycled plastics result in revenues increasing by 0.4% to £79.5m
and (as described on page 24) we have invested £15m in the

first phase of a new 57kt PET facility in Seaham during the year
to satisfy the growing demand in this space.

We faced variable cornmodity prices in the year, which reinforced
the need for us to change our business model to improve gate fees
and lower commodity expasure. We have repurposed some of
these facilities from dry mixed recyclables to focus purely on
plastics so we can increase capacity and produce feedstock for
our Polymers business.

Organics

Revenue decreased by 7.8% to £566.8m due to a mixture of service
contract changes in West Sussex, where material is now sent to
EfW rather than landfill and the impact of planned maintenance
downtime in Poplars, reducing energy generation. Our Leicester
site has had a solid year with improving underlying performance.

Inerts

Landfill has had a strong year, improving tonnage from 2.8 to 2.9MT,
offsetting a modest reduction in average gate fees due to changes
in geographic and waste type mix. These volumes have been
underpinned by our rail hub operations in Leeds and Manchester.
Soil and aggregate treatment operations have also had a solid year.
As aresult, net revenue in the business grew by 11.2% to £562.4m.

Landfill gas

Ongoing landfill gas yield declines were lower than recent years due
to strong operational performance. Higher average forward-selling
prices achieved (£49.23 per MWh in FY20 versus £46.00in FY19)
have been offset by a lower ROC upside.
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Operating Review continued

Resources & Energy Division continued

Market Conditions

We continue to experience strong demand for plastics recycling
material as a result of ongoing consumer and brand preference
coupled with emerging Government policy.

In the budget it was announced that a plastics tax of £200/t would
be introduced from 2022, The additional measures announced in
the Government’s RWS are subject to ongoing congultation, bul ate
generally expected to have a positive market impact on recycling
levels, which will provide the right conditions for companies, such
as Riffa. tn invest in waste infrastructure.

The landfill market continues to see the closure of sites as void
space is filled with nonear term sites replacing them. This i
resulting in fewer landfill sites within the UK and waste being
transported further. Biffa has responded by expanding its current
rail hub programmae, which can transport inert waste cost effectively
to alternative sites with capacity.

Whilst the market prices for energy have weakened, Biffa has
forward sold c90% of its FY21 gutput.

The growth of separate food waste collections has been limited
during the last year and there continues to be an excess of anacrohic
digestion processing capacity, placing pressure on gate fees. However,
through gur scale, operational expertise and collection network, we
rermain well positioned to benefit from a rebalancing in this market as
tha RWS measures around food segragation are introduced over time.
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Strategy and Dutlook

The impact of COVID-19 across R&E is varied, with the most
notable impact being on Biffa’s landfill sperations, which rely an
the construction industry for a large proportion of their business
and have sgen revenues reduce by around 50% from their position
prior to COVID-19. The other areas of the business, whilst impacted,
are holding up well.

Going forward we will continue to focus on expanding our capacity
for closed-loop recyeling, which is the highest-grade (food grade
material) and therefore has the highest value.

In January 2020, we opened the first phase of our £27.5m rPET plastics
recycling site in Seaham, County Durham. The plant, which can
recycle the equivalent of 1.3bn plastic bottles per annum, was built
on budget and on schedule and was fully operational at the start

of the new financial year. We also announced a new £7m facility

in Washington, Tyne & Wear, which will expand our recycling
capabilities for plastic pots, tubs and trays. These combined
investiments will increase Biffa's total recycled plastic progessing
capability to 140,000 tonnes per annurm. '

EfW forms a key part of our strategy. The Newhurst EfW developraent '
roached financial close on 11 February 2020 and will commence
operations during 2023. As previously disclosed, Biffa's financial
commitment to this development will be cE45m over the next
three years. We continue to progress our second opportunity,
Protos in Cheshire, and are at 4n advanced stage of this evaluation.

We announced in our Sustainability Strategy that we will look

toinvest in solar energy generation on closed or restored landfill

sites, Our low cost access to the grid and large land holdings make '
this an interesting future investment opportunity.

We will continue to expand our rail hub network to support our
land[ill uperalions, together with optimising gas, electrical and
material yields whilst maintaining operational efficiency across
all gur sites.
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Sustainability

Our ambitious
approach to
sustainability

In March 2020 we launched our Sustainability
Strategy: Resourceful, Responsible.

The strategy builds on our long track recerd of making a positive
contribution to the environment and cornmunities we operate in,
outlining Biffa's ambition to drive the sustainability agenda within
the UK waste management industry for the next 10 years. It is
underpinned by an ambitious but deliverable plan, which is aligned
to our strategic framework and fully supported by our previously
outlined investment plans.

In the strategy, we pledged to continue bujlding on the significant
progress that we have made in recent years to decarhonise our
services, which has already seen CO: emissions reduce by 85% since
2002. In the year we reduced our emissions by over 23%; however

we have big ambitions and are targeting a further 50% reduction in
ernissions by 2030. This will be achieved through increased recycling,
diversion from landfill and by improving collection route densities.

Our Sustainability Strategy has been informed by recognised best
practice, new and emerging UK and EU waste and circular economy
policies, and the United Nations Sustainable Development Goals.

Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs)
Under each strategy pillar we have mapped the SDGs to demonstrate
how we are making a contribution.

You can read more about this in the Sustainability Strategy, which
is available at: www.biffa.co.uk/sustainability

Strategic Pillars Strategic Arnbitions

Targets to 2030 Alignment to the SDGs

BU.l].dIII.g a circular Unlock £1.25bn of investment

m Expanding our low-carbon

in green econoray infrastructure collection business
economy b
v 2030 .
m Quadrupling our
plastic recycling
m Investing in low carbon,
Energy fror Waste
Tackling climate Having reduced emissions by m 50%reductionin
change B65% since 2002, we will deliver carbon ernissions
af i
urther 50% reduction by 2030 m Cease buying fossil-fuelled
collection vehicles
m Increase collection route
efficiency by 20%
Caring for our peop]_e' To be recognised as a top ranked m Tocontinuouslybe a
ti employer and to continue to top quartile business for
supporting our be a good corporate citizen, Employee Engagement
communities supporting good causes to

malke a real difference

m 50% reduction in our
Lost Time Injury rate

m Manage 30% of our estate
for biodiversity

Biffa Annuat Report and Accounts 2020
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Sustainability continued

Environmental Performance

Biffa has a tearn of environmmental regulation and policy specialists,
who engage with the UK Government, regulators and policy makers
to help shape the national regulatory and policy framework in
relation to environmental matters.

We also provide our expertise in our Reality Check papers, published
on our website, which cover important topics such as recycling,
plastics and waste {reatment.

<G> Toread these papers visit:
www.biffa.co.uk/media-centre/publications

Below is our streamlined energy and carbon reporting data for year
ended 27 March 2020. Further environmental data can be found at:
www.biffa.co.uk/sustainability/environmental-performance

Global GHG Emissions and Energy Use Data for period 1 April 2019 to 27 March 2020

Currentreporting year Cormparison reporting year

2019/2u £016/10
Ermissions from activities for which the company own or control
including combustion of fuel & operation of facilities (Scope 1] A0 (ktns] 543 716*
Emissions from purchase of electricity, heat, steam and cooling
purchased for own use (Scope 2) ACD.e (ktns) 29 31
Total gross scope 1 & 2 emissions/tCOze (ktns) 572 747
Intensity ratio: tCOqe (gross scope 1 & 2 emissions per employee) 71 95
* Scope 1 ernissions for 2018/19 have heen restated as improved diesel data has now become available.
Energy consumption used to calculate the above emissions
Current reporting vear Comparisonreporting
Climate change/GHG ernissions table [Total kWh): 2019/20 yesr 2018719
Methane emissions {utilised) 434,148 447,463
Diesel fuel used 118,367,933 474,364,638
Red diesel usad 80,800,198 89,689,097
Unleaded petrol used 846,055 1,251,656
Keroseng used 108,848 56,240
LPG 8,164 15,782
Natural gas 7,700,877 8,952,145
Purchased electricity 76,685,813 73,334,935
Self-supplied electricity 37,460,319 36,692,163
Total KWh 653,310,355 682,844 119

To calculate the ahove consumnption figures, we used methodology based on Energy Savings Opportunity Scheme (ESOS]) and CRGC Energy
Efficiency Scheme compliance.

Following our ESOS audit, cornpleted in Novernber 2018, a nurmber of Biffa's sites undertook energy saving projects. These included installing
LED lighting at 45 of our sites and PIR rnotion sensors at 11 of our sites, both aimed at reducing electricity consumption.

Overall, we reduced carbon emissions by 23% in the year. We achieved this through a combination of landfill gas reduction and an improvement
in how we capture gas for renewable energy generation purposes.

Energy Generation

2020 2019
Generation [GWh) 423 441
Carbon benefit (kt COe) 108 125
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Non-Financial Information Statement

Our Annual Report and Accounts details our approach to environmental, social and employee related matters. The table below outlines
where in the report you can find this information and where additional information can be found on our website.

Main policies and standards which govern our approach

Where to find further information

Anti-fraud, bribery
and corruption

m Anti-fraud, bribery and corruption policy
and procedures
® Whistleblowing policy and procedures

Our People (pages 29 to 31)

Audit Committee Report [page 57)

Business model,
principal risks and
non-financial KPIs

m Business model
Principal risks
m Non-financial KPIs

Group at a glance [pages 2 to 3]

Principal risks (pages 34 to 38]

Key performance indicators
[pages 14 to 17)

Employees

Erpioyee handbook

Corporate responsibility statement
Sustainability strategy

Diversity policy

Health, safety and wellbeing policy
Whistleblowing policy and procedures

Our People [pages 29 and 31)

www.biffa.co.uk/sustainability/
corporate-social-responsibility

www.biffa.co.uk/sustainability

Environmental matters

m Corporate responsibility staterment
m Sustainability strategy

See page 26

www.biffa.couk/sustainability/
corporate-social-responsibility

Human rights

Employee handboak

Corporate responsibility statement

Modern slavery and human trafficling policy
Supplier Code of Conduct

Our People [pages 29 to 31)

www.hiffa.couk/sustainability/
corporate-social-responsibility

www.hiffa.cauk/about-us/suppliers

Social matters

s Corporate responsibility statement
® Sustainability strategy

Our People [pages 29 to 31)
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Health and Safety

Keeping our people

safe and well

Keeping our people safe and well is our
absolute priority. This extends to the
safety of our contractors, customers
and mernbers of the public. The Board
has overall responsibility for Health &
Safety, including setting policy and
reviewing performance.

Health and Safety Policy

Qur H&S policy outlines our approach to health, safety and wellbeing
across the Group. In order to support the implementation of the
policy, we have a set of management standards which apply to all ot
Biffa's aperations. In the year, we undertook a project to corsaolidate
these into 20 Group standards which cover key areas of H&S, such
as waste handling processing and traffic management. Training is
provided to employees, including contractors, to ensure compliance.

Performance

During the year we had cur best ever H&S performance, significantly
reducing the number of LTIs across the organisation by 42% (39 in
2019/20 compared with 67 in 2018/18). This achievement was the
result of great efforts by all our ermployees, supportad by our “Watch
your Step’ carnpaign, which resulted in a 50% reductionin the
number of slips, trips and falls from the previous year.

Lost Time Injury and RIDDOR Rate

28

Despite our recent positive performance, there is still much to do.
Our long-term cornmitraent is to create a zero harm environment,
with no injuries or work related ill health across our team. We are
aiming for a further 50% reduction in our LTI rate by 2030.

To support us nn this journey, we implemented or continued the
following initiatives in the year:

Safer Together

‘Safer Together', which launched in February 2020, is our new H&S
programume centred on collective responsibility by working together
to ensure the safety of our people and those we work with, including
contractors, customers and members of the public.

The foundation of the programme is the Safer Together Pact:

All our senior leaders attended a two hour Safer Together leadership
training experience so they can continue to lead by examp!le, This
will be supported by training for managers, supervisors, drivers and
front line operatives throughout the year ahead,

People in Bins

Biffa is working collaboratively with the waste industry, hormelessness
charities and mmembers of the public to address the growing issue

of people sieeping in bins, which poses significant H&S risk. By
raising awareness of what preventative measures need to be taken,
by both drivers and membars of the public, we hope to prevent these
incidents from oceurring. This includes, training our own drivers on the
importance of checking bins before they are collected and reporting
such encounters to Street Link, a national rough sleaping reporting
service. You can read more about our research and action plan on
our website here: wwwhitfa.co.uk/media-centre/publications

Driving Recklessly on Pavements (DRoPs)

Our ernployees continue to face the threat of rackless and aggressive
drivers who do not have the courtesy or patience to allow them to
perform their duties. Biffa is committed to raising awareness of the
social unacceptability of DRoPs to help protect the safety of our
crews and the public.
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Our People

Engaging
our people

Qur services are delivered by a team of
over 8,000 colleagues across Biffa. We
work hard to create a culture and an
environment that allows everyone to work
effectively and safely and to contribute to
the growth of the organisation. Our People
Strategy guides our pricrities with a focus
on; Attraction, Leadership, Engagement,
Development and Performance.

Our policies ensure that our positions on key topics are clearly
defined and cormnmunicated to our employees and that we all
take consistent and appropriate action.

Our Values

Our values [Be safe, Be innovative, Be customer focused, Be a team
player and Be accountable] help guide cur people in their daily
activities and support our behavioural framework. They describe
the behaviours we encourage all ernployees to adopt to best serve
the interests of our customers, employees and the business overall.
We have been finalising a new set of values over recent months to
reflect our evolving position as key workers and to better capture
the sentiment of how we act. Once approved, they will be embedded
internally over the coming months.

Health and Wellbeing

We care about the health and wellbeing of our employees. Oux

“& Me" programme focuses on aspects of health and wellbeing

that are particularly relevant to Biffa. The programme delivers
regular campaigns, training and offers a dedicated website with
advice and guidance on how to improve wellbeing. We also have
our Smarter Ways of Working programmme which supports flexible
working and work-life balance and provides a confidential Employee
Assistance Programme with a 24-hour helpline.

Biffa Annual Report and Accounts 2020

Board Engagement Activities

David Martin, our Senior Independent Director, has Board
responsibility for workforce engagement. David has attended,
and been privy to, a number of employee-related activities
over the course of the year, which have provided opportunities
to interact directly with representative groups of employees

in a variety of forums.

This included attending events such as employee roadshows,
manager conferences, employee focus groups and the annual
Diamond Award ceremony.

In addition, David attended, with the Group Executive

Tearn, a presentation on the results of the annual employee
engagement survey and employee action plan reviews with

the CEO, Group HR Director and the lead employee engagement
champions, where he had the opportunity to consider and raise
questions about the annual employee engagement survey and
subsequent action planning activities.

David has provided feedback to the Board on engagement
activities and provided a full report at the April 2020 meeting
when the engagement plan for 2020/21 was also agreed.
Site visits for future Board meetings will be structured to
accommodate general discussion with employee groups.

“Having completed a full year undertaking the
responsibilities of the Non-Executive Dirsctor

for Workforce Engagement, I am content that the
Terms of Reference and Engagement Framework is
proving fit for purpose, and providing me with ample
opportunity to sample reactions and viewpoints of
the workforce at large.”

“At all the meetings I attended I noted high levels
of motivation, engagement and pride at being part
of a successful business and significant buy-in

to ‘changing the way people think about waste’ a
purpose which has landed strongly across a range
of employees and managers.”

“I was very impressed at the constructive input from
all participants, which gave me confidence to advise
the Board that so far [ have seen practical evidence
of our values being openly expressed and validated
by a good cross-section of employees.”

David Martin
Non-Executive Director for Workforce Engagement

Details of how the Board has considered employea
interests during the year in its decision making are
set out on pages 48 to 49
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Qur People continued

Engaging our Employees

Creating high levels of employee engagerent is one of our top
priorities and is central to our People Strategy; we strive to make
Biffa a consistently great place to work. Since 2011, the percentage
of engaged employees at Biffa has doubled and in the past year
our overall level of engagement has remained stable at 58%,
following a 5% point increase last year. Although levels have
remained stable this year, we are still ahead of our strategic
target and ahead of the UK average. We engage with our employees
throughout the year through multiple comrnunication channels
including: face-to-face roadshows, conference calls, recorded
viogs and our employee app, Bitfa Beat.

In addition, we recognise aur ermnployees and teams who have gone
the ‘extra mile’ through our annual Diamond Award cerermony.

Learning and Development

We continue to invest in the personal development of our colleagues.
Our Learning and Development Tearm provides a broad selection

of programmes ranging from compliance and technical training to
management and leadership development. We have also invested
ina comprehensive portfolio of e-learning modules, allowing all our
employees access to relevant and timely learning content.

One key area of focus for 2020 is our Advanced Leadership
Prograrmmume. This new senior leader developrment programume
will accelerate the development of some of our brightest talent
across the organisation.

We continue to offer a portfolio of apprenticeship programmes
which range from engineering apprenticeships through to master's
in business administration.

Anti-fraud, Bribery and Gorruption

Our anti-fraud, bribery and corruption policy and procedure sets
out tha standards that are expected of employees and the systermns
and procedures which Biffa employs to minimise the opportunity
for fraudulent or corrupt hehavianr taking place and how it will
deal with any instances of such behaviour. [t applies to all our
employess and appropriate parts of the policy are also applied to
representatives, joint venture partnars and outsourcing partners.

Promoting Diversity and Inclusion (D&I)

We are cornmitted to prormoting D&I across all areas, including
gender and ethnicity. The industry in which we operate has
traditionally employed more men than women. Across the Group,
the workforce comprises 12% fernale and 88% male employees. There
is therefore lots more to do in this area and it rernains a key focus.

The Company entered the FT5E 258 in March 2020 and we will
submit the gender data on our Group Executive Team and their
direct reports ta the Hampton-Alexandar Review in Novermber
2020. The table below shows our employment by gender in each
of the relevant categories.

We believe that diversity enhances our effectiveness and we will
continue to address our gender imbalance when making future
Board and senior leader appointments and will strive to develop
a diverse pipeline of executive talent.

Although women account for only 12% of the overall workforge,
they are better represented within professional and managerial
roles which means on average thay receive high leveis of pay
in our business. This results in a negative gender pay gap.

More information can ba found in our Gender Pay Gap report:
www.hiffa.co.uk/sustainability/corporate-social-tesponsibility

We are working to create a consistently inclusive environment
where differences are valued and all colleagues can thrive.

We delivered D&] training to our senior leaders during 2019,
introduced an e-learning module on diversity for all managers
and plan to deliver D& training to front line employees during 2020.

Our diversity policy also covers specific arrangernents for people
with disabilities including:

u giving full and fair consideration to applications from disabled
persons, having regards for their skills and abilities;

m continuing the employment of and arranging appropriate training
for those who have become disabled while at Biffa; and

» career development and promotion of disahlad amployees.

More inforrnation (including targets for the next 10 years)
can be found in our Sustainability Strategy: www.biffa.co.uk/

It includes guidance to ernployees on the giving, receiving and sustainability

recording of business gifts and hospitality. There is an e-learning

module on this topic for all Biffa leaders and managers to ensure

they understand and adhere to this. Any breaches of policy are

investigated by the Head of Risk and Internal Audit and are reported

to the Audit Committee (see details on whistleblowing].

Our Gender Statistics:
Male Female Non-Disclosed Total

Category No's % No’s % No’s % No's %
Board B 85.7% 1 14.3% 0 0.0% 7 100.0%
Group Executive Team <] 857% 1 14.3% 0 0.0% 7 100.0%
Direct Reports to Group Executive Team 28 T3.7% 10 26.3% o 0.0% 38 100.0%
All Employees 7,180 87.4% 1,028 12.6% 0 0.0% 8,188 100.0%

Board = Chairman, Non-Executive Director's and Executive Director's
Group Executive Team = Executive Directors’ and E Grades

Direct Reports to Group Executive Team = Direct Reports to E Grades {except PA'S)

All Ernployees = AllEmployees
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Ethics and Human Rights

We conduct our business with hpnesty, integrity, fairness and
respect and encourage all our employees to embrace these
principles, Our employee handbook sets out our expectations
and we also have specific policies including whistleblowing,
anti-fraud, bribery and corruption, disciplinary and grievance
matters, diversity and inclusion and preventing modern slavery.

Preventing Modern Slavery

Medern slavery is a growing world-wide issue exacerbated by the rapid
risa in global migration. We operate at over 200 sites across the UK
and employ more than 8,000 people, as well as many agency staff. We
also have relationships with many external suppliers to source labour
and materials for our business. It is therefore imperative to maintain a
robust and effective approach towards slavery and hurnan trafficking
in order to protect our people and supply chain. We procure goods
and services under the Code of Ethics of the Chartered Institute of
Procurement & Supply and complete due diligence checks on new
and existing suppliers. There is an e-learning module on modern
slavery for all leaders and managers to build their knowledge and
understand their responsibilities,

More information can be found in our Modern Slavery
Statement: www.biffa.co.uk/media-centre/publications
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Whistleblowing

The Group has a lang established whistleblowing policy and
procedure by which all employees may, in confidenece, report any
concerns where the interests of the Company or others are at risk.
Employees are encouraged in the first instance to talk to their
manager, a higher leve! of management or a member of the HR
team. However, in circumstances where this is not possible, or is
inappropriate, the Group has provided an independent, external
whistleblowing hotline, via Safecall, for the reporting of such
matters on a named or anonymous basis.

All reports are entered in the Group Whistleblowing Register and
are treated in the strictest confidence. The output of an investigation
is typically reviewed by a review body, which confirms the outcome
and any action to be taken, comprising the Group HR Director,
General Counsel & Company Secretary and other senior leaders as
appropriate, dependent on the nature of the complaint. The policy
is reviewed annually to ensure it is fit for purpose and continues
to reflect best practice. There were 38 whistleblowing reports in
the year ended 27 March 2020, nearly 80% of them being in the
categories of inappropriate behaviour or dishonesty.

In five of these cases process/system changes were recommended
tobe enacted. In the other 19 cases the investigation completed,
but did not result in sufficient evidence to warrant disciplinary
action or a change to existing processes or systems.

Giving Back to our Communities

We encourage all colleagues to ‘'give something hack’ and are
proud to partner the charity WasteAid, as well as supporting
local communities through employee volunteering, local
fundraising activities and biodiversity initiatives.

We support our employees in their volunteering activities
within their local coramunities. We believe that, in addition to
giving something back to society, volunteering results in better
teamwork, motivation, engagement and personal fulfilment for
employees. During the year, more than 56 employees took

part in volunteering activities.

We also have the Biffa Award which diverts a proportion of landfill
tax to help support community projects near landfill sites. During
the year, 44 projects received funding of more than £3m to support
the improvement of land for biodiversity, the improvernent of
community buildings, such as village halls and the installation of
recreational facilities such as play equipment, We are committed
to providing an additional £25m to local communities by 2030.

You can read more about our people and cornmunities
in our Sustainability Strategy here: www.biffa.co.uk/
sustainability/downloads
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Managing our Risks

Managing risks

through unprecedented .
clrcumstances !

The Board has overall responsibility for risk
management at Biffa. In support of this, risk
management is firmly emmbedded within our
evaryday business activities and our culture.

Clearly the evolving COVID-19 crisis has had a significant impact

on the Group. Whilst Biffa has continued its operations throughout
the unprecedented circumstances, there has been increased risk to
the I&C and Jandfill businesses in particular. Further detail on risk
management throughout the COVID-19 crisis is provided in Principal
Risks and Uncertainties on pages 34-38.

Risk Governance

The Board recognises its responsibility to ensure that the Group's
internal control systems and risk management framework are
effective. The Audit Cormmmittee has specific delegated authority
to review the effectiveness of tha risk management and internal
control processes during the year,

Day-to-day risk management and conliul is the responsibility of
the Group Executive Team, with Board oversight, and is designed
to ensure that management provides leadership and direction to
emplovees so that our overall risk-taking activity is kept within our
risk appetite.

Biffa operates the ‘Three Lines of Defence’ model to manage the
ongoing effectiveness of risk and contral, to define the relationship
between the various management and oversight functions, and to
demonstrate how responsibilities are allocated. The Internal Audit
team assesses our risks and controls independently and objectively.

32

Risk Appetite

The Board sets our overarching risk appetite and ensures that we
manage risk appropriately across the Group. H&S, regulatory and
environmental risks are pur top priority. Biffa dedicates significant
resources and focus to managing and monitering these riskson a
rtatly hasis, with other key risks considered and reviewed alongside
this. In each case, controls and mitigating actions aligned to the nisk
appetite are put in place.

Risk Assessment

Arisk assessment matrix is used to ensure that risks are assessed
consistently. This matrix considers the likelihood of the risk
materialising and its potential impact. We assess both the inherent
risk, before any mitigating actions, and the residual risk, after
considering mitigating actions and controls. We also identify any
additional activities that could be undertaken to further mitigate
the risk.

Emerging Risks

In addition to known risks, we identify and analyse emerging risks
and the nesd for mitigation as part of our existing risk management
processes. These risks are reviewed by both the Group Executive
Team and the Audit Committee, and include risks relating to climate
rhange, such as flood risk arising from high rainfall, and pandemic
and infections diseases.
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Risk Management Processes

The Group's risk management processes are centrally coordinated
with an established network of ‘Risk Charnpions’ in place to
facilitate updates to risks during the year. The Risk Champions
are members of the senior management team and take a lead role
in engaging local management to identify, agree and update risk
information on a regular basis,

The Group Executive Team receives regular reports an the principal
and emerging risks and ownership of each of these risks is assigned
to individual members of the Team.

The Audit Committee undertakes regular reviews of the principal
and emerging risks, as identified and assessed by management
through the above process. The Audit Committee also reviews
sumrnaries of the work undertaken by the Internal Audit team,
which operates a risk-based annual plan of assurance reviews.

Our risk management systems are intended to mitigate and reduce
risk to the lowest extent possible, however we cannot eliminate

all risks to the Group. The risk management processes can only
provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or 10ss.

Risk Management Framework

Board

Audit Committee

Group Executive Team

|

1

|

1stline of defence

Owns and manages risks
and implements/operates
business controls

2nd line of defence

Oversight of risks and
control compliance

Whois responsible:
m Operational management/staff

Activity/controls:
m Policies and procedures
m Internal controls

= Planning, budgeting,
forecasting processes

m Delegated authorities

m Business workilows/IT
system controls

m Personal objectives
and incentives

Whois responsible:
w Corpliance/oversight functions

Activity/controls:
m Health, Safety & Quality Team
with audit prograrme in place

® Environmental/regulatory compliance
w Risk management
w Controls compliance monitoring

m Management/Board reporting
and review of KPIs and financial
performance

m Corporate policies and central

function oversight B
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3rd line of defence

Independent
assurance

Who is responsible:
= Internal Audit

Activity/controls:
m Approved Internal Audit plan

® Internal Audit reporting line
to Audit Coramittee

® Regular Internal Audit updates
to Audit Cornrnittes
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Principal Risks and Uncertainties

Risk title/description Riskmovement  Mitigating actions Changes in year Strategic
and Impact objective
Changes in Government Experienced and qua!iﬁed environmental Publie;heq reports [Reali_tv
policy and logal and - Suppart ezpats wirking scrss o Choskdoiss on Roeyilng
regulatory comp}lance = Opesational  pepreentats Environmenta Managing Waste Plastics. Optimise
The Group operatesina ; : epresentation on the Environmental
; 1 X m Financial Services Association and other external 10-year Sustainability Strategy
highly regulated industry and w Reputational  ppdjes; liaison with policy makers and ‘Resourceful, Responsible'
any changes to Government m Regulatory Regulators at national and local levels; developed and launched in
policy, standards or regulatory responses to Government/regulatory March 2020, which helps link
compliance requirements consultations and sustainability reporting. Ts_he ::ci;nr;;:;;;i?é gtéatsg:r with N
could have an adverse impact F:nvirgpmental complignce(jstrategy in glace t:fg:ts. ?['heszsre i:liieei‘{ﬂaln
on the Groug's operations aetons o toosn diviciorr and Graup lovels, UK Bovermment onvironmontal
and results. S cal P ) policy and objectives, as well as
Established compliance processes in place the United Nations Sustainable
to manage other regulatory compliance risks, Development Coals.
such as anti-bribery and corryption, GDPR,
modern slavery, cornpetition and vehicle
operating licences.
Founding mernber of the Siave Free Alliance
and has irmplemented several initiatives,
including a manager's guide to medern
slavery, to raise awareness across the business.
Training for senior leaders onmodern
slavery, anti-bribery and cerruption, GDPR
and competition.
Health & Safetv (H&S) Group H&S function reports ta the CEQ. New H&S Programme - Safer
Biffa's pperations present Active and regular engagement by senior Together launched.
inherent H&S risks to our i managernent including weelly reporting Existing H&S standards updated Optimise
employees, our customers : Ir;'gg]‘;lti‘;:;‘al and calls with the Group Executive Team. Ia:tcl i;\cturglabo/[ra:;d ir;;z :tréexgztG[{:up
and the wider public. m Financial Inclusion of HES targets and objectives within grated Hanage ystern.
Group Balanced Business Plans (BBP] with one New driver training programrne
Violations of H&S laws/ of the five pillars being ‘Safe and Sustainable’ - Strestwise developed which
Slaws 2 A wh
regulations could have a Ernbedded policies, standards and procedures f)ori‘uae‘:;sog?sdetenswe driving
material adverse effect on in place across Biffa for the systematic control e .
Biffa's business and reputation. of significant H&S risks. Wellbix)g plrogrteam{ne del;fered
Primary Authority relationship with Hampshire f:e‘-)r?to;.\l Ilf;ilﬁ‘v oplcs suchas
Fire and Rescue Service enables access to )
advice and nnunsel on fire risk issues.
Managernent systern transitioned to IS0 14001
and IS0 9001:20156.
Mergers & Acquisitions Group delegated authorities for the review/ During the year we have
{M&A) strategy and appraval of all transactions by senior continued pur MEA strategy to
deli manageraent, Investment Cormmittee support growth and completed
eilvery Ti a1 and the Board. five enall anquisitions. Grow
Bitffa faces risks arising from 8 Flnancla . ) . )
; s Dedicated corporate finance expertise in We have also worked ta integrate
its ?cq0151t10n strate.g\-r, such place together with experienced Biffa subject the previous year's acquisitions
as increased competition for matter eXperts as senior stakeholders for the including the internalisation Develop

acquisition targets or a lack of
suitable targets. Additionally,
acquisition integration

risks and issues could drise,
impacting the delivery of
expected benefits, either
within expected timeframes
or to the extent anticipated.

acquisition process.

Board and executive level review and update
included in monthly Board report summarising
pipeline of identified potential targets.

Due diligence undertaken for all M&A
transactions, including use of external
advisers depending on target value and
complexity. A standardised approach using
an established valuation model is in place
with all transactions reviewed/approved
by the Investment Cornmittee and [where
appropriate) the Board.

Project teamn kept in place until integratian
phase completed. Post-acquisition reviews to
track benefit delivery with financial benefits
embedded within financial planning processes
{e.g. forecasts and budgets).

of SWR sustoraer sellections
previously outsourced. This
activity will complete next year.

Post COVID-19 we anticipate
returning to a strong pipeline
of opportunities.
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Risk title/description Risk movement Mitigating actions Changes in year Strategic
and Impact objective
Long-term contracts \L Group delegated authorities for the review/ Continued focus on the sales
5 approval of bids by senior management, governance process including:
and tend‘_’nng . the Investment Committee and the Board The devel fth
The Group is exposed to risks i id sizel. & The development of the Grow
- . (depending on bid size) tract risk fr Kt
inherent in long-term fixed- = Financial o ) : contract risk Irameworx ta
. . . s Reputational  Material bids are compiled by dedicated formalise the governance
price contracts, in particular development teams with significant expertise approach to key commercial/
in its Municipal division and and experience. They are supparted by subject legal risks, which has been
related operations. Risks matter experts as appropriate. approved by the Board,
include inaccurate long-term Protection from change of law or force majeure - H“prgYI?d capacity and "
i for unforeseen circumstances is designed eapability across our p '?jec.
cost estimates due to changes o - menagemment and mobilisation
in the external operating 1nto Gontracts. team facilitating a culture of
environment and market A contract risk framework is in place to identify continuous improvement.
s : key cormumercial/legal risks and confirm m Restructure of the commercial/
dvn.a r[pcs that le.al.i ?0 material through the governance process that these sales function, integrating
deviations from initial have been considered and mitigated. leadership under the new
underlying assumptions. Municipal Cormmercial
Director, but also adding
additional suppart in both
the commercial and business
development teams.
coviD-19 * The Group has introduced measures ta reduce See pages 6 to 7 for more
somi £ . P casts, including furloughing over 1,500 information.
Asignification re duothn o employees: pay reductions being taking by
demand for I&C Collection a Financial the Board, the Group Leadership Team and the Grow
services, a5 many customers a Operational broader leadership group; and suspension of
are forced to cease or m Reputational ~ bonuses and pay increases.
drastically reduce trading, All M&A has been suspended and non-essential Optimise
may have an adverse capital expenditure that has not already been
: Iy . committed for FY21 has been put on hold.
impact on Biffa’s operating In addition, payment deferrals have been
performance, revenues negotiated where appropriate and meaningful
and results of aperations. in areas such as indirect taxes, pensions, lease
L liabilities and material supplies.
In agdition, the. Gml'lp Covenant amendments and additional
expects reductions in liquidity headroom have been agreed
volumes into some processing with the Group's banks.
facilities in the R&E division An internal response team has been set up to
and impacts to all business ensure we suppart the heaith and wellbeing of
operations from workforce our colleagues, manage business continuity,
: pravide clear and timely comumunications and
illness or enforced absence. rminirise service disruption,
All staff who are abie to have been advised to
work from home and social distancing applied
across our workplaces.
Internal communications and engagement
have been key with CEQ vlogs, intermal
appreciation campaigns and our employee
App, Biffa Beat all contributing,
Biffa Annual Report and Accounts 2020 35
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Principal risks and uncertainties continued

Risk title/description Risk movement Mitigating actions Changes in year Strategic
and Impact objective
Business continuity, Crisis management and emergency response Continued testingand
cyber securitv and plans in place for key sites and operations. improvernent of Biffa Business
. : Continuity arrangements -
IT resilience Server infrastructure supporting key IT th hout th Optimise
A significant disruption to m Financial services hosted in Microsoft Azare Cloud roughout the year.
ciroe ! . m Reputational  providing resilience, failover and backup Business continuity capability
Biffa’s infrastructure. including o Operatipnal services. dernonstrated during COVID-19
1T systems, could potentially S \ . crisis whereby the majority of
L L 180 27001 certification (Information Security) "
have an impact on the activity in place. contact centre and head ?‘fﬁce
of the Group's custorners, such . - fanctions ensbled to work from.
) s . Externally hosted business continuity
as increased billing times, recovery sites in place for key administrative
interruptions to collection and support functions with a tri-annual testing
operations and processing prograrune in place.
logistics, and additional costs. Intrusion defection in place and a ¢loud-
based ‘always on’ security sexvice provided by
Additionally, the theft, loss, Microsoft protecting against key cyber threats.
destruction, misappropriation Cyber security education initiatives taken place.
or release of sensitive and/or
confidential information
could resuli in business
disruption, negative
publicity or brand damage.
Economic environment/ Biffa has revenues an_d costs that are either W't_1i1§t we continue to monitor
Brexit directly or indirectly impacted by the value this risk, we are confident that
. . . of Sterling relative to key currencies such as our existing mitigations will
Ecanomic conditions in the £ (] the US Dollaz or the Euro. This provides some enable the Group to minimise Grow
UK may have an adverse ® Fananela degree of offset and natural hedge. the impact of any wealening in
impact on Biffa's operating We enter into forward contracts for the sale of econornic conditions.
performance, revenues and electricity and to mitigate short-term currency Optimise
results of operations. The exposures, improving earnings visibility in the
Group is exposed to political, short term.
social and macroeconomic Biffa provides services across the b_readth of
risks relating to the UK’s exit the UK_ economy and to custorners in the public
and private seclurs. The breadth of customers
from the EU. offers a degree of protection against econornic
Any economic weakness pressures that may affect specific areas of the
eConomy.
the .
atloads Lo reduced The Group hes nannaaed tho potential imnant
volumes of waste and of certain Brexit scenarios on its activities and
recyclate will adversely the Board is satisfied that there is unlikely to
impact the Group’s business. be a net material impact on the Group.
Furthermore, a deterioration
in macroeconomic conditions
may alsoresultin increased
competitive pricing pressurs
and increased customer
turnover.
pgop]e - attraction, Reward frarmework for employees and COVID-19 response team set up
succession, retention managers corapetitively aligned to the market, to ensure we support the health
' . including Performance Share Plan for senior and wellbeing of our colleagues,
The loss of the serylces ofa  Operational personnel and Sharesave scheme available ta manage business continuity, Grow
number of Executive Directors, 4 pinancial all employees. provide clear and timely
senior management or key Talent and management developrment communications and minimise
ermployees, or if the Group programrnes deployed at senior levels and service discuption. Develap
encountered labour shortages progressively to other levels going forward. Intmduce_d an Advanced
or was unable to atiract people Dngoing review of the recruitment and Leadership Programme.
i retention of drivers.
for core business roles, could Optimise

have a material adverse effect
on Biffa’s business results,
operations, financial condition
and prospects.
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Risk title/description Risk movement Mitigating actions Changes in year Str.ategic
and Impact cbjective
Strategic project Board and Group Executive Team engagement Fusion transformation project has
impl ergnarl:tat]ion — and leadership. made sound progress throughout
. . . : . the year but has been slowed
Failure to deliver strategic a Operational Selected software is a proven ‘off the shelf product. down during COVID-18 crisis. Develop
projects, such as Energy from » Financial Independent programime assurance. The project will resume fotlowing
Waste (EfW) and Project Change network in place to ensure line the resolution of the crisis.
Fusion. EfW increases Biffa’s management gwnership of Fusion. Newhurst EfW has achieved Optimise
residual waste treatment Proven EfW technology, substantial UK financial close, securing a
crips s . . fixed programme and fixed
capabilities providing a secure and worldwide reference plants with > 30 rice contract
and cost-effective disposal operational in the UK treating in excess of 10m p )
solution for the I&C business. tonnes per annum.
Fusion is focused on our EfW joint venture providing Gqﬂgpljﬁmﬂ_\tlarv
products and services, how skill sets and experience to minimise risk.
they are sold and delivered, Limited recourse project structure.
the technology used and
the online services offered
to customers. As with any
such projects, there are
rigks that the project fails
to deliver the anticipated
improverments and/or
benefits for the budgeted
investment, adversely
impacting reputation and
operating results.
Finance availability/ Significant and flexible bank funding faeility Covgr}ant arendments and
investment — with substantial headroom to enable the additional liquidity headraom
\ Group to progress strategic priorities and have been agreed with the
If the Group were to fail # Financial accommodate any downside performancerisk.  Group's banks in response Grow
tg cnmplv with an.v of t]?e £350m unsecured revolving credit facility, to the COVID-19 crisis.
financial or non-financial expiring in March 2025 but with an aption to
covenants in its credit extend for a further year. As at the end of the Develop
facilities (due, for example, year, £98m of the facility was undrawn.
to deterioration in financial In addition to the bank funding facility, the
i £150m of lease liabilities -
performance), it could Group has aver ] Optimise
result in an event of default with undrawn funding of over £70m at the
dth lerati fthe end of the year.
and the acceleration o ) X
Group's chigaions o sepey g ey
those borrowings, increased updates to the Board.
borrowing costs or cancellation
of certain credit facilities.
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Principal risks and uncertainties continued

Risk title/description Risk movernent Mitigating actions Changes in year Strategic
and Impact objective
Commodities market Ongoing monitoring and impr_ovements to Investroent 1n sorting technology
and pricing volatilitv ¢ product quality within recycling processes. and process improvements
Biffa produces significant Off-taker strategy review to limit dependency, ;?J;;f;‘ f]'f;zg;: ,ﬁi?ﬁ’;}‘éest\f oply  Develop
m Financial where abie, on the Chinese market. . "
valumes of recycled O tional agreernents now in place with
commodities for re-sale. " Uperationa. Comraodity price rigl( sharing within dumestic‘processors toenable
Commodities produced long-term cormercial contracts. ?e?-;:liu;uﬂi‘::]{l\ :{I tIt<1e materia!l to Optimise
include various paper grades, Working with key customers (e.g. Local ) ) i . .
card, plastics, and ferrous Gaverninent] to agree gate fees to reflect Biffa's investment in plastic
' ! any increased costs and also dual recycling has significantly
and non-ferrous metals. collection methods. reduced reliance on exports,
s . . : ser i . with the majority ef recovered
In addition, Biffa generates iﬁwer f;llce hen}\gmsdpohcv in place, which plastlos being processed to end
power from renewable sources regularly reviewed. destination internally,
and changes to electricity Route to rmarket Power Purchase Agreement Continued focus on minimisi
export prices impact revenues ;t;h;rc;};::awé!gﬁ;l;rsglves off-take certainty exposure to recycle commadity
and profits achieved. ’ price fluctustions by risk
sharing with our logal authority
Markats tor these recyclate customers. InFY 2019/20, we
products have individual mitigated 58% of commodity
supply and demand dynamics price risk through this approach.
impacting both price and
avaijlability of off-take.
Following China's decision
to ban mixed paper imports
in 2018, other Far East
markets have tightened
quality standards, and in
sorme instances also banned
imports. This has put further
downward pressure on prices
with an oversupply of material
in the market and made it
more challenging to place
lower guality material.
Strategic/competitive Internal business innovation group focuses Several innovative concepts )
threat to business model — an market develapments and to act as an have heen developed as patential
. N incubator for ideas and new business models. preiects and evaluated by the
Market disruption from ) . executive team. Grow
the application of new = Finangcial Continual competitor analysis to consider
technologv and the advent s Operational threats and changes to the landscape.
: Annual strategy review to ensure that
of new business models could Biffa business model remains current Develop
chapge the waste supplv and competitive.
Cl.’talfl and adlv ersely imp a.ct Customer surveys to ensure that the Biffa
Biffa's established operating offer remains relevant and compelling. Optimise

asset base of a tragditional
collection network and
processing facilities.

Ongoing investment in and improvement
of the pustomer experience through
digitisation, improved processes and
management information.

The Stratagic Repoit was approved by the Board an 4 fune 2020 and swgved on s behalf by

Aa,:a‘\l.ak
Michael Topham
Chiet Executive Officer
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Viability Statement and Going Concern

The COVID-19 pandemic is unprecedented and hasled to a sudden and significant
decline in waste volumes, due to lockdown measures. When these measures are
lifted, a marked but gradual recovery in volumes is anticipated, albeit with depressed
run rate levels, as a result of an expectation that a proportion of small customers
will not survive the pandemic.

Whilst the Group is subject to a number of principal risks, as disclosed in the Strategic
Report, these are considered to be well managed by the Board and the Group is fairly
defensive in nature. However, the economic downturn impacts of COVID-18 have
proved to be an entirely different proposition and the impacts of this are the main
factors taken into consideration for the viability assessment.

In accordance with provision 31 of the UK Corporate Governance Code 2018, the
Board has assessed the viability of the Group over a longer period than twelve
months and has adopted a period of three years for the assessment. In determining
the appropriate period over which to assess viability, the Board has considered
budgeting, forecasting and strategic planning cycles, the timeframe within which
the Group assess risks and the maturation of the Group's credit facilities.

Three years is considered an appropriate time period given the short-term impact of
the COVID-19 lockdown measures to the waste industry and is a reasonable period
for a shareholder to expect a waste business to be assessed over. Beyond the three
year period, the Group has considered and is satisfied the longer term pre-COVID-19
strategy is still relevant and appropriate, this includes further recycling capacity,
acquisition growth and investment in EfW plants.

Ongoing weekly and, more recently as things have started to stabilise, bi-weekly
re-forecasting under different scenarios, have been undertaken since the COVID-18
pandemic started to impact the business at the end of March. Within these forecasts
the Directors carried out a robust assessment of the Principal Risks facing the Group,
including the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on the various sectors the business
operates in and the waste streams arising in all the Group's operating areas. To assess
viability, multiple, material risks are selected by the Board and are assumed to
crystallise in parallel during the assessment period, putting financial and operaticnal
performance of the business under plausible, but unlikely, stresses outlined below.

These forecasts assurme a 13 week lockdown period from the balance sheet date and

a subsequent phased recovery. The financial impact has been modelled on a sub-
divisional level and includes the impact on revenue and operating costs. In modelling
the scenarios, recovery assumptions have been applied on the various sectors the
Group services. Impact to expected credit losses has been considered and retlected
inthe modelling. The assumptions have been stress tested with variant recovery time
periods to determine whether current headroom would suffice and whether revised
bank covenants would be breached.

The Group has also implemented various mitigating actions to combat the near-
term reduction in demand for the Group's services. These include the reduction of
expenditure on M&A, non-committed development and non-essential maintenance
capital expenditure, remuneration, other operating costs and not declaring a final
dividend for the year.

The Group’s profitability, liquidity and financial headroom have all been assessed
and incorporated within the above mentioned scenario analysis.

Based on the results of this analysis and after careful consideration of the uncertainty
and dynamic nature of COVID-13, including reviewing the fast changing external
factors and their cumulative irmmpact in the short, mediurm and long term, and other
considerations including the Group’s business model and abtlity to model a range
of severe, but plausible, reasonable worst-case scenarios, the Directors confirm
that they have a reasonable expectation that the Group will be able to withstand
the impact of each of these scenarios, in isolation and in a number of plausible
combinations, should they occur in the course of the three-year assessment period.
In each event the Group would continue in operation and meet its liabilities as they
fall due. Therefore, the Board concluded that it remains appropriate to consider a
three year time frame over which we should assess the long-term viability of the
Group over the period to 31 March 2023.

Biffa Annual Report and Accournts 2020
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Directors’ Remuneration Policy B68-73
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40

Qur Corporate Governance Report, on
pages 40-85 explains how the Company
has applied the principles and complied
with the provisions of the UK Corporate
Governance Code 2018 (the Code], other
than as referred to below.

Compliance Statement

The Board has applied the principles and
cornplied with the provisions of the Code
throughout FY20, with the exception of
provision 21, which requires an external
evaluation of the Board every three years
and provision 38, concerning pension
contribution rates for Executive Directors.
Further information regarding the Board
evaluation can be found on page 55 and
regarding pension contribution rates can
be found in the Directors’ Remuneration
Report on page B6.

The Code is available on the website

of the Financial Reporting Council at
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Chairman’s Introduction

Leading with Purpose

Ken Leverx
Chairman

Dear Shareholdery,

On behalf of the Board, I am pleased to introduce the Group's
Corporate Governance Report for this year. As previously stated,
the Company has had another successful year, delivering on its
strategy, with good financial results and the publication of its
first Sustainability Strategy.

In the final weeks of the year, the Board's focus moved to the
Company’s response to the impact of COVID-19, providing oversight
and approving a number of updates to the market and various
measures for near-term cash preservation. The Board held weekly
calls at which it received updates on the status of the response
planning and the impact to our employees, other stakeholders and the
business. Further details on Biffa's response are set out on pages 6-7.

Changes to the Board During the Year

There have been no changes to the Board during the year, following
last years movernents. I am pleased to report that the changes have
heen successfully embedded, with Board members working and
interacting well together, this was confirmed by the results of cur
2020 Board evaluation {see page 53 for more details).

Biffa Annual Report and Accounts 2020

Governance

This year we are reporting under the 2018 UK Corporate Governance
Code for the first time. The updated principles in the Code emphasise
the value of good corporate governance to long-term sustainable
success. The Board took the opportunity to undertake a comprehensive
review and refresh of its policies and processes, following the publication
of the Code, with these being embedded during the year. The Corporate
Governance Report on pages 40-85 sets out how we comply with, and
have applied, the Code during the year.

Section 172 and Stakeholder Engagement

Set put on page 5 is the Board's first section 172 statement. In order
to comply with section 172, the Board is required to consider a
number of matters in its decision making including the interests of
its stakeholders. Further details on this are set out on pages 48-48.
The Board fulfilling its s172 duties has been clearly demonstrated in
its response to the COVID-19 crisis, in particular, how it has engaged
with a number of different stakeholder groups during this time. All
of our stakeholders have been affected in some way and the Board
has supported the business to act fairly at all times, ensuring the
continuation of our essential services, whilst approving measures
to protect and preserve the fundamental value of the business to
ensure its long-term health. Further information on how the Board
has considered our stakeholders during this time can be found on
pages 6-7.

Shareholder Consultations

During the year, the Remuneration Cormnmittee consulted with our
major shareholders in relation to the new Directors’ Remuneration
Policy which will go before shareholders for approval at the AGM in
July this year. A number of changes were made to the Palicy following
feadback from shareholders and the proxy agencies (see page 68 for
details). David Martin, our Senior Independent Director, also consulted
with investors following the votes against the resolution for my
re-appointment at the last AGM (see page 53 for details).

Purpose, Values and Culture

In last year's Annual Report we introduced our new purpose - to
change the way people think about waste - for the first time, During
the year, the Board has monitored how the purpose, values, and
strategy align to the Company’s culture (see page 47 for details]).

Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG)

Inrecent years we have seen an increased focus from shareholders on
ESG. Inresponse to this, we published our first long-term Sustainability
Strategy ‘Resourceful, Responsible’ in March 2020. The strategy.
which builds on the Group’s long track record of making a positive
contribution to the environment and communities it operates in,
putlings the Company's ambition to drive the sustainability agenda
within the UK waste management space for the next 10 years. It is
underpinned by an ambitious but deliverable plan, which is aligned
to the Company’s strategic framewark and fully supperted by the
Broup's previously outlined investment plans. Our Sustainability
Strategy can be found our website www.biffa.co.uk/sustainability.

Looking Forward

During the coming year, the Board will continue to focus on
the Group’s recovery from the COVID-19 crisis and the strategic
opportunities that will present.

Ken Lever
Chairman
4 June 2020
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Board of Directors

The right balance of knowledge and skills

Ken Lever
Non-Executive Chairman

Date of Appointment
28 September 2016

Committee Memberships

Nationality
British

Relevant Skills and Experience

Ken is a Fellow of the Institute of Chartered Accountants and a
former partner at Arthur Andersen. He has a wealth of corporate
finance experience, having previously held board executive director
positions with Numonyx BV, Tornkins plc, Albright and Wilson plc
and Alfred McAlpine ple. Ken joined Xchanging plc as its chief
tinancial officer, and was subsequently appointed and served as
its chief executive officer fror 2011 to 2015, He was previously a
non-executive director of Catesby Property Group plc, iSoft plc and
Vega Systems plc, and served for six years on the UK Accounting
Standards Board between 2006 and 2012.

External Appointments
Kenis chairman of RPS Group plc and a non-executive director

of Vertu Motors ple, Blue Prism plc and Gresham House Strategic plc.

David Martin
Senior Independent Director

Date of Appointment
28 Septernber 2018

Comumnittee Memberships

Nationality
British

Relevant Skills and Experience

David is a chartered management accountant and has significant
experience of both domestic and global transport businesses.

He was involved in the acquisition of National Express and the
successive managernent buy-out, leading tothe creation of British
Bus Group Limited. David was subsequently appointed chief executive
of Arriva ple, a position he held from 2006 to Decernbiar 2015, He was
previously a non-executive director of Ladbrokes plc and Arriva ple.

External Appointments
David is chairman of FirstGroup plc.

Michael Topham
Chief Executive Officer

Date of Appointment
29 September 2018

Comunittee Meraberships
None

Natonality
British

Relevant Skills and Experience

Michael was appointed Chief Executive Officer on 29 September
2018, having previausly heald the role of Chief Financial Officer
from 2013. Michael trained as a Chartered Accountant with PwC
in London, and held positions in both the audit and transaction
services practices. Prior to joining Biffa, he was finance director
at Greenstar UK Holdings Limited from 2005 to 2010.

External Appointments

Michael is a director of the Envirorunental Services Association Limited,

Richard Pike
Chief Financial Gfficer

Date of Appointment
29 September 2018

Committee Memberships
None

Nationality
British

Relevant Skills and Experience

Richard was appointed Chief Financial Officer on 29 Septernber 2018,
Having trained as a Chartered Accountant with Price Waterhouse,
he wenl onto hold a variety of financial and management positions
at Pilkington ple, Scapa Group ple and Manchester Aixports Group.
Latterly, Richard was the chief financial eificer of AB Sugar,
rmanaging director of British Sugar and group chief financial

officer of Boparan Holdings Limited.

Board and Committee Attendance Table 2019/20

Board mesetings Nomination Committee Audit Committee Rernuneration Committee
Director attended/held meetings attended/held meetings attended/held meetings attended/held
Michael Averill 8/8 3/3 A4 717
Gab Barbaro 8/8 3/3 a4/4* B/7*
Carol Chesney 8/8 3/3 4/4 777
Ken Lever 8/8 3/3 4/4* B/
David Martin 8/8 3/3 4/4 7
Richard Pike 8/8 3/3* 4/4* 6/7*
Mighael Topham 8/8 3/3* A14* B/7*

* Attended the meeting as an invitee
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Commiittee Membership

Audit Committes
Nomination Cornrnittee

Remuneration Committee
[] committee Chairman

Michael Averill
Non-Executive Director

Date of Appointment
28 Septernber 2016

Committee Memberships

Nationality
British

Gab Barbaro
Non-Executive Director

Date of Appointment
1January 2019

Committee Memberships

Nationality
Ttalian/Australian

Relevant Skills and Experience

Michael has extensive knowledge of the waste management industry.
Heis a Fellow of the Chartered Institute of Waste Management and a
former chairman of the Environmental Services Association. Michael
held a number of senior management roles in the industry before
being appointed group chief executive of Shanks Group plc from 1994
to 2007 where he oversaw the growth of the group. Michael joined the
former Board of Biffa Group in February 2013. He was previously a
non-executive director of TDG plg, Care UK plc and Van Gansewinlkel
Group in the Netherlands.

External Appointments
Michael is a non-executive director of the Saudi Investment
Recycling Company in Riyadh, Saudi Arabia.

Relevant Skills and Experience

Gab is currently the managing director of UK business at Centrica plc
(a division trading as British Gas Business), a position he has held
since 2015 following his promotion from his role as managing
director of British Gas Business Services.

Prior to this, Gab held a series of senior management rolesin
strategy including head of group strategy at Centrica plc and
chief risk officer at Snowy Hydro in Australia, as well as strategy
consulting roles in consultancy firms Boston Consulting Group
and Accenture.

Carol Chesney
Non-Executive Director

Date of Appointment
12 July 2018

Committee Memberships

Nationality
American/British

Sarah Parsons
General Counsel and
Cornpany Secretary

Date of Appointment
June 2019

Relevant Skills and Experience
Carol is a Fellow of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in
England and Wales, and qualified with Arthur Andersen in the UK,

Carol was the corpany secretary of Halma ple, the FTSE 100 health,
safety and environmental technology group, where she oversaw
governance, pensions, group insurance and ethics compliance

from 2008 until September 2018. Prior to this role, Carol was
Halma's group financial controller with oversight of all day-to-day
financial planning and reporting matters.

External Appointments
Carol is a non-executive director of Renishaw plc, Hunting plc
and IQE plc.

Sarah joined Biffa in June 2019 as General Counsel and was
appointed Company Secretary on 11 July 2019. She is responsible
for managing legal risk and in supporting the Chairman and the
Board in maintaining high standards of corporate governance.
She joined Biffa from Rotork plc, where she was Senior Legal
Counsel and Company Secretary. Prior to that, Sarah spenta
number of years in Australia as a senior in-house counsel at ANZ
Banlk. She began her career in London at Bryan Cave Leighton
Paisner where she spent more than a decade as a corporate M&A
lawvyer. Sarah is qualified as a solicitor in England and Australia.
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Group Executive Team

Michael Topham
Chief Executive Officer

Michael's full biography
appears on page 42.

David Gooding
Chief Information Officer

Date of Appointment:
July 2011

Richard Pike
Chief Financial Officer

Richard’s full biography
appears on page 42.

Jane Pateman
Group HR Director

Date of Appointment:
Decernber 2010

Jane joined Biffa in Decernber 2010. Prior to thig, she held a number
of senior HR director positions in FTSE listed businesses, with
significant experience in managing change. Jane is accountable

for the people strategy and her responsibilities include employee
relations, internal communications, learning and development,
pavyroll, engagerment and reward and benefits. Jane is also a non-
executive director of Knights plc.

Mick Davis
Chief Operating Officer,
Resources & Energy

Date of Appointment:
September 2010

Mick was appointed Chief Operating Officer, Resources & Energy with
effect from April 2019, having previously held the role of Managing
Director of the RR&T Division from Septernber 2010. Ha is responsible
for the day-to-day management of the Resources & Energy Division
and the development of new facilities, including the EfW plants, In
addition, he has oversight of the Group's Environmental strategy as
well as being a trustes of the charity Biffa Award.

David was appointed Chief Information Officer in April 2020,
having previously held the role of Group IT Director from July 2011.
Davis has worked in the waste industry for 15 years. In his role
David is responsible for IT services, IT strategy, the development of
management information, project governance, and leading Project
Fusion, the current initiative to improve the Group's systems and
processes, and Group innovation.

Jeff Anderson
Chief Operating Officer,
Collections

Date of Appointment:
September 2011

Jeff was appointed Chief Operating Dificer, Collections with effect
trom Oatohor 2018, having proviouely hold the rola of Managing
Director, I&C Division frorn September 2011. He is respaonsible for

the overall leadership of our Collections operations, including our
hazardous waste business. His previous career was spent within B2B
supply chain and logistics companies, uad e s lield srecutive
board director positions at Wincantan plc and Securicor ple. Jeff has
significant experience in managing change, turnaround management
and operational excellence in large-scale operational businesses.

Rager Edwards
Managing Director, Municipal
Division

Date of Appointment:
October 2010

Roger joined Biffa in June 2010 following the acquisition of Greenstar
UK Holdings Limited. Prior to this, he had previously been managing
director at Verdant Municipal Limited and held board positions

in other waste businesses. Roger is responsible for the Municipal
business providing waste collection and street cleansing services

to over 2m households and leading a team of 3,400 employees.
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Division of Responsibilities

Our Governance Framework

The Board has a clear corporate governance framework camprising Board reserved matters, various Committees with their Terms
of Reference and the Group delegated authorities matrix ensuring decision making at appropriate levels within the Group.

Board of Directors

The role of the Board is to promote the long-term success of the Company, generating value for shareholders and
contributing to wider society by providing effective leadership and direction to the business as a whole. It sets the Group's

strategy, having regard to stakeholders, while maintaining a balanced approach torisk within a frameworlk of effective
controls. It has also established the Company's purpose and values and monitors culture to ensure alignment. Its sets the
tone and approach to corporate governance and is responsible for the overall financial performance of the Group.

J

Board Committees

The principal Board Committees are the Audit, Remuneration and Nomination Cormnmittees. In addition, there
is alsnothe EVP Comrmittee and the Disclosure Committee. Each Cormmittee has its own Terms of Reference,
approved by the Board, which are reviewed annually, and are available to view at www.biffa.co.uk.

1}

Audit Committee Nomination GCommittee Remuneration Committee
Reviews the integrity, adequacy Evaluates and makes Sets, reviews and recommends

and effectiveness of Biffa's recoramendations regarding Biffa's overall Remuneration
system of internal control and risk Board and Committee Policy and strategy and monitors
managerment, and the integrity composition, succession their implementation.
of Biffa's financial reporting, ] planning and Directors’ 1
whistleblowing and anti-bribery potential conflicts of interest.
and corruption obligations.
Audit Committee Nomination Committee Remuneration Committes
Report p57-81 Report p54-56 Report p62-83

sessstssasssssntsassasnnnnns

 —

Disclosure Committee
Is responsible for the identification and disclosure of
inside information and comprises the Chief Executive
Officer, Chief Financial Officer, General Counsel and
Company Secretary and the Director of Group Finance.

EVP Commiittee
Provides an independent review of the EVP dispute
proceedings, (see note 33 on page 173 of the Financial
Statements,). The members are Gab Barbaro, Carol
Chesney, Ken Lever and David Martin, all Board
mermbers, who have no financial interest in the
result of the dispute.

tesarasannnny

sececursrnrar

Chief Executive Officer

Biographical details of the Group Executive Team are on the opposite page

L L T L SsbessissasBIs R NsLassansna RS an dresasurcrnrscnsiensacanenTner 4terdseserassisnsenatasasnsienTrery T

Group Executive Team

The Group Executive Team is responsible for the day-to-day running of the business. It meets monthly and receives regular
reports on financial and business matters, health and safety, divisional updates, and has scheduled periodic reviews
on sustainability and environrnent, procurernent, internal audit and risk, human resources, IT, and legal, property and
insurance. Relevant matters are reported to the Board by the Chief Executive Officer or the Chief Financial Officer.

J

Investment Committee
An Executive Management Committee comprising the Chief Executive Officer, the Chief Financial Officer and the General
Counsel and Company Secretary. It reviews and approves significant capital expenditure, potential acquisitions and
disposals, major contracts, tenders and property transactions within specified authority limits delegated by the Board.

Biffa Annual Report and Accounts 2020
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Division of Responsibilities continued

Roles and Responsibilities
The Board members have separate clearly defined roles and
responsibilities, as set out in the table belew.

As set out in their biographies on pages 42-43, each member
of the Board has a range of skills and experience that is relevant
to the successful operation of the Group.

Independence of the Non-Executive Directors

The Nomination Committee reviews the independence of the Non-
Executive Directors annually and has confirmed to the Board that
it considers each of the Non-Executive Directors, being Ken Lavaer,
Michael Averill, Gab Barharo, Carol Chesney and David Martin,

to be independent in accordance with the Code.

Time Commitment

All Non-Executive Directors are required to devote sufficient time to
meet their Board responsibilities and demonstrate commitment to
their role. During the year, the Norination Committee considered
the time commitment of ail the Directors and agreed that the
required time commitment from ther is still appropriate.

Roles and Responsibilities Table

Additional Appointments

All Directors are required to consult with the Chairman and obtain
Board approval before taking on any additional appointrents.
Executive Directors are not permitted to take on more than one
significant appointment as a director of a FTSE 100 company or
any other substantial appointment. As part of the selection process
for any new Board candidates, any significant external time
commitments are considered before an appointment is agreed.

Access to Advice

Should any Director judge it necessary to seek independent legal
advice about the performancs of their duties with the Company,
they are entitled to do so at the Cornpany's expense. All Directors
have access to the advice and services of the Company Secretary.

Role Name

Responsibility

Chairman Ken Lever

The Chairman leads the Board and is responsible for its overall
effectiveness in directing the Company. He promotes a culture of
openness and debate facilitating constructive Board relations and
the effective contribution of all Non-Executive Directors, and ensures
that the Board receive accurate, timely and clear information.

Chief Executive Officer Michael Topham The Chief Executive Officer is responsible for the day-to-day
running of the Group's businesses and the developrment and
implementation of strategy, decisions made by the Board and
operational manageraent of the Group, supported by the Group
Executive Team.

Chief Financial Officer Richard Pike

The Ghief Financial Officer supports the Chief Executive Officer
in developing and implementing strategy, oversees the day-today
financial activities of the Croup and ensures that palicies and
practices set by the Board are adopted at all levels of the Group.

Senior Independent Director David Martin

The Senior Independent Director {SID] is an independent
Non-Executive Director, who provides a sounding board for the
Chairman and serves as an intermediary for the other Directors
and shareholders where necessary. The SID also leads the annual
appraisal and review of the Chairman’s performance.

Non-Executive Director Michael Averill
Gab Barbaro

Carol Chesney

The Non-Executive Directors are responsible for bringing an
external perspective, sound judgerment and objactivity to the
Board’s deliberations and decision malking, and to support and
constructively challenge the Executive Directors using their
broad range of experience and expertise.

Company Secretary Sarah Parsons

The Company Secretary acts as Segretary to the Board and all
the Board's Committees and is responsible for supporting the
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer in the delivery of the
corporate governance agenda.
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Board Leadership and Company Purpose

Effective Board

How Governance Supports Strategy

The Board is responsible for delivering value for shareholders by
setting the Group's strategy and overseeing its implementation by
the Group Executive Team and management. [nformation on our
strategy is set out on pages 12-13.

During the year, the Board held strategy days in April 2019 and
January 2020 where it received presentations from the Group
Executive Team and the Divisional Finance Directors on the
strategies for the business and functional areas. The Executive
Directors also presented on the overall Group Strategy. The Board
approved the strategy at those meetings and provided further
approvals during the year for material projects. The Board also
receives regular updates on strategy progress at Board meetings in the
Executive reports. See Board activities on page 51 for further details.

Culture, Values and Purpose

The Board is responsible for setting the Company’s purpose and
values and ensuring these are aligned with the Group's culture.
Our new purpose, ‘changing the way people thinlk about waste’ was
appraved by the Board in 2019 and launched in last year's Annual

Report alongside our vision, ‘to be the leader in UK sustainable
waste management’. This was a focus of the Biffa leadership and
management conferences in June 2020 and following that there
were activities to initiate awareness and understanding.

Qur culture is the way that we work together and is fundamental to
how we operate. We pride ourselves on our cormon-sense approach
to sustainable waste management, our collaborative working and
pur ability to get things done. Our culture is underpinned by our
values, see further details on page 29.

Workforce Policies and Practices

The Board and Group Executive Team review and approve all key
workforce policies and practices. Our policies are published on the
intranet and referenced in our employee handbook. The Company
induction process covers the core HR policies for new employees
and we communicate any changes that take place. To ensure
policies are embedded in our business practices we undertake

a number of activities including mandatory e-learning modules
for line managers.

Measuring Our Culture

A number of our non-financial KPIs,
such as Health & Safety and employee
engagement, allow trends and changes in
the culture of the Group to be monitored.

Key Performance Indicators

Leading By Example

Our Directors and senior managerment,
act with integrity and lead by example,
promoting our culture to our employess.
They do this through engagement with
our employees.

Our People on pages 29-31

How the

Risk Management

Bitfa's risk appetite is approved by
the Board and reviewed annually.
The Group dedicates significant
resources and focus to manage and
monitor risks via our Internal Audit
team. The Audit Committee monitors
risk management processes and
controls on behalf of the Board.

Audit Committee Report on page 60

Board

Monitors

on page 17
A
L
'
W
Aligning Remuneration
and Culture

Our annual bonus schemes are directly
linked to the annual Group BBP targets.
These include the results of the annual
employee engagement survey, the Health
& Safety improvement targets, as well as
behaviours underpinned by our values.

Director's Remuneration Report

on pages 62-83
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Culture

Listening To Our Employees
Employee engagement is measured
through the annual survey, which
provides valuable ingight in respect of
engagement and culture. Key findings
are presented to the Board, improvement
areas are identified and action plans
developed. With the appointment of

our designated Director for worlforce
engagement the Board will have the benefit
of further employee engagement feedback.

Our People on page 29

Ethics, Whistleblowing, Fraud
and Anti-Bribery

Mechanisms are in place to facilitate
ermployees reporting incidents of
wrongdoing on a narmed or anonymous
basis. The Audit Committee, with
delegated authority from the Board,
regularly monitors and reviews the
Company policies, incidents and trends
arising from any such incidents and
provides the Board with updates.

Audit Comrmittee Report on page 57

a7

SIURAI9} )G [RIOURUL] agueuanng ajezodion 1oday o1dajeng

UGTYRULIOU] [BUDTIPPY



Board Leadership and Company Purpose continued

How the Board Engages with Stakeholders

Our Stakehoiders:
The Board ¢onsiders our stakeholders when making decisions.
The icons below, denote our stakeholders, which have been

identified by the Board.

Employees Customers Shareholders
Government Suppliers Communities
& Regulators

Much of the day-to-day decision making and stakeholder engagemernt
at Biffa is carried out at a business level. Further details are set

out on pages 21-24. The Board receives details on this engagement
through the Executive Directors and the reports it receives from
senior management in the Board and Comrnittes papers. More
rnaterial matters require the Board's consideration, with the Board
engaging directly with, primarily, our employees and shareholders.
The relevance of Board decision making for each stakeholder group
depends on the subject matter.

We explain below how, during the year, the Board has engaged with our
stakeholders, the key decisions made during the year and the relevance
to our stakeholders are set out in the Board activities on page 53. There
is also a case study, opposite, explaining how the Board considered the
matters in 172 when approving the Newhurst EfW project which was a
major strategic milestone for the Group this year.

Employees

The Board approved the People Strategy during the year and
received an upriatq jater in the year on the progress on the strategy
from the Group HR Director and senior HR team. This included
a presentation on the results of the 2019 employee engagement
survey. See further details on page 20.

The Board appraved the appointment of David Martin, our Senior
Independent Director, as Non-Executive Workforce Engagement
Director in 2019 and David has reported hack to the Board during the
year on the activities he has attended and feedback received from
the employees he has met, David's report is set out on page 29.

During the year, the Board engaged directly with ermployees during
site visits and when they were presenting at Board meetings.
A number of employees also attended a Board dinner in Septermber.

Engaging our Stakeholders pages 4-5

Our People pages 29-31

Customers

During the year, the Board received reports and presentations
from management on the business which included feedback on
engagement with our customers, including what matters to them
such as innovation and sustainability. In addition, the Board was
requested to consider and approve a number of material tenders
and contracts with major customers.

A number of Baard members attended the opening of the PET
plant in Seaharn and the Capital Markets Day when they had
the opportunity to meet a number of our customers.

Operating Review pages 21-24

Shareholders

The Board approved the annual investor relations strategy
during the vear which sets out a comprehensive programrae
for engaging with shareholders (existing and potential). See
page 54 for further details.

The Board also conducted two consultations with shareholders
in relation to the new Directors’ Remuneration Policy and the
votes against the resolution re-appointing the Chairman.

See pages 68 and 35.

All Board decisions are made with the long-term success of the
Cormpany in mind, which ultimately benefits our investors.

Engaging our Stakeholders pages 4-5

Cormrnunicating with our Shareholders page 52
Nomination Gormmittee Report pages 54-56
Directors’ Remuneration Report pages 62-83

Government & Regulators

The UK Governmant published its Resources and Waste Strategy
for England in Decemnber 2018, outlining plans for minimising
waste, promating resource efficiency and moving towards a circular
economy. There are similar policy ambitions in Scotland, Wales
and Northern Ireland

Our strategy supports tha Government’s agenda in this area and
our Sustainability Strategy is aligned to the direction of the UK
Government’s strategy which will come into effect aver the next
few years.

Sustainability pages 25-26

Suppliers

The Board receives information about our suppliers and our
payment practices through the Board reports. Material supply
contracts alsu 1eyuirg Board approval and o number of

these were approved during the year.

During the year, the Board received a presentation on our approach
to the risks of modern slavery and considered and appraved aux
Maodern Slavery Staternent,

QOperating Review pages 21-24

Communities

The Company provides an essential service to over 95% of UK
postcodes and, as such, plays an important role in the communities
in which it operates. The Board is cognisant of the irnpact that certain
decisions it makes can have on the community and receives relevant
information in managerment reports.

A key ambition in our Sustainability Strategy, which the Board
approved during the year, is to continue to be a goad corporate
citizen, supporting good causes to make a difference by investing
in communities and supporting biodiversity.

Sustainability pages 25-28 '
Our People pages 29-31
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Board in Action

Investing in Energy from Waste (EfW)
infrastructure is a strategic priority
for the Group and a major milestone
was reached in February 2020 with
the announcement of financial close
for a new EfW facility in Newhurst,
Leicestershire, which is a joint venture
with Covanta Holding Corporation and
Macquarie's Green Inyestment Group.
This major project required Board
approval and in making its decision,
the Board considered the matters set

outin £172 as outlined below.

5172 Matter

Considerations

Conclusions

Employees

Our employees want us to engage with
them and to be kept informed of any
changes in the business that may affect
therm and their teams.

Our strategy has been openly cormmunicated with our employees,
including regular updates on the progress of the project and associated
benefits to the wider Group. Supporting our I&C business, the secure,
long term disposal solution ensures service continuity and job security
for the I&C division. The project will create over 300 jobs during the
construction period with approximately 40 permanent employees once
operational, providing future job cpportunities.

Customers

Our customers want a reliable, cost-
effective and sustainable service.

The Newhurst EfW will provide a long-term, secure, cost-effective
disposal solution for our customers’ waste ensuring the diversion of
non-recyclable materials from landfill and the generation of renewable
power, significantly increasing the sustainability of their supply chain.

Shareholders

Our shareholders want to see us
Progressing our strategy, maximising the
returns te them in a sustainable way.

The Newhurst EfW progresses our strategy to develop services and
infrastructure. It will generate good returns for the Group: Biffa's
financial commitment to the project will amount to c£45m, with

a mid-high teens projected return on investment.

Government &
Regulators

The UK Government published its
Resources and Waste Strategy in December
2018, outlining its plans for minimising
waste, promoting resource efficiency and
moving towards a circular economy.

The new facility supports the Government's strategy to both reduce
reliance onlandfill and the UK's ability to treat more non-recyclahle
waste without relying on export to European facilities or disposal to
landfill. Newhurst provides additional UK capacity for the treatment
of non-recyclable waste protecting existing landfill capacity for waste
that cannot be recycled or sent to EfW facilities.

Suppliers

Our suppliers are key to our business
mopdel, and delivering our strategy, and
are looking for opportunities for growth.

The project will create many opportunities for the local supply chain
with a commitment from the project to purchase goods and services
from nearby companies wherever possible.

Communities

The communities in which we operate
expect us to be a good neighbour, operating
our facilities responsibly with engagement
on any potential concerns or issues.

Local residents, Council Officers and other representatives all participate
in alogalliaison group, a forurn to provide regular updates on progress
and an opportunity to ask question and be reassured about any concerns.

Environment

We are committed to building a circular
economy and tackling climate change
as stated in our Sustainability Strategy -
Respurceful, Responsible.

The Newhurst EfW is a key step in our strategic ambition tounlock
£1.25bn of investment in green economy infrastructure by 2030. The
facility will provide a low-carbon energy source, generating up to 42MW
of electricity {enough to power around 80,000 homes) and will divert
waste from landfill.

Long-term

The Board’s decision making is focused
on ensuring the Company is sustainable
in the long term.

The Newhurst EfW has secured a long-term domestic disposal route for
residual waste for our I&C business, supporting continued growth and
is also an attractive investment opportunity.

Reputation

We are committed to raaintaining
a reputation for high standards of
business canduct.

Qur reputation is very important to us and the Board will be updated on
the delivery of Newhurst EfW as it progresses to ensure high standards
of business conduct are maintained.

Biffa Annual Report and Accounts 2020
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Board Leadership and Company Purpose continued

How the Board Operates

The Board had seven scheduled meetings during the year.
Additional Board calls were also held as and when circumstances
required it to meet at shart notice and also following the COVID-19
outbreak when regular update calls were held, Directors attendance
at scheduled Board and Committes meetings held during the year
is set out on page 42. An outline of the Board's activities covered
atthose meetings is set out opposite.

Directors are provided with papers at least five days inadvance
of each Board or Committes meeting and meeting packs are
accessed from a board portal. For each scheduled Board meeting,
the papers include updates on trading, financial performance
and investor relations and in addition, papers for the special
business of the mesting.

Non-Executive Directors are encouraged to communicate directly
with senior management between Board meetings. Mermnbers

of the Group Executive Teara are invited to attend at least one
Board meeting each year to present an update on their areas of
respansibility. They also all attended the annual strategy Board
meeting which was held in April 2018 and January this year.

Board Site Visits

The Septermber Board meeting was held at West Sussex MBT.
The Board received a presentation from the site manager on
the business and was also given a tour of the MBT. The visit
gave the Board the opportunity to meet the local team and
see how operations are run.

In addition, some of pur Board members attended the opening
ceremony, pictured here, of our £27.5m plastic recycling plant
in Seaharm, County Durham in January 2020. They got the
opportunity to see how this state-of-the-art recycling facility
is run and got to meet a number of our stakeholders.

50

Meatings between the Non-Executive Directors, without the
presence of the Executive Directors, are scheduled in the Board's
annual programme. During the year, Non-Executive Directors met
on two occasions without the presence of the Executive Directors.
These meetings provide the Non-Executive Directors with a forum
in which to share experiences and discuss wider business topics,
fostering debate in Board and Committee meetings and strengthen
working relationships.

Matters Reserved for the Board

In order to retain control of key decisions and ensure that there
is a clear division of responsibilities between the Board and
the running of the Company business, the Board has a formal
schedule of matters reserved for its decision that is reviewed
annually to ensure it rernains fit for purpose. This is available
at www.biffa.couk.

Board Allocation of Agenda Time

Agendas for cach Board meeting are preparad in advanced and are
aligned with the approved Board programme, which is reviewed
annually, and updated when appropriate, All matters are given
due consideration and are reviewed at the appropriate point in
the regulatory and financial cycles.
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Activities of the Board

During the vear, the Board undertook the following key activities:

At each Board meeting there are standing items, which include:

Strategy, Business Performance
and Capital Investment

Finance

m Approved the Company’s corporate strategy

w Approved the Company's sustainability strategy

m Considered and approved the Newhurst EfW facility

m Considered and approved the investment in a Polymers
wash plant

m Approved the Investor Relations strategy

m Approved a number of rmaterial tenders and contracts

m Received an update on Project Fusion and IT

m Approved the Group's Health & Safety strategy

u Considered Brexit impact, mitigations and preparations

m Considered the impact of COVID-19 on the business

a Received business performance updates

People and Culture

® Approved the 2019/20 budget and Five Year Plan
a Reviewed the 2020/21 hudget
s Reviewed and approved the interim and final dividend

recomurendations for financial year ended 2019

a Reviewed and approved the preliminary and interim

results announcements

m Reviewed and approved the Pre-close Trading Statermnents
m Recommmended to the shareholders the re-appointment

of the Auditor
Reviewed the preliminary results roadshow presentation

m Approved the Treasury Policy
m Approved the appointment of a new corporate broler

Governance, Compliance and Risk

m Approved the Company's vision and purpose

m Approved the Company's People strategy

m Approved the appointment of David Martin as the
Non-Executive Director for workforce engagement and
approved the workiorce engagement frarnework and plan

m Approved the Company’s Modern Slavery Staterment

= Approved the Company’s Gender Pay Gap Staternent

review and approval of the previous minutes;

status vpdate on any matters outstanding from previous meetings;

Board Committee updates to the Board;
report from the Chief Executive Officer;
report from the Chief Financial Officer; and
Investor Relations report.
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Reviewed and approved the 2019 Annual Report
and Accounts and Notice of AGM

Reviewed and approved the schedule of matters
reserved for the Board and the Terms of Reference
to the Board Committees

Approved the 2020/21 Board and Board Comuuittee
programmes and calendar

Approved the revised Investmment Committee Terms
of Reference

Received an EVP dispute update

Approved the Group's Whistleblowing Policy

and Procedures

Considered the Board and Board Committees
gvaluation questionnaire

Reviewed and approved the revised Delegated Authorities
Approved the Group's risk appetite

Approved the Directors’ Conflicts of Interest register
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Board Leadership and Company Purpose continued

Comrmunicating with Our Shareholders

Sharsholder Engagement

The Board is committed to maintaining open channels of
communication with all shareholders, whether institutional

or private. It is important that shareholders understand the
Company strategy and objectives, and for the Cornpany toreceive
shareholders’ feedback and consider the issues and questions
raised. Te facilitate this, the Cormnpany has a comprehensive investor
relations strategy, which is approved by the Board each year.

For our private shareholders there is an oppartunity to meet the
Directors at our Annual General Meeting and further infermation
on the Company can be found on our website, Information on how
the Company communicates with its shareholders, investors and
analysts can be found in Engaging our Stakeholders pages 4-5.

Both the Executive and Non-Executive Directors meet sharehnlders
and prospective shareholders, both institutional and private, on

a regular basis. Non-Executive Directors are available to meet
shareholders if they wish to raise issues without the Executive
Directors present.

During the year the Executive Directors, assisted by the Investor
Relations team, have held meetings in the UK, USA, Switzerland
and Luxembourg with both existing and potential institutional
shareholders, from countries including UK, USA, Canada, Deninark,
Australia, France, Switzerland, Luxembourg and Germany, providing
insight into the development of the business and its progress. In
addition, our Chairman and Senior Independent Director met a
selection of our largest shareholders during the year.

The Board receives regular updates on the views of our shareholders

and analysts through briefings and in market reports at each Board
meeting, which include:

share price performance monitoring;

review of shareholder performance and sector analysis;
cormposition of the shareholder register;

peer group comparison; and

professional and external adviser feedback.

Capital Markets Day

On 17 September 2018, the Company held a successful Capital
Markets Day in London welcorming over 100 investors, analysts,
banlks and other stakeholders to mest Biffa's management team.
Presentations focused on the core areas of the Group's growth
strategy including: the I&C growth opportunity and imnvestments
in plastics recyeling and EfW. The presentation from the day can
be found on cur website wwwbifta.co.uk/investors/news/capital-
markets-day

Website

The Company’s website www.biffa co.uk acts as a good medium
through which results and other news releases such as acquisitions,
contract wins and new strategic initiatives are published including
key financial calendar information, details of live webcasting
services for key presantations and the source of past key
presentations &nd announcements.

Key Shareholder Activities During the Year

2019

June Full-year results presentation and
roadshows in London and Edinburgh

July AGM
Investor roadshows in Zurich, '
Luxembourg and London

September H1 Pre-close Trading Staternent
and Gapital Markets Day

October Analyst visit to Seaham

November Half-year results presentation and ‘
roadshows in London, Edinburgh and USA

2020

January Opening event at our plastics recycling
plant in Seaham

March H2 Pre-close Trading Statement and

investor calls
Sustainability Strategy launch

JPM Conference and investor meetings

Shareholders by number of shares

Ag at 27 March 2020 .
1ta 100 63.5%
10110 500 11.7% 1
501 tobUUU 127% ‘
5,001 to 100,000 11.7%

100,001 to 500,000 5.4%
500,001 to Highest 5.0%

Shareholder by type
As at 27 March 2020

Public Limited

Cornpany 0.4%
Nominee B5.8%
Lirnited Company 2B8.9%
Other 5.6%
Bank 0.2%
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Statement on 2019 Annual General Meating
Resolution Votes Against

At the Company’s Annual General Meeting (AGM] held on

10 July 20189, 20.48% of votes were cast against the resolution
to re-elect our Chairman, Ken Lever. The resolution was still
passed with the required majority.

Thera has heen an expanded focus on overboarding of

directors following the publication of the Code and a nurnber

of institutional investors and proxy advisers have developed
specific guidelines with regard to this. The Board understands
that sorma shareholders may have concerns about the nurber of
directorships held by the Chairman and that this may undermine
his ability to serve effectively on the Board, particularly at times
when urgent issues arise.

Following the AGM, I wrote to those shareholders who had voted
against the resolution to understand their concerns, outline in
more detail the time commitrments of the Chairman and explain
why the Board believed that the Chairman was the right person
tolead the Company forward. No responses were received

from this engagement.

Board Evaluation

As required by the Code, the Board undertakes an annual evaluation
of its performance and that of its Committees. Under the Code,
itis recornmended that FTSE250 corpanies have an externally
facilitated Board evaluation every three years.

With the substantial changes to Board composition during the
previous year, it was again concluded that it would be more
effective to defer having an externally facilitated evaluation. The
Board and Cormmmittee evaluations were therefore facilitated by

the Chairman and Company Secretary by way of an online self-
evaluation questionnaire. As the Company moved into the FTSE250
in March 2020, and it has not had an externally facilitated evaluation
since its IPO in 2016, this is contrary to provision 21 of the Code.

FY20 Board Evaluation

All Directors, regular attendees and the Cornpany Secretary
responded to the Board questionnaire in March 2020, covering

all aspects of Board performance including: Board/Committee
composition; conduct of meetings; corporate strategy, purpose,
values and culture; transactions and approvals; risk management
and internal controls; measuring and monitoring performance; and
stakeholders. The participants were asked to score 25 staterments
on a scale of 110 5 and provide written comments, including areas
for improvement.

Initial feedback from the evaluation was presented to the Board for
discussion in April 2020. The overall assessraent is that the Board
continues to operate effectively and it has performed well during the
year with the overall rating up from the previous year. It was agreed
that the key actions would be defined by the Chairman and those
actions would form part of the Board's agenda for the coming year.
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The Board has recentiy considered the time commitmentofail the
Directors and specifically whether the Chairman should be required
to address the concerns relating ta his other appointments. Ithas re-
confirmed that it is confident that the Chainman discharges his role
effectively notwithstanding his other Board commitments. This has
particularly been demonstrated during the recent coronavirus crisis
where there has been an increased time cormmitrment requirernent
for all the Directors.

The Board believes that the Chairman plays a pivotal role
in helping drive the strategy of the Group and remains fully
supportive of the role and guidance he provides to the Company.

David Martin
Senior Independent Director

The Chairman and the Senior Independent Director also reviewed
the performance of each member of the Board and provided
feedback and the Senior Independent Director led the Non-
Executive Directors in a review of the performance of the Chairman.
It was agreed that each Director continued to contribute effectively.

Update on FY19 Board Evaluation Dutcomes

As reported last year, the FY19 Board performance evaluation was
internally facilitated by the Chairman and Company Secretary.
The review identified some opportunities for the Board.

Format and length of Board papers

A Board paper template has been developed by the Company
Secretariat team which has helped improve the format and
length of Board papers. The removal of the repetition of papers
in Board and Comumittee packs has also helped improve the
overall length of the packs. The recent Board evaluation
highlighted the improvement in this area.

Communication of material matters between Board meetings
The Board agreed that it is not necessary to have scheduled Board
call updates between meetings. The Chairman and CEO havea
weekly catch up and consider whether there is anything that is
required to be notified to the Non-Executive Directors. This is

done by email or ad-hoe call. During the COVID-19 crisis, the

Board have had weekly update calls.

Develop the Non-Executive Directors’ understanding

of shareholders views

The CFO provides an Investor Relations update paper at each Board
meeting. He also provides copies of analysts’ reports when published.
The Non-Executive Directors agreed that this is very comprehensive
and therefore nothing further is required in relation to this.
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Composition, Succession and Evaluation

Nomination Committee Report

Members

Ken Lever {(Chairman]
Michael Averill

Gab Barbarp

Carol Chesney

David Martin

Areas of Focus in 2020/21

The Comrnittes’s priorities for 2020/21 will he to:

m review Board and senior management succession planning;
and

m take an active role in setting diversity abjectives for the Company.

Dear Shareholder,
Tam pleased to present the Nomination Cormmittee (Comnmittee]
Report on behalf of the Board.

Thare has heen nn changes ta the cormposition of the Board
during the year and therefore the Committee has not been
required to lead the process for any new Board appointments.

In FY20, the Committee has embraced its expanded role under
the Code and focused on succession planning for the Board and
the Group Executive Team and the leadership talent pipeline.

It has also continued to consider diversity and inclusion.

As previously reported, the Company entered the FTSE250 in March
2020 and we will therefore be submitting our gender data for the
Group Executive Tearmn and their direct reports to the Hampton-
Alexander review later in the year [see page 30 for more detail).

Ken Lever
Chair, Nomination Committee

4 June 2020

Membership of the Committee and Attendance
The current members of the Committee are the Chairman
as Committee Chair and four Non-Executive Directors.
The Cormnmittee met three times during the year and the
attendance at those meestings is shown on page 42.

The Company Secratary attends all the Committee mestings
as Sacretary to the Committee and by invitation, they ars also
attended by the Chisf Executive Dfficer, the Chief Financial
Officer and the Group HR Director.

Role and Responsibilities of the Committee

The role of the Committee is to lead the process for Board
appointments, ensure plans are in place for orderly succession
to both the Board and senior management positions and oversee
the development of a diverse pipeline for succession to ensure
that the Group has the best talent to perform effectively now
and in the future.

The Corturnitiee’s iesponsibilities are s¢t aut in itc Torms
of Reference and include:

s reviewing the structure, size and composition (including
the skills, knowledge, experience and diversity) of the Board
and making recommendations to the Board with regard to
any changes;

u succession planning for the Board and senior managerment;

m leading the process for Board appointments and making
recommendations to the Board:

m assessing whether Directors can cormit sufficient time
to fulfil their responsibilities; and

m taking an active role in setting diversity objectives and
strategies for the Corpany as a whole and monitoring the
impact of diversity initiatives.

Activities During the Year
During the year, the Committee’s key agtivities wers:

w Arnual rovivw uf tlw sluclwes, Jinecaity, dee and nnompnaition
of the Board including Board succession planning.

m Reviewing the succession and development plans of the
Executive Directors,

m Reviewing the succession plans for the Group Executive Team.

& Reviewing talent development within the seniar leadership team.

m Undertaking the annual review ot Uirector indepetidece, liuue
commitment and canflicts of interast.

m Reviewing and making a recornmendation to the Board to approve,
the revised Committee Terms of Reference.

Board Composition and Skills

The Comurnittes considers that the current Board membership
provides the right mix of skills and attributes for the Board to ensure
effective governance and oversight of the strategic and significant
operational decisions of the business and performance monitoring.
Information on each of the Directors’ skills and attributes is set out
in the table opposite.
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Diversity Overview

Diversity

The Board's policy is for new appointments and succession plans
to be based on marit and against objective criteria but within this
context believes that inclusion and diversity, in its broadest sense
including gender and ethnicity, should be promoted as they are an
irmportant factor in Board effectiveness.

The Committee supports the recornmendations of the Hampton-
Alexander Review and the Parker Review and has an ongoing
commitment to increase fernale and ethnic representation at
Board and senior management level. An overview of the diversity
of the Board is set put below.

Board Skills and Attributes

As previously outlined, now that we have entered the FTSE250,
we will be submitting our gender data to the Hampton Alexander
review later in the year.

The Board also supports the Company’s policy on inclusion and
diversity and has received updates during the year on progress

against objectives inrelation to this. For further details see page 30.

Michael Gah Caral Ken David Richard Michael
Averill Barbaro Chesney Lever Martin Pike Topham
Independence | ] n | [ |
Fungtional background: Operations [ ] [ ] [ | B
Functional background: Finance | | [ | [ | B
CEO & Leadership experience ] | ] | | |
Waste sector | |
Logistics/metworks [ | [ | |
M&A/ restructuring [ | | | | | | |
Governance & regulatory [ | | | | ] B ]
International | n | | | |
Stakeholder/IR/PR [ ] [ | | | | | |
Technelogy/e-coramerce | | |
Business evolution/strategy development | | [ ] | | | ]
People | || [ | | B | |
Composition of the Board Length of Tenure
Chairman 1 0-2 years 3
Executive directors 2 2-4 years 4
Non-Executive Directors 4
7 Average tenure
Board membess of the Board
Age Gender
40-49 2 Female 1
50-569 2 Male 5]
60-69 3
0
58 years 14%
Average age Female
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Compaosition, Succession and Evaluation continued

Conflicts of Interest

Under the Company's Articles of Association, the Board may authorise
any actual or potential conflicts of interest that may arise and
impose limits or conditions as appropriate. The Company has a
detailed process for the management of conflicts of interest which is
monitored by the Committee. On appointment, a Director is required
to disclose any conflicts of interest to the Cormpany Secretary and
on an annual basis, as part of our year end reporting, each Director
reviews the Conflicts of Interest register and confirms any conflicts.

Succession Planning

During the vear, the Cornmittee has reviewed the succession plans
for the Board, Group Executive Team and the senior management
talent pipeline. The Committee takes an active interest in the
quality and development of talent and capabilities within Bifta,
ensuring that appropriate opportunities axre in place to develop
high-performing individuals such as invitations to Board dinners
and the Group Talent Programrme,

Board Appointments Process

The Board has a formal and transparent procedure for the appointment
of new Directors to the Board. This procedure includes the evaluation of
the balance of skills, lmowledge, experience and diversity of the Board
by the Committes to ensure that any new appointments complement
or address any shortfalls in any of these areas.

The Committee ensures that the selection process is rigorous

and transparent and, if appropriate, it will appoint a professional
external search firm. Candidates from a wide range of backgrounds
that maet the role specification will be cansidered and all appointmments
will be made entirely on merit, with due regard to the benefits of diversity
on the Board, which includes, but is not limited purely to, gender.

Directors’ Induction, Training and Development

On appointrment, all Directors regeive an induction on their duties
and responsibilities as Directors of a publicly quoted cornpany.

The induntinn process also comprises a comprehensive programma
which includes meetings with all Directors, members of the Group
Executive Team, the Cornpany Secretary and heads of functions.

To update the Directors’ skills, knowledge and familiarity with the
Company key site visits are incorporated into the programme and
undertaken to meet management and develop greater comumercial
awareness of the business. During these visits the Directors receive
briefing sessions from local management, allowing them to ask
questions, learn about the business and spend time with different
teams and individuals to observe and experience first hand how
the culture and values are embedded across the Cormpany.
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Committee Evaluation

The Committee's performance during the year was assessed
at the sarme time as the Board evaluation in March 2020,
Further details on the wider Board evaluation process

can be found on page 53.

FY20 Committee Evaluation

All Directors and the Company Secretary responded to
an onling self-evaluation questionnaire, covering all
aspects of Comumittee performance including: the role

of the Committee and its Terms of Reference; meetings
and papers; succession planning and the developmerit of
a diverse pipeline. The participants were asled to score
13 statements on a scale of 1to 5 and provide written
comuments, including areas for improvement.

Initial feedback from the evaluation was presented to the
Committee and discussed at the Board meeting in May 2020.
The overall assessment is that the Cormmittee is clear on
its role and responsibilities and these were fulfilled during
the year. It was agreed that the key actions would be defined
by tha Chairman (as Chair of the Committee] and those
actions would form part of the Comimnittee’s agenda far
the coming year.

Update on FY19 Committee Evaluation Qutcomes
Asreported last year, the FY19 Committee performarnce
evaluation was internally facilitated by the Chairman

and Comnpany Secretary. The review identified succession
planning and addressing leadership skills for future Executive
directors as sorme potential opportunities for the Committes.

The Committee is satisfied that the work undertaken during
the year. It has seen an improvement in executive succession
planning, in particular the Group Talent Programme. This
will remain an area of focus for the Committee with the
Board having further rxpinsire to senior managers and high
potential employees.
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Audit, Risk and Internal Control

Audit Committee Report

Merabers

Garol Chesney (Chair)
Michael Averill
David Martin

Areas of Focus in 2020/21

The Committee’s priorities for 2020/21 will be to:

m consider the financial impacts of COVID-19 on the
Company; and

® monitor the implementation of the business strategy
and its impact on the Group's internal control and risk
management processes.

Dear Shareholder,

I am pleased to present this year's Audit Committee (Committee)
Report which aims to provide an understanding of the work of the
Committee over the past year and highlight our areas of focus in 2020.

During the year, the Cornmittee has continued to monitor the
impiementation of the business strategy and its impact on the
Group's intermnal controls and risk management framework. Further
information on our key activities during the year are on page 60.

In addition, the Committee has considered the impact of COVID-19
on our financial staternents. It has reviewed the Group's profitability,
liquidity and financial headroom as part of a number of forecast
scenarios. As part of this work, the Cornrmittee has also reviewed

the viability statement and going concern, following which it was
agreed that the going concern basis of accounting continues to be

an appropriate basig of preparation for the financial statements.

Garol Chesney
Chair, Audit Committee

4 June 2020
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Membership of the Committee and Attendance

The current members of the Cornmittee are the Chair and two
Non-Executive Directors all of whorn are independent. The Chair
and David Martin are both gualified accountants and the Board
considers their financial experience to be recent and relevant for
the purposes of the Code. The Committee met four tires during the
year and the attendance at those meetings is shown on page 42.

The Company Secretary attends all the Committee meetings
as Secretary to the Committee and, by invitation, they are also
attended by the Chairman, Chief Financial Officer, the Chief
Executive Officer, Gab Barbaro (Non-Executive Director), the
External Audit Partner, the Head of Risk and Internal Audit
and the Director of Group Finance.

Role and Responsibilities of the Committee

The role of the Committee is to assist the Board in fulfilling
its oversight responsibilities by monitoring and reviewing
the integrity of the Group’s financial reporting and the
effectiveness of the Internal and External Audit functions
and risk managernent framework.

The Cornmittee reports to the Board on its activities and makes
recornmendations, all of which have been accepted during the
period under review.

The Cornmittee's responsibilities are set out in its Terms of
Reference on the Company's website at www.biffa.coule

Whistleblowing

The Board has overall responsibility for rnonitoring the Group's
whistleblowing arrangements under the Code. It has delagated
this to the Committee which updates the Board on a regular
basis on all significant whistleblowing rmatters.

The Cornrnittee receives a report on whistleblowing cases
at each meeting. Improvements were made during the vear
to the reports that the Cornrnittee receives.

The Whistleblowing Policy and Procedures were reviewed by

the Committee during the year. The Committee is satisfied that
they are effective, facilitate the proportionate and independent
investigation of reported matters and allow appropriate follow-up
action to be taken. It recommended to the Board that some minor
changes were made to the Whistleblowing Policy and Procedures
which were approved by the Board. Further details on the Group's
Whistleblowing Policy and Procedures can be found on page 31.
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Audit, Risk and Internal Contrel continued

Key Activities During the Year

Key areas Activities during the year
Financial m Reviewed the Annual Report and Accounts, including whether they are fair, balanced and understandabie,
Reporting the material judgements and estimates, Going Concern Statement and Viability Statement.

» Reviewed the half-year accounts, including the material judgernents and estimates.

m Reviewed the External Auditor's report on the full-year and half-year audits.

» Reviewed the half-year and full-year results announcemenits and the September and April Pre-Close Trading Staterments.

External Audit = Reviewed the External Auditor's independence, objectivity and effactiveness.

® Considered the succession plans for the lead Audit partner.

» Considered the re-appointment of the External Auditor.

= Considered External Auditor fees and terms of engagement.

® Reviewed and approved changes to the Non-Audit Services Policy.

m Reviewed the External Auditor non-audit services and fees.

Risk and ® Monitorad the Company’s rigk register, including the completeness of the process to identify the Group's principal
Internal and emerging risks and movement in such exposures.
Controls m Considered the status of key risk indicators including any breaches of thresholds,

» Reviewed the effectiveness ot the Group's risk manageiient aud inlernal control systems.

m Considered responses, and their timeliness, to audit findings and recormmendations for control improvements,
including reviewing the External Audit management letter.

® Reviewed the risk management and internal controls disclosures in the half-year accounts and Annval Report
and Accounts.

» Received regular updates on the implementation of the new key controls framewark.

s Reviewed, and recommended to the Board approval of a revised, Whistleblowing Policy and Procedures.

» Received updates on material litigation and whistleblowing matters,

® Received anupdate onthe GDPR project and its effectiveness.

Internal Audit m Approved the annual Internal Audit plan, including its alignment to the prineipal risks, emerging areas of risk,
coverage across the Group and continuing review of the Group's processes and controls,

m Monitored and reviewed the Internal Audit effectiveness and independence of the Intexnal Audit function
including consideration of key Internal Audit reports; stakeholder feedback on the quality of Internal Audit activity;
and the implementation of Internal Audit recommendations.

m Reviewed Internal Audit reports, including those related Lo sununodity trading, Municipal tender mobilisation,
credit management, privileged access, M&A integration and GDPR.

Other Areas w Reviewed and recommended to the Board approval of the revised Committee Terrs of Reference,

m Reviewed the results of the evaluation vl lhie gttectiveness 61 the Cotnwilive.

m Received an update on Project Fusion including the implementation plan and reviewed the key challenges and
risk of the project.

u Raceived an update on tax matters for the Group and reviewed and recornmended to the Board approval of the
Group’s annual tax strategy.

u Reviewed and recomumnended to the Board approval of a new Treasury Policy and received a treasury update.

w Reviewed and approved changes to the Related Party Transactions Policy and reviewed the Related Party List.

Financial Reporting In making its assessrnent, the Committee reviews reports from
One of the Cormmittee’s principal responsibilities is to review and members of the Finance team and the External Auditor who are
report to the Board on the quality and appropriateness of the Group's invited to attend all Committee meetings. Through discussions
Financial Statements, including the half-year accounts and Annual and detailed written reports, the Committee is able to understand

Report and Accounts, with a particular focus on:

and assess the significant judgements and estimates and how they
are being recorded and disclosed in the Financial Statements.

m the suitability of accounting policies;

» the appropriateness of underlying assumptions, judgements
and estimates made by management;

The significant financial judgements considered in relation to the
Annual Report and Accounts are detailed in the table opposite.

m key audit matters identified by the External Auditor;

= compliance with relevant accounting standards and other
regulatory financial reporting requirements including the UK
Corporate Governance Code; and

m advising the Board, where requested, on whether the Annual
Report and Accounts are fair, balanced and understandable and
provide the information necessary far shareholders to assess the
Cornpany’s position and performance, business model and strategy.
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Significant Financial Judgements Considered in Relation to the Annual Report and Accounts

Significant issues considered by the Comraittee in relation to the Financial Statements

How these issues were addressed by the Committee

Landfill
Accounting

The Committee reviewed the valuation of the landfill
provisions and assets, the level of such landfill provision
and the extent of the depreciation of such assets, it being
noted that the responsibility for a landfill site extends
beyond the cessation of land filling operations until

the Group has fulfilled its aftercare and restaration
obligations which is estimated to be up to 60 years

post closure of the site.

{See Note 21 on page 140 for further details on
landfill provision).

The Committee considered the Group Landfill
Capital and Provisioning Policy, which includes
the basis for cost, void space, waste compaction
ratio and gas generation estimates, and associated
accounting methodology.

The Comumittee determined that with the combination of
external third-party reports and guidance, External Auditor
testing and the Group's experience to provide for these
estimated costs the current landfill accounting treatment
and value, and level of provisions were appropriate.

Retirement
Benefit
Obligations

The Group operates a defined benefit pension scheme
known as the Biffa Pension Scheme (BPS) which is
closed to new joiners and to future accrual as at

31 October 2013. There are currently active members
of the BPS who have protected defined benefit accrual
either by virtue of contract location or legislation. The
BPS was in a pension surplus of £116.7m as at 27 March
2020. Due to the COVID-18 impact on fund valuations,
it was necessary to get valuations for all funds as at

27 March 2020.

(See Note 29 on page 145 for further details on pension
and post-retirement benefits).

The Committee considered reports from managerent
and the External Auditor in relation to the valuation of
the BPS and reviewed the key actuarial assurmptions
used in galculating the defined benefit pension liabilities,
especially in relation to discount ratss, inflation rates,
salary growth, rate of pension increase and mortality/life
expectancy, and concluded that the assumptions used
were appropriate and were supported by independent
actuarial experts. Details of the key assumptions used are
set out on page 145 in Note 29 to the Financial Statements.

Asset
Impairment
Review

The Group carries different classes of intangible assets
on its balance sheet, which include goodwill, landfill gas
rights, the Biffa brand, custorner contracts and Project
Fusion development costs. The Group's assessment of
the carrying value of goodwill and the other intangible
assets is dependent on the disaggregation of cash-
generating units (CGUs) and assumptions of future cash
flows, including both short and long-term growth rates.
The Group performed its last asset irpairment review
atthe end of the financial year with the assistance of an
external third party. The WACG rate increased due to the
COVID-19 impact and the P&L impact for COVID-19 has
been built into the impairment models.

The Committee reviewed and discussed management’s
repert on the impairment review and considered the
External Auditor's testing thereof.

After due consideration, the Committee concluded that
it was satisfied with management's assumptions and
judgements applied in relation to such testing. Details
of the key assurmptions and judgements used are set
out in Note 14 to the Financial Staternents.

Onerous
Contract
Provision

The Group operates a broad portfolio of complex contracts,
especially in the Municipal and Respurces & Energy
businesses. The accounting for certain contracts may

be underpinned by assumptions or judgements made by
management in respect of the outcome of future events.

(See Note 3 on page 121 for further details on
Onerous contacts).

The Committee reviewed rmanagement's judgements
and assumptions used to determine onerous contracts
and any required provision for future losses. In addition,
External Auditor testing was taken into consideration.

The Committee concluded that it was satisfied by
management’s assessment and the approach adopted,
including the presentation of these as non-underlying
due to the creation of non-recurring provisions.

The last review by the FRC Corporate Reporting Review team
of the Biffa plc Annual Report & Accounts was for the year
ended 30 March 2018. Following the review and responses
from the Company, the FRC adviged in February 2019 it had
closed its enquiry. For more information see page 20.

Biffa Annual Report and Accounts 2020
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Audit, Risk and Internal Control continued

Risk Management

The Board has overall responsibility for setting the Group's risk
appetite and ensuring that there is an effective risk management
framework. The Board delegates responsibility for review of

the risk managerment and the effectiveness of internal corntrols
to the Comumittee.

The Chief Executive Officer has overall accountability for the
control and management of the risks that Biffa faces and working
with the Group Executive Tearn has established processss, as part
of the normal good management of the business, to monitor:

m strategic plan achievement, through a regular review of progress
towards strategic objectives;

m financial performance, within a comprehensive financial
planning and accounting framework, including budgeting and
forecasting, financial reporting, analysing variances against
plan and taking appropriate management action;

m capital investment and asset management;

m performance, with detailed appraisal, authorisation and
post-investrnent reviews;

m thatthe principal and emerging risks facing the Group are
being identified, evaluated and appropriately rmanaged; and

® the maintenance of insurance cover to insure all risk areas
of the Group.

The Committee has reviewed the work done by management on
the assessment of the Company’s principal and emerging risks,
noting that a comprehensive review of the principal risks was
completed in Septernber 2019 for our interim reporting and this
exercise, which additionally included an assessment of emerging
risks, was undertaken again at the year end in March 2020.

The Board also undertook, during the year, a robust assessment
of the principal and emerging risks faced by the Group.

Further details of the Group's risk management systems and
nontrols. principal and emerging risks and statement following
the viability assessment are included in the Strategic Report on
pages 34-38.

Internal Control

The Company's system of internal control, along with its design
and operating effectiveness, is subject to review by the Comunittee,
through reports received from the Company, along with those
from both the Internal and External Auditors. Any control
deficiencies identified will be followed up with action plans
tracked by the Committes.

Policies and procedures, including clearly delined levels of
delegated authority, have been comrmunicated across the Group.
We continue te implement a key controls framework across the
Group, in respect of operational and financial processes, that
requires a quarterly self-certification by ranagement, confirming
that key internal controls within thelir area of responsibility have
been operating effectively, and will be subject to independent
review by Internal Audit.

It is recognised that the current restrictions imposed on the
Group by the COVID-19 crisis may lead to some changes in risk
management processes and internal controls in the short term
in order to maintain operations. To ensure that we continue to
maintain an effective control environment, we are monitoring
any changes carefully and introducing alternative mitigating
controls where necessary and practicable to suppart the ongoing
operation of an effective control environment,

50

The system of internal control is designed to manage, rather than
eliminate, the risk of failure to achieve business objectives and

it must be recognised that it can only provide reasonable and not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss

The Committee intends to keep the risk management and internal
control systems under review and to support the Board in carrying
out an annual review of their effectiveness.

As part of the year-end compliance certification process and senior
management review on the effectiveness of internal controls and
risk manageraent, the Committee has not identified, nor been
advised of, any failings or weaknesses in the internal contral
systems or risk management processes that are determined

tobe significant,

Risk Appetite

The Company’s appraach to risk appetite has been developed in ling
with the Code. By clarifying the type and level of risk it is willing to
take in order to achieve its strategic objectives, the Company aims to
support consistent, risk-informed decision making across the Group.

The Corapany's risk appetite has been incorporated into the risk

management framework and the Committee monitors whether the
Group is operating within that appetite through a review of a series
of agreed metrics and a review of the prinecipal and emerging risks.

Internal Audit

The Company has an Internal Audit function, led by the Head of Risk
and Internal Audit, which focuses on performing a prograrame of
reviews of processes and controls implernented across the Group.
Internal Audit findings are presented to the relevant Head of a
Group division or Group function, the Company Secretary and the
Chief Financial Officer for review. The Committee is responsible
for overseeing the work of the Internal Audit function.

The Committee reviews the sffectiveness of the Internal Audit
function, reviews and approves the scope of the Internal Audit
annual plan anr assesses the guality of Internal Audit reports,
along with management's actions, and their timeliness, relating to
findings and the closure of recommended actions. The Committee
also considers any stakeholder feedback on the quality of Internal
Audit’s work. In order to safeguard the independence of the Internal
Audit function, the Head of Risk and Internal Audit is given the
opportunity to meet privately with the Committee without any
Executive Directors or other members of managerment present.

External Auditor

Deloitte LLP was appointed as the External Auditor of the Cornpany
on 23 August 2018 and the current lead Audit Partner, Makhan
Chahal, was appointed in August 2018. Mr Chahal is in his final year
as lead Audit Partner and will rotate off the engagement next year.

The Group confirms it is in compliance with the requirernents
of the Statutory Audit Services for Large Companies Market
Investigation (Mandatory Use of Competitive Tender Processes
and Audit Responsibilities) Order 2014, which relates to the
frequency and governance of external audit tenders and the
setting of a policy on the provision of non-audit services.

The Company intends to conduct a tender process in line with
the regulations and by no later than 2026.

The Committee reviewed the External Auditor’s effectiveness
during the year. In carrying out its assessrment it considered:

o feedback from the Chief Financial Officer and his team who
monitor the External Auditor's performance, behaviour and
effectiveness during the exercise of its duties;
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w all key External Auditor plans and reports;

u theregular engagernent with the External Auditor during
Committee meetings and ad hoc meetings, including meetings
without any member of managemeant being present;

m the Committee Chair having discussions with the Senior
Statutory Auditor ahead of each Committee meeting;

m the External Audit effectiveness review conducted by the Head of
Risk and Internal Audit which was presented to the Committee at
the September Committee maeting. This contained the results of
an External Audit process effectiveness review questionnaire that
was completed by the Directors and key mermbers of management
and staff who were involved in the external audit process; and

m theindependence and objectivity of the External Auditor.

Having completed this review, the Committee concluded that the
audit process, independence and quality of the External Auditor
was satisfactory.

The Comrnittee has made a recommendation to the Board
to re-appoint Deloitte LLP as the Company’s auditor for the
2020/21 financial year. Accordingly, a resolution proposing
their re-appointment will be tabled at the July 2020 AGM.

External Auditor's Independence and Non-Audit Services
To preserve objectivity and independence, the Committee has
adopted a policy on the provision of non-audit services which
restricts the worlk and fees available to the External Auditor. This
policy was updated during the year to reflect the requirements of
the FRC Revised Ethical Standard published in December 2018,

The policy specifies certain activities which the External Auditor
may not undertake such as tax, consulting, valuation or corporate
services (other than reporting accounting arrangements). Permitted
services are set out in a whitelist and the fees are capped at 70%

of the average audit fees paid in the last 3 years.

The policy requires prior Committee approval for any non-audit
services work permitted under the policy whose value exceeds
£50,000, or where it will cause the curnulative fees for the year to
exceed 10% of the amount of the prior year's audit fee, or where the
cumulative fees for the year already exceed 70% of the average of
the external audit fees paid in the last three years. Prior approval
of the Chief Financial Officer is required for any non-audit services
work permitted under the policy whose value exceeds £10,000.

Non-audit fees are monitored by the Committee and the Committes
is satisfied that all non-audit work undertaken this year was
inline with the policy and did not detract from the objectivity
and independence of the External Auditor. The External Auditor
confirms its independence atleast annually.

The fees paid to Deloitte LLP in regpect of non-audit services during
the year related to the review of interim Financial Statements
and governance compliance certificates and totalled £91,600,
representing 10% of the total audit fee (2019 £97,900 and 10%).

Biffa Annual Report and Accounts 2020

Committee Evaluation

The Committee’s performance during the year was assessed
at the same time as the Board evaluation in March 2020.
Further details on the wider Board and Committee evaluation
process can be found on page 53.

FY20 Committee Evaluation

All Directors, regular attendees and the Company Secretary
responded to an ondine sslf-evaluation questionnaire, covering
all aspects of Committee performance including: the role

of the Committee and its Terms of Reference; meetings

and papers; the internal audit plan and effectiveness of
rmanagement's response to internal audit recommendations;
and risk management and internal controls, The participants
were asked to score 20 statements on ascale of 1to5and
provide written comments, including areas for improvement.

Initial feedback from the evaluation was presented to the
Committee and discussed at its meeting in May 2020. The
overall assessment is that it continues to operate effectively
and has performed well overall during the year. It was agreed
that the key actions would be defined by the Chair and those
actions would form part of the Committee's agenda for the
coming year.

Update on FY19 Committee Evaluation Outcomes
As reported last yeay, the F¥Y19 Committee performance
evaluation was internally facilitated by the Chairman and
Company Secretary. The review identified some potential
opportunities for the Committee including the on-going
personal development needs of the members and to improve
the implementation of the internal audit recommendations.

The Committee members discussed whether anything further
was required in relation to their personal development needs.
They noted that the External Auditor's reports cover all the
relevant latest developments and other opportunities for
development are provided by Deloitte Academy mermbership
and through other external sources and were therefore in
agreernent that nothing further was required.

The Committee is satisfied that the work undertaken during the
year has seen an improvement in the quality and effectiveness
of the implementation of Internal Audit's recornmendations.

61

SJUBWIS3R)S eToULUl] asueursnny syeodion 11odey o1883en1g

UCTIRUTIOJI] [BUOLIPPY



Directors’ Remuneration Report

Remuneration Committee Report

Members

Michael Averill (Chair)
David Martin
Carol Chesney

Areas of Focus in 2020/21

The Committee's priorities for 2020/21 will be to:

®m continue to consider the impacts of COVID-19 on
rerauneration; and

® monitor developments in market best practice.

Dear Shareholder,
Tam pleased to introduce the Directars' Remuneration Report
for 2020.

Tha whole Board is grateful to our shareholders for the continued
support received on remuneration matters at the Company's 2019
AGM where our Directors’ Remuneration Keport was approved by
over 39% of our shareholders.

This year, in conjunction with our regular duties the Remuneration
Committee (Committee) has been preparing and discussing a

new Remuneration Policy and we have consulted with our major
shareholders on our proposed Policy which will be presented for
approval at the 2020 AGM. I would like to thank those shareholders
who have participated in this process for their feedback and
guidance, which resulted in changes to the original proposal.

As IT'write, the Committee is continuing to consider the irnpacts of
COVID-19 on rernuneration at Biffa. As announced on 5 April 2020,
we have undertaken the following actions:

m the Board of Directors and the Group Executive Team members
have volunteered to take a 20% reduction in salary with effect
from 1 April 2020, This will last for the duration of the period
during which the Group is participating in the Government's
Coronavirug Job Retention Scheme [CJRS);

# Biffa's Leadership group, representing a further 85 people,
have also taken a 10% reduction in salary for the same period;

m all pay increases have been suspended until further notice;

m bonus entitlements earned in respect of the year to 27 March
2020, which under normal circumstances would be paid in cash
in July 2020, will be calculated in the normal manner but wiil,
for the most senior participants, be satisfied in shares through
the Group’s employee share plans, subject to final Remuneration
Coramittee approval; and
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@ the Group's annual bonus scheme in respect of 2020/21 has
been suspended and will be reintroduced at the discretion
of the Remuneration Cornmittee when appropriate.

The Report comprises two sections:

w the Directors’ Rernuneration Policy, which will apply fora
maximum of three years from the 2020 AGM and will replace
the Directors’ Remuneration Policy previously approved at
the 2017 AGM; and

w the Directors’ Annual Report on Remuneration, which sets out
pavrients and awards made to the Directors for 2019/2G and
how the Policy will operate for 2020/21.

The Directors’ Remnuneration Policy will be subject to a binding vote
of shareholders at the forthcorning AGM, with the Directors’ Annual
Report on Remuneration being subject to an advisory vote.

Membership of the Committee and Attendance

‘I'he Lornmittee is comprised ul independent Non Exccutive
Directors and is chaired by Michael Averill, with David Martin and
Carol Chesney also being members, The Remuneration Committee
met seven times during the year and the attendance at those
mestings is shown on page 42.

The Company Secretary attands all the Committee meetings

as Secretary to the Cornrnittee and, by invitation, they are also
attended by the Chairman, Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial
Officer, Gab Barbaro (Non-Executive Director), Group HR Director
and external professional advisers for all or part of any meeting

as and when appropriate and necessary.

Role and Responsibilities of the Committee

The role of the Cormnrmittes is to establish a formal and
transparent procedure tor develeping policy on reinuneration
in accordance with the Code. It sets the remuneration of the
Chairman, the Executive Directors and senior management
with due account taken of all relevant factors such as, iinlividual
and Group performance and remuneration payable by companies
of a comparable size and complexity and, in relation to the
Executive Directors, the remuneration of, and remuneration
policies applying to, the Group's employees,

The Committee reports to the Board on its activities and makes
recommendations, all of which have been accepted under lhe
period of review.

The Committee's responsibilities are set out in its Terms of
Reference on the Company’s website at wwwhiffa.couk.

Advisers

FIT Remuneration Consultants LLP (FIT), signatories to the
Remuneration Consultants Group's Code of Conduct, are the
Comurittee’s appointed adviser. FIT provides advice to the
Comumittee on matters relating to executive remunaration
and all-employee share awards. During the year, FIT provided
noother services to the Company and, accordingly, the
Comimittee was satisfied that the advice provided by FIT was
objective and independent. FIT's fees in respact of the 2019/20
financial year were £101,089 plus VAT, charged on the basis
of the firm's standard terms of business for advice provided.
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Activities of the Comumittee During the Year

The main Committee activities during the year (further details
of which axe set out in the relevant sections of this report]
included the following:

m Agreed the performance against the targets and the payments
for the 2018/19 Executive Director annual bonus awards.

m Reviewed annual honus payments for 2018/19 for the Group
Executive Team, senior managers and employees.

m Set the annual bonus performance targets for 2019/20
for the Executive Directors.

m Approved the Directors’ Remuneration Report and the
Remuneration Policy for the 2019 Annual Report.

m Agreed the population, award levels and performance
targets for the 2018/19 PSP awards.

@ Oversaw the grant in 2019/20 under the all-employee
Sharesave Plan.

w Received an update on Group employee pay and conditions
and employes share plans.

® Reviewed and recommended the Gender Pay Gap report for
2019/20 ta the Board for approval.

®» Reviewed and agreed an increase to the Executive Director
and Group Executive Tearn base salary levels from 1 April 2020
(although note subseguent decision in respect of COVID-19
detailed above).

The Comimittee is periodically updated on wider employee
matters such as information on our wider workforce pay and
conditions, our CEQ to employee pay ratio, our gender pay statistics
and our diversity initiatives. The Committee has reviewed these
elements and is satisfied that the executive remuneration structure
remains appropriate.

Whilst the Company does not currently directly engage with
employees as part of the process of formulating the Directors
Remuneration Policy or reviewing executive pay, the Company
does use several initiatives to obtain insights from the broader
employee population, including the annual engagement survey.
Further detail on engagermnent with employees is given in the
Our People section which starts on page 29.

The Committee has ensured that the Directors’ Remuneration
Policy and practices are consistent with the six factors set out
in Provision 40 of the Code:

Clarity - Our Directors’ Remuneration Policy is well understood by
our senior management team and has been clearly articulated to
our shareholders and representative bodies (both on an ongoing
basis and during consultation when changes are being made).

Simplicity ~ The Committee is mindful of the need to avoid overly
complex rernuneration structures which can be misunderstood
and deliver unintended outcomes. Therefore, a key objective of
the Committee is to ensure that our Directors’ Remuneration Policy
and practices are straightforward to communicate and operate.
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m Reviewed and agreed an increase to the Chairman’s fees
(although note subsequent decision in relation to COVID-19
detailed above}.

m Reviewed the impact of the 2018 UK Corporate Governance
Code and various changes to the regulatory environment
and market practice.

m Approved revised shareholding guidelines applying to
the Executive Directors and Group Executive Team.

m Reviewed and recommended the updated Committee
Terms of Reference to the Board for approval.

» Agreed the terms of remuneration on appointment of the
General Counsel and Company Secretary.

m Received an update on the AGM season voting outcomes
and market developments.

m Considered the Investment Association’s letter to
Remuneration Committee chairs and the Investment
Association's Principles of Remuneration.

m Approved the changes to the malus and clawback provisions
in the Deferred Bonus and PSP rules.

w Undertook a review of the Directors’ Remuneration Policy
and shareholder consultation.

s Considered remuneration related measures to mitigate
the impact of the COVID-19 outbreak on the business
as noted above.

Risk ~ Our Directors' Remuneration Policy has been designed to
ensure that inappropriate rigk-taking is discouraged and will not

be rewarded via (i) the balanced use of bath annual incentives

and long-term incentives which employ a blend of financial,
non-financial and shareholder return targets, (ii) the significant
role played by shares in gur incentive plans including the deferral
under the annual honus share and the holding period under the
PSP [together with in ernployment and post cessation shareholding
guidelines] and (iii] malus/clawback provisions within all oux
incentive plans.

Predictability - OQur incentive plans are subject to individual caps,
with our share plans also subject to market standard dilution limits.
Examples of the range of outcomes under the Policy are shown
within the scenario charts. The use of shares within our incentive
plans means that actual pay outcomes are highly aligned to the
experience of our shareholders,

Proportionality - There is a clear link between individual awards,
delivery of strategy and our long-term performance. In addition,
the significant role played by incentive-based pay, together with
the structure of the Executive Directors' service contracts, ensures
that poor performance is not rewarded.

Alignment to pulture - Qur executive pay policies are fully aligned
tothe Company's culture through the use of metrics in both the
annual bonus plan and PSP that measure how we perform against

key targets and objectives within the Group Balanced Business Plan.
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Directors’' Remuneration Report continued

Pay and Performance

Biffa has had a strong year demonstrated by the promotion to the
FTSE 2560 towards the end of the year. We have delivered a strang
set of financial results, which include increasing net revenues by
7% and rmaintaining Underlying Operating Profit Margin at 7.8%. The
Group delivered good organic growth and made a series of earnings
enhancing acquisitions. Strong cash managerment and tight capital
controls resulted in year-end Net Debt of £425.5m, which was 2.4
tirnes Underlying EBITDA.

As aresult, in respect of the 2019/20 annual bonus for the Executive
Directars, the actual Operating Profit was between the target and
maximum and the Free Cash Flow result exceeded the maximum
target. In addition, the majority of the strategic/personal objectives
were either partially met or were met in full. As such, bonus awards of
88.64% of salary for Michael Topham and 83.46% of salary for Richard
Pike were awarded. These awards would normally have bgen paid in
cash where the 200% of salary share owriership guidelines were met,
ar a combination of shares and cash where they were not. However,
as part of the COVID-19 measures mentioned above, all bonus
entitlements earmed by the Executive Directors will be satisfied in
shares through the Group's ernployee share plans. Full details of the
bonus targets and performance against the targets are set out in the
Annual Report on Remuneration.

The July 2017 PSP award is subject to underlying EPS performance
to 27 March 2028 and TSR performance. The estimated overall
payout for the award is 100% of maximum.

The Committee considers that the Remuneration Policy operated
as intended during 2019/20 and that remuneration outcomes are
consistent with the Group performance. The Comrnittee considered
the Board’s recommendation that no final dividend is to be paid for
2018/20 and the implemented measures outlined above regarding
the remuneration for 2020/21 that address the effects of the
COVID-19 pandemic and determined that no discretion needed to
be applied for the above remuneration outcomes although as noted
above the Committee has determined that bonus entitlements for
2019/20 should be satisfied in shares.

Alsa as noted above, the Group’s annual bonus scheme in respect
of 2020/21 has been suspended and the Cornmittes will consider
the performance delivered for our shareholders when determining
the outcome for 2020/21 if the scheme is reintroduced.
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GCommittee Evaluation

The Committee’s performance during the year was assessed
at the same time as the Board evaluation in March 2020.
Further details on the wider Board and Committee evaluation
process can be found on page 53.

FY20 Committee Evaluation

All Directors, regular attendees and the Company Secretary
responded to an online self-evaluation questionnaire, covering
all aspects of Committee performance inciuding: the role of the
Committee and its Terms of Reference; meetings and papers;
communication with key contacts and dialogue with key
institutional investors and representatives on remuneration
igsues. The participants were asked 10 score 20 statements

on a scale of 1to 5 and provide written cornments, including
areas for improvement.

Initial feedback from the evaluation was presented to the
Cormmittee and discussed at its meeting in April 2020.
The overall assessment is that the Committee is working
wetl, there is a gaod ruix of skills and experience and all
members contribute to the high quality of debate. It was
agreed that the key actions would be defined by the Chair
and those actions would form part of the Committee's
agenda for the coming year,

Update on FY19 Commiittee Evaluation Outcomes
As reported last year, the FY19 Cornmittee performance
evaluation was internally facilitated by the Chairman

and Company Secretary. The review identified potential
opportunities for the Committee including, further
improvement in relation to the content and delivery

of Committee papers and personal development needs

of Committee members.

The Gommittee receive regular updates from FIT during
the year and agreed nothing further was required. The

recent Committee evaluation noted the irmprovement in
the content of papers and delivery of the meeting packs.
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Remunerxation for 2020/21

As explained above, at the 2020 AGM we will be submitting our
Directors’ Remuneration Policy for renewal by our shareholders.
The policy is materially unchanged from our first policy as a
newly listed company which was approved at our 2017 AGM,
with the changes proposed being made to align the Policy with
the new Code and regulatory reporting requirements.

No change with increases generally
in line with those awarded to other
salaried employees.

Base salaries

Pension gontributions for new Executive
Director appointrments will be aligned

with the pension benefits available to

the majority of the workforce. Pension
provision for current Executive Directors
[20% of salary for the CEO and 15% of salary
for the CFO] will initially remain unchanged
although will align with workforce rates by
2023 [see below).

Pensions

Annualbonus  Maximum bonus unchanged at 130% of

base salary. Annual bonus potential for

the CEQ and CFO will continue to be set at
130% and 110% of salary. Compulsory bonus
deferral will be introduced for new Executive
Director appointrments, whereby one-third

of any bonus will he deferred into shares for
three years.

Maximum unchanged at 150% of base

salary. The CEQ and CFO will continue to
receive a PSP award of up to 150% and 1256%
of salary respectively.

A two-year holding period also now applies
to all PSP awards (and was applied to awards
granted to Executive Directors in 2019).

Long-term
incentives

Post-employment shareholding guidelines
will be introduced going forward, requiring
Executive Directors to retain their relevant
shareholding at the date of leaving for two
years post cessation.

Shareholding
guidelines
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As part of its review of the Policy, the Cornmittee spent significant
time considering the most appropriate approach for pension
provision, noting the Code requirement for pension provision to
be aligned with that available to the workforce. Any new Executive
Director appointments will have a pension level that is aligned
with the pension benefits available to the wider workforce. The
Cormittee determined that the current Executive Directors’
provision will initially remain unchanged, but the Committee will
be aligning the pension contribution for all Executive Directors
to those available across the workforce by 1 January 2023,

The Committee has also been considering the most appropriate
performance targets to be attached to the 2020 PSP awards.

The current intention is to continue to use a mix of EPS and TSR
measures. Due to the current high level of uncertainty surrounding
setting suitably stretching EPS targets, the EPS targets are yet to be
finalised and will be confirmed by the Committee in due course and
in accordance with recent guidance frorm the Investrnent Association,
nolater than six months foltowing grant. If it is determined that the
Comurnittee is unable to set suitably robust EPS targets within this
tirmeframe the weighting on the TSR element will be increased to 100%.
Full details of the targets will be set out in an RNS announcement
issued immediately after the PSP award is granted or subsequently
ifthey are determined later.

As confirmed in the new Policy, the Committee has the ability to
adjust the formulaic outcomes from performance conditions where
appropriate and the Committee will ensure that outcornes reflect
Company and executive performance as well as the experience

of shareholders and other stakeholders. The Comrnittee will also
use its discretion to reduce vesting outcomes where it determines
that windfall gains have been received.

We trust that you find this Report ta be informative and
trangparent, and we hope to receive your support for both the
Directars’ Remuneration Policy and the Directors’ Annual Report
on Remuneration at our forthcoming AGM.

Michael Averill
Chair, Remuneration Committee

4 June 2020
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Directors’' Remuneration Report continued

Directors’ Remuneration Policy

This Directars’ Remuneration Palicy, which has been approved by the Board and is subject to approval of the shareholders at the 2020 AGM,
contains the material required to be set out in the Directors’ Remuneration Report for the purposes of Part 4 of The Large and Medium-sized
Companies and Groups (Accounts and Reports) (Amendment) Regulations 2008 as amended in 2013 {the DRR regulations].

The Directors’ Rermunerarion Policy will take effect for all payments made to Directors with effect from the ¢onclusion of the forthcoming
2020 AGM.

In devising the new Directors’ Remuneration Policy, the Committee undertook an extensive review of the existing policy and determined
that it, as approved by 99.7% of shareholders at the 2017 AGM, rernains aligned with the Group’s remuneration principles.

The minor amendments to the policy are primarily driven by emerging requirernents under the Code and regulatory remuneration reporting,
which the Committee continues to monitor. Set out helow is the Directors’ Remuneration Policy table which includes a summary of the
proposed changes from the previous policy.

Directors’ Rernuneration Palicy Table

Executive Directors

Element and Base salary

purpose The core element of pay, reflecting the individual's position within the Company and experience.

Policy and Base salaries will be reviewed as appropriate, but typically not more than annually. In reviewing base salaries, the
aperation

Cornmittee will consider the performance of the Company and individual, any changes in responsibilities or scope
of the role, as well as pay practices in relevant comparator cormpanies of a broadly sirilar size and cornplexity.

Maximum It is anticipated that any salary increases will generally be in line with those awarded to salaried employees. That
said, In certain circumnstances (including, but not limited to, changes in role and responsibilities, market levels,
individual and Cornpany performance)] higher increases may be made. However, no incumbent Executive Director’s
salary will increase more than an average of 10% p.a. over the duration of this Policy.

Performance n/a

measures

Changes from No material changes.

previous policy

Element and Benefits in kind

purpose To provide market-competitive benefits valued by recipients.

Policy and The Executive Directors may receive benefits in kind including car allowance, fuel allowance, private family
operation medical insurance and such other market competitive benefits as the Committee considers appropriate.
Maximum Benefits may be provided up to an aggregate value of £50,000 for each Executive Director [or such higher amount

as the Remuneration Comimnittee considers appropriate).

Performance n/a

measures

Changes from No material changes.

previous policy

Element and Pension

purpose To provide retirement benefits.

Policy and The Executive Directors will receive a defined contribution provision (or cash supplement].

operation

Maxirmum The maximum employer’s contribution (or cash supplement) is 20% of salary. Pension contributions for new

Executive Director appointments will be aligned with the pension benefits available to the wider workiorce.

Current contributions are 20% of salary for the Chief Executive Officer and 16% of salary for the Chief Financial Officer.
These levels will be aligned to the wider workforce from 1 January 2023.

Performance n/a

measures

Changes from Newly appointed Executive Directors will be aligned to the wider workforce.
previous palicy

Incumbent Executive Directors remain on current levels through to end of 2022 and then aligned to rate available
to the wider workforce.
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Element and
purpose

Annual honus
To motivate Executive Directors and incentivise the delivery of business strategy over a one-year operating cycle.

Policy and
operation

Arnnual bonus plan levels and the appropriateness of measures are reviewed annually to ensure they continue
to support our strategy.

Once set, performance measures and targets will generally remain unchanged for the year, except to reflect
events {e.g. corporate acquisitions, other major transactions) where the Cornmittee considers it to be necessary
in its opinion to make appropriate adjustments.

The Committee retains the flexibility to pay annual bonus outcomes in cash and/or deferred shares {which may
allow for dividend roll-up). For current Executive Directors, one-third of any bonus earned will be deferred into
shares for three years to the extent that the Executive Director does not at the bonus payment date already hold
sufficient shares to satisfy the share ownership guidelines as may apply from time to time. For new Executive
Directar appointments, one-third of any bonus will be deferred into shares for three years.

Clawhack and malus provision apply as explained in more detail in the notes to this Policy table.

Maximum

The maximum annual bonus opportunity is 130% of base salary.

For 2020/21, the maximum opportunity will be 130% of salary for the CEQ and 110% of salary for the CFO.

Perforrmance
Measures

Bonuses will be payable subject to the achievement of performance conditions which will be set by the Committee.

The targets may be financial and/or personal and strategic, with the majority based on financial targets. Itis
anticipated that the financial targets will have a significant profit-based element. Where a sliding scale of targets is
used, attaining the threshold level of performance for any measure will not typically produce a pay-out of more than
20% of the maximurn portion of overall annual bonus attributable to that measure, with a sliding scale to full pay-out
for maximum performance. Bonus payments will also be subject to the Committee considering that the proposed
bonus amounts, calculated by reference to performance against the targets, appropriately reflect the Company's
overall performance and shareholders’ experience. If the Committee does not believe this to be the case, it may
adjust the bonus gutturn accordingly.

Changes from
previous policy

For newly appeinted Executive Directors, one-third of any bonus will be deferred into shares for three years.

The default good leaver treatment is amended so that rather than deferred bonus share awards vesting at cessation,
they will continue to vest at the normal vesting date.

Elernent and
purpase

Performance Share Plan [PSP)
To motivate Executive Directors and incentivise the delivery of sustained performance over the long term, and
to promote alignment with shareholders’ interests.

Policy and
operation

Awards under the PSP may be granted as nil/nominal cost options or conditional awards which vest tothe extent
performance conditions are satisfied over a period normally of atleast three years.

Awards will vest at the end of the specified vesting period at the discretion of the Cornmittee and for awards granted
alter 10 July 2019, Executive Directors will be required to retain shares vesting under the PSP [net of tax] until the
fifth anniversary of grant.

The PSP rules allow that the number of shares subject to vested PSP awards may be increased to reflact the value
of dividends that would have been paid in respect of any record dates falling between the grant of awards and the
expiry of any vesting period/holding period.

Clawback and malus provisions apply as explained in more detail in the notes to this Policy table.

Maxirmum

The market value of shares to be awarded to Executive Directors in respect of any year will normally be up to
150% and 125% of base salary for the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer respeactively, with awards
of a maximum of 250% allowable in exceptional circumstances.

Biffa Annual Report and Accounts 2020
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Directors' Remuneration Report continued

Executive Directors Performance Share Plan (PSP) continued

Performance
measures

The Comrnittee may impose such conditions as it considers appropriate for each grant which must be satisfied before
any award will vest. This currently includes EPS and TSR that are normally applied with equal weighting.

All awards made to Executive Directors will be subject to performance conditions which measure performance over
a period normally no less than three years.

No more than 25% of awards vest for attaining the threshold level of performance. The Committee also has a standard
power to apply its judgement to adjust the formulaic cutcome of all PSP performance measures to take account of
any circumstances (including the performance of the Company, any individual or business) should il censider that
to be appropriate.

Changes from
previous policy

A two-year holding period was applied to PSP awards made to Executive Directors in 2019. This is now included in the
formal Policy for completeness.

Clarified the ability of the Committee to adjust the formulaic outcomes from performance conditions where appropriate.

Element and
purpose

Share ownership guidelines
To promote stewardship and to further align the interests of Executive Directors with those of shareholders.

Paliey and
operation

The share ownership guidelines encourage Executive Directors to build or maintain (as appropriate] a shareholding
in the Company.

If any Executive Director does not meet the guidelines, thay will be expected te retain up to 50% of the net of tax
number of shares vesting under any of the Company’s discretionary share incentive arrangements (including any
deferred bonus shares) until the guideline is met after which they are expected to retain these levels as a minimum.
These restrictions do not apply to shares acquired through purchase.

From the 2020 AGM, Executive Directors will be required to maintain a shareholding in the Company for a two-
year period after stepping down frorm that position, being 200% of salary or the Executive Directors’ actual relevant
shareholding at leaving this position if lower.

The Executive Directors’ actual relevant shareholding will include shares vesting under any of the Company’s
discretionary share incentive arrangemenits (including any deletied bunus shares) from awards granted after the
date the Policy was adopted but excludes shares acquired through purchase and the release of shares under share
incentive plans where the grant occurred prior to the adoption of the Policy.

Maximum

Noless than 200% of base salary for any Executive Uirector.

Performance
MBasures

n/a

Changes from
previous poliey

Extended the application of share ownership guidelines for a 2-year period post termination of employment.

Elernent and

All-employee share plans

Purpose To facilitate and encourage share ownership by employees, thereby allowing thern to share in the long-term success
of the Cornpany and align their interests with those of shareholders.

Policy and The Executive Directors will be entitled to participate in all of the Company's ernployee share plans, including the

operation Share Incentive Plan and Sharesave Plan, on the same terms as other ernployees.
These all-employee share plans are established under HMRC tax-advantaged regimes and follow the usual form for
such plans,

Maximum The maximum participation levels for all-employee share plans will be the limits for such plans set by HMRC from
time to time.

Performance Consistent with normal practice, such awards would not be subject to performance conditions.

measures

Changes from No material changes.

previous policy
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Chairman and Non-Executive Directors

Element and
purpose

Chairman and Non-Executive Director fees
To enable the Cornpany to recruit and retain Company Chairs and Non-Executive Directers of the highest calibre,
at the appropriate cost.

Policy and
aperation

The fees paid to the Chairman and Non-Executive Directors aim to be competitive with other fully listed companies
of equivalent size and cormplexity.

The fees payable to the Non-Executive Directors are determined by the Board, with the Chairman’s fees determined
by the Committee. No Director participates in decisions regarding their own fees.

The Chairrman and Non-Executive Directors do not participate in any new cash or share incentive plans since Admission.

The Chairman and Non-Executive Directors are entitled to benefits relating to travel and office support and such
other benefits as may be considered appropriate.

The Chairman is paid a single fee for the role, although he will be entitled to an additional fee if he is required to
perform any specific and additional services.

Non-Executive Directors receive a base fee for the role. Additional fees are paid for acting as Senior Independent
Director, Chairs of the Audit, Remuneration or other Board Committee and to the designated Non-Executive Director
for workforce engagement to reflect the additional time cornrnitrnent. They will be entitled to an additional fee if they
are required to perform any specific and additional services.

Maxinmum

Fees are paid monthly in cash.

The aggregate fees and any benefits of the Chairman and Non-Executive Directors will not exceed the limit from time
totime prescribed within the Company’s Articles of Assaciation for such fees (currently £5,000,000 p.a. in aggregate)

Any increases in fee levels made will be appropriately disclosed.

Performance
measures

n/a

Changes from
previous policy

Nomaterial changes.
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Directors’ Remuneration Report continued

Notes to the policy table

1, Stating maxima for each elernent of the Rermuneration Policy
The DRR Regulations and related investor guidance encourages
companies to disclose a cap within which each element of the
Directors' Rernuneration Policy will operate. Where maximum
armounts for elements of remmuneration have been set within the
Policy, these will operate simply as caps and are not indicative

of anv aspiration.

2. Travel and hospitality

While the Committee does not consider it to form part of benefits
in the normal usage of that term, it has been advised that corporate
hospitality, whether paid for by the Company or anather, and
business travel for Directors (and in exceptional circumstances
their families) and any related tax liabilities may technically
come within the applicable rules, and sa the Committee expressly
reserves the right for the Committee to authorise such activities.

3. Past obligations

In addition to the above elerments of rermuneration, any
commitment made prior to, but due to be fulfilled after, the
approval and implementation of this Remuneration Policy
or appointraent as a Director will be honoured (such as any
cormmitments macde in relation to the EVP Return Letters).

4. Malus/clawback

The Committee may apply malus [being the ability to withhold or
reduce a payment/vesting] to an award under the annual bonus
plan or PSP where there are circurnstances which would justify such
action, such as: those relating to materially financially inaccurate or
rmisleading results, risk management failure leads to financial loss,
errors in calculating a payment/vesting, a participant's behaviour
results in material reputational damage, or the Cornpany becomes
insolvent.

The Comumittee may apply ciawback [the ability to reclaim sorne or all
of a payment/vesting] to an award under the annual bonus plan or PSP
where there are circumstances which would justify such action, such
as: evidence ot misconduct or material ervor, yaterial misslalenugnl
in the audited accounts, errors in calculating a payment/vesting, a
participant’s behaviour results in material reputational darmage,

or the Company becomes insolvent.

5. Performance conditions

The performance-related elements of remuneration take into
account the Group's risk policies and systerns, and are designed

to align the senior executives’ interests with those of shareholders.
The Committee reviews the metrics used and targets set for senior
management (not just the Executive Directors and Group Executive
Team) every year, in order to ensure that they are aligned with the
Group's strategy and to ensure an appropriate level of consistency.

6. Comrnittee discretions

The Cormittee will operate the annual borwus plan and PSP according
to their respective rules and the Policy table. The Committee retains
disgretion, consistent with rmarket practice, in a nummber of respects,
in relation to the operation and administration of these plans. This
discretion includes, but is not limited to, the following:

m the selection or participants;

= the tirning of grant of awards;

m the size of an award/bonus opportunity subject to the maximum
limits set put in the Policy table;

m the determination of performance against targets and resultant
vesting/pay-outs;
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m when dealing with a change of control or restructuring
of the Company:

a determination of the treatment of leavers based on the rules
of the relevant plan and the appropriate treatment chosan
(subject to the policy on termination as set out below];

m adjustments required in certain circumstances
{e.g. rights issue and special dividends]); and

u the annual review of performance measures,
weightings and targets from vear to year.

In addition, while performance and targets used in the annual
bonus plan and PSP will generally remain unaltered, if events
accur which the Committee determines have resulted in the
original conditions ceasing to operate as intended, an amended
or different target can be set, provided that it is not materially more
or less difficult to satisty, having regard to the event in question.

Any use of the above discretion would, where relevant, be explained
in the Annual Report on Directors Remuneration and may, where
appropriatc and practicable, bo tho gubject of consultation with
the Company's major shareholders.

The Cormrmittee roay malke minor armendments to the Remuneration
Policy for regulatory, exchange control, tax or administrative
purposes or to talke accpunt of a change in legislation, without
obtaining shareholder approval for that amendrnent.

Remuneration Policy on Recruitment

The Company’s recruitment remuneration policy aims to give the
Cormmittee sutficient flexibility to secure the appointment and
promotion of high calibre executives to strengthen the management
team and securs the skill sets to deliver our strategic aims.

In terms of the principles for setting a package for a new Executive
Director, the starting point for the Committee will be to apply the
Remuneration Policy and structure a package in accordance with
that Policy (noting that pension contributions for a new Executive
Director wil] be aligned with the pension benefits available to the
maijority of the woirkIuice]. Cuusistent with the DRR Regulations,
any caps contained within the Policy for fixed pay do not apply to
new recruits, although the Cornmittee would not envisage exceeding
these caps in practice unless absolutely necessary.

The annual benus plan and PSP, including the maximum award
levels, will operate as detailed in the Remuneration Policy in
relation to any newly appointed Executive Director. For an internal
appointment, any variable pay element awarded in respect of the
prior role may either continue on its original terms or be adjusted
1o reflect the new appointment as appropriate.

For both external and internal appointments, the Comumittee may
agree that the Cornpany will meet certain relocation expenses as
it considers appropriate. It is envisaged these would only be offered
for a limited period.

For external candidates, it may be necessary to make additional
awards in connection with the recruitment to buy out awards
forfeited by the individual on leaving a previous employer. For the
avoidance of doubt, buy-out awards are not subject to a formal cap.
Any recruitment-related awards which are not buy-outs will be
subject to the limits for the annual bonus plan and PSP as stated in
the Remurneration Policy. Details of any recruitment-related awards
will be appropriately disclosed.
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For any buy-outs, the Company will not pay more than isnecessary
in the view of the Committee and will be limited in value to what the
Committee considers to be a fair estimate of the value of the awards
foregone. The Committee will in all cases seek, in the first instance,
to deliver any such awards under the terms of the existing annual
bonus plan and PSP, It may, however, be necessary in some cases

to make buy-out awards on terms that are more bespoke than the
existing annual bonus plan and PSP.

All buy-outs, whether under the annual bonus plan, PSP or
otherwise, will take due account of the service obligations and
performance requirements for any remuneration relinquished by
the individual when leaving a previous employer. The Committee
will seek, where it is practicable to do so, to rnake buy-outs subject
to what are, in its opinion, comparable requirernents in respect of
service and performance. However, the Committee may choose to
relax this requirernent in certain cases, such as where the service
and/or performance requirements are materijally completed, or
where such factors are, in the view of the Committee, reflected in
some other way, such as a significant discount to the face value of
the awards forfeited, and where the Committee considers it tobe
in the interests of shareholders.

Service Contracts

Executive Directors

Michael Topham entered into a service agreement with the Company
which was dated 26 Septernber 2018. Richard Pike entered into

a service agreement with the Company dated 25 July 2018. The
policy is that each Executive Director’s service agreement should
be of indefinite duration, subject ta termination by the Company
or the individual on no more than 12 months’ notice. However, the
Committee reserves flexibility to alter these principles if necessary
to secure the recruitment of an appropriate candidate and if
appropriate introduce a longer initial notice period of up to two
vears (reducing over time to no more than 12 months).

The service agreements of all Executive Directors, which are
available for inspection at the Company's registered office,
corply with this policy as follows:

m Michael Topham's service agreement is terminable by the
Company on not Iess than 12 months’ written notice or by Michael
on notless than 12 months' written notice. The contract provides
for immediate termination upon payment inlieu of notice and
contains a 12-month garden leave clause.

m Richard Pike's service agreement is terminable by the Company
on not less than 6 months' written notice or by Richard onnot
less than 6 months’ written notice. The contract provides for
immediate termination upon payment in lieu of notice and
contains a 6-month garden leave clause.

In each case, any payment in lieu of notice will be calculated

by reference to base salary and contractual benefits only and
will not include any entitlernent to bonus or holiday pay that
would have accrued during the notice period. The payments in
lieu will be paid in monthly instalments. Each Executive Director
is also obliged to seek alternative ermployment/income during
this period and the instalment payments will be reduced by the
amount of such income.
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Chairman and Non-Executive Directors

The Chairman and Non-Executive Directors’ appointments are
subject to the terms of letters of appointment agreed between
themselves and the Company. They are not entitled to receive
any cornpensation on termination of their appointment (other
than payrnent in respect of a notice period where notice is served)
and are not entitled to participate in the Company's share, bonus
or pension schemes, and are entitled to be reimbursed all
reasonable out-of-pocket expenses incurred in the proper
performance of their duties.

Their appointment may be terminated at any time upon three

months written notice. The appointment may also be terminated
pursuant to the Articles or as otherwise required by law. They are
subject to annual re-election by the Company in general meeting.

Original date of

Non-Executive Director Appointment Letter of Engagerment

Ken Levex 12 August 2016 12 Maxrch 2018
Michael Averill 25 February 2013 17 October 2016
David Martin 12 August 2016 17 Octaber 2016
Carol Chesney 12 July 2018 12 June 2018
Gab Barbaro 1January 2019 1 January 2019

Remuneration Policy on Termination

The Committee will consider treatments on a termination having
regard to all of the relevant facts and circumstances available at that
time, This policy applies both to any negetiations linked to notice
periods on a termination and any treatments that the Committee
may choose to apply under the discretions available to it under the
terms of the annual bonus plan and PSP. The potential treatments
on termination under these plans are as follows:

Annual Bonus Plan

If an Executive Director resigns or is dismissed for cause before the
bonus payment date, the right to receive any bonus normally lapses
[unless the Committee determines otherwise). I an Executive
Director ceases employment before the bonus date because of death,
ill health, injury or disability, retirerment, redundancy or any other
reason determined by the Cormmittee, such banus will be payable
as the Committee in its absolute discretion determines talking into
account the circumstances for leaving, time in employment and
performance. Sirmilar treatment will apply in the event ofa change
in control of the Company.

If an Executive Director ceases employment unvested deferred
honus awards will normally lapse. However, if employment

ends hecause of death, ill health, injury or disability, retirement,
redundancy, the sale or transfer of the employing company or
business (other than on a change of contral), or for any other reason

determined by the Committee, the award will vest in full, unless the

Committee decides that it should be subject to a pro-rata reduction
in the number of shares vesting to take account of the proportion
of the vesting period during which the participant will not be in
ermployment. Release will not typically be accelerated, except

in the case of death in service. The Committee has the ability

to release a good leaver's awards early in suitable cases.
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Directors’' Remuneration Report continued

Performance Share Plan
If, during the performance or vasting period, a participant:

m resigns or is dismissed for cause, awards will normally
lapse in full;

m ceases to be employed due to ill health, injury or disability
(established to the Cornpany's satisfaction), retirement with the
agreement of the participant's employer, redundancy, the sale or
transier of the employing company or business (other than on
change of control), or for other reagons specifically approved by
the Committee, the award will continue and, unless the Corunittee
determines otherwise, will vest on the original vesting date
subject to the satisfaction of the performance conditions over
the performance period and a pro-rata reduction in the number
of shares vesting to take account of the proportion of the vesting
period during which the participant was not in employrnent.
Alternatively, on the sale or transfer of the employing company
or business, participants may be required to exchange their
awards for equivalent awards in the acquiring company; and

m dies, unvested awards will vest at the date of death subject
to performance testing and time pro-rating, unless the
Remuneration Committee determines otherwise.

If there is a takeover, scheme of arrangement, demerger or other
corporate reorganisation of the Cormpany, participants may be
required, or may be allowed, to exchange their awards for equivalent
awards in the agquiring company. If awards are not exchanged, they
will normally vest immediately, the performance conditions will
apply and the number of shares which vest will be time pro-rated
to take account of the proportion of the vesting period which has
elapsed prior to the relevant event unless the Comrmittes, acting
fairly and reasonably, decides that it is appropriate not to apply
pro-rating {or apply it less strictly). An award granted in the form
of an option will normally be exercisable for six months after

the date of vesting and will lapse at the end of that period.

Thamumber of shares subject to an award may be adjusted in such
manner as the Comnmittee considers reasonahle if there is rights
issue, corporate restructuring events, demerger, special dividends
or other variation of capital.

The all-ernployee Share Incentive Plan and Sharesave Plan provide
treatments for leavers in line with HMRC rules for such plans.

The Company has the power to anter into settlernent agreements with
Directors and to pay cornpensation to settle potential legal claims.
Inaddition, and consistent with market practice, in the event of the
termination of eraployment of an Executive Director, the Comparny
may make a contribution towards that individual’s legal fees and
fees for outplacerment services as part of a negotiated settlernent.
Any such fees will be disclosed as part of the detail of termination
arrangements. For the avoidance of doubt, the policy does not include
an explicit cap on the cost of termination payments.
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External Appointments

The Cormpany’s policy is to permit an Executive Director to accept
one non-executive appointment outside the Company when this
does not conflict with the individual's duties to the Company.
When an Executive Director takes such a role they may be entitled
to retain any fees which they earn from that appointment.

Statement of Consideration of Employment Conditions
elsewhere in the Campany

Pay and eimployinent conditions generally in the Cormpany will be
taken into account when setting Executive Directors' remuneration,
The Committee will receive regular updates on overall pay and
conditions in the Company, including (but not limited ta} changes
in base pay, any employes bonuses in operation, gender pay gap
and pay ratios. There is also oversight of the all-ernployee share
plans which Executive Directors and all other Company employees
can participate in on the same terms and conditions. Reflecting
standard practice, the Company does not currently consult with
employeés in drawing up the Direclurs’ Rewnuneration Report or
when determining the underlying Policy, although it will continue
to monitor developments in this area.

Differences betwesn the Directors’ Remuneration Policy
and the Policy on Remuneration for Other Employees
The Rermuneration Policy for other employees is based on broadly
consistent principles as described above. Annual salary reviews
across the Company take into account Company performance,
local pay and market conditions and salary levels for similar

roles in cornparable cormpanies.

Other members of senior management participate in similar
annual bonus arrangements to the Executive Directors, although
award sizes vary by organisational level. PSP awards may also

be granted to a broader population than the Executive Directors.
The Company operates discretionary bonus schemes for eligible
groups of employees under which a bonus is payable subject to the
achieverment of appropriate targets. All eligible employees may
participate in thé Lompany's share Inesniive Plai aud Slisiesdve
Plan on identical terms.

Statement of Consideration of Sharsholders’ Views

The Cormmittee considers shareholder views received during the
year and at each Annual General Maeting, as well as guidance from
shareholder representative bodies more broadly, when determining
the Directors' Remuneration Policy and its implementation.

The Committee seeks to build an active and productive dialogue
with investors on developments on the remuneration aspects

of corporate gavernance generally and it will consult with major
shareholders in advance of any material change to the structure
and/or operation of the Policy and will seek formal shareholder
approval for any such change if required.
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Illustrations of the application of the Directors’ Remuneration Policy
The charts below show how the Directors’ Remuneration Policy will be applied for Executive Directors for the 2020/21 financial vear using
the following assumptions:

Minimum m Consists of base salary, benefits and pension.
m Base salary isthe salary to be paid in the 2020/21 financial year.
m Benefits are based on estimated values for the 2020/21 financial year.
m Pension is measured as the defined contribution or cash allowance in lieu of Company contributions of 20%
of salary for the Chief Executive Officer and 15% for the Chief Financial Officer.
Base salary Benefits Pension Total fixed
Michael Topham £495,000 £11,000 £95,000 £605,000
Richard Pike £325,000 £11,000 £49,000 £385,000
Target Based on what the Executive Director would receive if performance was on-target [excluding share price
appreciation and dividends):
» Annual honus: consists of the on-target bonus (60% of maximum opportunity used for illustrative purposes).
m Long term incentive plan (LTIF): consists of the threshold level of vesting (25% vesting) under the PSP
Maximum Based on the maximurm remuneration receivable (excluding share price appreciation and dividends):
m Annual bonus: consists of maximum bonus of 130% of base salary for the Chief Executive Officer and 110%
of base salary for the Chief Financial Officer.
m LTIP: consists of the face value of awards (150% of base salary for the Chief Executive Officer and 125% of base
salary for the Chief Financial Officer) under the PSP.
Maximum m Asthe maximum scenario plus the value resulting from share price growth of 50% from the PSP award.
with 60% share
price growth

£'000 [ Fixed pay [salary, benefits, pension] W AnnualBonus [l LTIP [ Share price growth

£2,500
£d,36d
£2,250
16%
£2,000 £1,991
£1,760
£1,500
1,352
£1,250
£1,000
£750
£600 £401
£250
£0
Minimum OnTarget Maximum Maximum Minirmum OnTarget Maximum Maximurm
withshare withshare
price growth price growth
Michael Topham Richard Pike
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer
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Directors’ Remuneration Report continued

Directors’ Annual Report on Remuneration

2019/20 Remuneration

The following section provides details of how the Directors were paid during the financial year to 27 March 2020.

Single Total Figure Table (audited)

The remuneration for the Executive and Non-Executiva Directors who performed qualifying services during the vear is detailed below

[with prior year comparatives).

Taxable Long-term Total
Directors Salary/Fees benefitst Bonug? incentives™ Pension  Remuneration
Executive Directors
Michael Topham?® 2020 £495,000 £9,425 £488,264 £495733 £99,000 £1,687422
2019 £410,000 £8,865 £412,507 £624,226 £82,000 £1,538,598
Richard Pike® 2020 £325,000 £12,514 £271,268 - £48,750 £667,822
20619 £188,25G £6,288 £161,451 - £27,187 £383.176
Non-Executive Directors
Michael Averiil 2020 £57,000 - - - - £57,000
’09 £57,000 - - - - £67,000
Ken Lever’ 2020 £180,000 - - - - £180,000
2019 £180,000 - - - - £180,000
David Martin 2020 £67,000 - - - - £67,000
2019 £57,000 - - - - £57,000
Carol Chesney 2020 £57,000 - - - - £57,000
2019 £41,069 - - - - £41,089
Gab Barbaro® 2020 £60,000 - - - - £50,000
20138 £12,500 - - - - £12,500
Former Executive Director
Ian Wakelin® 2020 - - - - - -
2019 £265,000 £7,304 £273,219 £724,463 £51,000 £1,310,988

1 Taxable benefits received comprised car allowance, fuel card and private family medical insurance and the intrinsic value of Sharesave options granted during

the year.
The bonus is to be in paid in shares.

h]

3 The estimated outturm for the 2017 PSP which vests in 2020 is 100% and the vesting share price has been estitnaled at 270.9 pence, based on the three-month
average share price ending 27 March 2020. For further information see page 4. £89.485 of the above figure for Michael Tapharn be attributed to a share price

appreciation of 48.9 pence per share, based on an actual award price of 222 pence.

IS

In June 2019, the Committee confirred that the 2016 PSP awards would vest as to 73%. The long-term incentive figures in the 2018 comparatives have therefore

been updated to reflect this and the actual share price on vestinig (223 pence] rather than the three-munth average used in the 2019 Annual Report (195.2 peace).

Gab Barbaro joined the Board with effect frorn 1 January 2019.
Ian Walkelin stepped down from the Board and left the Company on 28 September 2018.

OWm~NmO;m

Michael Topham was appointed GEO on 29 September 2018; his 2019 recorded salary therefore includes only that as CEQ for part of the year.
Richard Pike was appointed CFQ on 29 Septernber 2018; his 2019 recorded salary therefore relates to part year tenure.
Ken Lever’s Fees restated for 2019 (£187,096) which previously included arrears for Fees relating to 2017/18

The aggregate emoluments [being salary/fees, bonuses, benefits and pension allowances) of all Directors for year ended 27 March 2020
was £2,160,210 (2019: £2,238,738). Aggregate value of vested long-term incentives of all Directors for year ended 27 March 2020 was £495,733

(2019: £1,348,689).
2019/20 Annual Bonus {audited)

The Executive Directors' annual bonus targets were set at the beginning of the financial year. As a result of strong underlying financial
performance, the Group exceeded the threshold underlying profit before tax and underlying free cash flow targets set by the Board for

the purposes of awarding the 2019/20 annual bonuses of the Executive Directors.

More particularly, the profit before tax and free cash flow bonus targets were as follows:

Actual Pay-out

Maximurmn. [outof

Threshold Target Maximum Actual Potential Pay- maximum

£ £m £m £m out stated]

Underlying Profit Before Tax -1 69.70 74.93 717 50.0% 35.0%
Underlying Free Cash Flow 36.18 40.20 44.22 53.6 20.0% 20.0%
Total - 70.0% 56.0%

1 No payment was payable for below target performance.
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In respect of the personal performance targets set for each Executive Director, these were set against a range of strategic targets at the start
of the vear. The targets set were aligned to Biffa's corporate objectives having due regard to the five-year strategy.

Details of the measures, to the extent they are not commaercially sensitive are shown below.

Personal Performance Targets - CED

Maximum Actual
Measure Target Performance Potential Payout
Safety and Sustainability Improve safety m Safety engagement scora reduced. Target 5.0% 3.3%
Demonstrate further progress engagement score by 2% not met
and improvement in safety and Reduce Group LTI w Group LTI rate reduced by more than 40%
environmental performance by 40% (to 0.26%) [to 0.23%)
Reduce no of RTA's m Reduction in many RTA categories but
ingrease overall
3% improverment in m Target not achieved due to odour issues
permit cormpliance at a number of landfill sites
score vs number of
permits ratio.
Launch Sustainability ~ m Completed and launched March 2020
Report,
Roll out safety m Safer Together Senior Leader
leadership training training completed
to all senior leaders
Employee Engagement Survey improvement m Score58% [(no improvement) 5.0% 0.0%
Deliver an improvement in the 2% points at Group level
group Employee engagement score (to 60%)
as dernonstrated by the Annual
Employee Engagement Survey
Strategy Execution Progress as per m Partial achieverment on M&A 5.0% 2.5%
Make demonstrable progress approved strategy/five  m PET plant built
in delivery of the strategy year plan m Newhurst financial close complete
Strategy developrnent and financing Strategy aspproved m Capital Markets day delivered strategy 5.0% 5.0%
Develop and gain approval for the and communicated
Group's growth strategy and ensure to markets including
appropriate funding arrangements deliverable plan for
are in place to underpin its delivery financing
Communications Board assessment-to  m Updated investor slide declcand 5.0% 5.0%
Develop and implement a proactive include policy thought sustainability strategy launch
comprehensive communications strategy  leadership and public
interest items (e.g.
safety, sustainability)
as well as IR-related
activities
Talent management and succession Board assessment m Annual talent review corapleted with an 5.0% 5.0%
Implement a formal talent management additional focus on manager hi-potentials.
programme: further develop/improve Newly developed Biffa Advanced
the broader leadership team/identify Leadership Programme commenced.
appropriate successors for Group Executive
Team positions where relevant
30.0% 20.8%
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Directors’ Remuneration Report continued

Personal Performance Targets —-CFO

Actual
Measure Target Performance Maxdraum Payout
Safety and Sustainability Improve safety m Safeiy engagement score reduced. Target 5.0% 3.3%
Demonstrate further progress engagérnent score by 2% not met
and iraprovement in safety and Reduce Group LTI by m Group LTI rate reduced by more than 40%
environmental performance 40% (to 0.26%) [to 0.23%)
Reduce no of RTA's m Reduction inmany RTA categories but
increase overall
3% improvement in m Target not achieved due toodour issues
permit compliance at a number of landfill sites
score v number of
permits ratio.
Launch Sustainability = Cormpleted and lauvnched March 2020
Report.
Roll out safety m Safer Together Senior Leader
leadership training training cormpleted
to all senior leaders
Employee Engagement Survey improvement m Engagement score remained static. 5.0% 0.0%
Deliver an improverment in the group 2% points at Group level Target was not met
Employee engagement score as (to B80O%)
demonstrated by the Annual
Employee Engagement Survey
Strategy Execution Progress as par m Partial achievernent on M&A 5.0% 2.5%
Make demonstrable progress approved strategy/ m PET plant built
in delivery of the strategy five year plan m Newhurst financial close complete
Efficiency and Process Improvement Near term Fusion sub m All delivered/progressing to plan 5.0% 5.0%
Reset Project Fusion projects delivered to
plan and longer term
delivery plan approved
and in place
Financing To include: financing & Outperformed budgeted warking capital, H.0% 5.0%
Deliver key initiatives to improve for strategy (e.g. equity improved terms of bonds, overdraft
the availability and cost of the rajse), out-performance sscured, commenced work for US
Group's financing of budgeted working private placemient bond
capital position,
improved terms of
bonds, securing access
to other pools of finance
where appropriate
Investor Relations To include: improved m CMD delivered, sustainability 5.0% 5.0%
Develop and deliver a more proactive direct communications strategy launched
investor relations programme with investors and
prospects (including
website], Capital
Markets event, launch
of ESG/sustainability
strategy
30.0% 20.8%
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On the basis of the above performance, the Comumnittee determined that payment of 20.8% for the CEO and 20.8% for the CFO out of the
maximum of 30% for this part of the bonus was proportionate and reasonable in the circurnstances. This performance resulted in the

following pericrmance assessment for the year:

Waightings Cutcomes
Michael
CEQ/CFO Topham Richard Pike
Financial performance (% of potential] 70% 55.0% 55.0%
Strategic performance (% of potential) 30% 20.8% 20.8%
Total performance outcome (% of potential) 100% 75.8% 75.8%
Total performance outcome (% of salary) 98.6% 83.5%

Vesting of Long-Term Incentive Awards (audited)

The PSP award granted on 3 July 2017 is partly subject to EPS performance to the year ended 27 March 2020 and partly based on TSR
performance to the date of the preliminary announcerment of results for the year. The performance conditions attached to this award

and performance against these conditions is as follows:

i) Underlying EPS targets as to 50% of the award, and (ii) relative TSR targets as to the remaining 50% of the award. The details of these
8

targets are shown in the tables below:

Underlying EPS for 2019/20) financial year [(60% of award)

Portion of award vesting

Below 19.5p 0%
19.5p 25%
195pto22.5n Pro-rata on straight-line basis hetween 25% and 100%
Above 22.5p 100%
Actual performance 23.6p
Vesting level 100%

Biffa's TSR? ranking vs the FTSE 250 {excluding financial
services companies and investment trusts) [50% of award]

Portion of award vesting

Below median 0%
Median 25%
Between median and upper quartile Pro-rata on straight-line basis between 25% and 100%
Upper quartile 100%
Actual performance To be confirmed at end of performance period

Vesting level (estimated)

100%

2 TSR (calculated based on Biffa plc share price movements, plus dividends reinvested into Biffa ple shares on the relevant ex-dividend dates, aver the performance

period} is measured over the period from the date of grant to the date of the preliminary announcement of results for the 2019/20 financial year.

Based on the estimated vesting percentage above, details of the shares under award and their estimated value (based on the three-month
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average share price at 27 March 2020 of 270.9 pence per share) are as follows:
Maximum Number Number Estimated Face value Impact of
Number of shares of shares value at of awards share price
Executive of shares to vest tolapse vesting £! vesting® on vesting®
Michael Topham 182,995 182,995 0 £496,733 £406,249 £89,485

1 Basged on the three-month average share price to 27 March 2020.
2 Based on the number of Shares vesting multiplied by the share price st the date of grant (222 pence).
3 Based on the estimated value at vesting, less the face value of awards vesting.

The awards also receive the value of dividend equivalents.
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Directors’ Report on Remuneration continued

EVP Awards (audited)

As described in last year's Annual Directors’ Report on Remuneration, prior to the Company’s admission to the London Stock Exchange
certain Directors were granted EVP Return Letters by WasteHoldco 1 Limited (then the parent Company of the Biffa Group of companies)
in connection with a dispute with HMRC regarding the payment of iandfill tax for certain of its operations in the UK (the EVP Dispute).
These EVP Return Letters were granted in recompense for the diminution in value of their interests in the Group resulting from the EVP
Dispute which was linked to incentive arrangements in existence prior to Admission, full details of which appear below in Note 34, on
page 150 of the Financial Statements. As part of the proceedings, the Company was required to pay HMRC approximately £63m shortly
following Admission (the EVP Paid Amount).

If the EVP Dispute is irrevocably settled in the Company's favour and the EVP Paid Amount is unconditionally returned to the Cormpany
(less any amounts which the Group is required to pay in respect of costs incurred by HMRC or penalties or other associated costs of the
EVP Dispute together with the EVP Interest payable (see below]] (the EVP Return), the EVP Return Letters shall be settled and these
Directors shall be entitled to a cash payrment [less tax and national insurance contributions) under the EVP Retum Letters as follows:

% of net EVP

Return to

which they

Director are entitled
Michael Topham 2123
Michael Averill 0.194

In the event the EVP Dispute is ircevocably settled in favour of HMRG, then subject to the Group receiving a net reduction in the tax liability
of the Group (after taking into account any increase in the tax liability arising in respect of any profit and loss account credits in WasteHoldco

1Limited in respect of the EVP preference shares granted to certain shareholders prior to Admission (the Tax Deduction)) the EVP Return
Letters shall be cancelled and the Directors shall be entitled to a cash payment equal to a percentage of the Tax Deduction subjecttoa
maximum payment and a payrment in respect of EVP Interest (see below) [less tax and sogial security contributions) as detailed below:

Maximurn Tax
%of Tax Deduction Qash EVP Interest Tatal Max
Director Deduction Payment Pavable Payment
Michael Topham 2.366 £2386,559 £185,226 £421,785
Michael Averill 0.215 £21,505 £16,839 £38,344

The Company was advised by HMRC in Novermnber 2017 that the remaining penalty interest of £8.7mm, payable on the EVP Paid Amount,
was no longer due (EVP Interest). Once the EVP Dispute has been irrevocably settled, the EVP preference shareholders shall be entitled
toreceive a proportion of the EVP Interest in line with their shareholding and, the holders of the EVP Return Letters shall be entitled to
receive EVP Interest (less tax and social security contributions), as detailed above.

Bitfa was successtful in its appeal at the Upper Tax Tribunal hearing held in November 2019. HMRU has appealed this devisivn w the
Court of Appeal.
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Statement of Directors’ Shareholding and Share Interests (audited}

For each Director, the total number of Directors’ interests in shares at 27 March 2020 was as follows:

Michael Ken David Carol Gab
Averill Lever Martin Chesney Barbaro

Nuraber of Ordinary shares held
as at 27 March 2020

71,340 62,777 25,000 6,500 -

Number of Ordinary shares held
as at 29 March 2019

71,340 52,777 25,000 6,500 -

1 Number of shares held includes 155 shares in respect of the Biffa Share Incentive Plans SIP Award for Michael Topham.

The shareholdings above include those held by Directors and their respective connected persons. There were no changes in the current
Directors’ interests in shares between 27 March 2020 and 4 June 2020 other than those noted above. Under the share ownership guidelines,
the Executive Directors arg required to build end maintain a shareholding equivalent to at least 200% of salary. At the 2020 year-end, Michael
Topham complied with this requirement. Richard Pike's shareholding increased during 2019/20 and was equivalent to 198% of salary based

on the year end share price [175.4 pence).

PSP Awards Granted in the Year (audited)

The following conditional share awards were granted under the PSP in 2019:

Nurber of

Basis of award Face value of shares under
Director (% of salary] awards at grant award' Dateof vesting
Michael Topham 150% £742,500 359,564 04 Jul 22
Richard Pike 125% £406,250 196,731 a4 Jul 22

1 Based on the three-day average share price of 206.5 pence to 30 June 2019,

These awards vest in 2022 subject to perfarmance relating to (i) underlying EPS targets as to 50% of the award, and (ii] relative TSR targets as to the remaining

50% of the award. The details of these targets are shown In the tables below:

Underlying EPS for 2021/22 financial year (50% of award)

Portion of award vesting

Below 24p 0%
24p 25%
24p to28p Pro-rata on straight-line basis between 25% and 100%
Above 28p 100%

Biffa's TGR® ranking vs the FTSE 250 (excluding financial services
companies and investment trusts) (50% of award)

Fortion of award vesting

Below Median
Median
Between Median and Upper Quartile

Upper quartile

0%

25%

Pro-rata on straight-line basis between 25% and 100%
100%

3 TSR(calculated based on Biffa ple share price mavements, plus dividends reinvested into Biffa plc shares on the relevant ex-dividend dates, over the perfermance
period) is measured over the period from the date of grant to the date of the preliminary announcement of results for the 2021/22 financial year.

Awards Granted in the Year under the Sharesave Plan (audited)

During 2019, all employees, including the Executive Directors, were eligible to participate in the Sharesave Plan. This table details the

number of options granted to Richard Pike under the Sharesave Plan:

Share priceat  Exercise price Number of
Director grant [(£] £y shares Date of vesting
Richard Pike 2.26 1.81 1,988 01Sep 22

1 Based on a20% discount to the share price at the invitation date.
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Directors’ Report on Remuneration continued

Qutstanding Share Plan Awards (audited]
Details of all outstanding share awards made to Executive Directors are set out below:

Awards Date of
Interest granted Awards Awards Interest vesting/
Award Exercise Grant at inthe lapsed in vested in at Exercise
Director type Price (£) date 29/03/19 vear the vear the year 27/03/20 period
Michael Topham PSP! 0 20-0ct-16 361111 - 84,905 276,206 - -
PSP* 0 03-Jul-17 182,995 - - - 182,895 01-Jul-20
P3pe 0 02-Jul-18 131,048 - - - 131,048 01-Jui-21
PSP? 0 01-0ct-18 97,028 - - - 97,028 01-Jul-21
pPSp? 0 01-Jul-1s9 - 369,564 - - 358,564 01-Jul-22
SIp? 0 21-Nov-16 150 5 - - 155 3ee Note 4
SAYES 158 P1-Juli7 2.2/8 - - - 2,278 01-Sep-20
Richard Pike PSP 0 01-Oct-18 121,330 - - - 121,330 01-Jul-21
P3P? 0 01-Jul-19 - 186,731 - - 196,731 0l-Jul-22
SAYES 181 12-Jul-19 1,888 1,988 01-Sep-22
1 Performance targets far the 2017 PSP awards are presented ahave.
2 Perdormance targets for the 2018 PSP awards are presented in last year's Directors Remuneration Report.
3 Performance targets for the 2019 PSP awards are detailed above.
4 Award of free shares under the Biffa plc 5IP 2016. The awards were granted on 21 November 2016 and are subject to the normal terms of an HMRC SIP. Awards

granted in the year relate to the award of related dividend shares under the SIF.
5§ Awards granted under the Biffa plc 2017 Sharesave Scheme. Awards are based on a three-year savings contract.

The aggregate gains by all Directors during 2019/20 from share plan awards was £1,348,689 (2018/19: £ nil). The market price of the
shares at the end of the financial year was 175.4 pence; the highest and lowest share price during the financial year were 307 pence
and 175.4 pence respectivel y.

Payments to Past Directors (audited)
Other than the payments rmade to Jan Wakelin outlined in the Single Total Figure Table there were no payments to past Directors in the
tinancial year 2019720 (2018/19: nil].

Payments for Loss of Office {audited)
Nn payments were made to any Director in respect of loss of office in LLie financial year 2018/20 {2018/19: nil).
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Review of Past Performance and CEQO Remuneration Table (unaudited)

The graph below shows the TSR of the Company and the FTSE 250 Index [excluding Investment Trusts] over the period frorn Admission to
27 March 2020. This is considered an appropriate comparator for Biffa, and this aiigns with the use of the FTSE 250 in the TSR performance
measure for the PSP.

Biffa TSR vs FTSE 250 since Admission

H Biffa B FTSE 250 Excl Investment Trusts

Total shareholder return (rebased t6 100)
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{Source: Thomson Reuters)

The table below details certain elements of the CEQ’s remuneration since Admission.

Long-term

Single figure  Annual bonus incentive

oftotal pay-outas%of vestingratesas

remuneration rmaximuam % of maximum

2018/20 £1,687,422 75.9% 100%
2018/19 £1,819,483 82.4% 72.8%
2017/18 £1,220,437 90.1% -
2018/17 £10,681,02! 894.,5% -

1 Itshould be noted that £8,607,310 of the abave amount relates to the bonus paid under the Management Incentive Plan which was in place from 2013 until the
Company's Admission and was therefore ‘one-off' in nature.

Percentage Change in Remuneration of the CEO (unaudited)
The table below presents the year-on-year percentage change in rermmuneration received by the CEQ, compared with the change in
remuneration received by all Biffa employees:

All Biffa

CEQ! employees

Salary -1.5% 4.6%
Short-term incentives -9.3% 30.8%
All taxable benefits -23.0% 10.9%

1 This percentage change reflects the change in the incumbent over the period.
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Directors’ Report on Remuneration centinued

CEO to Emplayee Pay Ratio
The table below shows how the CEO's single figure remuneration (as taken fram the single figure remuneration table on page 81] compares to
the equivalent single figure remuneration for full-time equivalent UK employees, ranked at the 25th, BOth and 75th percentile.

25th 75th

percentile Median pay percentile

Year Method pay ratio ratio pay ratio
2019/20 A 80:1 611 49:1

The relevant regulations provide three options which may be used to calculate the pay for the employees at the 26th percentile, median
and 75th percentile. We have used Option A, following guidance that this is the preferred approach of some proxy advisors and institutional
shareholders. Option A captures all relevant pay and benefits for all employees in line with the single figure for remuneration calculated for
Executive Directors.

The ratios shown are representative of the FTE 25th percentile, median and 75th percentile pay for UK employees within the Group during
2019/20. Full-year pay data for the 2019/20 financial year has been used to calculate the ratios.

The pay for part-time employees has been grossed-up to one FTE.

The Committee has reviewed the employee data and believes the median pay ratio to be consistent with the pay, reward and progression
policies for the company’s UK employees over the period.

The Chief Executive Dfficer's pay is based on the single figure of rernuneration set out on page 81 of this report. Because a large portion
of the Chief Executive Dfficer's pay is variable, the pay ratio is heavily dependent on the outcomes of variable pay plans and, in the case
of long-term share-based awards, share price movements.

The total pay and benefits and the salary component of total pay and benefits for the employee at each of the 25th percentile, the median
and the 75th percentile are shown below:

Salary Total pay and benefits
25th 75th 25th 75th
percentile Median pay percentile percentile Median pay percentile
Year pay ratio ratio payratio pay ratio ratio pay ratio
2019/20 26:1 20:1 18:1 80:1 61:1 49:1

Relative Importance of Spend on Pay {unaudited)

The table below details the change in total employee pay between financial years 2018/18 and 2018/20 as detailed in Note 7 to the Financial
Statements, compared with distributions to shareholders by way of dividend, share buy-backs or any other significant distributions or
payments. These figures have been calculated in line with those in the audited Financial Statements.

2019720 2018719

% change £'000 £'000

Total gross employes pay 3.3% £264.7m £248.5m
Distributions 1o sharsholders 7.6% £18.3m £17.0m

Statement of Shareholdar Voting (unaudited)
The table below shows the advisory vote on the 2018/19 Dirgctors’ Remuneration Report at the AGM held on 10 July 2019 and the binding vote
on the Directors’ Remuneration Policy at the AGM held on 18 July 2017:

AGM resplution Votes for % Votes against  Votes withheld
Remuneration Policy 192,592,197 98.73 514,821 7487112
Remuneration Report 193,472,429 99.01 1,928,292 2,434

Implementation of Policy for 2019/20 (unaudited information)
Base salary
Base salaries will be as follows (unchanged from the prior yearJ:

Director 1 April 2020 % [ncrease
Michae!l Topham £495,000 Q%
Richard Pike £325,000 0%

Any increases to salaries have been suspended and the salaries above are therefore unchanged from the prior year. As disclosed in the
Comrnittee Chair's letter introducing this report, the Executive Directors along with other members of the management team, have agreed
a 20% reduction in the salary they will be paid from 1 April 2020 as part of the Company’s mitigation against the GOVID-19 crisis for the
duration of the period during which the Group is participating in the CJRS.
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Benefits in Kind and Pension Provision
Benefits will be paid in line with the Directors’ Remuneration Policy. Details of the henefits received by Executive Directors are set out
in the single figure table on page 81. There is no intention to introduce changes to existing benefits in 2020/21.

Pension provision for Michael Topham and for Richard Pike will remain at 20% and 15% of base salary respectively. Cantributions may
be rade as cash supplements in full or in part.

Annual Bonus
The Committee had intended to operate the 2020/21 annual bonus in line with previous years. However, as disclosed in the Committee
Chair's letter introducing this report the scheme is suspended and will be reintroduced at the discretion of the Committee when appropriate.

If the scheme is reintroduced it will continue to be based on a maxima of 130% of salary for the Chief Executive Officer and 110% of salary
for the Chief Financial Officer which will be calculated on a pro-rata basis. 33% of any bonus earned will be deferred into shares for three
years to the extent that the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer do not satisfy the Share Ownership Guidelines on the bonus
payment date,

The Committee will consider the appropriate conditions to apply if the scheme is introduced, taking inte account the evolving situation
at the time. In determining any payrnents, the Committee will consider affordability, and supporting disclosures will be made in next
year's report.

PSP Awaxds
A PSP award will be made in 2020 ta Mighae! Topham as Chief Executive Officer and Richard Pike as Chief Financial Officer, of shares
worth 150% of salary and 125% of salary respactively.

It is currently envisaged that the performance conditions will be a mix of EPS (50% of award) and relative TSR {50% of award)]. These are
measures which encourage the generation of sustainable long term returns to shareholders. Due to the current high level of uncertainty
surrounding setting suitably stretching EPS targets, the appropriate range has yet to be finalised but will be contirmed within & months
of the date of grant. If it does not prove possible to set a robust EPS range, the weighting of the TSR element will be increased to 100%.
Full details of the targets will be set out in an RNS announcement issued immediately after the PSP award is granted or subsequently

if the targets are determined later,

Biffa's TSR' ranking vs the constituents of the FTSE 250 (excluding financial

services companies and investroent trusts) (50% of award) Portion of award vesting
Below Median 0%
Median 25%
Between Median and Upper Quartile Pro-rata on straight-line basis between 25% and 100%
Upper Quartile 100%

1 TSR (caloulated based on Biffa plc share price movements, plus dividends reinvested into Biffa plc shares on the relevant ex-dividend dates, over the performance
period) is measured over the 3-year period from the date of grant.

The 2020 PSP awaxds will be subject to a 2-year post vesting holding period.
Chairman and Non-Executive Director Fees
Ken Lever is entitled to a fee of £180,000 p.a. as Chairman (with no additional fee payable for chairing the Nomination Committee).

The Non-Executive Directors are entitled to a fee of £50,000 p.a., with an additional fee of £7,060 p.a. for each of the Senior Independent Director,
Chairs of the Audit Coraumittee and Remuneration Committee and to the designated Non-Executive Director for workiforce engagernent.

Any increases to fees have been suspended and the fees above are therefore unchanged from the prior year. The Chairman and Non-Executive
Directors have also volunteered to a 20% reduction in their fees for the duration of the period during which the Group is participating in the CJRS.

This report was reviewed and approved by the Board on 4 June 2020 and signed on its behalf by order of the Board.

s

Michael Averill
Chair, Remuneration Committee
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Directors' Report

Directors' Report

This Directors’ Report sets out the information required to be disclosed by the Company in compliance with the Act, the UK Listing Rules and
the Financial Conduct Authority's Disclosure and Transparency Rules {DTR). It forms part of the management report as required under the

DTR, along with the Strategic Report [pages 1-39) and other sections of this Annual Report and Aceounts including the Corporate Governance
Report (pages 40-85) all of which are incorporated by reference, as outlined in the table below.

Information Reported in Pages
Acquistions and disposals Strategic Report 13
Business model Strategic Report 2-3
Corporate Governance Report
and Statement of Directors’
Corporate Governance Framework Responsibilities 45
Community and charitable giving Strategic Report 31
Directors’ conflicts of interest Corporate Governance Report 58
Directors’ share interests and remuneration Directors’ Report on Remuneration 81
Director training and development Corporate Governance Report 58
Diversity, equality and inclusion Strategic Report 30
Employee engagemeant Strategic Report 23
Employees with diabilities Strategic Report 30
Financial instruments Financial Statements (Note 19) 134
Future developments and strategic priorities Strategic Report 12-13
Going concern statement Strategic Report 39
Greenhouse gas emissions Strategic Report 26
Prinicpal risk and risk management Strategic Report 34-38
Modern Slavery Statement Strategic Report 31
Non-Financial Information Statement Strategic Report 27
Results Cor-\solidated Income Statement 102
Section 172 Statement Strategic Report 5
Stakeholder engagement Suulugiv Report A5
Statement of Directors Responsibilities Directars Report 89
Viability Statement Strategic Report 39

Annual General Meeting

The Company’s AGM will be held at 11:00am on Thursday 18 July 2020 at its offices, Biffa plc, Coronation Road, Cressex, High Wycombe,

Bucks, HP12 3TZ. The Notice of the AGM accompanies the Annual Report and Accounts and is available on the Company's website at

www.biffa.co.uk/investors.

Articles of Association

The Company's Articles of Association rmay only be amended by a special resolution at a general meeting of the shareholders and can

be found on our website www.biffa.co.uk

Branches

The Company does not have any branches outside of the UK.
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Change of Control

The Group has in place a £350m multi-currency revolving credit
facility (RCF) with a syndicate of 10 banks which is due to mature
in March 2025. Under the terms of the RCF, if there is a change

of control of the Company then any lender may request that its
commitment be cancelled and all other outstanding amounts

be repaid to that lender. The Company is not aware of any other
significant agreements to which it is party that take effect, alter
or terminate upon a change of contro! of the Company following

a takeover bid.

There are no agreements between the Company and the Directors
or employees of the Group providing for compensation for loss of
office or employment following a takeaver bid.

Charitable Donations
During the year, the Company made a charitable donation of
£100,000 to WasteAid. Further details can be found on page 31.

Company Registration
Biffa plc is a company incorporated in England and Wales with
company number 10336040.

Directors

Details of the Directors who served during the year are set out on
pages 42-43. The Cormpany's Articles of Association provide that
all Directors will stand for re-election every three years but in
compliance with the Code all Directors at the AGM will retire and
present themselves for re-election to the Board.

The business of the Company is managed by the Board, which
may exercise all the powers of the Company subject to its Articles
of Association and the Comypanies Act 2006.

Directors’ Indemnities and Insurance

The Company’s Articles of Assaciation provide for the Directors and
officers of the Company to be appropriately indemnified subject to
the provisions of the Companies Act 20086, In addition, the Group
maintains liability insurance for its Directors and officers. Neither
the Company’s indemnity nor insurance covers claims arising from
dishonesty or fraud.

Dividend

The interim dividend of 2.47 pence per share was paid on

20 Decernber 2019. As announced on 25 March 2020, the Directors
are not recornmending the payment of a dividend for FY20. For more
information see page 20.

External Auditor

So far as each Director is aware, there is no relevant information of
which the Company’s External Auditor is unaware. Each Director
has taken all steps that ought to have been taken as a Director to
malke themselves aware of any relevant audit information and to
estabiish that Deloitte LLP are aware of that information.

As detailed on page 82, the Audit Committee recommended, and the
Board approved, the proposal that the current Auditor, Deloitte LLP,
be re-appointed as Auditor of the Cormpany at the AGM. Resolutions to
re-appoint Delopitte LLP as the Company’s Auditor until the conclusion
of the AGM in 2021 and to authorise the Directors to determine their
remuneration will be proposed to shareholders at the AGM.
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Political Donations
Na political donations have been made during the financial year.

Post Balance Sheet Events
There have been no material events from 27 March 2020 to the date
of this Report.

Powers for the Company issuing or Buying Back its Shares
The Cornpany was authorised by shareholders at the 2018 AGM

to allot shares up to a nominal amount of £833,333 and to

malke market purchases of up to 25,000,000 of its own shares
(representing 10% of the issued share capital].

No shares were allotted or purchased under these authorities
during the year.

Share Capital

The Company's issued share capital as at the date of this Report
is composed of a single class of 260,000,000 ordinary shares of
1 pence each: each share carries the right to one vote at general
meetings of the Company. The Company may vary the rights
attaching to its shares by special resolution, subject to the Articles
of Association and applicable laws and regulations.

The Articles of Association contain provisions governing the
ownership and transfer of shares. There are no restrictions on the
transier of shares heyond those required by applicable law under
the Articles of Association or insider trading laws. In accordance
the Company's share dealing policy, the Directors and certain
employees are required to seek prior approval of the Company
before dealingin its shares.

The Company is not aware of any agreements between
sharghglders that may result in restrictions on the transfer
of shares and/or voting rights.

On 4 June 2020, the Biffa plc Share Incentive Plan 2016 held
584,685 shares and the Bitfa PSP plan held 2,481,168 shares

in the Employee Benefit Trust. The right to receive any dividend
has been waived by the Trustee of the EBT over the entire holding
of the trust and by Wealth Nominees Limited in respect of all
Biffa plc shares in their custodian account.

Ernployees who participate in the PSP and SIP and whose shares
remain in the Plan’s trust give directions to the Trustee to vote on
their behalf by way of a Form of Direction.
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Directors’ Report continued

Substantial Shareholdings

The table below shows the holdings in the Company’s ordinary shares that had been notified to the Company under the Disclosure and
Transparency Rules (DTR 5). The information below was correct at the date of notification. It should be noted that these holdings may have
changed since the Company was notified. However, notification of any change is not required until an applicable threshold is crossed.

As at 27 March 2020 As at 4 June 2020
Holding of Holding of
issued issued
Nurmber ef share capital Number of share
Sharcholder Direct/Indirect shares held % Direct/Indirect sharesheld  capital%
Avenue Europe International Management, L.P Diract 21,626,174 8.65 Direct 21,447,472 8.68
CGlobal Alpha Capital Management Indirect 17,914,863 717 Indirect 17,914,663 747
Angelo, Gordon and Co Indirgct 17,907,894 716 Indirect 17,317,964 6.93
Goldrman Sachs International Indirect 14,299,746 .72 Indirect 16,689,258 6.84
Franklin Templeton Investments Indirect 13,567,264 5.43 Indirect 12,748,354 5.09
Legal and General Investment Management Indirect 13,409,608 5.36 Indirect 13,409,608 5.36
On behalf of the Board.
. C- Passownd
Sarah Parsons Jrrak

Company Secretary Biffa plc
Registered in England and Waies No. 10336040
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Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities

Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities in Respect

of the Annual Report and Accounts

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report, the
Directors’ Remuneration Report and the Group and Comypany Financial
Staternents in accordance with applicable lJaw and regulations.

Company law requires the Directors to prepare Financial Statements
for each financial year. Under that law, the Directors are required

to prepare the Group Financial Statements in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards {IFRSs) as adopted by
the European Union and Article 4 of the International Accounting
Standards Regulation and have elected to prepare the Company
Financial Statement in accordance with United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice [(United Kingdom Accounting
Standards and applicable law), including FRS 101 ‘Reduced
Disclosure Framework’,

Under company law, the Directors must not approve the Financial
Staterments unless they are satisfied that they give a true and

fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and Company and of
their profit or loss for that period. In preparing these Financial
Statements, the Directors are required to:

m select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
a make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

m present information, including accounting policies, in a
manner that provides relevant, reliable, comparable and
understandable information;

m inrespect of Group Financial Statements, state whether they have
been prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU;

m inrespect of the Company Financiat Statements, state whether
applicable UK accounting standards have been followed, subject
to any material departures disclosed and explained in those
statements; and

m prepare the Financial Statements on the going concern basis
unless it is inappropriate to presume that the Group and the
parent Company will continue in business.

The Directors are responsibie for keeping adequate acoounting
records that are sufficient to show and explain the Company's
transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time
the financial position of the Company and enable them to ensure
that its Financial Statements comply with the Companies Act
2006. They have general responsibility for taking such steps as are
reasonably open to them to safeguard the assets of the Group and
to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities.

The Dirgctors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity
of the corporate and financial information included on the
Company’s website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing
the preparation and digssernination of financial statements may
differ fror legislation in other jurisdictions.
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Statement of Directors’ Responsibility under

the Disclosure and Transparency Rules

Each of the Directors, as at the date of this report, confirms
to the best of their knowledge that:

m the Financial Statements, prepared in accordance with the
applicable set of accounting standards, give a true and fair
view of the assets, liabilities, finangial position and profit
of the Group and the Company;

m the Strategic Report and the Directors' Report include a fair
review of the development and performance of the business
and the position of the Group and the Company, together
with a description of the principal risks and uncertainties
that they face; and

a the Annual Report and Financial Statements, taken as a
whole, are fair, balanced and understandabie and provide
the information necessary for shareholders to assess the
Group's performance, business model and strategy.

This statement was approved by the Board on 4 June 2020.

Ken Lever P | .
Chairman
4 June 2020 ?
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the members of Biffa plc

Report on the audit of the financial statements

1. Opinion

In pur opinion:

m the financial statements of Biffa plc (the ‘parent corapany’) and its subsidiaries (the ‘group’) give a true and }
fair view of the state of the group's and of the parent company’s affairs as at 27 March 2020 and of the group's
profit for the period then ended;

m the group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards [IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union and IFRSs as issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (IASB);

m the parent company financial staterments have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted
by the European Union and as applied in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006; and

» the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies At
2006 and, as regards the group financial statements, Article 4 of the TAS Regulation.

We have audited the financial staternents which comprise:
Group:

the congplidated income statement;

the consolidated statement of other comprehensive income;

the consolidated statement of financial position;

the consolidated staternents of changes in equity;

the consolidated statement of cash flows; and

the related notes 1 to 39 for the vonsolidated financial staierenly;

Parent Company:

m the parent company statement of financial position;
® the parent company statement of changes in equity; and
m the related notes 1to 9 of the parent company financial staternents.

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and IFRSs as adopted
by the Furopean Union and as regards the parent company financial staternents, as applied in accordance with the
provisions of the Companies Act 2006.

2. Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing {UK) (15As (UK)] and applicable law.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the
financial staterments section of our report.

We are independent of the group and the parent company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the Financial Reporting Council's (the 'FRC'S")
Ethical Standard as applied to listed public interest entities, and we have fulfilied our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirermnents. The non-audit services provided to the group and parent company for the year
ara disclosed in note B to the financial statements. We confirm that the non-audit services prohibited by the FRC's
Ethical Standard were not provided to the group or the parent company.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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3. Summary of our audit approach

Key audit matters The key audit matters that we identified in the current year were:

m Landfill accounting

m Retirement benefit obligations and pension assets

m Asset impairment in the Resources and Energy division

m Onerous contract provisions

m Capitalisation and classitication of costs associated with Project Fusion
m Impact of COVID 19 on going concern and viability

The last two key audit matters are newly identified key audit matters in the current period. Project Fusion comprises of
the investment within a new ERP systern which is entering its most active phases, where judgement is used to capitalise
material costs on a yearly basis.

As a consequence of the COVID-18 outbreak, which has severely affected the UK economy, there are financial reporting
irnpacts particularly with respect to key judgments, estimates, pension assets, going concern assumption and associated
disclosures within the financial staterments. In response to this, we performed an updated audit risk assessment and
identified the impact of COVID-19 on going concern and viability as a key audit matter.

Within this report, key audit matters are identified as follows:

Newly identified
Increased level of riglk
Sirnilar level of risk

Decreased level of risk

Materiality

The materiality that we used for the group financial statements was £4.4 million which was determined on a combined
basis considering revenue, underlying EBITDA and profit before tax, exceptional items and re-measurements ("adjusted
profit before tax"). This equates to 0.4% of group revenue; 2.5% of underlying EBITDA and 8.1% of underlying profit before tax.

Scoping

We performed full scope audits on 15 legal entities in the United Kingdom and specified audit procedures on one legal
entity located in Gibraltar, All United Kingdom entities are managed from one central location in the UK and all audit
work is completed by the group audit team. These entities account for 98% of the group's revenue, 96% of profit before
tax and 98% of net assets.

Significant
changes in
our approach

Apart from the changes to key audit matters as explained above there have been no other key changes in our approach.
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the members of Biffa plc continued

4. Gonclusions relating to going concern, principal risks and viability statement

4.1. Going concern

We have reviewed the directors’ staternent in page 39 to the financial staternents about whether they considered
it apprapriate to adopt the going concarn basis of accounting in preparing them and their identification of any
rmaterial uncertainties to the group’s and company's ability to continue to do so aver a period of at least twelve
months from the date of approval of the financial staternents,

We considered as part of our risk assessment the nature of the group, its business model and related risks including
where relevant the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic and Brexit, the requirements of the applicable financial
reporting framework and the system of internal control. We gvaluated the directors' assessment of the group's
ability to continue as a going concern, including challenging the underlying data and key assumptions used

to make the assessment, and evaluated the directors’ plans for future actions in relation to their going concern
assessment; further details are set cut in the impact of COVID 19 on going concern and viability key audit matter.

We are required to state whether we have anything material to add u1 diaw attention to in relation to that statement
required by Listing Rule 9.8.6R[3) and report if the statement is materially inconsistent with our knowledge

obtained in the audit.

Going concern is the
basis of preparation
of the financial
statements that
assumes an entity will
rerain in operation
for a period of at least
12 months from the
date of approval of the
financial statements.

We confirm that we
have nothing material
toreport, add or draw
attention tg in respect
of these matters.
Refer to this key audit
matter for procedures
performed and key
observations.

4.2. Principal risks and viability statement

Based solely on reading the directors’ staternents and considering whether they were consistent with the
knowledge we obtained in the course of the audit, including the knowledge obtained in the evaluation of the
directors’ assessment of the group's and the company's ability to continue as a going concern, we are required
to state whether we have anything material to add or draw attention to in relation to:

m the disclosures on pages 34-38 that describe the principal risks, procedures to identify emerging risks,
and an explanation of how these are being managed or mitigated;

s the directors' confirmation on page 39 that they have carried out a robust assessment of the principal and
emerging risks facing the group, including those that would threaten its business model, future performance,
solvency or liquidity; or

m the directors’ explanation on page 39 as to how they have assessed the prospects of the group, over what period,
which for Biffa is 3 years, they have done so and why they consider that period to be appropriate, and their
statement as to whether they have a reasonable expectaticn that the group will be able to continue in operation
and meet itsliabilities as they fall due over the period of their assessment, including any related disclosures
drawing attention to any necessary qualifications or assumptions.

We are also required to report whether the directors’ staternent relating to the prospects of the group required
by Listing Rule 9.8.6R(3] is materially inconsistent with our knowledge obtained in the audit.

Viability mmeans the
ability of the group to
continue over the time
horizon considered
appropriate by the
directors.

We confirm that we
have nething material
toreport, add or draw
attention to in respect
of these matters.
Refer to this key audit
matter for procedures
performed and key
obgervations.
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5. Keyaudit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the financial statements
of the current period and include the most significant assessed risks of material misstatement (whether or not due to fraud) that we
identified. These matters included those which had the greatest effect on: the overall audit strategy, the allocation of resources in the
audit; and directing the efforts of the engagement team.

Throughout the course of our audit we identify risks of material misstatement (‘risks'). We consider both the likelihood of a risk and the
potential magnitude of a misstatement in making the assessment. The extent of the risk determines the leve! of evidence we seekin
providing assurance that the associated financial statement item is not materially misstated.

These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

5.1. Landfill accounting —

Key audit matter
description

Account balances: Provisions. Please refer to note 21 to the financial statements. The Audit Committee has included
their assessment of this risk on page 59 and is included within the key sources of estimation uncertainty in Note 1.
For specifics of the group's accounting policy please see page 117.

As at 27 March 2020 the group holds a tandfill restoration and aftercare provision of £56.6 million (29 March 2019: £674 million].

The group operates a number of landfill sites in the UK. A significant cost of owning and operating a landfill site in the
UK arises after the land filling operation ceases due to the constructive and legal obligation to restore sites and then to
care for them until it can be demonstrated that they present no ongoing risk to the environment. The liabilities extend
until the waste is considered to be inert, which is generally assumed to be up to 60 years following closure of the site.
The group makes the provision, within the financial statements, for such long-term obligations through its provisions for
restoration. The level of costs expected are uncertain and can vary significantly from site to site. Biffa uses internal ang
external experts to help determine the total expenditure required to remediate sites.

As these provisions arise in connection with an asset, under IAS 16 “Property, Plant and Equipment” the costs are
capitalised and depreciated over the remaining life of the associated asset.

The key audit matter arises from a number of estimation uncertainties which exist in relation to the level of the provision
and depreciation required. These include the appropriateness of the total cost and void data as well as the accuracy of
the underlying calculations with the key variables being gross cost assumptions, void assumptions and the discount rate
applied to the forecast cashflow.

As part of our assessment of risk of material misstatements due to fraud, we evaluated which of the judgements and
assumptions in landfill provision might give rise to patential fraud risks. We have focused our audit procedures to detect
the inflation of performance through the manipulation of the provision.

How the scope
of our audit
responded to the
key audit matter

Our audit response focused on verifying and challenging the underlying data and key assumptions used by management
in calculating the restoration and aftercare provisions.

As part of the audit we obtained and inspected the experts’ reports for consistency with publicly available information
and their reflection in the forecasts prepared. We have also assessed the competence, objectivity and independence of
the internal and external experts.

We performed procedures to understand the adequacy of the design, implementation and tested the operating
effectivenass of controls in place over the completeness and accuracy of accounting for landfill provisions.

We assessed and challenged the assumptions and judgements in management’s caleulations with reference to market
and historical data, this included discount rates applied in the forecast cash flows. We independently calculated an
appropriate discount rate range and used this to assess management’s rate. We performed a sensitivity analysis of the
environmental provision utilising our independently calculated range. We also tested the mathematical accuracy of the
calculations prepared including the reversal or utilisation of provisions in the current period.

Furthermore we performed an assessment of the reasonableness of the forecast earnings, that underpin the cash flows
used in the caleulation of the provision, for a sample of sites with comparison to historical financial information and
agreement to budget; tested landfill related provisions through analytical reviews; and re-performed the arithmetical
accuracy of the cost of the provision.

Key observations

Whilst we considered management's assumptions to lie towards the optimistic end of the reasonable range, based onthe
work performed as outlined above we conclude the assumptions to be appropriate and concur with management that the
level of landfill provision is adequate,

We are satisfied with the group’s related disclosures of environmental provisions in light of the underlying assurptions
and accounting judgments made.
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Independent Auditor's Report to the mermbers of Biffa plc continued

5.2. Retirement benefit obligations and pension assets

Key audit matter
description

How the scope
of our audit
responded to the
key audit rmaitter

Account balance: Pensions and other post-retirement benefit obligations and associated assets. Refer to note 29
to the financial staternents, The Audit Committee has included their assessment of this risk on page 59 and

is included within the key sources of estimation uncertainty in Note 1. For specifics of the group’s accounting
policy please see page 117.

The group operates several defined benefit pension schemaes which are accounted for under TAS 19 ("Employment
Benefits"). At 27 March 2020, the group have recognised a net defined benefit surplus arising from the defined benefit
schemes of £116 7 million {29 March 2019: £79.0 million). Included within this figure is a gross defined benefit obligation of
£485.9 rmillion (2019: £523.8 million), which comprised of valuations of property and alternative investments which as at
27 March 2020 malke up £60.9 million [2019: £92.8 million) out of scheme assets of £599.3 million (2019: £587.6 million).

Pension accounting is a specialist area requiring the exercise of significant management judgernent and the use of
technical expertisea to determine the surplus or deficit of the scheme in accordance with generally accepted actuarial
practices. The assumptions used in valuing the defined benefit pension liabilities including the discount rate, yield
curves, mortality assumption, inflation level, pansion increase and measures of longevity are complex and changes to
the assumptions can have a material impact on the value of pension liabilities.

The COVID-19 pandernic has resulted in the valuation of certain property assets being subject to increased uncertainty.
In addition the valuation of certain alternative investments including those held in private equity portfolios are subject to
an unusually high level of uncertainty due to the most recent valuations on them being performed prior to the significant
aconomic impacts of the COVID-19 pandemic. Management obtained updated valuations of these assets at the balance
sheet date and provided relevant disclosures regarding the material uncertainty inherent i Lhe valuation in note 20 of
the financial staterments.

Management also determined to account for certain local government pension scheres previously accounted for as
defined contribution schemes on the basis of materiality as defined benefit schemes in the current year. This is a key
audit matter which requires significant judgernent to determine the correct accounting treatment of these schemes
and associated reimbursable assets.

We perforimed walk through procedures to evaluate the adequacy of the design and implementation controls in place
over the accounting of retirement benefit obligation.

We tested the significant judgements made by third party actuaries and assessed their cornpetence and independence.
We also involved our internal actuarial experts to assess the key assumptions applied in determining the pension
obligation for the schemaes, and determined whether the key assumptions are reasonabie. The assessment inciuded
reviewing and challenging available yield curves, discount rate, inflation and mortality data to recalculate a reasonable
benchmark for the key assumptions. We challenged management to understand the sensitivity of changes in key
assumptions and quantified the impact of illustrative benchrnurk tuies tlial vuuld be used in their caloulations,

Additionally we considered the independence, objectivity and competence of the independent actuaries engaged by
management to perform valuations of the relevant schemes. We also tested a sample of the data used in the actuarial
valuation, as well as assessed the basis on which pensiun surpluses were recognisod. The lalter invrolved agrasing
related terms to the deeds of the relevant group pension scheme.

We also engaged internal specialists to challenge management's valuation of scheme assets, in particular the property
and certain alternative investrnents assets. Qur work has included assessing the reasonableness of the valuation
methodologies applied, reviewing publically available information on these assets, comparing the valuations to
internal henchmarks and confirmation of inputs used by management to determine the asset values. In response to
the ‘material valuation uncertainty’ in investment properties as a result of COVID-18, we also assessed how it impacts
upon sensitivities of future sources of estirmation uncertainty. We reviewed the appropriateness of new key estimates
disclosures in note 1 and the assoviated sensitivity analysis in note 29.

With regards to the inclusion of the local government pension scheme and associated reimbursable assets, we assessed
the appropriateness of the accounting treatment with comparison to athers within the industry, and through consultation
with internal specialists. We also evaluated the valuation of the reirbursable asset with consultation with internal
specialists, and reviewad the terms of the contract to assess whether the calculations were appropriate.

Rey observations

Based on the work performed as outlined above, we are satisfied that the methodologies and other key actuarial
assumptions applied in relation to determining the pension valuation, when taken in aggregate, fall within our
internally developed reasonable range.

Whilst we note increased estimation uncertainty in relation to property investrments as a result of Covid-13,
we considered the disclosures in notes 1 and note 29 to be reasonable.

az
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5.3. Asset impairment in the Resources and Energy division —

Key audit matter
description

Account balance: £1,046.8 million. Refer to note 12 to the financial statements. The Audit Committee has included
their assessment of this risk on page 69 and is included within the key sources of estimation uncertainty in Note 1.
For specifics of the group’s accounting policy please see page 117,

As at 27 March 2020 the group held non-current assets of £1,046.8 million (29 March 2019: £856.6 million) which could be
at risk of impairment, including a goodwill balance of £132.2 million [(2019: £128.2 million) arising as a result of the previous
group restructurings and acquisitions. The group carries different classes of intangible assets including, gas reserves,

brand name and customer contracts. Additionally, the group has classes of tangible assets. The carrying value of these is
dependent on future cash flows and if these cash flows do not meet the group’s expectations there is risk that the assets will
be impaired. The impairment reviews performed by the group contain a number of significant estimates including energy
prices, gate fees, forecast tonnage prices, gas vield projections, long-term growth and discount rates. Management relies on
a number of third party experts to value a number of these key estimates.

Changes in these assumptions can have a significant impact on the headroom available in the impairment calculations.
In the current period, two generating units within the Resources and Energy divisions were identified to have low levels of
headroom and high sensitivity to key inputs. The group has incorporated a COVID-19 risk adjustment across both divisions
toreflect the associated risks in the group’s modelling based on reasonable and supportable information available to
management at year end.

How the scope
of our audit
responded to the
key audit matter

We held discussions with management to understand the process that the group followed in its asset impairment
assessrment. Following these discussions we assessed the design and implementation of the controls that management
operates over the process.

We reviewed the forecast reports provided by management's experts for consistency with other third party experts,
publicly available information and the reflection in the cashflow forecasts. We assessed the independence, objectivity,
and competency of the internal and external experts used.

We evaluated the accuracy of future cash flow forecasts with reference to recent performance, trend analysis and an
assessment of historical forecasting accuracy of their forecasts against actual outturn that underpin the cash flows
used in the assessment.

Having ascertained the extent of change in those assumptions that either were individually or collectively would
be required for the goodwill and intangible assets to be impaired, we considered the likelihood of such moverments
in those key assurmptions arising.

We involved our internal valuation specialists to determine an acceptable range of discount rates utilising market
comparable information and compared the rate calculated by management. We challenged managernent on their long
term growth rates and compared them to those used by corparable competitors. We assessed whether they fell within
a reasonable range of external market data. Where they did not, we applied our independent view of a more appropriate
rate to management's forecast. We also tested the mathematical accuracy of the calculation as performed.

We validated the integrity of management’s impairment model through testing the mechanical accuracy and verifying
the application of the input assumptions. We also evaluated the process management undertook to prepare the cash
flow forecasts in its impairment model including agreerment with the latest Board approved plans and management
approved foracasts.

We considered reasonable possible changes in assumptions to challenge the appropriateness of management's
assessment of reasonable possible change scenarios. Qur challenge was informed by input from certain of our
internal valuation specialists, utilising their knowledge and expertise.

Kevy observations

Whilst we considered management’s assumptions to lie towards the optimistic end of the reasonable range, based on
the work performed as outlined above we conclude the assumptions to be appropriate and concur with management
that the key estimates are materially accurate.

We are satisfied that the disclosures in notes 13 and 14 appropriately highlighted the reasonable possible changes in
key assumptions to the recoverable arnounts of the cash generating units within the Resource and Energy divisions.
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the members of Biffa plc continued

5.4. Onerous contract provisions

Key audit matter Account balances: Provisions. Please refer to note 21 to the financial statements. The Audit Committee has included
description their assessment of this risk on page 59 and is included within the key sources of estimation uncertainty in Note 1.
For specifics of the group’s accounting policy please see page 1i7.

Certain of the group’s contracts are onerous and long-term in nature. These contracts can be complex and contain key
performance indicator clauges whare penaities may be incurred in the event of non-compliance. The group is therefore
required to make operational and financial assurmptions to estimate future losses over periods that can extend beyond
seven years. In the period ending 87 March 2020, the provision against onerous contracts reduced to £15.4 million (2019:
£17.1 million).

Variability of contract penalties, underlying delivery costs, cormmodity prices applied and customer claims or disputes
can put additional pressure on margins and on future contract profitability, giving rise to onerous contract provisions.
The prediction of future events over extended periods contains inherent risk and the outcome of customer and sub-
contractor claims is uncertain and involves a high degree of management estimation.

Due to the size and nature of the onerous provision and managernent’s judgernents and estimates used in forecasting
future financial performance, we have determined this is a key audit matter. The key sources of estimation uncertainty
are in relation to the Retail Price Index [(RPI), commodity process applied and unavoidable costs under the contracts.

How the scope We performed procedures to assess the design and implementation of controls in place to identify contracts which may
of our audit be onerous, and to determine whether the potential liability is appropriately accounted and disclosed in the group’s
responded to the financial statements. We performed analytics on contract margins to identify unusual or unexpected trends and to

key audit matter assess whether management's process had identified all onercus and problematic contracts,

For the identified onerous contracts, we obtained and read the key contractual terms to evaluate whether revenue was
recognised in accordance with these terms and whether it is supported by evidence of sexvice delivery. We read and
understood the contract penalty clauses and evaluated the completéness of penalties through discussions with contract
managers and reading minutes of meetings.

We assessed each of the key assumptions underpinning management's forecasts to quantify onerous contract provisions
and independently sensitised management's model. We evaluated the accuracy of future forecasted cash flow forecasts
with reference torecent performance, trend analysis, an assessment of historical forecasting accuracy and operational
improvements against the contracts.

Additionally, we assessed the forecast assumptions used by management around RPI, commodity values against external
market data and other rates in the model checked against underlying signed contracts and agreements. We alsotested the
appropriateness of the discount rate used to present value the obligation, evaluating whether the rates used appropriately
reflect the risk in the underlying cash flows.

We reviewed the models created by management for arithmetical accuracy and the approach taken in relation to the
recent IAS 37 “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities, and Contingent Assets” amendmeénts published by the Financial
Reporting Council (*FRG™) in May 2020.

Key observations We considered the level of provisioning to be acceptable and in accordance with IAS 37 “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities,
and Contingent Assets. We are satisfied with the group's related disclosures of these onerous contracts inlight of the
underlying assumptions and accounting judgments made.
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5.5. Capitalisation and classification of costs associated with Project Fusion *

Key audit matter
description

Account balances: Intangible assets. Please refex to note 13 to the financial statements. The Audit Committee has
inciuded their assessment of this risk on page 59 and is included within the key sources of estimation uncertainty
in Note 1. For specifics of the group’s accounting policy please see page 117.

In the year ended 27 March 2020 management hold a net book value of £14.1 million of intangible assets in relation
to costs capitalised under the IT infrastructure modernisation Project Fusion. Amounts capitalised included internal
development costs of £15.9 million (2019: £17.4 million).

Wa identified this as a key audit matter due to the significant amounts invested and the level of judgement involved,
for exarmple in considering whether internal costs should be capitalised, existing assets being potentially impaired
(due to technology being superseded) and also the appropriateness of the useful economic life assigned to project
assets. As assessment of useful life or potential impairment of assets requires considerable judgement including
the proposed benefits and has an irapact on the armounts recorded as an expense in the Income Staterment, there

is a potential risk of misstatement due to fraud or error.

In the current year our audit procedures also considered the risk of impairment in the context of significant sums
being invested, the change in the systems integrator resetting projected costs and the fast pace of development. New
technology could supersede previously capitalised costs or inappropriate amortisation rates could be used. Given
the current year developments, we challenged management's assessment of the impact of COVID-18 on the control
environment and cash flow forecasts.

How the scope
of our audit
responded to the
key audit matter

We held discussions with management to understand the process that the group followed in the recognition of costs
associated with Project Fusion and their process for assessing impairment, for example a hali-yearly review of project
status involving project managers and finance. Following these discussions we assessed the design and implementation
of the controls that management operates over the process.

We compared a sample of costs capitalised to external invoices or timesheets, where appropriate, to assess whether
costs have been appropriately capitalised, by reference to the recognition eriteria of the applicable accounting standards,
including challenging the group's assessment of the technical feasibility of the related assets.

We also met with project managers responsible to inform our assessment of the feasibility and economic benefits of

the projects, and to identify any indicators of impairment. We assessed the reasonableness of the assumptions used in
management’s impairment review, including corroborating key inputs such as forecast costs and benetits, to internal
performance reporting and knowledge gained performing our other audit procedures. Specifically in relation to recoverability,
we challenged the group's assessment of which assets represent inefficient spend and should therefore be discontinued.

Key observations

We consider the capitalisation and classification of Project Fusion related costs to be appropriate and fairly disclosed
in the financial staterments.
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the members of Biffa plc continued

5.6. Impact of COVID 19 on going cancern and viability .

Key audit matter
description

How the scope
of our audit
respanded to the
key audit matter

Key observations

The COVID-19 pandemic has had a significant impact on the UK economy with consequences to the judgements and
estimates made by the grouyp, principally in relation to the valuation of certain pension assets. Refer to the going
concern assurmption in note 1 to the financial staternents and the Audit Committee’s discussion on page 59.

From February 2020 the scale and impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on the global economy and markets in which the
group operates has increased significantly. This has irmmpacted the results of the group for the 2020 financial year to date
and is expected to continue to impact the group for the remainder of 2020, alheit the severity of the impact is expected
toreduce over time.

Arisk was also identified in relation to the impact of the pandemic on the group’s cash flows and liquidity and accordingly
its ability to continue as a going concern. In order to conclude that it is appropriate for the financial staternents to be drawn
up on a going concern basis and on the viability of the Group, managerment have performed a detailed bottorn-up analysis
of the impact of COVID-19 on revenue, profit and cashflows including cost measures given the period of uncertainty.

Inresponse Management has assessed the cornpleteness of accounting considerations across the group and determined
that the primary risks that arose from the COVID-19 pandemic related to the valuation of unquated pension assets,
particularly certain agsets in the property and alternative investment portfolios which are subject to increased valuation
uncertainties. The key judgements related to the valuation of certain unquoted pension assets are discussed in the
‘retirernent benefit obligations’ key audit matter.

In doing so, managerment have made estimates and judgerments that are critical to the outcorne of these considerations,
such as the speed ot macroeconomic recovery and the quantum and timing of collected tonnages over tha next twelve
months. This analysis has been used in conjunction with an agsessment of the group’s liquidity and consideration of loan
covenants. Management have a reasonable expectation that the group has adequate resources to continue in operational
existence for the foreseeable future and have therefore adopted the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the
financial statements.

We held discussions with management to understand the process that the group has followed In respect of the going
concern and viability assessment. Following these discussions we assessed the design and implementation of the
controls that managerment operates in the process.

We assessed both the baseline going concern model prepared by management, and the COVID-19 overlay adjustments,
which have been used to sensitise the basa case model.

In relation to the baseline model, we agreed the key inputs including EBITDA and net debt values back to board approved
budgets. In addition, we considered the historical accuracy of the budgeting process to assess the reliability of the data.

Specifically, in relation to the COVID-18 overlay, we obtained management's COVID-19 analysis and challenged the
underlying assumptions used with group management. This included consideration of the quantum and timing of
cash flows and assessing long-term growth assumptions against Bank of England and OBR projections. Further this
involved an understanding of the mitigating cost actions being taken, including those involving losal government
assistancy. Wy chiallerged o thivse casureptions baand on our undarstanding nf the husiness And our knowledge of
the industry sectors in which the group operates.

In conjunction with the above we reviewed management’s analysis of both liguidity and loan covenant compliance
to assess whether any breaches are anticipated over the period of assessrment. As the results for April and May 2020
have become availahle, we have updated our analysis to reflect the most recent data. From this, we have rebased our
reasonable worst case to build upon current levels of cash and drawdowns on the current facilities in place. We have
focused on the working capital cash flow and assessed the actual movements.

In relation to covenant compliance we assessed the stress testing performed on management’s adjusted baseline
model and considered to what extent sufficient headroom exists to absorb any further downside risk in relation to
both EBITDA and net debt. We have performed further analysis on the levels of overdue debt held by the Group and
the plans in place with key customers to assess the recoverability of debtor balances and the impacts to forecasted
cash flows. We also reviewed the appropriateness and feasibility of management's mitigations in the case of a
reasonable worst case scenario in order to meet covenant compliance.

Lastly, we reviewed the adequacy of the group's disclosures in relation to the impact of COVID-19 on going concern
and appropriateness of the sensitivity analysis presented in the notes of the financial statements.

Our conclusion on the valuation of certain pension assets is set out in our ‘net pension obligation’ key audit matter.

Our conclusion on going concern is set out in the 'Conclusions relating to going concern, principal risks and viability
statement’ section of this report. We are satisfied that appropriate disclosures are provided in the Annual Report and
the notes of the financial statements.

We cancluded that management's disclosures included in note 1 to the accounts in respect of the key judgerments and
areas of estimation uncertainty are appropriate.
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6. Ourapplication of materiality

6.1. Materiality

We detine materiality as the magnitude of misstatement in the financial staternents that makes it probable that the economic decisions
of a reasonably knowledgeable person would be changed or influenced. We use materiality both in planning the scope of our audit work
and in evaluating the results of our work.

Based on our professional judgement, we determined materiality for the financial statements as a whole as follows:

Group financial statements

Parent company financial staternents

Materiality £4.4 million (2019: £4.0m] £1.8 million (2019: £1.7m)
Basis for Materiality has been determined with reference torevenue, underlying  The Company materiality was determined
determining EBITDA and profit before tax, exceptional items and re-measurements on the basis of net assets and equates to 0.6%
materiality (“adjusted profit before tax™). The materiality determined of £4.4 million (2019: 0.6%) of the Company’s net assets.
equates to 0.4% (2019: 0.3%) of revenue.
In rnaking this determination, we calculated an adjusted profit before
tax as follows:
® taking the statutary profit before tax;
® adding back items classed as exceptional in note 3; and
@ adjusting the effect of the change in discount rate on aftercare
provisions, so that its impact on adjusted profit represents a five
year normalised average figure.
Rationale for The business is currently highly acquisitive, and thersfore profit before As the Carmpany is non-trading and operates
thebenchmark  taxisverylow inthe overall context of the balances within the financial primarily as a holding company for the
applied statements. We believe that using a materiality based on these benchmarks  group’s trading entities, we believe that the

reflects oritical underlying measures of the group which is given substantial
prominence throughout the annual report and reflects the key metrics
used by analysts in their reports and communications to shareholders
and investors, as well as the communications of peer companies.

In calculating an adjusted profit before tax figure, we removed exceptional
iterns as these are not reflective of the underlying performance of the
Group. We consider that the impact of the change in discount rate on the
aftercare provision is a recurring item and have therefore included it in our
calculation; however, because of its volatility, we have taken an average
over five years. We consider this measure suitable having considered
alsp other benghmarks: our materiality equates to 2.7% (2018: 2.7%) of
Underlying EBITDA, 1.1% (2019: 11%) of Net Assets, 8.8% (2019: 8.8%) of
operating profit; and 0.5% [2019: 0.5%) of revenue.

net asset position is the most appropriate
benchmark to use. The entity is not in itself
profit-oriented. The strength of the balance
sheet is the key measure of financial health
that is important to shareholders since the
primary concern of the parent company is the
payment of dividends and servicing of debt.

Adjusted PBT
£71.7m
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Group materiality
£4.4m

Component materiality
range of £3.6m to £1.50m

Audit Comumittee
reporting threshold £0.22m
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Independent Auditor’'s Report to the members of Biffa plc continued

B.2. Performance materiality

We set performance materiality at a level lower than materiality to reduce the probability that, in aggregate, uncorrected and undetected
rnisstatements exceed the materiality for the financial statements as a whole. Group performance materiality was set at 0% of group
raateriality for the year ended 27 March 2020 (2019: 70%). In determining performance materiality, we considered our cumulative
experience from prior year audits, our risk assessment, including our understanding of the entity and its environment, the quality

of the control environment and the history of uncorrected misstatements in previous years.

6.3. Error reporting threshold

We agreed with the Audit Corarmittee that we would report to the Committee all audit differences in excess of £0.22 million (2019: £0.20 million),
as well as differences below that threshold that, in our view, warranted reporting on qualitative grounds. We also report to the Audit Committee
on disclosure matters that we identified when assessing the overail presentation of the financial statements.

7. Anoverview of the scope of our audit

7.1. Identification and scoping of components

Biffa primarily operates in the United Kingdom; the group has two active overseas entities based in Gibraltar that provida insurance services
to the group. In the prior vear this component was based in Malta, however in response to Brexit the group decided to move the company to
Gibraltar. However our audit approach has not changed in this respect.

We consider the statutory reporting structure to reflect the components of the group as this is how management monitor and gontrol the
business. The materiality and scope of wark for each entity has been assessed based upon its significance and contributions to the group. Audit
procedures are then performed based upon the level of scope identified.

Based on this assessment, we performed full scope audits on 15 (2019: 15) legal entities and specified audit procedures on one {2019: one) legal
entity located in the United Kingdom and Gibraltar. All United Kingdom entities are managed fram one central lacation in the UK and ail audit
work is completed by the group audit team. The full scope and specified audit procedures entities account for 99% [2019: 98%) of the group's
revenue, 98% (2019: 98%) of profit before taxation and 99% (2019: 98%) of net assets.

In addition to the work performed at a component level the group audit team also performs audit procedures on the parent company financial
statements including but not limited to corporate activities such as treasury and pensions as well as on the consolidated financial statements
themselves, including entity level controls, litigation provisions, the consolidation, financial statement disclosures and risk assessment work
on components not included elsewhere in the scope of our audit. In addition we carried out review procedures to confirm our conclusion that
thers were no significant risks of material misstatement of the aggregated financial information of the remaining components not subject toa
full scope audit or specified audit procedures.

Full audit scope aB% Full audit scope 86% Full audit scope 97%
Specified audit procedures 0% Specified audit procedures 2% Specified audit procedures 1%
Review at group level % Review al gruup leveal 2% Raview at group leval 2%

7.2. Qurconsideration of the control enyironment

We have taken a controls reliance approach on landfill accounting, revenue recognition, fixed assets and financial reporting by testing
whether key controls on these areas were operating effectively during the period. We have not taken a controls reliance approach over a
number of other areas: asset impairment, onerous contracts, Project Fusion, retirement benefit obligations, expenditure and payroil. The
control improvements that are identified in relation to these areas are reported to managernent and the Audit Committee as appropriate.
Management determines their response to these observations and continues to monitor their resolution with reporting to and oversight
frorn the Audit Committee, In the current year, we have highlighted the potential to enhance the formality of the control and process
documentation including evidencing their operation. We have taken a substantive audit approach an all other areas not mentioned above.

7.3. Working with other auditors

A senior member of the group audit tearn oversaw the Deloitte component tearn’s work on the Gibraltar entity. We included them in our team
briefings, discussed the risk assessment, attended the closing meeting and reviewed their audit working papers. In response to the COVID-19
pandemic and restrictions on in person meetings after the year-end, frequent calls were held between the group and the compaonent team
and rermote access to relevant documents was provided.
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8. Other information
The directars are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the annual report,
other than the financial staternents and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our
report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereor.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material
misstatement in the financial staterments or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstaterment of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

In this context, matters that we are specifically required to report to you as uncorrected material misstaterments of the other information
include where we conclude that:

» Fair, balanced and understandable - the statement given by the directors that they consider the annual report and financial statements
taken as a whole is fair, balanced and understandable and provides the information necessary for shareholders to assess the group’s
position and performance, business model and strategy, is materially inconsistent with our knowledge obtained in the audit; or

= Audit committee reporting - the section describing the work of the audit committee does not appropriately address matters
communicated by us to the audit committes; or

m Directors’ staterment of cornpliance with the UK Corporate Governance Code - the parts of the directors’ statement required under the
Listing Rules relating to the company's compliance with the UK Corporate Governance Code containing provisions specified for review by
the auditor in accordance with Listing Rule 9.8.10R(2) do not properly disclose a departure from a relevant provision of the UK Corporate
Governance Code.

We have nothing to report in respect of these matters.

9. Responsibilities of directors

As explained more fully in the directors’ responsibilities staterment, the directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements
and for heing satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial staterments that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the group's and the parent company’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors either intend to liguidate the group or the parent company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

10. Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statermnents as a whole are free from material misstatermnent,
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material rmisstatement when it exists.
Misstaterments can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

Details of the extent to which the audit was considered capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud and non-compliance with laws
and regulations are set out below.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the FRC's website at:
www.frg.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor’s report.
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the members of Biffa plc continued

11. Extent to which the audit was considered capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud

We identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, and then design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, including obtaining audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion.

11.1. Identifying and assessing patential risks related to ixregularities
In identifying and assessing risks of material misstaternent in respect of irregularities, including fraud and non-compliance with laws and
regulations, we considered the following:

m the nature of the industry and sector, control environment and business performance including the design of the group’s remuneration
policies, key drivers for directors’ remuneration, bonus levels and performance targets;

m results of our enquiries of management, internal audit, and the Audit Committee about their own identification and assessment of the
risks of irregularities;

m any matters we identified having obtained and reviewed the Group's documentation of their policies and procedures relating to:
- identifying, evaluating and complying with laws and regulations and whether they were aware of any instances of non-compliance;
- detecting and responding to the risks of fraud and whether they have knowledge of any actual, suspected or alleged fraud;
- theinternal controls established to mitigate risks of fraud or non-compliance with laws and regulations;

s the matters discussed among the audit engagement tearn, including significant component teams, and involving relevant internal
specialists, including tax, valuations, pensions, IT, and industry specialists regarding how and where fraud might occur in the financial
staternents and any potential indicators of fraud.

A a result of these procedures, we considered the opportunities and incentives that may exist within the organisation for fraud and identified
the greatest potential for fraud in the following areas: landfill accounting, imnpairment of assets in the Resource and Enargy divisions, provision
for onerous gontracts and the capitalisation and classification of costs associated with Project Fusion, In common with all audits under ISAs
[UK), we are also required to perform specific procedures to respond to the risk of management override.

We also obtained an understanding of the legal and regulatory frameworks that the group operates in, focusing on provisions of those laws and
regulations that had a direct effect on the determination of material amounts and disclosures in the financial staternents. The key laws and
regulations we considered in this context included the UK Cornpanies Act, Listing Rules, pensions legislation and tax legislation in all relevant
juristictions where the Group operates.

In addition, we considered provisions of other laws and regulations that do not have a direct effect on the financial statements but cornpliance
with which may be fundamental to the group's ability to operate or to avoid a material penalty.

11.2. Audit response to risks identified

As a result of performing the above, we identified landfill accounting, impairment of assets in the Resource and Energy divisions, provision
for onerous contracts and the capitalisation and classification of costs associated with Project Fusion as key audit matters related to

the potential risk of fraud. The key audit matters section of our report explains the matters in rmore detail and also describes the specitic
procedures we performed in response to those key audit matters.

In addition to the above, our procedures to respond to risks identified included the following:

a reviewing the financial statement disclosures and testing to supporting documentation to assess cormnpliance with provisions of relevant
laws and regulations described as having a direct effect on the financial statements;

@ enquiring of management, the Audit Committee and in-house legal counsel concerning actual and potential litigation and claims;

m performing analytical procedures to identify any unusual or unexpected relationships that may indicate risks of material misstaternent

due to fraud;

reading minutes of meetings of those charged with governance, reviewing internal audit reports and reviewing correspondence with

HMRC; and

= in addressing the risk of fraud through management override of controls, testing the appropriateness of journal entries and other
adjustments; assessing whether the judgements made in making accounting estimates are indicative of a potential bias; and evaluating
the business rationale of any significant transactions that are unusual or outside the normal course of business.

We also communicated relevant identified laws and regulations and potential fraud risks to all engagement team raembers including
internal specialists and significant component audit teams, and remained alert to any indications of fraud or non-compliance with laws
and regulations throughout the audit.
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Report on otherlegal and regulatory requirements

12. Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In pur opinion the part of the directors' remuneration report ta be audited has been properly prepared in accordance with the
Companies Act 2006.

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

m the information given in the strategic report and the directors’ report for the financial year for which the financial statements
are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and
m the strategic report and the directors’ report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the group and the parent company and their environment obtained in the course
of the audit, we have not identified any material misstaternents in the strategic report or the directors’ report.

13. Matters on which we are required to report by exception
13.1, Adequacy of explanations received and accounting records
Under the Companies Act 2008 we are required toreport to you if, in our apinion:

m we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or

m adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received from
branches not visited by us; or

m the parent company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns.

We have nothing to report in respect of these matters.

13.2.Directors’ remuneration
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are also required to report if in our opinion certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration have not been
made or the part of the directors’ remuneration report to be audited is not in agreernent with the accounting records and returns.

We have nothing to report in respect of these matters.

14, Other matters

14.1, Auditor tenure

Following the recommendation of the audit committee, we were appointed by the Board on 23 Auvgust 2016 to audit the financial staternents
for the period ending 24 March 2017 and subsequent financial periods. The period of total uninterrupted engagement including previous
renewals and reappointments of the firm is 4 years, covering the periods ending 24 March 2017 to 27 March 2020.

14.2.Consistency of the audit report with the additional report to the audit committee
Our audit opinion is consistent with the additional report to the audit committee we are raquired to provide in accordance with ISAs (UK].

15. Use of our report

This report is made solely to the company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006. Our
audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s members those matters we are required to state to them inan
auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume respensibility to anyone other
than the company and the company’s members as a body, for our audit worlk, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

bkl (Dot ™

Makhan Chahal ACA
(Senior statutory auditor]

For and on behalf of Deloitte LLP
Statutory Auditor
Londen, United Kingdom

9 June 2020
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Consolidated Income Statement

52 weeks ended 27 March 2020

52 weeks ended 29 March 2019

Underlying Other items Undeilying Other items
activities £m Total activities fm Total

Notes £m [(Note 3) £m £m [Note 3) £m
Revenue 2 1,163.1 - 1,163.1 1,091.2 - 1,091.2
Cost of sales 1,012.7) (11.6) (1,024.3) (959.0) (34.5) (993.5)
Bross profit 150.4 (11.86) 138.8 1322 [34.6] 877
Operating costs [57.7]) (4.8) (62.5) [(50.1) (18] (51.9)
Expected credit loss recognised 16 fe.2) - 2.2) [0.4) - (0.4)
Dperating profit 90.5 (16.4}) 741 817 [36.3) 454
Finance income 4 2.3 11 34 15 - 15
Finance charges 4 [21.0) - [(21.0} [19.2) [6.2) {25.4)
Share of results in joint venture [0.1) - (0.1} - - -
Profit/[loss) before taxation 6 717 {15.3) 56.4 64.0 [42.5) 215
Taxation 9 (14.3) 3.5 (10.8) (12.5) 9.0 (3.5)
Profit/(loss) for the period 574 [11.8) 45.6 51.5 (33.5) 18.0
Profit/(loss) attributable
to shareholders of the
parent Company 574 (11.8) a5.6 515 (33.5) 18.0
Basic earnings/[loss)
per share (pence] 10 23.1 4.8) 18.3 20.6 [13.4) 7.2
Diluted earnings/[loss)
per share (pence] 10 22.5 (4.6) 17.9 199 [13.0] 6.9

Other items includes exceptional iterms, the impact of real discount rate changes to landfill provisions and ameortisation of acquisition intangibles.

Consolidated Statement of Other Comprehensive Income

62 weeksended 52 weeks ended
27 March 2020 28 March 2019

Notes fm £m
Profit for the period 45.6 18.0
Other comprehensive income/(loss)
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:
Actuarial gain on defined benefit pension scheme 29 409 27.3
Share of other comprehensive incorne of joint ventures
Tax relating to iterns that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss 9 (8.3} (4.9]

32.6 22.4

Itemns that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:
Net loss on cash flow hedge (0.6) [(0.4)
Net loss on cash flow hedge in joint venture (1.8) -
Other comprehensive income for the period, net of income tax 30.2 220
Total comprehensive income for the period 75.8 40.0
Attributable to shareholders of the parent Company 75.8 40.0
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

Asat Asat
27March 2020 28 March 2019
Notes £m £rn
Assets
Non-current assets
Goodwill 12 132.2 128.2
Other intangible assets 13 197.0 213.0
Property, plant and equipment 14 5227 3654
Investrment in joint venture 33 3.0 -
Long-term receivables 16 68.2 68.9
Deferred tax assets 22 - 21
Retirermnent benefit surplus 29 1247 79.0
1,052.8 856.6
Current assets
Inventories 15 16.1 14.4
Trade and other receivables 16 165.2 142.0
Contract assets 37 56.2 54.2
Financial assets 18 6.7 157
Current tax assets - 0.5
Cash and cash equivalents 17 878 66.2
Assets held for sale 18 0.1 01
332.2 293.1
Current liabilities
Borrowings 19 (43.6) (317)
Derivative financial instruments 19 a3 (07
Trade and other payables 20 (274.2) {232.0)
Contract liabilities 37 (17.8) [17.8)
Provisions 21 {10.2) (16.0)
Total current liabilities [347.0] [(298.0)
Net current lHabilities (14.8) (4.9)
Non-current liabilities
Borrowings 19 {511.0]) [(387.5)
Trade and other payables 20 {13.6] (13.7)
Provisions 21 [85.1) (90.3)
Deferred tax liahility 2p (17.3) -
Total non-current liabtlities [627.0) (491.5)
Net assets 411.0 360.2
Equity
Called up share capital 24 25 2.5
Share premium 24 235.3 235.3
Hedging reserves [2.8) (0.8
Merger reserve 24 74.4 74.4
Retained earnings 25 101.6 484
Total equity attributable to shareholders 411.0 360.2

The Financial Staternents were approved by the Board of Directors and authorised for issue on 8 June 2020. They were signed on its behalf by:

Richard Pike
Director

Company no: 10336040
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Hedging

Called up Share Merger and other Retained Total

share capital premiurm Teserve Yeserves earnings equity

Notes £m Fm frm £ £m fro

As at 30 March 2018 2.5 235.3 74.4 - 22.8 336.0

Profit for the period - - - - 18.0 18.0

Other comprehensive (loss)/income - - - (04) 224 22.0

Total comprehensive (loss)/income - - - (0.4) 404 40.0

Value of emplovee service in respect

of share option schemes (net of tax) 23 - - - - 2.2 2.2
Dividends paid - - - - (17.0] (17.0)

As at 29 March 2018 2.5 235.3 72.4 (0.4} 48.2 360.2

Profit for the period - - - - 45.6 456

Other comprehensive (loss}/income - - - [(24) 326 30.2

Total gomprehensive (loss)/income - - - =.4) 78.2 75.8
Share purchased by employee benefits trust - - - - (91) (9.1)

Value of employee service in respect

of share option schames (net of tax} 23 - - - - 2.4 2.4
Dividends paid - - - - [18.3) (18.3)

As at 27 March 2020 2.5 235.3 74.4 (2.8} 1016 411.0
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

52 weeks ended

62 weeks ended 29 March 201€
27 Maxch 2020 Restated
Notes £m £rm
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from operationg 26 193.8 133.0
Restructuring and exceptional costs [14.0) [4.5)
Receipt of funds held on long-term deposit - 6.1
Net cash from operating activities 179.8 134.6
Incorme tax paid (0.2) (0.2)
Net cash inflow from operating activities 179.6 134.4
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchases of property, plant ang equipraent [56.8) 4z2.4)
Purchases of intangible assets (3.8) (37)
Compensation 4.4 -
Purchase of business, net of cash acquired 1 (6.1) [(41.5])
Investment in joint venture {5.0) -
Proceeds from the sale of property, plant and equipment 1.6 0.9
Loan to joint venture (2.4) -
Interest received 0.3 03
Net cash used in investing activities [(66.8) (86.4)
Cash flows from financing activities
Interest paid (172} (18.3]
Employee share scheme purchase [6.0) (1.4}
Drawdown of borrowings 27 1.0 451
Fees payable on 1 year extention to RCF [0.5) -
Lease liabilities principal payments 27 (50.2) [(33.0]
Dividands paid (18.3) (17.0)
Net cash flow used in financing activities (91.2) [22.8)
Net inerease In cash and cash aquivalents 21.6 25.4
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period 66.2 40.8
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period 17 878 68.2
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1. Accounting Policies

Basis of preparation

The consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS] and
related interpretations as issued by the IASB and IFRS adopted by the European Union {EU) and therefore comply with Article 4 of the EU JAS
regulations and the parts of the Companies Act 2006 applicable to entities reporting under IFRS. The comparative financial information has
alse been prepared on this basis.

The Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the recording of pensions assets and
liabilities and the revaluation of certain derivative financial liabilities instruments.

The Financial Statements for 2020 have been prepared for the 52-week period ended 27 March 2020. The prior year was a 52-week period, to
29 March 2019, The upcoming year will also be a 52-week period, to 26 March 2021. The Notes to the accounts refer to 2020 and 2019 meaning
S52-week period ended 27 March 2020 and 52-week period ended 29 March 2019 respectively.

The preparation of Financial Statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas invulving a higher degree of
judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated Financial Statements are disclosed
on page 117,

The Group's income statement and segrmental analysis separately identify financial results before exceptional and other items. The Directors
believe that the presentation of the rasults in this way is relevant to an understanding of the Group’s financial performance. Presenting
financial results before exceptional and other iterns is consistent with the way that the financial performance is measured by management
and reported to the Board and aids the comparability of reported results from year to year in this context. The Group's income statement and
segmental analysis separately identify a number of Alternative Performance Measures (APMs) in addition to those reported under IFRS. The
Directors believe that the presentation of the results in this way, which is not meant to be a substitute for or superior to IFRS measures, is .
relevant to an understanding of the Group's underlying trends, financial performance and position. These APMs are also used to enthance the
comparability of information between reporting periods and the Group's divisions, by adjusting for non-recurring or uncontrollable factors
which affect IFRS rmeasures, to aid the user in understanding the underlying performance. Our APMs and KPIs are aligned to our strategy

and together form the basis of the performance measures for remuneration. Consequently, APMs are consistent with how the business
performance is planned and reported internally to the Board and Operating Committees to aid their decision making. Additionally, some

of these measures are used for the purpose of setting remuneration targets.

Going cancern

The Group meets its day-to-day working capital requirements through its bank facilities. The current economic and political conditions
create uncertainty; however, the Group's forecasts and projections, taking account of reasonabiy possible changes in trading perfermance,
show that the Group should be able to operate within the current level of its facilities. Having assessed the principal risks and other matters
discussed in gonnection with the Viability Statement, the Directors consider it appropriate to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the
Consolidated Financial Statements.

The Group's business activities, together with the factors likely to affect its future development, performance and position are set aut in the
Strategic Report on pages 1-39. The financial position of the company, its cash flows, liquidity position ancg borrowing facilities are desciibed
inthe Chief Financial Officer's review on page 18. In addition, note 19 to the Financial Staternents include the company's objectives, policies
and processes for managing its capital; its financial risk managernent objectives; details of its financial instruments

and hedging activities; and its expnsures to credit risk and liquidity risk.

The Group has significant financial resources including unutilised bank facilities of £98m and net cash of £87.8m at 27 March 2020. These
funds, together with the Group's long-term customer contract portfolio, flexible cost base coupled with the geographically diverse operating
footprint of the Group and breadth of customer industry groupings, means that the Group is well placed to manage the direct business impacts
and the current global economic uncertainty arising from the COVID-19 pandernic. This view is underpinned by sensitivity analysis which
has been carried out to model the potential financial impact on the Group of the pandemic over 2020. The Directors have assessed the
principal risks discussed on pages 34-38, including by modelling a reasonable worst-case scenario. This scenario covers the cash flow
impact associated with an extended lockdown for a period of 3 months and a gradual recovery in the rernainder of the year. The main cash
flow irnpacts identified in the reasonable worst-case scenario are:

m a significant reduction in the collections business and landfill businesses driven by lower demand;

& areduction in capital expenditure across the Group;

m areduction in discretionary spend across all areas;

® no payment of the final FY20 dividend;

® the FY20 annual bonus will not be paid in cash;

m the exec are taking 8 20% pay cut with senior management (85 employee’s] taking a 10% pay reduction for the duration of the furloughing period;
m there is arecruitment freeze in place; and

m an intensive furloughing programme involving both operational and central support services. This consists of approx. 1200 employees

As part of their analysis the Board also considered the following potential levers at their discretion ta improve the position identified
by the reasonable worst-case scenario including:

m anumber of further reductions in operating expenditure across the Group primarily related to workforce cost options; and
s further reduction in capital expenditure

Having considered the reasonable worst-scenario and further levers at the Board's discretion, the Group continues to have headroom against
the Group'’s cormitted facilities identified in note 19 to the Financial Statements. The Bank of England CCFF scheme is being explored by the
Group in order to increase headroom in the case of an extreme downside scenario. Other factors considered by the Board as part of their going
concern assessment included the potential impact of Brexit trade talks, alongside inherent uncertainties in cash flow forecasts.
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Based on the ahove, the Directors have concluded the Group is well placed to manage its financing and other business risks satisfactorily,
and have a reasonable expectation that the Group will have adequate resources to continue in operation for at least twelve months from
the signing date of these Consolidated Financial Statements. They therefore cansider it appropriate to adopt the going concern basis of
accounting in preparing the Financial Statements.

Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements incorporate the Financial Statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company
(its subsidiaries]) made up to 27 March 2020. Control is achieved when the Company:

m has the power over the investes;
m is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee; and
m has the ability to use its power to affect its returns

The company reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more
of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Company ohtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Company loses control
of the subsidiary. Specifically, the results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the Income Staternent from
the date the Company gains control until the date when the Company ceases to control the subsidiary.

All intra-group transactions are eliminated as part of the consolidation process. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

New and amended IFRS Standards that are effective for the current year

Impact of initial application of IFRS 16 Leases

IFRS 16 Leases was adopted by the Group on 30 March 2019 and replaces IAS 17 Leases. [IPRS 16 removes the distinction between operating
leases and finance leases. The result is that the majority of leases are capitalised on the statement of financial position as a right-of-use
asset within property, plant and equipment, with a corresponding finance creditor. The cost of leasing these assets in the income staterment
is recognised as a depreciation charge and an interest charge, opposed to the operating lease charge previcusly reflected under IAS17. The
exception to this is the leasing of assets for a period of less than 12 months and the leasing of low-value assets which do not require the
recognition of a right of use asset or corresponding creditor.

On transition, IFRS 16 allows for either a full retrospective approach whereby all prior year comparatives are restated or the modified retrospective
approach. The Group has adopted the modified retrogpective approach. On transition the Group has made use of the practical expedients to
exclude leases where the term ends within 12 months from the date of initial application, and to not reassess whether a contract is or contains
alease. Accordingly, the definition of a lease in accordance with IAS 17 and IFRIC 4 will continue to apply to those leases entered or modified
before 30 March 2019. The Group has applied a single discount rate to portfolios of assets with similar characteristics.

The Group assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease at inception of the contract. The Group recognises a right-of-use asset and

a corresponding lease liability with respect to all lease arrangements in which it is the lessee, except for short-term leases (defined as leases
with a lease term of 12 months or less) and leases of low-value assets (defined by managerment to not exceed £5,000). For these leases, the
Group recognises the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease unless another systematic
hasis is more representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased assets are consumed.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date, discounted
by using the rate implicit in the lease, If this rate cannot be readily determined, the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate. The Group's
incremental borrowing rate is defined as the rate of interest that the lessee would have to pay to borrow over a similar term and with a similar
security the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value in a similar economic environrment.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the liability comprise:

m fixed lease payments, less any lease incentives;

m variable lease payments that depend on an index or rate, initially measured using the index or rate at the commencement date;
m theamount expected to be payable by the lessee under residual value guarantees;

m the exercise price of purchase options, if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise the options; and

w payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the exercise of an option to terminate the lease

The lease liability is presented within borrowings in the consolidated statement of financial position.

The lease liability is subsequently measurad by increasing the carrying amount to reflect the interest on the lease liability (using the
effective interest method) and by reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made.

The Group remeasures the lease liability (and makes a corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use asset) whenever:

m thelease term has changed or there is a change in the assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in which case the lease liability
is remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments using a revised discount rate;

w thelease payments change due to changes in an index or rate or a change in expected payment under a guaranteed residual
value, in which cases the lease liability is remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments using the initial discount rate
{unless the lease payment change is due to a change in floating rate, in which case a revised discount rate is used]; or

w alease contract is modified and the lease modification is not accounted for as a separate lease, in which case the lease liability
is remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments using a revised discount rate.

The right-of-use assets comprise the initial measurement of the corresponding lease liability, lease payment at or before the commencement
day and any initial direct costs. They are subsequently measured at cost less acoumulated depreciation and impairment losses.
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Notes to the Conselidated Financial Statements continued

1. Accounting Policies continued

Changes in accounting policies and disclosures continued

Whenever the Group incurs an obligation for costs to dismantle and remove aleased asset, restore the site on which it is located or restore
the underlying asset to the condition required by the terms and conditions of the iease, a provision is recognised and measured under 1AS 37.
The costs are included in the related right-of-use asset.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated over the shorter period of lease term and useful life of the underlying asset. If a lease transfers ownership
of the underlying asset or the cost of the right-of-use asset reflects that the Group expects to exercise a purchase option, the related right-of-
use asset is depreciated over the useful life of the underlying asset. The depreciation starts at the commencement date of the lease.

At implementation the Group recognised right of use assets of £134.9m and the corresponding lease liability of £134.9m.

To aid comparability the tables below highlight the differences arising as a result of the adoption of IFRS 16 showing the impact on Statement
of Financial Position and Income Statement. A reconciliation of the closing balance under IAS 17 to the opening balance under IFRS 16 is
detailed in Note 28. The tables below use APM's to dernonstrate the IFRS 16 impact as this provides a comparable pre-exceptional position.

2020 2020 2020
Post IFRS16 Pre
Group £m (unless stated) IFRS18 adjustrasnt IFRS 16 2018
Praoperty, plant and equipment 5277 [139.4]) 388.3 3854
Lease liability (258.0) 141.0 (117.0) (122.6)
Other 141.3 (0.5} 140.8 1378
Net assets 411.0 11 412.1 360.1
2020 2020 2520
Post IFRS16 Pre
Group £m (unless statad) IFRS16 adjustment IFRS 16 2019
Revenue 11631 - 1,163.1 1,091.2
Net Revenue 1,102.8 - 1,102.8 1,030.8
Underlying EBITDA 174.0 (18.93 155.1 1507
Underlying EBITDA margin 15.0% - 13.3% 13.8%
Depreciation (83.5) 161 (67.4) (69.0)
Underlying Operating Profit 90.5 [2.8) 877 817
Underlying Operating Profit margin 7.8% - 7.5% 7.5%
Statutory operating Profit 741 (2.8) 71.3 45.4
Underlying net Finance Charges (18.7] 4.2 (14.5) 17.7)
Underlving Profit before Tax 7 14 731 64.0
Statutory proht betore Tax 56.9 14 578 1.5
Underlying Profit after Tax 57.4 11 58.5 61.5

The table above shows underlying measurements; IFRS 16 has no further impact on statutory measures.

2020 2020 2020

Post IFRS16 Pre
Group £m [unless stated) IFRS18 adjustment IFRS 16 2019
Return 73.6 (2.8) 708 65.2
Average Capital Employed 823.1 [137.5)] 6856 B92.3
ROCE 8.9% 10.3% 9.4%

2020 2020 2020

Post IFRS16 Pre
Group £m [unless stated) IFRS 16 adjustment IFRS 16 2019

Average Net Debt @7.3] 1379 (339.4) (338.0)

2020 2020 2020

Post IFRS16 Pre
Collections £m IFRS 18 adjustment IFRS 16 2019
Revenue 870.8 - 870.8 797.2
Net Revenue 870.8 - 870.8 7972
Underlying EBITDA 126.4 11.2] 115.2 106.5
% margin 14.5% 13.2% 13.4%
Underlying Operating Profit 722 1n 705 B1.5
% rnargin 8.3% 8.1% 77%
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2020 2020 2020

Post IFRS186 Pre
Resources & Energy fm IFRS16 adjustment IFRS 16 2019
Revenue . 2923 - 292.3 293.9
Net Revenue 232.1 - 232.1 233.5
Underlying EBITDA 534 [58) 57.8 59.1
% margin 21.7% - 19.8% 20.1%
Underlying Operating Profit 377 [0.8) 36.9 371
% margin 12.9% - 12.6% 12.6%

In the current year, the Group has applied a number of amendments to [IFRS Standards and Interpretations issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board [IASB) that are effective for an annual period that begins on or after 1 January 2019. Their adoption has not
had any material impact on the disclosures or on the amounts reported in these Financial Statements.

The UK's Financial Conduct Authority announced that LIBOR will cease to exist by the end of 2021, and will be replaced by alternative
reference rates. In Septernber 2019, the IASB amended IFRS 9 and IFRS 7 by issuing Interest Rate Benchmark Reform, which provides
exceptions to specific hedge accounting requirements to ensure that hedging relationships are not considered to be modified as a result
of the change in the reference rate. The amendments were endorsed in January 2020 for adoption in the EU. The Group early-adopted
these changes to IFRS 7 and IFRS 9 with effect from 1 April 2019. There were no transition adjustraents on adoption.

IAS 19 (amendments) Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlernent

Annual Improverments to IFRS $tandards 2015-2017 Gycle Arnendments to IFRS 3 Business Combinations, IAS 12 Income Taxes
and IAS 23 Borrowing Costs

IFRS 9 [amendments) Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation
Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate

IFRS 10 and IAS 28 (amendments) or Joint Venture

IFRIC 22 1 January 2018 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration

Annual Improvernents to IFRS Standards 2014-2016 Cycle Amendments to IFRS 1, IFRS 12 and IAS 28 1 January 2018

IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

Adoption of the above has not had any material impact on the disclosures or on the amounts reported in these Financial Staternents.

Changes in accounting policies and disclosures - future developments
At the date of authorisation of these Financial Statements, the Group has not applied the following new and revised IFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective:

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts

IFRS 3 (amendments) Definition of a Business

IAS 1and 1AS 8 (amendments) Definition of Material

Conceptual Framework Amendments to references to the Conceptual Framework in IFRS Standards

There are no other IFRSs or IFRIC Interpretations that are not yet effective that would be expected to have a material impact on the Group.

Business combinations

The Group accounts for acquisitions of businesses using the acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a business combination
is measured at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the acquisition date fair values of the assets transferred to the Group, liabilities
incurred by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for cantrol of the
acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value, except that:

u deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or liabilities related to erplovee benefit arrangements are recognised and measured in
accordance with IAS 12 Income Taxes and IAS 19 Eraployee Benefits respectively;

m liabilities or equity measurements related to share-based payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based payment arrangements of
the Group entered into to replace share-hased payment arrangements of the acquiree are measured in accordance with IFRS 2 Share based
payments at the acquisition date;

= assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale in accordance with IFRS § Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations are measured in acgordance with that Standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree,
and the fair value of the acquirer's previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the net of the acquisition date amounts of the
identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed. If, after reassessment, the net of the acquisition date amounts of the identifiable
assets and acquired and the liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer's previously held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

1. Accounting Policies continued

Business combinations continued

When the consideration transferred by the Group in a business combination includes assets or liabilities resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangernent, the contingent consideration is measured at its acquisition date fair value and included as part of the consideration transferred in
abusiness combination. Changes in the fair value of the contingent consideration that qualify as measurement period adjustments are adjusted
retrospectively, with corresponding adjustments against gnodwill. Measurement period adjustrments are adjustments that arise from additional
inforrnation obtained during the measurement period (which cannot exceed one year from the acquisition date] about facts and circomstances
that existed at the acquisition date.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the combination occurs,
the Group reports provisional amounts for the items for which the accounting is incomplete.

Those provisional amounts are adjusted during the measurerent period (see above), or additional assets or liabilities are recognised, to
reflect new information obtained about facts and circumstances that existed at the acquisition date that, if known, would have affected
the amounts recognised at that date.

Goodwill
Goodwill is initially recognised and rneasured as set out above.

Goodwill is tested annually for impairment or if there is an indication of impairment. Gains and losses on the disposal of a cash-generating
unit inciude the carrying amount of goodwill relating to that cagh-generating unit.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units (or groups of cash-generating units)
that is expected to henefit from the synergies of the business combination. If the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less than
the carrying amount of the unit, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unitand
then to the other assets of the unit pro-rata on the basis of the carrying amount of each asset in Lhe uril.

Gains and losses on the disposal of a cash-generating unit include the carrying arnount of goodwill relating to that cash-generating unit.

Investment in jeint venture

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of the joint
arrangement. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the
relevant activities require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

Under the equity method, an investment in an associate or a joint venture is recognised initially in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group's share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the associate
ar jaint venture. When the Group's share of losses of an assaciate or a joint venture exceeds the Group's interest in that associate or jeint
venture (which includes any long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group's net investment in the associate or joint venture),
the Group discontinues recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred
legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate or joint venture.

Aninvestment in an associate or a joint venture is accounted for using the equity method from the date on which the investee becomes an
associate or a joint venture. On acquisition of the investrnent in an associate or a joint venture, any excess of the cost of the investment over
the Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the investes is recognised as goodwill, which is included within
the carrying amount of the investment. Any excess of the Group's shate ol Lhe net fair value of the identifiable asscts and liabilities over the
cost of the investrment, after reassessment, is recognised munediately in profit or loss in Lhw putivd in which the investment io ooqnirod.

Segmental reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision malker.
The chief operating decision maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments,
has been identified as the Group Executive Team.

The 52-weeks ended 29 March 2019 has been restated to reflect the Group reorganisation into two operating divisions. The historical
Municipal and Industrial & Cornmercial divisions have been merged into the Collections division. The Resource Recovery & Treatment
and Energy divisions have been merged into the Resources & Energy division. The Hazardous Waste business was transferred from the
Resource Recovery & Treatment division into the new Collections division.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable once performance obligations have been fulfilled. Revenue

is reduced for value added taxes, trade discounts and commaodity rebates. The methodology and assumptions for the calculations of trade
discounts and commodity tebates are monitored and adjusted regularly with reference to contractual and legal obligations, historical trends,
past experience and projected market conditions. The nature of the service provided by the Group means that returns or refunds are extremely
limited. Landfill Tax is included within both revenue and cost of sales.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the performance obligation has been met, the goods are delivered and titles have passed.

Revenue from the provision of services is recognised at the point when service has been provided. Collection revenues are recognised at
the point of collection from customer sites. For municipal collections, revenue is recognised in accordance with quantities specified in the
custormer contracts.

When the outcome of a transaction involving the rendering of services can be estimated reliably, revenus associated with the transaction is
recognised as the services are provided and in accordance with the terms of the contract.,

Revenue from waste processing, treatment and landfill facilities is recognised when the performance obligation has been met which is
deemed to be when waste is physically received at the Group sites.

Energy generation revenue is recognised at the point that power is supplied to the custormer based on the quantity of units supplied.

The Group's standard terms for payment offered to customers is typically 30 days.
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Leasing

The Group assesses whether a contract is or contains alease, at inception of the contract. The Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding lease liability with respect to all lease arrangernents in which it is the lessee, except for short-term leases (defined as 1eases with
alease term of 12 months or less) and leases of low-value assets [such as tablets and personal computers, small items of office furniture and
telephones). For these leases, the Group recognises the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease
unless another systernatic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased assets are consumed.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date, discounted
by using the rate implicit in the lease. If this rate cannot be readily determined, the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate. Lease
payraents inciuded in the measurement of the lease liability comprise:

u fixed lease payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives receivable;

= variahle lease payments that depend on an index or rate, initially measured using the index or rate at the commencement date;
m the amount expected to be payable by the lessee under residual value guarantees;

m the exercise price of purchase options, if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise the options; and

m payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the exercise of an option to terminate the lease.

The lease liability is presented as a separate line in the consolidated staterment of financial position. The lease liability is subsequently
rmeasured by increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability (using the effective interest method] and by reducing
the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made.

The Group remeasures the lease liability (and makes a corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use asset) whenever:

m the lease term has changed or there is a significant event or change in circumstances resulting in a change in the assessment
of exercise of a purchase option, in which case the lease liability is remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments using
arevised discount rate;

m thelease payments change due to changes in an index or rate or a change in expected payment under a guaranteed residual value,
in which cases the lease liability is remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments using an unchanged discount rate
(unless the lease payments change is due to a change in a floating interest rate, in which case a revised discount rate is used); or

m alease contract is modified and the lease modification is not accounted for as a separate lease, in which case the lease liability is
rermneasured based on the lease term of the madified lease by discounting the revised lease payments using a revised discount rate
at the effective date of the modification.

The right-of-use assets comprise the initial measurement of the corresponding lease liability, lease payments made at or befare the
commencement day, less any lease incentives received and any initial direct costs, They are subsequently measured at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Whenever the Group incurs an obligation for costs to dismantle and remove a
leased asset, restore the site on which it is located or restore the underlying asset to the condition required by the terms and conditions
of the lease, a provision is recognised and measured under IAS 37. To the extent that the costs relate to a right-of-use asset, the costs are
included in the related right-of-use asset, unless those costs are incurred to produce inventories.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated over the shorter period of lease term and useful life of the underlying asset.

If a lease transfers ownership of the underlying asset or the cost of the right-of-use asset reflacts that the Group expects to exercise
a purchase option, the related right-of-use asset is depreciated over the useful life of the underlying asset. The depreciation starts
at the commencement date of the lease.

The right-of-use assets are disclosed within property, plant and equipment note 14 to the Financial Staternents.

The Group applies [AS 36 to determine whether a right-of-use asset is impaired and accounts for any identified impairment loss as described
in the ‘Property, plant and equipment’ policy. Variable rents that do not depend on an index or rate are not included in the measurernent the
lease liability and the right-of-use asset. The related payments are recognised as an expense in the period in which the event or condition
that triggers those payments occurs.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial information of each individual Group entity, transactions in currencies other than the entity's functional currency
(foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At the end of each reporting period,
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair
value that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise except for:

m exchange differences on foreign currency borrowings relating to assets under construction for future productive use, which are included
in the cost of those assets when they are recognised as an adjustment to interest costs on those foreign currency borrowings; and

m exchange differences on monetary items receivable from or payable to a foreign operation for which settlement is neither planned
nor likely to occur (therefore forming part of the net investment in the foreign operation), which are recognised initially in other
comprehensive income and reclassified from equity to profit or loss on repayment of the monetary iterms.

For the purposes of presenting these Consolidated Financial Statements, the Group's foreign currency denominated assets and liabilities
are translated into Sterling using the exchange rates prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Income and expense items are translated
at the average exchange rates for the period, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during that period, in which case the exchange
rates at the dates of the transactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements cantinued

1. Accounting Policies continued

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assats, until such time as the assets
are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All pther borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Interest income from a financial asset is yecognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the amount
of income can be measured reliably. Interest ingome is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective
interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial
asset to that asset's net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Government grants
Bovernment grants are not recognised until there is reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching to them
and that the grants will be received.

Gavernrnent grants are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group recognises as expenses the
related costs for which the grants are intended to compensate. Specifically, Government grants whose primary condition is that the Group
should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire non-current assets are recognised as deferred revenue in the consolidated statement of
financial position and transferred to profit or loss an a systernatic and rational basis over the useful lives of the related assets.

Employee benefits
Payments to defined contribution retirement benetit plans are recognised as an expense when employees have rendered service entitling
them to the contributions.

For defined benefit retirerment plans, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the projected unit credit method, with actuarial
valuations being carried out at the end of each annual reporting period. Remeasurement, comprising actuarial gains and losses and the
return on plan assets (excluding interest), is reflected irnmediately in the statement of financial position with a charge or credit recognised
in other comprehensive income in the period in which they occur.

Remeasurerment recognised in other comprehensive incorne is reflected immediately in retained earnings and will not be reclassified to
profit or lass. Past sexvice cost is recognised in profit or loss in the period of a plan amendment. Net interest is calculated by applying the
discount rate at the beginning of the period to the net defined benefit liability or agset. Defined benefit costs are categorised as follows:

m Service cost {including current service cost, past service cost as well as gains and losses on curtailments and settlements]
& Netinterest expense or incorme
m Remeasurement

The Group presents service costs in operating costs and net interest expense or income is included in finance income. Curtailment gains
and losses are accounted for as past service costs.

The retirernent benefit obligation recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position represents the actual deficit or surplus
inthe Group's defined benefit plans. Any surplus resulting frorn this calculation is limited to the present value of any economic benefits
available in the form of refunds from the plans or reductions in future contributions to the plans. The Group makes contributions under
Admitted Body status to a number of Local Governrent Pansion Schermes (LGPS) for the period to the end of the relevant customer contracts.
The Group will only participate in LGPS for a finite period up to the end of the relevant customer contracts. At re-bid, any deficit or surplus
will be transferred to the next contractor. The Group recognises the defined benefit obligation less tha fair value of scheme assets, and an
adjustment to only recognise the amount of defined benelit for which it is responsible under the contract. Movements in this adjustment
are recognised in the same way as movements in plan assets.

A liability for a termination benefit is recognised at the earlier of when the entity can no longer withdraw the offer of the termination benefit
and when the entity recognises any related restructuring costs,

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees in respect of wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave in the period the
related service is rendered at the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for that service.

Liabilities recognised in respect of short-term ermployee benefits are measured at the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be
paid in exchange for the related service.

Share-based payment plans

The Group's managerment awards employee sharse options, frora tirme to time, on a discretionary basis which are subject to vesting conditions.
The ecanomic cost of awarding the share options to its emplovees is recognised as an employee benefit expense in the income statement
equivalent to the fair value of the benefit awarded. The fair value is determined by reference to the stochastic pricing model. The charge is
recognised over the vesting period of the award.

Exceptional items

Exceptional items are those that in the Directors’ view are required to be separately disclosed by virtue of their size or incidence to enable
a full understanding of the Group's performance. This facilitates comparison with prior periods to assess trends in tinancial performance
more readily. It is determined by management that each of these iterns relates to events or circumstances that are non-recurring in nature.

Cash flow

Cash and cash equivalents as defined for the Statement of Cash Flows comprise cash in hand, cash held at bank with immediate access,
other short-term investments and bank deposits with maturities of three months or less from the date of inception, and bank overdratts,
In the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position, cash and cash equivalents are presented net of bank overdrafts where there is alegal
right to offset, otherwise are included within borrowings in current liabilities.
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Following a review in the year, we have restated our presentation of £6.1 miilion of cash inflows in relation to the receipt of funds held
on long term deposits in the cash flow statement, ta be presented as operating activities rather than financing activities for the financial
period ending on 29 March 2019. The reclassified cash flows relate to consideration arising from the modification of a revenue contract,
and are therefore more appropriately presented as operating activities which is where the cash flows from revenue would be presented.

Taxation

Income tax represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax. This facilitates comparison with prior periods to assess
trends in financial performance more readily. It is determined by management that each of these iters relates to events or circumstances
that are non-recurring in nature.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before tax’ as reported in the consolidated
income statement because of iterns of incorme or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable

or deductible. The Group's current tax is calculated using rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the

reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities and their tax bases. Deferred
tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible ternporary
differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the ternporary difference arises from theinitiai
recognition (other than in a business combination] of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition

of goodwill.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled
or the asset realised, based on tax rates [and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when they relate to items that are recognised in other comprehengive
income or directly in equity, in which case the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity respectively. Where current or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting of a business combination, the tax effect is
included in accounting for the business combination.

Property, plant and equipment

Landfill sites are recorded at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. The cost of landfill sites includes
the cost of acquiring, developing and engineering sites. There are no directly attributable borrowing costs. Property, plant and equipment
is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accurmulated impairment losses.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets less their residual value over their useful economic lives. The estimated
useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes
in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

In the Financial Statements depreciation was recognised so as to write off the assets on the below basis:

m Buildings - length of lease straight-line method
m Plant, vehicles and equipment - 4 to 15 years straight-line method
m Landfill sites - 2 to 51 yvears void consumed

Where the obligation to restore a landfill site is an integral part of its future economic benefits, a non-current asset within property, plant
and equipment is recognised. Changes to the obligation are recorded as adjustrments to the carrying value of the asset. The asset recognised
is depreciated based on energy production and void used.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated over their expected useful lives on the same basis as owned assets. However, when there is no reasanahble
certainty that ownership will be obtained by the end of the lease term, assets are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and their
useful lives.

An item of praperty, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined
as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accurnulated amortisation and accumulated irpairment
losses. Amortisation is recognised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life and amortisation method
arereviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis. Intangible
assets with indefinite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Staterments continued

1. Accounting Policies continued
Intangible assets continued
The following useful lives have been applied to the intangible assets during the period:

» Brand - indefinite life

m Customer contracts - 3 to 20 years

m IT development - 3 to 5 years

m Landfill gas rights - length of projected profitable gas extraction based on landfill site content degradation [average 28 year)

Aninternally generated intangible asset arising from developraent (or from the development phase of an internal project) is recognised if,
and only if, all of the following have been demonstrated:

m the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will be available for use of sale;

m the intention to complets the intangible asset and use or sell it;

& the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

®» how the intangible asset will generate probable future economic benefits;

m the availability of adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the developronent and to use or sell the intangible asset; and
m the ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset during its development.

The amount initially recognised for internally generated intangible assets is the sum of the expenditure incurred from the date when the
intangible asset first mests the criteria listed above. When no internally generated intangible asset can be recognised, developrnent expenditure
is recognised in profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred. Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in the period
in which itis incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally generated intangible assets are reported at cost less accumulated amortisation and accurnulated
irpairment losses on the same basis as intangible assets that are acquired separately. An mtangible asset is derecognised vi dispusal,

or when no future economic benefits are expected from vse or disposal. Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangibla asset,
measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the assat, are recognised in profit or loss when
the asset is derecognised.

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets other than goodwill
Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for impairment.

Assets that are subject to amortisation or depreciation are reviewed for impairment whenever events or circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount ray not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds
its recoverable amount, The recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units].

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Costs of inventories are determined on a first-in-first-out basis. Net realisable
value represents the estimated selling price for inventories less estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to make the sale. Full provision
is made for obsolete or defective stock.

Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that the
Group will he required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the considaration required to settle the present obligation at the end of the
reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash
flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows (when the effect of the time
value of money is material). The effects of inflation and unwinding of the discount element on existing provigions are reflected in the
Financial Staternents as a tinance charge.

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party, a receivable
is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and the amount of the receivable can be
measured reliably.

Provisions for the cost of restoring landfill sites and aftercare costs are made as the obligation to restore the site arises. Costs are charged
to the profit or loss over the operational life on the basis of the usage of void space for each landfill site. The restoration obligation is
typically fulfilled within two years of the landfill site being closed to waste.

Provisions for aftercare costs are made as the aftercare liability arises. Costs are charged to the profit or loss over the operational life of each
landfill site on the basis of usage of void space. When the obligation recognised as a provision gives access to future economic benefits, an
asset in property, plant and equipment is recognised. Changes in the provision arising frorm revised estimates that relate to the asset are
recorded as adjustments to the carrying value of the asset. The agset is depreciated over the period of gas generation which commences
during the active phase of landfill and extends beyond the closure date, producing commercial volumes of gas for up to 18 years. Aftercare
costs are provided for based on the Directors’ expectation that the obligation will have been fulfilled 60 years post closure of the site.

Onerous contracts

Present obligations arising under onerous contracts are recognised and measured as provisions. An onerous contract is considered to exist
where the Group has a contract under which the unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations under the contract exceed the sconomic
benetits expected to be received from the contract.

Service concession arrangements

Where the Group has constructed infrastructure pn behalf of a third party as part of an integrated waste management contract which grants
the Group unconditional, contractual rights to future revenues, the right to consideration is recorded as a financial asset. This financial asset
accrues finance income and is reduced as the financial payments are received.

1a Biffa Annual Report and Accounts 2020



Financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a Group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrurments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition
or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities [other than financial agsets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss)

are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or 1oss are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Derivative financial instruments and hedging activities

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date the entity becomes party to the contractual provisions of the instrument and
are subsequently remeasured at their fair value at each balance sheet date. The method of recognising the resulting gain or loss depends
on whether the derivative is designated as a hedging instrument and the nature of the item being hedged.

The Group designates certain derivatives as either a) fair value hedge (hedges of the fair value of recognised assets or liabilities);
or b) cash flow hedge [hedges of a particular risk associated with a recognised asset or liability or a highly probable forecast transaction);
or ¢) net investment hedge (hedges of net investments in foreign operations).

The Group documents the transaction relationship between the hedging instruments and hedged items at inception.

At inception and at each reporting date the Group assesses whether the derivatives used have been effective in offsetting changes in the fair
value of hedged items.

The fair values of derivative instruments used for hedging are shown in Note 19. Moveraents in the hedging reserve are shown in the statement
of changes in equity.

At the reporting date the Group has no fair value hedges or net investment hedges.

Gash flow hedge
The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated as cash flow hedges are recognised in equity. The Group's
cash flow hedges in respect of forward foreign exchange contracts result in recognition in either profit and loss or in the hedging reserve.

When a hedging instrument expires or i sald, any curmulative gain or loss in equity at that tirme remains in equity and is recognised when
the forecast transaction occurs. When a forecast transaction is no longer expected to occur, the curnulative gain or loss that was reported in
equity will be transferred to the income statement.

If a hedging relationship ceases to meet the hedge effectiveness requirement relating to the hedge ratio but the risk management objective
for that designated hedging relationship remains the same, the Group adjusts the hedge ratio of the hedging relationship so that it meets
the qualifying criteria again.

Changes in the fair value of any derivative instruments that do not qualify for hedge accounting are recognised immediately in the
income statement.

Financial assets

Al regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the timeframe established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.

Financial assets are classified into the following specified categories: financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) and
loans and receivables.

All recognised financial assets are measured subsequently in their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value depending on the
classification of the financial asset.

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are measured subsequently at amortised cost:

m The financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows; and
m The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding.

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are measured subsequently at fair value through other comprehensive
income (FVTQOCI}:

m The financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling
the financial assets; and

m The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

1. Accounting Policies continued
Financial assets continued
By default, all other financial assets are measured subsequently at FVTPL.

Amortised cost and effective interest imethod

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allosating interest incorne over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees and
points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt instruments measured subsequently at amortised cost and at FVTOCT.

Financial assets at FVTPL
Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL. Specifically:

m Investrments in equity instruments are classified as at FVTPL, unless the Group designates an equity investment that is neither
held for trading nor a contingent consideration arising from a business cormbination as at FVTOCI on initial recognition.

® Debt instruments that do not meet the amortised cost criteria or the FVTOC] criteria are classified as at FVTPL. The Group has
not designated any debt instruments as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised in profit or loss to the
extent that they are not part of a designated hedging relationship.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of each reporting period. The Group
recognises a loss allowance for expected credit losses. The amount of expected credit losses is updated at each reporting date to reflect
changes in credit risk since initial recognition.

The expected credit losses are estimated based on the Group's histarical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the
debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment of both the current as well as the forecast future conditions at the reporting date,

For financial assets, the expected credit loss is estimated as the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Group
in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at the original effective interest rate.

In assessing whether the credit rislc on a financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition, the Group corpares the
risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument at the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument
at the date of initial recognition. In making this assessment, the Group considers both quantitative and qualitative information that is
reasonable and supportable, ingluding historical experience and forward-looking information that is available without undue cost or effort.

Irrespective of the outcermne of the above assessment, the Group presumes that the ¢redit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly
since initial recognition when contractual payments are more than 90 days past due, unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information that demaonstrates otherwise.

Impairment of financial instruments
The Group assurnes that the credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased significantly since initial recognition if the financial
ingtrurnent is determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date. A financial instrument is determined to have low credit risk if:

& the financial instrument has a low risk of default;

m the debtor has a strong capacity to meet its contractual cash flow obligations in the near term; and

m adverse changes in economic and business conditions in the longer term may, but will not nacessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower
to fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations.

All customers are subject to credit scoring on a quarterly basis. The Group considers a financial asset to have low credit risk when the
external credit rating of the counterparty exceeds the Group's minimum required score, and when the counterparty has a strong financial
pasition and payments are being made within the contractual terms.

The Group regularly maonitors the effectiveness of the criteria used to identify whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk
and revises thern as appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of identifying a significant increase in credit risk before the amount
becormes past due.

The Group considers the below as constituting an event of default as historical experience indicates that financial assets that meet the
following criterion are generally not recoverable:

®» information developed internally or obtained from external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors, including
the Group, in full (without taking into account any collateral held by the Group).

Financial assets may still be subject to enforcement activities under the Group's recovery procedures, taking into account legal advice
where appropriate.

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of that
financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes observable data such as significant financial
difficulty of the borrower or it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation. The Group
writes off a financial asset when there is information indicating that the debtor is in severe financial difficulty and there is no realistic
prospect of recovery.
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Derecognition of financial assets
The Group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the
financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another party.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received
and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive incorne and accumulated in equity
is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group has not participated in any material supplier financing arrangements during the current or prior year.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Any difference between the amount initially recognised
(net of transaction costs) and the redemption value is recognised in the incorne staternent over the period of the borrowings using the
effective interest method.

Commitrnent and borrowing fees are gapitalised as part of the loan and amortised over the life of the relevant agreement. All other borrowing
costs are recognised in the income statement in the period in which they are incurred.

Borrowings are classified as non-current liabilities where the Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least
12 months after the balance sheet date.

Derecognition of financial liabilities
The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or they expire. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Share capital
Ordinary Shares are classified as equity and recorded at par value of proceeds received. Where shares are issued above par value, the proceeds
in excess of par value are recorded in the share premium account net of direct issue costs.

Dividend distribution
Final dividend distribution to the Company's shareholders is recognised as a liability in the Financial Statements in the period in which
the dividends are approved. Interim dividends are recognised when paid.

Areas of judgement and key sources of estimation uncertainty

The preparation of IFRS compliant Financial Statements requires the use of accounting estimates and assumptions and also requires
management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying Group accounting policies. The Group continually evaluates its estimates,
assumptions and judgements based on available information and experience. As the use of estimates is inherent in financial reporting,
actual results could differ from these estimates.

Judgements
The cost of internally generated assets is capitalised as an intangible asset where it is determined by management’s judgement that the ability
to develop the assets is technically feasible, will be completed, and that the asset will generate economic benefit that outweighs its cost.

The Group also applies judgernent in identifying the significant, exceptional and non-recurring items of income and expense. We have
summarised the policy in more detail in Note 3.

Estimates
The Group has the following key sources of estimation uncertainty that have a significant risk of causing a rmaterial adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial period:

m Asset impairment; growth rates, pre-tax discount rate, food waste, energy prices, ROC rates, gate fees and haulage costs, see Note 14

m Intangible assets; The assessment of the useful economic life of the Group's assets involves a significant amount of estimation
uncertainty based on the anticipation of future events which may impact their useful life, such as changes in technology or methods
of rernediation. Given the significant investment in technology and other assets, the Group undertakes a review of the remaining useful
lives of assets each year and will reduce the remaining useful lives, or irnpair where necessary, assets that are being superceded by new
technology, see Note 13,

m Environmental and aftercare commitments; Landfill aftercare provision is a key source of estimation uncertainty in the calculation

of the provision including, long-term inflation rates, discount rates and the estimates for future expenditure of up to 60 years depending

on the date of each site closure. Estimates are applied on a site by site basis to reflect the time scales, see Note 21

Pension obligations: discount rate, mortality, inflation, salary and longevity, see Note 29

Uncerfain tax provisions; The uncertain tax disputes; EVF, HMRC have been paid and this is treated as & prepayment in the accounts

with a corresponding liability recognised. Also, Hazardous soils assessment has similarly been paid to HMRC and treated as a prepayment

in the current yvear, see Notes 32 and 33

In order toillustrate the impact that changes in assumptions could have on the Group's results and financial position, sensitivity analysis
has been included within the Notes.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

1. Accounting Policies continued

Areas of judgement and key sources of estimation uncertainty continued

In light of the current engoing impact of the GOVID-19 pandertic, valuations of certain assets and liabilities are necessarily more subjective.
In particular further areas of estimation uncertainty impacting the Group’s position as at 27 March 2020 have been identified including the
valuation of certain pension assets, in particular unquoted eguities and property investments Note 19.

The Board believes that the potential impact of Brexit on the Group will be relatively Iimited given that it operates primarily within the United
Kingdorm. Principal risks include foreign exchange movements, imposition of tariffs and potential constraint of labour supplies. The Board will
continue to closely monitor developrnents in the UK Government’s Brexit plans and any potential impacts on the Group. Similarly, management
will continue ta monitor potential cost impacts on services and seek to discuss those with custorners as appropriate, on & case by case basis.

2. Segmental Information

The Group is managed by type of business and is organised into two operating divisions. With etfect from the start of the 52 weeks endad
27 March 2020, the Group has been reprganised into two operating divisions. The divisions were merged according to type of service oifered.
Collections comprises of Waste and recycling collections and related services to industrial, commercial, municipal and household custormers.
Resources & Energy consists of Waste and recycling treatment and energy generation services. The historic Municipal and Industrial &
Commercial divisions have been merged inta the Collections division. The Resource Recovery & Treatment and Energy divisions have been
merged into the Resources & Energy division. The Hazardous Waste business was transferred from the Resource Recovery & Treatment
division into the new Collections division. The prior period results have therefore been restated for comparison purposes.

These divisions represent the business segments in which the Group reports its primary segment information and are consistent with the
internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision maler. The chief operating decision maker, who is responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the operating segrments, has been identified as the Group Executive Team. The activities of the
divisions are detailed on pages 21-24. The Group's segmental results are as follows:

Revenue within segments is eliminated on consolidation.

2019
2020 £m
£m restated
Revenue
Collections 870.8 797.3
Resources & Energy 2923 2939
Statutory Revenue 1,163.1 1,091.2
2020 2019
£m £in
Revenue raconciliation
Statutory Revenue 1,163.1 1,091.2
Landfill Tax (B0.3) [60.41
Net Revenue 1,102.8 1,0308
Growth
£m factor
FY19 Net Revenue 1,030.8
Acquisition revenue growth 48.7 4.5%
Organic revenue growth 253 2.b%
FY20 Net Revenue 1,102.8

Sales between operating divisions are ¢arried out at arrn's length.
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All trading activity and operations are in the United Kingdom and there is therefore no secondary reporting format by geographical segment.
There is no single custormer that accounts for mare than 10% of Group revenue (2019: none).

2020 IFRS 16 2020 2018

Post IFRS 16 Adjustment Pre IFRS 16 £m

£m £m £m restated

Underlying EBITDA

Collections 126.4 11.2) 115.2 106.5

Resources & Energy 63.4 {5.5) 528 59.1
Group costs (15.8) 21 (17.9) (14.9)

Underlying EBITDA 174.0 (18.9) 1556.1 150.7
Depreciation and arortisation (83.5) 16.1 (67.4) (63.0]

Underlying Operating Profit 90.5 [2.8]) 877 81.7
Exceptional items (Note 3) 4.49) - [4.4) [(18.2])
Armnortisation of acquisition intangibles (16.9) - (16.9) [16.5)
Impact of real discount rate changes to landfill provisions 4.9 - 4.9 (1.8)

Operating Profit 74.1 (2.8) n3 45.4

Finance income 34 - 34 15
Finance charges (21.0) 4.2 [16.8) (25.4)

Share of result in joint venture {0.1) - (0.1) -

Profit hefore taxation 56.4 1.4 57.8 215

The 52-week period ended 29 March 2019 has been restated to reflect the Group reorganisation into two operating divisions. The historical
Municipal and Industrial & Commercial divisions have been merged into the Collections division. The Resource Recovery & Treatment and
Energy divisions have been merged into the Resources & Energy division, The Hazardous Waste business was transferred from the Resource

Recovery & Treatment division into the new Collections division.

Group costs represent those components of shared services and corporate costs (including, inter alia, board and corporate costs, finance,
HR, IT, legal and insurance, external affairg and SHEQ)) that cannot be meaningfully allocated to the operating segments.

Underlying EBITDA represents the underlying profit earned by each segment without ailocation of the share of depreciation and amortisation,
exceptional itemns, finance costs, material impacts of changes in real discount rate applied to the Group's long-term landfill provisions
and income tax expense. Underlying Operating Profit recognises the impact of depreciation and amortisation excluding the amortisation

of acquisition intangibles. These measures are both reported to the Group Executive Team for the purpose of resource allocation and

assessment of segment performance.

The exceptional costs of £4.4m (2019: £18.2m] are disclosed in Note 3.

2020 IFRS 16 2020 2019
Post IFR516 Adoption Pre IFRS 16 £m
£m £m £m restated
Underlying Operating Profit
Collections 722 n7n 70.5 B15
Resources & Energy 377 (0.8) 369 371
Broup costs [19.4) (0.3) 19.7) (18.9]
90.5 [2.8) 82.7 817
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

2. Segmental Information continued

The 52-week period ended 29 March 2019 has been restated to reflect the Group reorganisation into two operating divisions. The historical
Municipal and Industrial & Cornmercial divisions have been merged into the Collections division. The Resource Recovery & Treatment and
Energy divisions have been merged into the Resources & Energy division. The Hazardous Waste business was transferred from the Resource
Recovery & Treatment division into the new Collections division.

2020 2020

2020 IFRS 16 Pre 2013
Post IFRS 16 adoption IFRS 16 £m
£m £m £ restated

Tangible and intangible assets net book value
Collections 325.6 (77.8) 248.0 2470
Resources & Energy 309.6 {47.4) R62.2 255.5
Shared services and corporate 89.5 (14.9) 75.1 74.9
Total 7247 (139.4) 585.3 578.4

The 52-week period ended 29 March 2019 has been restated to reflect the Group reorganisation into two operating divisions. The historical
Municipal and Industrial & Cornmercial divisions have been merged into the Collections division. The Resource Recovery & Treatment and
Energy divisions have been merged into the Resources & Energy division. The Hazardous Waste business was transferred from the Resource
Recovery & Treatment division into the new Collections division.

2020 2020 2020
Post 1FRS 16 Pre 2019
IFRS 16 adoption IFRS 16 £m
£m £fm £m restated

Capital expenditure

Collections 65.4 (13.2) 52.2 78.0
Resources & Energy 48.1 (8.5) 39.6 213
Shared services and corporate 6.4 - 6.4 7.1
119.9 21.7) 98.2 108.4

Capital expenditure camprises additions to intangible assets and property, plant and equipment including leased assets,

The 52-week period ended 29 March 2019 has been restated to reflect the Group reorganisation into two operating divisions. The historical
Municipal and Industrial & Cornmercial divisions have been merged into the Collections division. The Resource Recovery & Treatment and
Energy divisions have heen merged into the Resources & Energy division. The Hazardous Wastae business was transferred from the Resource
Recovery & Treatment division into the new Collections division.

The Industrial & Commercial division expenditure includes £3.2m of acquired assets as detailed in Note 11.

2020 2020 2020
Post IFRS18 Pre 20189
IFRS 16 adoption IFRS 16 £m
£m £Em £m restated

Depreciation and amortisation

Collections 54.2 [9.5) 447 45N
Resources & Energy 257 4.9) 208 220
Shared services and corporate 37 17 20 2.0
83.6 (16.1) 875 69.0
Amortisation of agquisition intangibles 16.9 - 16.9 16.5
Tatal 100.5 (16.13 84.4 85.5

Depreciation and amortisation relates to the write down of both intangible and tangible fixed assets over their estimated useful economic
lives. Amortisation of acguisition intangibles is disclosed separately in line with the segmental Underlying Operating Profit.

The 52-week period ended 28 March 2019 has been restated to reflect the Group reorganisation into two operating divisions. The historical
Municipal and Industrial & Commercial divisions have been merged into the Collections division. The Resource Recovery & Treatinent and
Energy divisions have been merged into the Resources & Energy division. The Hazardous Waste business was transferred from the Resource
Recovery & Treatment division into the new Collections division.
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3. OtherItems

The Group’s financial performance is analysed into two components, underlying performance (which excludes other items] and other items.
Underlying performance is used by management to monitor financial performance as it is considered it aids comparability of the reported
financial performance year to year. The Group's income statement and segmental analysis separately identify a nurnber of Alternative
Performance Measures (APMs] in additian to those reported under IFRS. The Directors believe that the presentation of the results in this way,
which is not meant to be a substitute for or superior to IFRS measures, is relevant to an understanding of the Group’s underlying trends, financial
performance and position. These APMs are also used to enhance the cornparability of inforrmation between reporting periods and the Group's
divisions, by adjusting for non-recurring or uncontrollabie factors which affect IFRS measures, to aid the user in understanding the underlying
performance. Our APMs and KPIs are aligned to our strategy and together form the basis of the performance measuraes for remuneration.
Consequently, APMs are consistent with how the business performance is planned and reported internally to the Board and Operating
Committees to aid their decision making. Additionally, some of these measures are used for the purpose of setting remuneration targets.

Gther itemns includes exceptional iterns, amortisation of acquisition intangibles and the impact of reai discount rate changes in landfill provisions.

Management utilises an exceptional item framework that has been approved by the Board. This follows a three step process which considers
the nature of the event, the financial materiality involved and the particular facts and circumstances.

Items of income and expense that are considered by management for designation as exceptional items include itermns such as significant
corporate restructuring costs, acquisition-related costs, write downs or impairments of non-current assets, movements on onerous contract
provisions and strategy-related costs, including the implementation of Project Fusion.

2020 2019
Included within operating profit: £m £m
Exceptional items:
Acquisition related costs 11 2.8
Onerous contracts (1.5) 10.2
Strategy related and corporate restructuring costs 4.8 21
Pensions GMP equalisation - 31
Total exceptional iterns 4.4 18.2
Other non-underlying items:
Amortisation of acquisition intangibles 16.9 16.5
Impact of real discount rate changes to landfill provisions {4.9) 1.8
Total non-underlying iterms 16.4 36.3
Corporate restructuring costs included within finance costs:
Finance charges [1.1) 6.2
Taxation impact of other items (3.5) (9.0}
2020 2019
£m fm
Segmental exceptional items:
Collections 0.7 9.3
Resources & Energy (1.5) 37
Group costs 5.2 5.2
4.4 18.2

Acquisition-related costs

Delivery of the Group's strategy includes investment in acquisitions that enhance the quality of its operations. The exclusion of significant
items arising from M&A activity is designied by the Board to align short-terrn operational decisions with this longer-term strategy. Accordingly,
amounts arising on acquisitions are excluded from underlying profit measures, The £1.1m of acquisition-related expenditure in the 52 weeks
ended 27 March 2020 relates to professional fees and other costs which are directly attributable to acquisitions.

The £2.8m of acquisition-related expenditure in the 52 weelks ended 29 March 2019 relates to professional fees and other costs which are
directly attributable to acquisitions. This includes £0.7m in relation to the acquisition of 100% of the issued share capital of Specialist
Waste Recycling Limited and £0.9m in relation to the acquisition of Weir Waste Services Limited.

Onerous contracts

Onerous contract costs reflect all movernent on onerous service contract provisions. In the prior period the Group identified two contracts
which were loss making and not expected to return to profitability; the Directors accordingly provided for these. In the 52-weeks ended

27 March 2020, no further onerous contracts have been identified. Onerous contract costs include the unwinding of provisions recognised
on all loss-making contracts in prior periods. Any additional provisions required against these contracts, or unwinding of these provisions,
is reflected within exceptional items on the basis that they do not represent the underlying year-on-year trading of each of these contracts.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Staterments continued

3. OtherItems continued
Strategy-related and corporate restructuring costs

Strategy-related costs arise from Group-wide initiatives to reduce the ongoing cost base and improve efficiency in the business. These

costs are substantial in scope and impact, and do not form part of recurring operational or managernent activities that the Directors would
consider part of our underlying performance. Adjusting for these charges provides a measure of operating profitability that is comparable
over time. Strategy-related costs primarily relate to the Group’s system replacement programme Project Fusion. Within the year the Group
rageived compensation of £4.4m frorn the original systemns integrator, this was olfset against a write off of some previously capitalised costs.
The net charge relating to Project Fusion is £3.8m, this was incurred progressing Project Fusion following the project pause and change of

advisers. The Project has now been put on hold temporarily due to COVID-19,

Amortisation of acquisition intangibles

Amortisation of acquisition intangibles represents the amount amortised by the Group in each period in respect of intangibles from prior
acquisitions, which amounts are reported separately from the Group's depreciation and amortisation charges. The charges are reported
separately and performance of the acquired business is assessed through the underlying operational results. The Group uses this alternative

performance measure (APM) to improve the comparability of information between reporting periods and its divisions to aid the user

of the Annual Report in understanding the activities taking place across the Group’s portfolio.

GMP equalisation

As aresult of the 2018 High Court ruling that Lloyds Banking Group rmust amend its pension schemes in order to equalise benefits for men !

and women. In the prior year an additional past service cost of £3.1m being recognised in the 62-week period ended 28 March 2019. This
was reported separately to aid the understanding of the Group's performance as it is a non-operational item.

Impact of real discount rate changes to landfill provisions

Impact of real discount rate changes to landfill provisions reflects the impact on provisions which arises wholly due to the change in

discount rate on landfill provisions as this is not reflective of vpeialional performance.

In addition to the Other iterns discloged ebove, the Group uses Return on Operating Assets and Return on Capital Employed as performance
measures. These arg atignad to the strategy and are reported internally to the Board and Dperating Cormmittees to aid their decision making.

These are calculated as below:

2020 IFRS 18 2020
Post [FRS 16 Adoption Pre IFRS 16 2019
£m £m £m £m
Return on Operating Assets |
Underlying Dperating Profit? 90.5 (2.8) 877 817 :
Average of property, plant and equipment? 514.0 (134.9) 379.1 3575
Average net working capital® (46.7) - [48.7) (37.8) :
Total average of property, plant and equipment plus net working capital® 467.3 (134.9] 332.4 3199
Return on Operating Assets® 19.4% 26.4% 256.5%
1 Profit before exceptional iterns, arnortisation of acquired intangibles, irmpact of real discount rate changes to landfill provisions, finance costs and taxation.
2 Average of opening and closing net book value of property, plant and eyuiptieul.
3 Average balance in 2020 and 2019 of the closing net of inventories, trade and other receivables and trade and other payables.
4 Average property, plant and equipment has been adjusted for the balance recognised on the adoption of IFRS 16,
5 Return an Operating Assets is determined by Underlying Operating Profit divided by the average of apening and closing PP&E plus net working capital.
2020 2020 :
PostIFRS 16 IFRS 16 Pre IFRS 16 2019 !
£m Adjustment £m £m
Return on Capital Employed
Operating profit 741 [2.8) 71.3 454
Exceptional items [Note 3) 4.4 - 4.4 18.2
Impact of real discount rate changes to landfill provisions (Note 3] 4.9) - (4.9) 18
Adjusted operating profit 73.6 (2.8) 70.8 66.2
Average of shareholders' equity? 385.6 0.5 386.1 3507 ‘
Average net debt? 477.3 (138.0) 3393 336.0
Average retirement benefits [101.8) - (101.8) [65.2)
Average environmental provisions 6R.0 - 62.0 70.8
823.1 (137.5) 685.5 6892.3
Average Return on Capital Employed? 8.9% 10.3% 9.4%

1 Average of opening and closing shareholders’ equity.
2 Netdebt comprises the average net debt in 2020 and 2018 (Note 27).

3 Return on Capital Employed is determined by adjusted operating profit divided by the average of opening and closing shareholders equity, plus the average

af net debt, pensions and environmental provisions.
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4, Finance Income and Charges

2020 2019
£m £m
Finance charges
Interest on bank overdrafts, bonds and loans (11.0) (17.9)
Interest on obligations under lease liabilities 4.2) (5.0)
IFRS 16 lease interest 4.2 -
Interest unwind on discounted provisions (1.6) [2.0]
Interest on forward contracts - (0.5)
Total finance charges (21.0) (25.4)
Interest income 1.4 az
Interest on net retirement benefit (pension) 2.0 13
Finance income 34 15
Net finance charges (17.8) (23.9)
Recognised in other items (Note 3)
2020 2019
Em £m
Finance charges
Interest on bank overdrafts, bonds and loans - (3.8)
Fair value discount unwind on EVP preference instrument i1 (2.4]
Total finance charges 11 i6.2)

During the period total finance charges have decreased by £4.4m. The reduction of intarest on bank overdrafts, bonds and loans islargely due
to the refinancing in March 2018. During the vear the Group has also renegotiated loan borrowings and bonding facilities at more favourable
rates. There has also been a natural decline in the number of older, rmore expensive lease liabilities, resulting in reduced financing costs. This
amount also includes an additional £4.2m of interest on right-of-use asset leases recognised due to the implementation of IFRS 16. The £3.8m
of interest on bank loans recognised in the prior period in other items is the write off of previously capitalised borrowing costs which arose a
result of the completion of the Group refinancing in the prior year. The finance charges are adjusted by £1.1m for the fair value EVP discount

unwind which is not part of the Group's underlying results as defined in Note 3. Further details on EVP are expanded in Note 34.

8. Financial Instrument Gains and Lusses

2020 2019
£fm £rn
Financial assets at amortised cost
Interest income 3.4 1.5
Financial liabilities at amortised cost
Interest expense (21.0) (254)
6. Profit/(Loss) Before Taxation
2020
2020 IFRS16 2020
Post IFRS 16 adoption Pre IFRS 16 2019
£m £ £m £m
The following items have been included in arriving
at the pre-tax profit/[loss):
Ernployee costs (Note 7) 292.4 - 292.4 2830
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
m Owned assets 36.3 - 36.3 38.0
& Assets held under lease liabilities 46.3 (16.1) 30.2 297
Arnortisation of intangible assets
® Acquisition intangibles (Note 2) 16.9 - 16.9 16.5
m Other intangibles 1.0 - 1.0 13
Expense relating to short-term leases and leases of low-value assets:
m Plant and machinery - - - 1.9
=» Dther 07 16.1 16.8 12.9
Exceptional items (Note 3) 4.4 - 4.4 18.2
Income from sub-leacing right of use asssts (2.2) - 2.2) n/a
Profit on disposal of property, plant and equipment 1.0 - 1.0 2.2
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

6. Profit/(Loss) Before Taxation continued
Underlying operating costs have been split into administration and distribution costs as detailed below:

2020 20189
£rm £m

Operating costs
Distribution costs 20.1 217
Adminjstrative expenses 39.8 288
59.9 50.6

7. Employees and Directors
The average monthly number of persons (including Executive Directors) employed by reporting segment, by the Group during the period was:

2019
2020 Number
Number restated

By segment
Collections 6,989 6,501
Resources & Energy 788 867
Shared services and corporate 368 354
8,145 7,822

The 52-week period ended 28 March 2019 has been restated to reflect the Group recrganisation in two operating divisions. The historical
Municipal and Industrial & Comruercial divisions have merged into the Collections division. The historical Resource Recovery & Treatrent
and Energy divisions have been merged into the Resources & Energy division. The Hazardous Waste business was transferred from the
Resource Recovery and Treatment division into the new Collections divisiorn.

2020 2019
£m £m

Their aggregate remuneration comprised:
Wages and salaries 254.7 246.5
Social security costs 24.2 19.4
Other pension costs 12.3 15.3
Redundancy and termination payrnents - 12 ) 1.8
2924 283.0

'I'he rernuneration of the Directors is set vul vi pages 62-8/ within the Dirgctors’ Repo1l un Retnuiativn described as being audited and
forms part of these Financial Statements.

Key management compensation

2019
2020 Restated
£m £

Their aggregate remuneration comprised:
Wages and salaries 2.2 2.4
Social security costs 11 0.8
Other pension costs g3 03
Long-term incentives 2.6 11
Shart-term incentives 1.4 1.5
75 59

Key management personnel have heen defined as the Group Executive Team.
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8. Auditor’s Remuneration
The analysis of the Company and Biffa Group's auditor's rernuneration is as follows:

2020 2019
£m £m
Fees payable to the Company’s auditor for the audit of the Cornpany's Consolidated annual
Financisl Statements 0.6 0.8
Fees payable to the Company’s auditor for the audit of the Company's subsidiaries 03 0.3
Total audit fees 0.8 0.8
Audit-related assurance services 0.1 01
Total audit and non-audit fees 1.0 1.0
The other assurance services provided by the auditor related to agreed upon procedures and other assurance services outside of
statutory requirements.
9. Income Tax Recognised in Profit or Loss
2020 2019
fm £m
Current tax
In respect of the current year - 0.2
Adjustment in respect of prior years D.1 [01)
0.1 0.1
Deterred tax
Origination and reversal of temporary differences 1.4 5.0
Adjustment in respect of prior years (0.8) 11
Adjustment attributable to changes in tax rates and laws 0.1 [0.5]
107 34
10.8 3.5

Total tax charge

Corporation tax is calculated at 19% (2019: 19%) of the estimated assessable profit for the period. The charge for the period can be reconciled

to the profit per the consolidated income statement as follows:

2020
Undexlying Other

activities items Total

£m £m £m

Profit before tax 7 (15.3) 56.4

Profit on ordinary activities multiplied by the standard rate of corporation tax
in UK of 19% (2019: 19%) 13.6 (2.9]) 10.7
Effects of:

Over provision in respect of prior years - - -

Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 0.8 - 0.8
Non-taxable income (0.1) - (0.1)
Effect of change in tax rate - (0.8) (0.6)

Total taxation 14.3 3.5) 108
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

9. Income Tax Recognised in Profit ox Loss continued

2019
Underlying Other
activities iterss Total
£ £m £m

Profit before tax 84.0 (42.5) 215
Profit on ordinary activities multiplied by the standard rate of corporation tax
in UK of 19% (2018: 19%) 12.2 (8.1) 4.1
Effects of:
Over provision in respect of prior years - 1.2) (1.2)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 05 08 13
Non-taxable income [(0.2) - (0.2)
Effect of change in tax rate - {0.5) {0.5)
Total taxation 25 (8.0) 35

In addition to the amount credited to the consolidated income statement, the following amounts have been credited/(charged) directly
ta equity:

2020 2018

£m £m
Deferred tax (charge) arising on actuarial (gains)/losses (8.3) [(4.9)
Deferred tax [charge) arising on share-based payments {0.2) [0.9)
Total deferred tax charged directly to equity [(8.5) (5.8)

Budget 2020, substantively enacted on 17 March 2020, announced that the main UK corporation tax rate applicable from 1 April 2020 now
remains at 19%, rather than the previously enacted reduction to 17%. As deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the rates expected
to apply in the period of the reversal, deferred tax balances have been calculated at 19%.

As the Group's presence is mainly in the UK we do not envisage a significant impact on the Group following the decision of the UK
Goverrunent to invoke Article 50 to leave the EU.

The UK have introduced various stirnulus/reliefs for businesses to cope with the impact of COVID 19 pandemic. We will monitor as the
details become available for any that may materially impact our future tax charges.

10. Earnings per Share
Basic Earnings per Ordinary Share are based on the Group profit for the year and a weighted average of 250,000,000 [(2019: 250,000,000]
Ordinary Shares in issue during the year.

An underlying Earnings per Ordinary Share figure has been presented o elitiilale the effects of exceptional items, arnortication of acquisition
intangibles and the impact of the change in the real discount rate to long-term provisions. The presentation shows the trend in Earnings
per Ordinary Share that is attributable to the underlying trading activities of the Group.

The recenciliation between the basic and underlying figures for the Group is as follows:

n20 2019

Earnings Earnings
per Share per Share
£m pence £m pence

Profit attributable to owners of parent Cornpany for basic Earnings per Share
calculation 45.6 183 18.0 7.2
Other items (Note 3) 1.8 4.8 335 13.4
Underlying earnings 57.4 23.1 515 20.8
2020 2019
Total number of Ordinary Shares 250.0 250.0
Shares held in employee benefit trust in respect of share options 1.9 -
Weighted average number of Ordinary Shares for the purposes of basic Earnings per Share 248.1 250.0

Eiffect of dilutive potential Ordinary Shares

Share options 8.5 -
Weighted average number of Ordinary Shares far the purposes of diluted Earnings per Share 254.86 250.0
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11. Acquisitions

52 weeks ended 27 March 2020

On 1 July 2019, the Group paid IWMS Wastecoltection.com Limited £2.5m for the purchase of customer lists in both the collections and
brokerage arms of the business, along with the Wastecollection.corm brand and containers. [t was acquired in order to extend the Group's
commercial customer base and market presence in the region, and is highly complementary to the Group's existing business, IWMS
Collection.com Limited contributed £2.3m of revenue and £0.3m of profit for the period between the date of acquisition and the balance
sheet date. If the acquisition had been completed on the first day of the financial period, Group revenues would have increased by £3.2m
and Group profit would have increased by £0.4m.

On 30 Septermnber 2019, the Group acquired vehicles, containers, lease liabtlity and custorner lists frorn Ribbex UK Limited for £2.0m.
During the year the Group alsoacquired certain trade and assets of:

m Kier Group
m Winchester City Council I&C contract; and
m Thamesdown Recycling

Total net assets of £0.5m were acquired for cash consideration of £0.6m resulting in goodwill of £0.1m being recognised. If these acquisitions
had been cornpleted on the first day of the financial period, Group revenues would have increased by £6.6m and Group profit before interest

and tax would have increased by £0.8m.

The preliminary amounts recognised in respect of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed are as set out in the table below:

[WMS Waste
Collection.com Ribbex Other Total
Limited Limited acquisitions preliminary
£m £rm £m £m
Property, plant and equipment 01 0.6 - 07
Intangible assets 13 07 0.5 25
Debtors - - - -
Cash and cash equivalents - - - -
Deferred tax (liability)/asset [0.2] (0.1) - [0.3)
Creditors - - - -
Borrowings - [0.5] - (0.5)
Total net assets 1.2 0.7 0.5 24
Goodwill 13 13 0.1 2.7
Total consideration 2.5 2.0 0.6 5.1
Satisfied by:
Cash 2.5 2.0 0.6 5.1
Total consideration transferred 25 2.0 08 51
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition:
Cash consideration 2.5 2.0 06 5.1
Less: cash and cash equivalent balances acquired - - - -
2.5 2.0 0.6 51

No contingent liabilities were identified at the acquisition date. Acquisition-related costs included in exceptional costs amount to £1.1m.

The prelirminary total goodwill of £2.7m arising from these acquisitions represents an increase in Industrial & Commercial businesses
and the Group's strategy to become the leading UK-based integrated waste management business. None of the goodwill is expected to
be deductible for incorme tax purposes.

52 weeks ended 29 March 2018

On 16 August 2018, the Group acquired 100% of the issued share capital of Weir Waste Services Limited, a leading provider of waste and
recycling solution in the Birmingham and West Midlands region. It was acquired in order to extend the Group’s commercial customer
base and market presence in the region, and is highly complementary to the Group's existing business.

0On 11 March 2019, the Group acquired 100% of the issued share capital of Specialist Waste Recycling Limited. It was acquired in order
to extend the Group's cornmercial custorner base and is highly complementary to the Group's existing business.

The Broup acquired certain trade and assets of:

= London Recycling Services Limited on 30 April 2018
= Bisset Waste Management Limited on 30 April 2018
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

11. Acquisitions continued

52 weeks ended 29 March 2019 continued

» H&A Recgycling Limited 31 August 2018

m The Kier Group on 31 October 2018

m Saving British Business Money Limited on 30 Novernber 2018

Total net assets of £19.2m were acquired for cash consideration of £46.9m resulting in goadwill of £27.7m being recognised.

If these acquisitions had been corpleted on the first day of the financial period, Group revenues for the period would have increased by
£57.9m and Group profit would have increased by £2.7m.

12. Goodwill

Total
£fm
Cost:
As at 30 March 2018 100.8
Additions 279
As at 29 March 2019 128.7
Purchase price adjustrnent 13
Additions 27
As at 27 March 2020 132.7
Amortisation:
As at 30 March 2018 {0.5]
As at 28 March 2019 [0.5)
As at 27 March 2020 (0.5)
Net book amount:
As at 27 March 2020 1322
As at 29 March 2019 128.2
2020 2019
£m £
By segment
Collections 92.9 88.9
Resources & Energy 39.3 39.3
13<.2 128.2

The purchase price adjustment is in relation to Weir Waste Services Lirnited and the associated deferred tax. The Group completed the
acquisition of Weir Waste Services on 16 August 2018, Subsequent to the acquisition it was identifiad that the previous operators had been
operating the MRF in a non-cornpliant way and as a result the underlying MRF performance was misstated at acquisition. As a result of these
issues, it has also beern dstermined that the carrying value of the plant should be written down.

The purchase price allocation has been reconsidered and an adjustment made to reflect the revised carrying value of the MRF

The Group reviews at each reporting period whether there are any indicators of impairment in accordance with IAS 36 Impairment of Assets.
An annual impairment review is completed by comparing the carrying amount of the goodwill for each operating segment to its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. If the recoverable amount is less
than the carrying amount, animpairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of the gpodwill and then to the assets of

the cash-generating unit. In the current year all cash-generating units have been valued an the basis of value in use, with the exception

of Leicester which usas fair value less costs ot disposal.

The valuation of goodwill allocated to the Resources & Energy cash-generating unit is noted to be most sensitive to any changes in assumptions
due to the limited headroom of £63m. The key assumptions when calculating the value in use are forecast revenue and costs. Management’s
calculation of value in use has been developed from forecast five-year cash flows which are prepared on the basis of past performance,
expectation of future performance and market information and a consistent growth rate thereafter, based on the underlying assets of each
division. The final year growth rate assumption used bayond the five-year plan period based on market trends, after adjusted for assumed
inflation, is 3.0% (2019: 3.0%) for the landfill gas CGU and 2.0% [2019: 2.0%) for the other operating divisions. These assumptions are considered
appropriate based on the long-term nature of the business. These forecasts are adjusted to the extent that events since they were developed
(theimpact of COVID 19) indicate that they may no longer be relevant. A pre-tax discount rate of 8.01% (2019: 8.26%] was applied across all
cash-generating units as the inherent risks have been included in the segrnental cash flow forecasts. No reasonably foreseeable change in
the assumptions used in the value in use calculations would cause an impairment to any of the Collections or Resources & Energy cash-
generating units.
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13. Other Intangible Assets

Landfill gas 1T Custormer
rights development Brand contracts Total
£m £m £m £m £m

Cost:
Asg at 30 March 2018 190.2 16.1 348 576 298.5
Opening IFRS 15 adjustment - - - (8.9) (6.9)
Additions - 37 - - 37
Acquired through business combination - 0.3 21 135 15.9
Disposals - (0.7) - - [0.7)
As at 29 March 2019 190.2 194 386.7 64.2 310.5
Acquired through business combination - - 0.3 22 25
Additions - 38 - - 38
Compensation - (44) - - (4.4)
Disposals - (0.4) - - [0.4)
As at 27 March 2020 1802 18.4 azo 66.4 312.0
Accumulated amortisation:
As at 30 March 2018 (47.9) (1.2) (0.8) (3L7) {816)
Opening IFRS 15 adjustment - - - 1.4 1.4
Charge for the period [10.2) 1.3) (0.4) (56.9) [17.8)
Disposals - 0.5 - - 0.5
As at 29 March 2019 {58.1) (2.0) 1.2} (362) [97.5)
Charge for the period [10.2) {0.9) - (6.8) (17.9)
Disposals - 0.4 - - 0.4
As at 27 March 2020 [68.3) (2.5) -2) [43.0) [115.0)
Net book amount:
As at 27 March 2020 121.9 15.9 35.8 234 197.0
As at 29 March 2019 132.1 174 355 28.0 213.0
As at 30 March 2018 142.3 14.9 33.8 25.9 216.9

All amortisation charges are recognised in profit or loss. Included within IT development costs are internally generated assets with a net
book value of £14.1m [2019: £16.5m). The amortisation charge in relation to these assets was £0.9m (2018: £0.8m). During the current period
the Group received compensation of £4.4m from one of its suppliers due to the non-performance of its obligations under contracted terms.

Given the significant investment in technology and IT developrnent, the Group undertakes a review of the remaining useful lives of assets
each year and impairs where necessary those that are superseeded by new technology. The key estimates underpinning the value
inuse for IT projects is the forecast costs. A 10% change in the forecast cost would reduce the value in use by £1.4m.

The landfill gas rights are amortised over the length of projected profitable gas extraction based upon landfill site degradation. The calculations
that determine available gas reserves involve a number of estimates and judgernents. Should the amortisation profila be shortened toreflect a
weighted gas consumption in earlier years, this could result in an increased amortisation charge of circa. £8.8m in the next year, which would
the subsequently reduce in future years.

As at 27 March 2020, the landfill gas CGU had a value in use of £133.9m against assets of £131.0m. The Group's reasonable worst case scenario
represents an increase in the gas degradation rate of the sites by an additional 2%, which would reduce the valuein use by £10.5m. A change
in the discount rate from the pre tax rate from 9% to 12% would reduce the values in use by £13.6rm.

The export energy prices have been assumed to be £52.42 at the end of FY24, The reasonable worst case scenario of no growth in energy
prices beyond this point would result in a reduction of £8.9m to the value in use.

IFRS 3 requires that on acquisition, intangible assets are recorded at fair value. The Biffa brand was first created in the early 20th century
and has been used throughout the Group since then. It remains a highly recognisable brand. Given the longevity of the brand, the Directors
consider the asset to have an indefinite life. The Directars reconsider the valuation of the brand at each reporting date. The recognition of
brand and landfill gas rights as intangible assets initially arose during the fair value exercise undertaken following the acquisition of the
Biffa Group by Wasteshareholderco 1in 2008. The values were subsequently remeasured following the restructuring of the Group in 2013.

In 2018, the SWR brand was acquired on acquisition of Specialist Waste Recycling Limited for £2.1m.
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Notes to the Consolidated Finanecial Statements continued

14. Property, Plant and Equipment

Land and Plant, vehicles Total
buildings Landfill Sites  and FEquipment preliminary
£m £rn £m £m

Cost:
As at 30 March 2018 70.6 77.8 308.0 456.4
Additions 18 8.6 69.6 78.0
Acquired through business combination 35 - 5.9 9.4
Disposals (0.4} - 45.0] {45.4)
Reclassifications 0.2 (05) 29 (8.2)
As at29 March 2019 75.7 83.9 335.6 495.2
Adoption of IFRS 16 129.6 - 53 134.9
As at 30 March 2019 2053 23.9 340.9 630.1
Additions 11.68 47 365 112.8
Acquired through business combination B - 07 07
Disposals [21) - (42.3) {444)
Reclassifications! - [0.2) - [0.2)
As at 27 March 2020 214.8 28.4 395.8 699.0
Accumulated depreciation:
As at 30 March 2018 [15.6) [41.0) (50.3) [106.9)
Charge for the period (4.0 (6.1} (57.6) (67.7)
Impairment of assets - - (0.8) (0.8]
Disposals 0.4 - 44.7 45.1
Reclassifications - - 0.5 0.5
As at 29 March 2019 (19.2) (47.1) {63.5) (129.8)
Purchase price adjustrnent - - [1.5) (1.5}
Charge for the period (16.5) (4.9} [61.2] (82.6)
Disposals 1.0 - 416 42.6
Reclassifications® - - - -
As at 27 March 2020 [34.7) (62.0) (84.8) [(171.3)
Net book amount:
As at 27 March 2020 180.1 36.4 311.2 527.7
As at 29 March 2019 56.5 36.8 2721 365.4
As at 30 March 2018 56.0 36.8 2577 3495

1 Reclasifications relate to Landfill sites includes £6.7m (2019; £7.7m) in relation to future economic benefit to be derived as a result of actively fulfilling aftercare
obligations that results in gas generation. Landfill site additions include £0.2m (2019: £0.7rn] in relation to the future econormic benefit to be derived as a result of
actively fulfilling aftercare obligations that results in gas generation. When the obligaticn recognised as a provision gives access to future econormic benefits, an
asset in property, plant and equipment is recognised. Changes in the provision arising from revised estimates that relate to the asset are recorded as adjustments
to the carrying value of the asset. When the carrying value of the asset is negative, these are classified to provisions.
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The Group leases assets including buildings and plant and equipment. The average lease term is 4.5 years [2019: 3.4 years). The Group has
options to purchase certain plant and equipment for a nominal amount at the end of the lease term. The Group's obligations are secured
by the lessors' title to the leased assets for such leases.

The valuation of certain assets within the landfill gas energy [see Note 13) and certain organic cash generating units within the Resource
and Energy segments are sensitive to a number of assumptions: the value in use is considered to be most sensitive to changes on future ROC
Recycle price, market prices for food waste, export energy prices, the growth rate and discount rates. The assumptions have been calculated
based on external market reports within the 5 year plan period. Beyond the 5 year plan period the assumpticns have been inflated using the
cash-generating units assumed growth rate of 2% with the exception of landfill gas which uses 3%.

As at the 27 March 2020 the Poplars AD CGU had a value in use of £22.3m versus gross segmental assets of £21.0m.

Based on third party reports, the Group has assumed the market price for food waste at the end of FY24 to be c£28/te. The reasonable worst case
scenario would be a reduction of the price by in excess of 27% to c£20/te, this would result in a reduction to the value in use of £5.0m. An annual
reduction in haulage of £0.2m has been assumed, if this assumption was removed the value in use would reduce by £1.6m. If the Poplars AD
energy price remnained flat at £62.16 this would reduce value in use by £1.0m. The ROC recycle benefit has been modelled at £7.93, if this was

£4 per ROC, it would reduce the value in use by £5.3m. If the discount rate increased to 12% this would reduce the value in use by £3.1m.

The above sensitivity analysis considers each assumption and related reasonable worst case scenario in isolation. The commercial reality
is that typically there will be mitigating operating factors that would offset the above impact in instances where the reasonahble worst case
scenario isrealised.

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is presented in Note 18.

The carrying amount of the Group's total right-of-use assets are analysed as follows:

2020
2020 Plant,
Land and vehicles and 2020
Group £rn {unless stated) buildings equipment Total
At 30 March 2019 on adoption of IFRS 18 131.7 137.5 269.2
Additions 9.0 51.8 50.8
Depreciation (12.5) (33.8) [(46.3)
Disposals (11) (0.1) 2)
1271 145.4 272.5
The split of new right-of-use assets recognised in the period is as follows:
2020
2020 Plant,
Land and vehicles and 2020
Group £ (unless stated) buildings eguiprmant Total
At 30 March 2019 on adoption of IFRS 18 129.6 53 134.9
Additions 9.3 12.4 217
Depreciation f12.4) [(3.7) (16.1)
Disposals (11) - 1)
125.4 14.0 139.4

The carrying amount of the Group's property, plant and equipment includes £422.4m (2019: £134.3m)] in respect of leased assets, analysed as follows;

2020
2020 IFRS 16 2020
Group £rn [unless stated) Post IFRS 16 adjustment Pre IFRS 16 2019
Land and buildings 141.3 (i25.4) 15.9 21
Plant, vehicles and equipment 281.1 (14.0) 2671 132.2
422.4 (139.4]) £283.0 134.3

The accumulated depreciation of the Group’s property, plant and equipment includes £16.1m (2018: n/a] in respect of right-of-use assets.

2020
2020 IFRS 16 2020
Group £m (unless stated PostIFRS 18 adjustment Pre IFRS 18 2018
Land and buildings 14.2 (12.4) 18 21
Landfill sites - - - _
Plant, vehicles and equipment 135.8 3.7 1321 132.2
150.0 (16.1) 133.9 134.3

No other assets have been pledged to secure borrowings.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

14. Property, Plant and Equipment continued
Land and buildings and landfill sites at net book arnount cornprise:

2020 2019
Land and Landfill Land and Landtill
buildings sites buildings sites
fm £m £m £m
Freehold 36.0 15.0 370 1556
Long leasehold 40.3 13.4 13.0 14.0
Short leasghold 103.8 8.0 (53] 7.3
180.1 36.4 56.5 36.8

As at 27 March 2020 the Group had entered into contractual commitroents for the acquisition of plant, property and equipment amounting to
£7.9m (2018: £6.5rm).

15. Inventories

2020 2019

£m £m

Raw materials and consumables 1.8 25
Finished goods 14.3 11.9
16.1 14.4

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net reslisabla value.

Inventories consumed in the period ended 27 March 2020 were £65.3m {2019: £45.8m). Inventory written down in the period totalled £nil
(2019: £nil). Reversals of inventory previously written down in the period wers £nil (2018: £nil}.

16. Trade and Other Recelvables

2020 2019
£m £m
Amounts falling due within one year

Trade receivables 139.4 125.8
Less expected credit loss allowance [4.3) (21)

Trade receivables — net 135.1 1237

Other debtors 3.2 5.0

?ﬂzpavments 24.1 119

?epaid landfill provision expenditure 2.9 14

165.3 142.0

All amounts included within other debtors and prepayments are due within one year. The moverment in prepayments relate to the timing of
payments to suppliers, The in year increase £8.5m that has been paid to HMRC in respect of Landfill tax on sub-soils, further detail on this
is disclosed in Note 32. I'rade receivables are non-interest bearing. Due to their short maturities, the fair value of trade and other receivables
approximates to their book value. The average credit period taken oninvoices was 38.1 days (2019: 36.1days).

Credit limits for new customers are assigned based on the potential customer's credit quality. An external credit scoring system is used
before assigning any credit limit over £500. Management monitors the utilisation of credit limits regularly. The trade receivables balance
consists of a large number of customer balances, represented largely by local account customers, and there is no significant concentration
of credit risk.

Included in the Group's trade receivables balances are debts with a carrying armount of £81.1m [(2019: £18.1m} which are past due at the
reporting date. As a result of COVID-19 and associated circumstances as at the 27 March 2020, there has been an increase in credit risk due

to a number of factors such as payment behaviour and financial position of cur customers. This increase in credit risk has lead to an increase
in ECL of £2.0m.

The Group writes off a trade receivable when there is information indicating that the debtor is in severe financial difficulty and there
ia no realistic prospect of recovery. None of the trade receivable that have been written off is subject to enforcement activities.

The following table details the risk profile of trade receivables. As the Group's historical credit loss experience dogs not show significantly
different loss patterns for different custorner segments, the pravision for loss allowance based on past due status is not distinguished
between the Group’s type of customer.

132 Biffa Annual Report and Accounts 2020



Expected Lifetime
credit loss expected
rate % credit loss
As at27 March 2020
Trade receivables - days past due
1to 30 days 1% D.3
31to 60 days 1% -
611090 days 1% -
91to 120 days s50% 05
Over 120 days 50% 1.5
Expected Lifetirne
creditloss  expected credit
rate % loss
As at 29 March 2019
Trade receivables - days past due
1to 30 days 1% 0.2
31to 60 days 1% -
B1to 90 days 1% -
91to 120 days 50% 0.8
Over 120 days 50% 13

The allowance for ECL includes individually impaired trade receivables which are in excess of 120 days overdue, in liquidation or are the
subject of legal action. The ECL recognised represents the difference between the carrying amount of these trade receivables and the present

value of any expected recoveries,

The following table shows the movement in ECL that has been recognised in trade and other receivables in accordance with the simplified

approach set put in IFRS 9.

2020 2019
£m £m
Movement in expected credit losses
Balance at the beginning of the period 21 17
Impairment losses recognised 0.2 a7
Amounts recovered during the period 1.4 0.7
Armounts written off as uncollectable [(1.4) (1.0)
Expected credit losses in relation to increase in creditrisk 2.0 -
4.3 21
The Directors consider that the carrying amount of trade receivables approximates their fair value.
Long-term receivables
2020 2019
£fm £m
Amounts falling due after mors than one year
Funds on long-term deposit 2.2 2.4
Prepayrnent in respect of EVP Dispute (Note 34) 63.6 63.6
Loans to Emplovee Benefit Trust - 2.9
Other long-term debtors 2.4 -
68.2 68.9

The Group is engaged in a dispute with HMRC in relation to the Landfill Tax treatment of certain materials used in the engineering of landfill
sites from September 2008 to May 2012. Prior to the IPO, the Group had hardship relief which meant payment was not required to be made to

HMRC. Subsequent to the IPO the Group pre-paid the disputed amount to HMRC as disclosed in Note 34.

In deterrining the expected credit losses for these long-term receivables, the Directors have taken into account tha historical default
experience and financial position of the counterparties. No expected credit loss has been recognised on the basis that the counterparties

are HMRC and A-rated financial institutions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

17. Cash and Cash Equivalents

2020 2019

£m £m

Cash atbank and in hand 53.6 24.4
Short-term deposits 342 418
Balance at the end of the period 87.8 66.2

Deposits comprise £25.0m (2019: £36.2rm) of funds on overnight deposit via a Group cash pooling facility and an insurance deposit of
£9.2m (2018: £5.7m] which represents cash held as security for self-insurance obligations. Inciuded within the total cash balance is £12.0m
[2019: £6.6m]) which cannot be accessed by the Group as it is held as collateral against insurance liabilities by Bray Insurance Company
Limited, which is the Group's captive insurance company.

18. Assets Classified as Held for Sale

2020 2019
£m fm
Fraehold land held for sale 6.1 gi

The Group holds a freehold property that it no longer requires and intends to dispose of it within the next 12 months. A search is currently
under way for a buyer and the Directors expect that the fair value less costs to sell will be higher than the carrying amount.

19. Financial Instruments

2020 2019
€m £m

Amortised cost
Liguidity fundg? 3.3 131
3.3 131

1 Current investments held by Bray Insurance Company Limited, the Group's captive insurance company.

Derivative financial instruments

The derivatives that the Group has entered into qualify for hedge designation as a cash flow hedge under IFRS 9. The Group has entered into
forward foreign exchange rate contracts which all mature within one year. During the vear the Group has also entered into interest rate swaps
which mature in line with the Group’s revolving credit facility (RCF).

The forward foreign exchange contracts have resulted in the recognition of a derivative asset of £0.4m, During the year a loss of £0.8rm has
heen recognised in the statement of other comprehensive income.

The fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts and interest rate swaps are calculated by discounting the contracted forward values and
translating at the balance sheet rates. The fair value measurements are classified as Level 2 in the fair value hierarchy as defined by IFRS 13
Fair Value Measurement, as the inputs are from observable quoted exchanges.

The fair value and the notional armounts are as follows:

2020 2019
Fair Fair
value Notional value Notional
£m £m Em ST
Forward foreign exchange contracts 0.4 10.9 (0.7 16.0
Interest rate swaps (1.6] 200.0 - -
1.2) 210.9 [0.7) 16.0
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Borrowings
2020 2019
Bocok Book Book
value value value
Post IFRS 16 Pre Average Book Average
IFRS16 adoption IFRS16 interest value interest
£m £m £m rate % £m rate %
Current

Lease liabilities 43.6 (15.0) 28.8 4.4% 317 5.8%

Non-current
Lease liabilities 214.4 (126.0) 88.4 4.4% 90.8 5.8%
Bankloans 249.0 - 249.0 2.6% 248.0 3.2%
EVP preference instrument 47.6 - 476 5.5% 48.6 5.5%

511.0 (126.0] 385.0 3875
554.6 (141.0) 413.6 419.2

2020 2019
£m £m
Bank borrowings including finance leases 507.0 370.6
EVP preference instrument 47.6 48.6
554.6 418.2

At 27 March 2020 the Group has an undrawn revolving credit facility {RCF) of £98rn, (2019: £99m). Due to the nature of the RCF
and continued repayments and drawdowns, the cash flows were presented on a net basis in the Staterment of Cash Flows.

In the year ended 28 March 2019, the Group settled its £200m term facility and entered into a £350.0m RCF. The costs of £3.0m attributed
to obtaining the facility were capitalised and continue to be amortised over the existing life of the facility. The unamortised costs of £3.8m
inrelation to the historic £200m term facility were written off as a finance charge in Other items (Note 3).

In the year ended 24 March 2017 certain pre-1P0 lenders weare issued with preference share capital in Wasteholdeo 1 Limited in exchange for
settlement of amounts due to them. In the event that the Group is successful in its EVP case (see Note 34) with HMRC, the EVP preference
shareholders will be entitled to certain funds recovered from HMRC by the Company.

The Directors consider it likely that the Group will be successful in the case and accordingly have recognised a liability in respect of the EVP
preference shares, In the event that the Group is unsuccesstul in the EVP proceedings and does not recover the amount prepaid to HMRC,
the Group expects to release the majority of the associated EVP liability as disclosed in Note 34.

Borrowings are measured at amortised cost with the exception of the EVP preference instrument which is measured at fair value. All
financial assets and financial liabilities have been categorised as Level 2. Level 2 financial instruments have been valued using inputs
other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability either directly or indirectly.

Interest rates on borrowings

2020 2019
Average Average
interest interest
Principal rate Principal rate
£m % £ %
Term facility 249.0 2.6% - 3.2%

Unarnortised transaction costs of £3,0m incurred in the origination of these facilities have been netted against the carrying value of the
loans. The EVP preference instrument is non-interest bearing; however, in accordance with IFRS 8 Financial Instruments, an imputed
interest charge of 5.5% [2019: 5.5%) i5 being recognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

19. Financial Instruments continued

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities

2020 2019
Book Fair Baok Fair
value value value value
fm £fm £m £m
Borrowings (507.0) (507.0) (370.8) (370.8)
EVP preference instrurment (47.8) a7.8] (48.6) (48.8)
Trade and other payables' (Note 20) (233.2) (233.2) (188.1) (189.1]
Derivative financial instrurnent 1.2) a.a) (0.7) (0.7
Trade and other receivables® (Note 18) 135.1 135.1 123.7 1237
Financial asset arising on liguity fund? 33 3.3 7 131 - 131
Financial asset arising from IFRIC 12* [Note 35) 34 34 - -
Funds on long-term deposit 2.2 2.2 2.4 14
Prepayment in respect of EVP Dispute 6386 63.6 B63.6 62.8
Other long-term debtors 2.5 2.5 2.9 29
Cash and cash equivalents [Note 17) 87.8 878 B86.2 66.2
(491.1) (491.1) (337.1) (338.8)

1 Trade and other payabies exciudes deferred income, taxation and social security and other non-financial iiabilities.
2 Trade and other receivables excludes prepayments, other debtors and accrued income.
3 Total financial assets are the liquidity fund and [FRIC 12,

The fair values of financial assets and liabilities are determined as follows:

Interest rate swaps are measured at the present value of future cash flows estimated and discounted based on the applicable yield curves
derived from quoted interest rates.

The fair values of non-derivative financial assets and liabilities are determined based on discounted cash flow analysis using current market
rates for similar instruments.

Financial risk management

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including capital risk management, cash flow interest rate risk,
currency risk and price risk], credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group's overall risk management programmes focus on the unpredictability
of financial markets and seek to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group's financial performance. Financial risk management in
the above areas is carried out under a policy approved by the Board of Directors.

Canital risk managemeant

The Group manages its capital structure using a numnber of measures and taking into account its future strategic plans. Such measures
include its net interest cover, liguidity and leverage ratios. Total capital is calculated as ‘equity’ as shown in the consolidated statement of
financial position plus Net Debt. Net Debt is calculated as total borrowings (including ‘current and non-gurrent borrowings as shown in the
consolidated statement of financial position) less cash and cash equivalents. The Directors are satisfied that the current risk management
strategy is appropriate and effective,

Cash flow interest rate risk

The Group's interest-bearing assats include cash and cash equivalents which earn interest at floating rates. The Group's income and
operating cash flows are substantially independent of changes in market interest rates. The Group's interest rate risk arises from long-term
borrowings. Borrowings issued at variable rates expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk. Group policy is to maintain an appropriate
proportion of its borrowings at fixed rate using interest rate swaps to achieve this when necessary.

1386 Biffa Annual Report and Accounis 2020



The interest rate risk profile of the Group's financial assets and liabilities was as follows:

2020
2020 IFRS16 2020

Post IFRS 16 adoption Pre [FRS 186 2018
£m £m £m £m

Financial liabilities
Floating rate financial liabilities [excluding derivatives) 249.0 - 249.0 248.0
Fixed rate financial liabilities 258.0 [(141.0) 117.0 122.8
Non-interest bearing financial liabilities 233.2 - 233.2 185.1
Non-interest bearing EVP preference instrument 47.6 - 47.6 48.8
Total financial liabilities 7878 4.0 646.8 508.3

Fixed rate financial liabilities relate to lease liabilities. Non-interest bearing financial liabilities comprise trade payables.

2020 2018
£m £m
Financial assets

Floating rate financial assets (excluding derivatives) 65.7 68.6
Floating rate financial assets (cash and cash equivalents] 87.8 66.2
153.5 134.8

Non-interest bearing assets
Liquidity fund 3.4 131
Non-interest bearing financial assets 135.1 1237
138.5 136.8
Total financial assets 292.0 2718

The interest on fixed rate financial instruments is fixed until the maturity of the investment. The interest on floating rate financial
instruments is re-set at intervals of less than one year. The other financial assets and liabilities of the Group that are not included in
the above tables are non-interest bearing and therefore not subject to interest rate risk.

Fixed rate and non-interest bearing financial assets and liabilities are exposed to fair value interest rate risk and floating rate financial
assets and liabilities to cash flow interest rate rislk.

The minimum payments for lease liabilities fall due as follows:

2020 2020 2020

Post IFRS 15 IFRS 16 Pre IFRS 16 2019
£m £m £m £rn
No later than one year 517 [19.5) 32.2 35.6
Later than one year but not more than five years 145.6 [(63.8) 81.8 841
More than five years 1443 (1234) 20.9 23.3
3416 (206.7) 134.9 143.0

Future finance charges on leases liabilities (83.6) 65.7 7.9 {20.4)
Present value of lease liabilities 268.0 [141.0) 117.0 122.6

Currency risk
The Group is exposed to currency risk arising frorm currency exposures primarily related ta the disposal of RDF via export to Europe. The
Group enters into forward contracts to purchase Euros based upon expected costs. These derivatives are classified as cash flow hadges.

Price risk

The Group is not materially exposed to any equity securities price risk. Both divisions are exposed to commodity price risks to a greater

or lesser degree on their putputs. The commodities that the Group is exposed to commodity price risks on are fuel, electricity, paper, glass,
cardboard, steel, aluminium and plastics (ingluding HDPE and PET). The price risk associated with commodities is considered to be in the
ordinary course of business for the Group.

Credit risk

Credit risk is managed on a Group basis as appropriate. Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents, derivative financial instruments
and deposits with banks and financial institutions, as well as credit exposures to customers, including outstanding receivables. For banks
and financial institutions, only independently rated parties with a minimurn rating of A are accepted.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

19. Financial Instruments continued
Credit risk continued
Management does not expect any significant losses of receivables that have not been provided for as shown in Note 16.

The carrying amount of financial assets resorded in the financial information, which is net of impairment losses, represents the Group's
maximum exposure to gredit risk. These armounts include receivable balances from local authority clients, hence are not exposed to
significant credit risk. Given the above factors, the Board does not consider it necessary to present a detailed analysis of credit risk.

Liquidity risk

The Group ensures that there are sufficient cormmitted loan facilities in order to meet short-term business requirements, after taling into
account the cash flows from operations and its holding of cash and cash equivalents. The expected undiscounted cash flow of the Group's
financial liabilities (including derivatives), by remaining contractual maturity, at the balance sheet date is shown below:

2020
Due between Due between Due five
Due within oneand two and years and
one year two years five years beyond Total
£m £m £m £m £m
_lEn-derivatlve financial liabilitles ‘r
Erruwings. excluding lease liabilities - - [252.0) - (252.0) :
Lease liabilities (28.6) (26.9) [@9.4) 13.1) (117.0]
IFRS 16 lease liahility (15.0} (13.8) (37.3) (74.9) [141.0)
Eade and other payables (233.2) - - - (233.2)
Entract liahilities (17.93 - - - (17.8)
Non-derivative financial assets
-C_;sh and cash equivalents 878 - - - 87.8
Liquidity fund 3.4 - - - aa ‘
Trade and other receivables 135.1 68.2 - - 203.3 i
Entract assets 56.2 - - - 56.2
[12.2) 28.5 [(338.7) (88.0) (410.4)
o 2019 ‘
Tiue hetween Due between Due five '
Due within one and two and years and
one year two years five years beyond Total
£m £m £m £m £m
_Non-dertvative tinanclal liabilities
Barrowings, excluding finance lease - - (251.0) - [261.0)
Enance lease liabilities (35.6) (28.3) [65.7) (23.3) (142.9)
Interest payments on borrowings - - - - -
Other non-interest bearing liabilities (189.1) - - - [(189.1)
Non-derivative financial assets
E‘sh and cash equivalents 66.2 - - - B6.2
}iquiditv fund 13.1 - - - 13.1
Non-interest bearing financial assets 1237 68.9 - - 192.6
=217 406 [306.7] [23.3]) [311.1)

Interest rate sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on the exposure to interest rates for both derivative and non-derivative
instruments at the balance sheet date. For floating rate liabilities, the analysis is prepared taking an average of the liability outstanding
over the period.

During the year ended 27 March 2020, the Group entered into a £200m Interest Rate Swap to fix its variable exposure to LIBOR. If interest
rates had been 2% higher/1% lower and all other variables were held constant, the Group’s resutt for the 52 weeks ended 27 March 2020 would
ingrease/(decrease) by the amounts shown in the table below. This analysis assumes that, where interest rates are currently less than 1%, any
reduction is capped at zero.

2020 2019
2% increase 1% decrease 2% increase 1% decrease
interest rates interest rates interest rates interest rates
£m £m £m £m
Gain/(loss) - variable rate financial instruments [1.0) 0.4 (4.2) 27
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20. Trade and Other Payables

2020 2018
£m £rn
Current
Trade payables 176.7 1559
Taxation and social security 40.9 429
Interest payable 0.8 -
Accruals 55.2 328
Other payables 0.6 0.6
2742 2320
Non-current
Trade and other payables 13.6 13.7
£13.0m has been recognised in relation to the EVP Dispute as disclosed in Note 33.
21. Provisions
Landfill
restoration & OUnerous
aftercare Insurance Contracts Qther Total
£ £m £m £m £m
As at 30 March 2018 742 12.6 77 11.9 106.4
Utilised (9.3 - - (1.1) (10.4)
Charged/[credited] to profit and loss account {0.8)] (11) 9.4 [0.5) 70
Impact of real discount rate changes to profit and loss
account 1.8 - - - 16
Unwinding of discount 2.0 - - - 2.0
Transfers from fixed/other assets [0.3) - - - [0.3)
As at 29 March 2019 674 11.5 171 10.3 106.3
Utilised (8.0) (0.4) - f2.4) (10.8)
(Credited)/charged to profit and loss account (0.9]) [0.1) a7 4.4 17
Impact of real discount rate changes to profit and loss
account [4.9) - - - [(4.9]
Urnwinding of discount 17 - - - 17
Transfers from fixed/other assets 1.3 - - - 1.3
As at 27 March 2020 56.6 11.0 15.4 12.3 95.3
Provisions have been analysed between current and non-current as follows:
2020 2019
£m frm
Current 10.2 1B8.0
Non-current 856.1 80.3
95.3 108.3

Landfill restoration and aftercare

As part of its normal activities, the Group undertakes to restore its landfill sites and to maintain the sites and control leachate and methane
ermissions from the sites. Provision is made for these anticipated costs. A number of estimate uncertainties affect the calculation, including
the impact of regulation, accuracy of site surveys, transportation costs and changes in the real discount rate. The provisions incorporate

our best estimates of the financial effects of these uncertainties, but future changes in any of these estimates could materially impact the
calculation of the provision. Restoration costs are incurred as each site is fiiled and in the period immediately after its closure. The provision
incorporates the best estimate of the financial effect of these uncertainties, but future changes in any of the assumptions could materially
impact the calculation of the provision.

Maintenance and leachate and methane control costs are incurred as each site is filled and for a number of years post closure.

Aftercare costs are incurred as each site is filled and for a number of years post closure. This period can vary significantly from site to site,
depending upon the types of waste landfilled and the speed at which it decornposes, the way the site is engineered and the regulatory
requirements specific to the site.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

21. Provisions continued

Changes in the provision arising from revised estimates or discount rates ar changes in the expected timing of expenditures that relate
to property, plant and equipment are recorded as adjustments to their carrying value and depreciated prospectively over their remaining
useful economig lives; otherwise such changes are recognised within the income staterment.

The associated outflows are estimated to arise over a period of up to 80 years depending on the date of each site closure. In determining the
provision, the estimates for future expenditure required to settle the obligation are inflated using longer-term inflation rates, and discounted

using the nominal discount rate. The rates utilised reflect the period of the obligation on a site by site basis which varies between 10 and
60 years.

Long-term aftercare provisions included in landfill restoration and aftercare provisions have been inflated and discounted using the below
nominal rates:

Inflation rate Discount rate
restated
Period of obligation 2020 2019 2020 2018
5 years 2.1% 2.4% 2.1% 1.4%
10 years 2.3% 2.4% 2.1% 1.9%
20 years 2.3% 27% 2.5% 2.8%
30 years 21% 2.5% 2.4% 25%
60 years 1.6% 2.1% 2.2% 24%

Anincrease of 1% in the real discount rate {at current cost) would result in a decrease of environmental provisions of approximately £10.3m.

A10% increase in cash outflows would result in an increased environmental provision of £6.9m.

Long-term aftergare provisions included in landfill restoration and aftercare provisions have been inflated at a rate of 2.3% (2019: 2.4%).

An increase of 1% in the rate of inflation would result in an increase of environrmental provisions of approximately £14.3m.

Insurance

The associated outflows are estimated to arise over a period of up to five years from the balance sheet date.

Other

Other provisions include a provision for dilapidations of £7.8m (2019: £8.0m) and £15.4m (2019: £17.1m] relating to onerous contracts.

The associated outflows are estimated to arise over a period of up to 20 years from the balance sheet date.

22. Deferred Taxation

The following are the major deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised by the Group and movements thereon during the current period:

Termporary
difference
arising on Recognised
property, Relirernent tax losses
plantand Share-based benefit Intangible carred
equiprnent payments Provisions obligation Goodwill assets forward Total
£rn £ £ £m £m £m £rn £m
As at 30 March 2018 324 18 19 (8.5]) 8.6 (33.5) 11.8 14.5
Acquired [0.6) - - - - 27 - (3.8)
Credit/(charge) to income statement 24 0.5 (1.0) - (0.8) 3.0 [(2.6) (3.4)
Credit/[charge) to SOCI - - - [49] - - - (4.9)
Credit/(charge] to retained earnings - (0.8} - - - - - (0.9)
As at 29 March 2019 29.5 14 09 13.4) 7 (33.2) 9.2 21
Acquired 0.3 - - - - [05) - (0.2]
Credit/(charge) to income statement 7.9) 0.4 - (1.9 - [(0.7) 0.2 [10.7)
Credit/(charge) to SOCI - {0.2) - (8.3) - - - (8.5)
As at 27 March 2020 21.9 0.8 0.9 [23.6] 77 (34.4) 9.4 (17.3)

A deferred tax liability of £17.3m [2019: £2.1m asset] has been recognised in the current year using the tax rate of 19% (2019: 17%). Deferred
tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities.

As at 27 March 2020 the Group had unused tax losses of £86.9m (2019: £71.9m) available for offset against future profits.

A deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of £49.6rm (2019: £64.7m) of these losses. No deferred tax asset has heen recognised

in respect of the remaining £17.2m (2019: £17.2m) as it is not considered probable that there will be future taxable profits available in the

statutory entity in which these losses are being carried forward.
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23. Share-based Payments

2020 2019

Date of grant Number Nurmnber
20 Uctober 2016 - 2,282,240
24 January 2017 - 59,088
3 July 2017 1,575,164 1,622,420
1 Septernber 2017 26,230 26,230
2 July 2018 870,176 836,125
1 October 2018 218,359 218,369
11 December 2018 18,819 18,819
1July 2018 1,773,088 -

The following share-based expenses charged in the year are included within administration expenses:

2020 2019

£fm £m

Performance Share Plan 3.0 3.8

During the year the Group had three conditional share-based payment arrangements granted to Directors and employees. The schemes are

equity settled.

Performance Share Plan

Nurmber of Share price

options  Contractual at date Number of Fair value

originally life of grant employees Expected Expected life Risk free per option

Date of grant granted (years] (pence] at grant wvolatility (vears] rate (pence)
20 October 2018 2,635,794 2.65 179.5 13 27% 265 0.25% 106.2
24 January 2017 84,189 2.4 186.8 4 27% 2.4 0.23% 109.3
3 July 2017 2,198,313 3.0 221.8 78 26% 3.0 0.36% 154.6
1 September 2017 26,230 2.8 228.8 1 26% £.83 0.22% 161.8
2 July 2018 1,014,880 2.9 261.0 36 24% 293 0.71% 173.2
1 October 2018 218,359 2.9 253.0 2 24% 293 0.89% 173.8
11 December 2018 18,819 2.9 192.2 1 24% 2.93 0.90% 1141
1July 2019 1,773,988 3.0 211.0 37 25% 30 0.54% 112.8

The Group has used the stochastic model to value its share awards.

The expected volatility is a measure of the amount by which a share price is expected to fluctuate during the period. It is typically calculated
based on statistical analysis of daily share prices over the length of the award period. Due to the recent listing of Biffa plc this information
is not available. Instead it has been based on the volatility of another company of a similar size which operates in the same market.

A reconciliation of movernents in the nurnber of share awards can be summarised as follows:

Numb_er of
options
originally Lapsed/
Date of grant granted Vested forfeited 27 March 2020
20 October 2016 2,635,794 (1,664,399) [971,395) -
24 January 2017 84,189 [(43,157) (41,032] -
3July 2017 2,198,313 - [623,149) 1,675,164
1 Septernber 2017 26,230 - - 26,230
2 July 2018 1,014,880 - [144.704] 870,176
1 October 2018 218,358 - - 218,359
11 Decernber 2018 18,819 - - 18,819
1July 2019 1,773,988 - - 1,773,988
At 27 March 2020 7,970,672 [1,707,556) (1,780,280) 4,482,736
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

23. Share-based Payments continued

The Performance Share Plan (PSP) provides for the grant of awards in the form of conditional fres shares or nil-costs options. Shares in
relation to the award will be released to participants subsequent to the date of the preliminary announcement of results for the 2019/20
financial year dependent upon the extent to which the performance conditions of achievemnent of adjusted EPS targets for the fiscal year
ended March 2020 and performance of the Company’s relative total shareholder growth have been satisfied. The EPS fair value is equivalent
to the share price at grant date on the basis that it is a non-market based measure.

In 2017 the Group launched the Biffa Sharesave Plan 2017 (the Scheme) to all employees with six months’ or more continuous employment
at the date of the Scheme launch. The Scheme is subject ta HMRC rules which limit monthly contributions to £500 and the option price for
this award was £1.58 being a 20% discount to the average market price over the three consecutive days preceding the offer date. The Scheme
term is for three years and options may he exercised during the six months after completion of the Save as You Earn contract.

During the period 444,438 options were granted at a fair value of 34.8 pence, and as at 27 March 2020 403,290 were outstanding under the
Scheme. The share price at award was £2.07 and the option price was £1.81.

24. Share Capital

Numberof Called up share

shares capital

IS

As at 29 March 2019 250,000,000 2,500,000
As at 27 March 2020 250,000,000 2,500,000

Share premium
The share premium represents amounts received in excess of the nominal value of shares issued upon IPO, net of the direct costs associated
with issuing those shares.

£m

As at 27 March 2020 and 28 March 2018 235.3

Merger reserve
The merger reserve of £74.4rm arose on the acquisition of Wasteholdco 1 Limited and is the difference between the carrying value of the net
assets acquired and the nominal value of the share capital.

25. Retained Earnings/(Deficit]

2020 2019

fm £m

Retained earnings/(detficit) at the start of the period 48.4 29.0
Adjustment in respect of adoption of [FRS 15 - (8.2}
Drofit for the poriod anR mn

QOther cornprehensive income for the period 326 22.4

Shares purchased by ernployee benefit trust 9.1) -

Employee service in respect of share option schemes {Nate 23] 2.4 22
Dividends paid (18.3) [17.0)

Retained surplus at the end of the period 1016 48.4
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26. Cash Flows from Operations

2020 2019
£m £rm
Profit/[loss) for the period 45.6 18.0
Adjustments for:
Finance income (3.4) (1.5)
Finance charges 1.0 25.4
Share of result in joint venture 01 -
Taxation 10.8 3.5
Operating profit 741 454
Share based payments 3.0 3.8
Exceptional items (Note 3) 4.4 18.2
Amortisation of intangibles (Note 6] 17.9 17.8
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment [Note 6] 82.6 877
Profit on disposal of fixed assets 1.0 [(2.2)
[Increase] in inventories a7 7
(Increase)in receivables (14.7) (0.9)
Increase in payables 32.3 41
[Increase])/decrease in financial asset 9.2 (8.2)
[Decrease] in provisions [12.3) [11.0)
Total cash generated from operations 193.8 133.0
27. Reconciliation of Net Cash Flow to Movement in Debt
2020 2018
£m £
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 21.6 26.4
Net (increase]) in borrowings [135.4) [(68.5)
Movement in Net Debt in the period [113.8) [34.1)
Net Debt at beginning of period [353.0) [318.8])
Net Debt at end of period [466.8) [(353.0}
Analysis of Net Debt
2020 2020 2020
Post IFRS 16 IFRS 16 PreIFRS 16 2019
£m £m £m £m
Cash and cash equivalents 87.8 - 878 66.2
Leaseliabilities (258.0) 141.0 {117.0) (122.6)
Bankloans (249.0) - (249.0) (248.0)
EVP preference liability (6.3) - {6.3) (6.3)
Reported Net Debt [(425.5) 141.0 (284.5) (310.7)
EVP preference liability 41.3) - [41.3) (42.3]
(466.8) 141.0 (325.8) {353.0)

Of the EVP preference liability, £6.3m has been included within Reported Net Debt as it will be payable to EVP preference shareholders
irrespective of the outcome of the EVP Dispute. The remaining £41.3m has been excluded on the basis that it will only become payable
subject to the outcome of the EVP Dispute and will be funded by recovery of funds frora HMRC.

The Groups leverage is calculated on reported Net Debt as follows:

2020 2020 2020

PostIFRS 16 I[FRS 16 Pre IFRS 16 2018

£m £m £m £m

Cash and cash equivalents 878 - 87.8 66.2
Lease liabilities (258.0) 141.0 (117.0) (122.8)
Banklopans (249.0) - (249.0) (248.0)
EVP preference liability (6.3) - [6.3) (6.3)
Reported Net Debt (425.5) 141.0 (284.5) (310.7)
Reported Net Debt: EBITDA 2.4x [0.6)x 1.8x 2.1x
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

27. Reconciliation of Net Cash Flow to Movement in Debt continued

Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities

The table below details changes in the Group’'s liabilities arising from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash changes.
Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the Group's
consolidated cash flow staterment as cash flows from financing activities.

Non-cash changes

Asat New Asat

29March  Adoption of Financing Fair value Acquisition finance Other 27 March

2019 IFRS 16 cashflows movements ofsubsidiary leases changes 2020
Lease liabilities (122.6) [134.9) 50.2 - (0.5) (50.8) 08 (258.0)
Bankloans (248.03 - (1.0) - - - - [(249.0)
EVP preference liability (48.6) - - 1.0 - - - (47.6)
(419.2) [(134.9) 49.2 1.0 (0.5) (50.8) 0.6 [554.6)

The cash flows in respect of the Group's bank loans include repayments of £251.0m and drawdowns of £252.0m.

Non-cash changes

As at New Asat

29 March Financing Fair value Acquisition tinance Other 29 March

2018 cashflows rmovements ofsubsidiary leases changes 2019
Obligations under finance leases [i18.8] 33.0 - 19) (365] 16 (122.6]
Bank lpans (194.7] (45.1) - - - (8.2} (248.0)
EVP preference liability [46.2) - 2.49) - - - (48.8)
(36597} (12.1} [2.4) 1.9) (38.6) (8.8) [(419.2)

28. Lease Liabilities
2020 undiscounted lease liability maturity analysis under IFRS 16

2020
Land and

buildings Other Total

£m £m £m

Within one year 15.0 367 517
Between one and five years 64.8 80.8 145.6
After five years 133.0 11.3 134.3
202.8 138.8 a11.6

Reconciliation of operating leases under IAS 17 to opening IFRS 16

2020

£m

Operating lease commitments disclosed under IAS 17 at 29 March 2019 1734
Short-term and low-value lease commitments straight-line expensed under IFRS 16 (0.7
Effect of discounting (37.6)
Exempt (0.2}
Lease liabilities recognised at 30 March 2019 134.9

Amounts recognised in the Income Staternent arising frorm IFRS 16 lease liabilities have beenincluded in Note 6. These charges include
depreciation and short-term or exermpt leases. Interest on lease liabilities have been summarised in Note 4. Right-of-use assets and

the associated movement in the year are summarised in Note 14. The transition narrative in relation to ITFRS 16 is included in Nota 1.
Repavrnent of lease liabilities are included within the Statement of Cash flow.

2019 operating leases under IAS 17

2019

Land and
buildings Other Total
Em £m £m
Within one year 144 24 15.8
Between one and five years 51.0 3.1 54.1
After five years 1025 - 102.5
167.9 5.5 1734
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29. Pension and Post-retirement Benefits
Defined contribution schemes

2020 2019
£m £m
Defined contribution expense 10.2 9.8

Defined benefit schemes

The Group operates a number of defined benefit schemes: Biffa Pension Scherme (BPS), the Cornwall Pension Fund (the Cornwall Fund], an
Unfunded Unapproved Retirement Benefits Scheme [UURBS), the Federated Pension Plan {FPP), Prudential Platinum (Platinum), the Kent
County Council Pension Fund (the Kent Fund), the Staffordshire Pension Fund {the Staffordshire Fund) and the Greater Manchester Pension
Fund (GMPF) (collectively, the Schemes). The Schernes offer both pensions in retirement and death benefits to members. All the Schemes
are closed to new members. The BPS, Platinurn, the Cornwall Fund, the Kent Fund and the Staffordshire Fund are open to accrual although
the BPS is closed for the majority of members and only a few employees with statutory protections remain in active service. The BPS makes
up around 95% of the total liability across the Schemes.

The Schermes expose the Group to actuarial risks such as market [investrent] risk, interest rate risk, inflation risk currency riskand
longevity risk. Contributions to the Schemes for the year ended 26 March 2021 are expected to be £5.9m.

The Schemes’ are administered by Trustees and the assets are held separately to the legal entity that is the Group. The Trustes board

of the Schemes is composed of an independent Trustee, and other employer and raember nominated Trustees {where the legal minimum
proportion of mernber nominated Trustees has been upheld). The Trustees are required by law to act in the best interests of the members
of the Scheme. The Trustees are respongible for the investment palicy with regard to the assets of the Schemes.

The Group considers two measures of the Schemes surplus or deficit. The accounting position is shown on the Group balance sheet. The
funding position, calculated at the triennial actuarial assessment, is used to agree contributions to the Schemes. The two measures will
vary because they are for different purposes, and are calculated at different rates and in different ways. The kay calculation difference is
that the funding position considers the expected returns of Scheme assets when calculating the Schemes liability, whereas the accounting
position under IAS 19 discounts liabilities based on corporate bond yields.

The Schemes have an accounting surplus that is fully recognised on the basis that future economic benefits are unconditionally available
in the form of a reduction in the future cash contributions or as a cash refund. Where a surplus of a defined benefit scheme arises or there
is potential for a surplus to arise from comumitted future contributions the rights of the Trustees to prevent the Group obtaining a refund

of that surplus is considered in determining whether it is necessary to restrict the amount of the surplus that is recognised.

A full actuarial valuation of the Schemes was carried out as at 31 March 2015 which revealed a funding shortfall of £66.7m. The Group
committed to deficit payments of £3.85m each year to 31 March 2017 and escalating with RPIinflation each year from 31 March 2018 to
31March 2024.

The Group is an admitted body in one other scheme that is part of the Local Government Pension Schemes. The contractual terms of the
commercial agreements that admit the Group to the schemes limit the actuarial risk that the Group is exposed to; consequently the scheme
has been accounted for as a defined contribution scheme.

Investment risk

The present values of the Schemes' liabilities are calculated using a discount rate determined by reference to vields available on high-quality
AA-rated corporate bond yields; in other words, from the position of being fully funded then if the return on the Schemes’ assets were helow
this rate, it would create a deficit in the Schemes.

In addition to the natural interest rate hedging provided by its investrnent in bonds the Trustee also purchases derivatives to ensure that the
funding position of the Schemes are, overall, hedged against 80% of movements in long-term risk free interest rates and 60% of movements
in inflation expectations. No annuities or specific mortality hedging preducts have been purchased by the schemes.

Interest risk
A decreasein the corporate bond yield will increase the Schemes’ liabilities; however, this will be partially offset by an increase in the value
of the Schemes’ corporate bond assets.

Longevity risk
The present values of the Schemes' liabilities are calculated by reference to the best estimate of the mortality of the Schemes’ members
both during and after their employment. An increase in the life expectancy of the Schemes' members will increase the Schemes’ liabilities.

Inflation risk

The present values of the Schemes’ liabilities are calculated by reference to the future expected pension indexation (both indexation in
deferment and pension increases in payment], which will depend on future inflation expectations. As such, an increase in the expectation
of future inflation will increase the Schemes’ liabilities.

The lumyp sum death benefits paid to the dependants of the Schemes’ members are insured with an external insurance company.

The present value of the obligation, and the related current service cost and past service cost, were measured using the projected unit
credit method.

The COVID-19 pandemic

The COVID-19 pandemic has had a global impact on economies, equity and bond markets. Market volatility during March has had animpact
on the value of assets held by our DB and DG pension plans. Our UK DB plans have low-risk investment strategies with limited exposure to
equities and other return seeking assets.
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Notes to the Consoclidated Financial Statements continued

29. Pension and Post-retirement Benefits continued
A full actuarial valuation of the Schemes was carried ocut as at 31 Maxrch 2015 and has been updated to 27 March 2020 by a qualified
independent actuary. The major assumptions used by the actuary were (in nominal terms) as follows:

2020 2019
£m £m
Discount rate 2.5% 2.5%
Rate of salary increase 2.6% 3.3%
Rate of inflation - RPI 2.8% 3.3%
Rate of inflation - CPI 2.0% 2.3%
Rate of pension increases! - RPI with floor of 0% cap of 25% p.a. 2.1% 2.2%
Rate of pension increases! - RPI with flpor of 0% cap of 5.0% p.a. 2.8% 3.2%
Rate of pension increases® - RPI with floor of 0% cap of 6.0% p.a. 2.8% 3.3%
Rate of pension increases! - CP1 with floor of 0% cap of 3.0% p.a. 1.9% 2.2%
Longevity [vears)
Expected future lifetime of a male pensioner currently aged 85 20.9 21.0
Expected future lifetime of a female pensioner currently aged 65 22.9 23.3
Expected future lifetime from age 65 of a rnale member currently aged 50 21.9 22.0
Expected future lifetime from age 65 of a fernale mermber currently aged 50 24.5 24.1
1 Inexcess of any Guaranteed Minimum Pension (GMP).
The assets in the Schemes were:
2020 2018
£m % £m %
Asset category
Equities 102.8 17.1% 126.2 2L4
Bonds 327.8 54.7% 301.8 51.4
Properties and infrastructure 80.9 13.5% 92.8 15.8
Hedge funds 39.5 6.6% 49.9 85
Other 48.3 B.1% 16.8 2.9
599.3 587.6
Actual return on plan assets 263 46.9

The fair value of all of the above asset classes are determined based on quoted (bid ) market prices. Virtually all equity and debt instrumeants
have quoted prices in active markets. Derivatives are classified as Level 2 instruments and hedge funds and property as Level 3 instruments.
It is the policy of the Schemes to use hedge funds and liability driven investments to hedge some of their exposure to interest rate and
inflation risks. This policy has been implernented during the current and prior vears.

The key source of estirnation uncertainty relates to the valuation of the property portiolio, where a valuation is obtained annually fram
professionally qualified external valuers. The evidence to support these property valuations is based primarily on recent, comparable
market transactions on an arm's length basis. However the assumptions applied are inherently subjective and so are subject to a degree
of uncertainty, especially as aresult of Covid-19 and volatile assumptions as at the balance sheet date.

An increase in the praperty valuation of 10% would increase pension assets hy £8.1m. An increase in the valuation of unquoted assets of 10%
would increase pension assets by £1.2m.

Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of the present value of the defined benefit obligation

2020 2019
£m £m
Benefit obligation at beginning of period 523.8 472.8
Newly recognised obligations - 42.8
Service cost 2.8 3.2
Past service cost - 31
Interest cost 12.9 137
Contributions by Scheme participants 04 0.5
Net remeasurement [gains)/losses - financial (29.3) 29.2
Net remeasurement {gains] - demographic (0.4] [7.8)
Net remeasurement (gains] — experience (4.5) [14.5)
Benelits paid (19.8) (18.9)
Benefit obligation at end of period 485.9 523.8
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Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of the fair value of Schemes’ assets

2020 2019
£m £m
Fair value of Schemes' assets at beginning of period 587.6 524.9
Newly recognised GMPF asset - 29.2
Interest income on Schemes' assets 145 14.6
Return on assets, excluding interest incorne .8 323
Contributions by ermnployers 5.9 5.8
Contributions by Schermes' participants 0.4 0.5
Benefits paid [19.8) [18.9)
Scheme administrative cost 11 (0.8)
Fair value of plan assets at end of period 599.3 587.6
Amounts recognised in comprehensive income in respect of defined benefit Schemes
2020 2019
£m Em
Current service cost 2.8 3.2
Past service cost - 31
Administrative cost 11 0.8
Adjustment in respect of Greater Manchester Pension Fund (0.7) [0.8)
Net interest on the net defined benefit lighility (2.0) (1.3)
Components of defined benefit cost recognised in profit or loss 12 5.0
Remeasurement on the net defined benefit llability
Return on Schemes’ assets (excluding amounts in net interest expense) 11.8 323
Actuarial gains and losses from changes in financial assumptions 29.4 (28.2)
Actuarial gain from changes in demographic assumptions 0.4 7.9
Actuarial gain from changes in experience assumptions 4.5 145
Movement in asset ceiling [5.2) 18
Components of defined benefit cost recognised in other comprehensive income 40.9 273

The current service cost is included in operating costs in profit or loss. The net interest expense is included within finance charges in the
consolidated statement of profit or logs.

The remeasurement of the net defined henefit liability is included in other cornprehensive income.

The amount included in the consolidated staternent of financial position arising from the Group's obligation in respect of its defined benefit
Schemes is as follows:

2020 2019
£m £m
Present value of funded defined benefit obligation (485.9) (523.8)
Fair value of funded Schemes' assets 599.3 5876
Adjustment for the restriction in asset beneit 17 (0.3])
Adjustment in respect of GMPF agreement 13.0 15.5
Net asset arising from defined benefit obligation 124.7 73.0

Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the defined benefit obligation are the discount rate, expected future inflation
and mortality. The sensitivity analyses below have been deterrmined based on reasonahly possible changes of the respective assumptions
occurring at the end of the reporting period, while holding all other assumptions constant.

If the discount rate is 0.5% lower the defined benefit asset would decrease by £50.5m [2019: £56.6rm).
Ifthe inflation assurnption increaseg by 0.5% the defined benefit asset would decrease by £42.6m (2019: £44.2).

If the life expectancy increases by ane year for both men and women, the defined benefit asset would decrease by £19.4r (2019: £21.8m).
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Notes to the Consaolidated Financial Statements continued

29. Pension and Post-retirement Benefits continued
The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the defined benefit obligation as it is unlikely
that the change in assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated.

Furthermore, in presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the present value of the defined benefit obligation has been calculated using the
projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period, which is the same as that applied in calculating the defined benefit obligation
liability recognised in the staterment of financial position.

The Schemes’ participating employers are Biffa Waste Services Limited, Biffa Municipal Lirnited, Biffa Environmental Municipal Services
Limited, Biffa Leicester Limited and Biffa West Sussex Limited. These subsidiaries fund the cost of any protected members’ future acerual
[to the extent that any protected members remain working for each of these companies) earned on a yearly basis.

Protected members pay a range of fixed contributions of pensionable salary depending on what section of the Schemes they are in. These
contributions range frorm 3% to 6% of pensionable salary. The residual contribution (including past service augmentations) is paid by the
above entities of the Group. These contributions, required to fund accrual, are agreed between Biffa Corporate Holdings Limnited (the Principal
Employer) and the Trustees of the Schemes following each triennial valuation of the Schermes.

In accordance with the Pensions Act 2004, the Schemaes' liabilities are measured using a prudent discount rate at the triennial valuation,
but some asset outperformance is allowed for when calculating the deficit recovery contributions paid for by the participating ernployers.
Additional liabilities sternming from past service due to augmentation of benefits are added to the Schemes' deficit.

The average duration of the benefit obligation at 27 March 2020 is approximately 21 years [2019: 21 years).

The Group expects to male a contribution of £4.0m [2019: £4.1m) to the Schemes during the financial year to 26 March 2021.

30. Related Party Transactions
There have been no material related party transactions in the 52 weeks ended 27 March 2020 [2019: nil] except for key management
cornpensation as set out in the Directors’ Remuneration Raport.

Details of the Directors’ remuneration arg get put in the Directors’ Remuneration Report on pages 62-83. There have been no related party
transactions with any directors in the year or in the subsequent period.

During the year to 27 March 2020, the Group invested £56m in Newhurst ERF Limited a joint venture that the Group holds 50% share in through
Newhurst ERT Holding Limited. This is therefore a related party of Biffa Plc. On financial close the Group received from the joint venture
reimbursement for development costs incurred. There was one other related party transaction in the year. The Group issued loan notes

of £2.2m to Newhurst ERF Holding Limited, the parent cornpany of Newhurst ERF Limited. Both parties can redeern the notes at any time.
Annual rate of interest on the notes is eight per cent. This whole balance remained outstanding at year end. None of the amount is deemed

to be uncollectable and no expenses have been recognised during the period in respect of bad or doubtful debts in this regard.

No Directors held any material interest in any contract with the Company or the Group in the year or subsequent period to 27 March 2020.
The Group has made £10.2m (2019: £8.2m) contributions to the pension schemes.
31. Subsidiary Undertakings

All subsidiary undertakings have a financial year ended coterminous with Biffa plc unless otherwise noted. The Companies disclosed below
are deemed to be the principal subsidiaries of the Group.

Principal subsidiary Place of incarpeoration Activity Shareholding
Biffa Municipal Limited! England and Wales Waste management  100%
UK Waste Management Limited? England and Wales Waste management  100%
Biffa Waste Management Limited® England and Wales Waste management  100%
Bifta West Sussex Limited! England and Wales Waste management  100%
Bray Insurance Company Limited® Gibraltar Insurance services 100%
Barge Waste Management Limited’ England and Wales Waste management  100%
Island Waste Services Limited* England and Wales Waste management  100%
Poplars Resource Management Company Limited! England and Wales Waste management  100%
Biffa Wasta Services Limited? England and Wales Waste management  100%
Biffa Leicester Limited! England and Wales Waste management  100%
Biffa Environmental Municipal Services Limited! England and Wales Waste management  100%
Weir Waste Services Limited* England and Wales Waste management  100%
Weir Recycling Services Limited? England and Wales Waste management  100%
Specialist Waste Recycling Limited™ England and Wales Waste management  100%

1 Registered at Coronation Road, Cressex, High Wycombe, Buckinghamshire HP12 3TZ.
2 Registered at Fiduciary Management Limited, Suite 23 Portland House, Glacis Road, Gibraltar, GX11 1AA

3 Registered at Annan Suite, 10 York Place, Edinburgh, Scotland EH1 3EP
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32. Contingent Liabilities

The Group must satisfy the financial security requirements of environmental agencies in order to ensure thatit is able to discharge the
obligations in the licences or permits that the Group holds for its landfill sites. The Group satisfies these financial security requirements

by providing financial security bonds. The amount of financial security which is required is determined in conjunction with the regulatory
agencies, as is the method by which assurance is provided. The Group has existing bond arrangements in England and Wales of approximately
£85.7m outstanding at 27 March 2020 {2019: £84.9m] in respect of the Group's permitted waste activities where the Group has obligations
under the Environment Agency's fit and proper person test to make adequate financial provision in order to undertake those activities.
Additionally the Group has bonds to a value of £18.0m (20189: £19.8m) in connection with security for performance of local authority and
other contracts. No liability is expected to arise in respect of these bonds. The Group also has two letters of credit in relation to Newhurst EfW
amounting to £38.8m.

The Group is engaged in a dispute with HMRC in relation to the landfill tax treatment of certain materials used in the engineering of landfill
sites from September 2009 to May 2012, which is fully explained in Note 34,

The Group is also engaged in a dispute with HMRC in relation to thelandfill tax treatment of sub-soils with low levels of contamination from
ashestos. At the date of signing of the accounts the outcome is not certain, however the Group has received a protective assessment of £8.5m,
which has been paid and is included in prepayments in the current year as the Group is disputing this assessment.

The Group is subject to a number of other HMRC enquiries which are on-going.

33. Joint Ventures
Details of each of the Group's joint ventures at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

Place of incorporation and Propaortion of ownership interest and voting

Name of joint venture Principal activity principal place of business rights held by the group
2020

Newhurst ERF Holding Ltd Energy from waste England and Wales 50%
Newhurst ERF Limited Energy from waste England and Wales 50%

All of the above joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method in these consolidated financial statements as set out in the
Group's accounting policies in note 1.

Summarised financial information in respect of each of the Group's material joint ventures is set out below. The summarised financial
information below represents amounts in joint ventures financial statements prepared in accordance with IFRS Standards adjusted by
the Group for equity accounting purposes.

2020
£m

Current assets 4.4
Non-current assets 28.0
Current liabilities (7.0)
Non-current liabilities (22.2)
The above amounts of assets and liabilities include the following:
Cash and cash equivalents 19
Current financial liabilities (excluding trade and other payables and provisions) (5-2)
Non-current financial liabilities (excluding trade and other payables and provisions) [ee.2)
Revenue
Profit or loss from continuing operations -
Prefit/[loss) for the year (0.1)
Other cornprehensive income attributable to the owners of the company [1.8)
Total comprehensive income 1.9

The above profit (loss) for the year include the following:

Depreciation and amortisation -

Interest income -

Interest expense -

Incorme tax expense (income) -
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Notes to the Consclidated Financial Staterments continued

33. Joint Ventures continued
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to the carrying amount of the interest in the joint venture recognised in the
Consolidated financial statements:

2020

£m

Net assets of joint venture 6.0
Proportion of the Group’s ownership interest in the joint venture 50%
Goodwill -
Garrying amount of the Group's interest in the joint venture 3.0
2020

£m

Interest in joint venture at 30 March 2019 -
Addition 4.9
Share of post-tax results (0.1
Share of net loss on cash flow hedge in joint venture 1.8)
Interest in the joint venture at 27 March 2020 3.0

34. EVP-related Items
The Group is engaged in a dispute with HMRC concerning historical Landfill Tax.

HMRG claims that the Group is liable for £61.9m of Landfill Tax in respect of certain wasta materials deposited in Biffa's landfill sites from
2009 to 2012 [EVP). Biffa contests that the material was used in the sites for an engineering purppose and is not therefore subject to Land{ill
Tax. Notwithstanding the Group’s opinion on the tax treatment of this material, since 2012 all materials of this nature have been subjected
ta Landfili Tax. The matter was heard by the Second tier Tax Tribunal which found in Biffa’s favour. The Environment Agency has exercised
its right to appeal this decision.

The contested amount was originally unpaid under a hardship agreement with HMRC but was paid to HMRC following the refinancing
of the Group upon its IPO in October 2016. In addition to the payment of £61.9m, the Group paid £1.7m in interest in the prior year.

The Directors, having taken appropriate advice, do not believe that a liability to tax exists, and accordingly have treated the payment
of the tax and associated interest as a prepayment.

As part of the IPO of the Group, arrangements were put in place to make certain payments to the shareholders and certain members of employee
incentive schemes ot the Group immediately prior 1o f1s Listing, subjecl e and inespesl ul Uw vutcorie of the dispute. Aliability of £478m
has beenrecognised in borrowings, an accrual of £13rm has beenrecognised innon-current liabilities, and a non-underlying non-cash interest
charge of £1.1m has been recognised in finance charges in respect of these obligations. Df the liability of £47.6m, £6.3m has been included
within Reported Net Debt as it will be payable irrespective of the outcome of the dispute. The remaining balance of £41.3m has been excluded
from Reported Net Debt.

35. Service Concession Arrangements

The Group has two integrated waste management contracts with Leicester City Council (25 years - awarded in 2003) and West Sussex
County Council (25 years — awarded in October 2010). The gconcessions vary as to the extent of their pbligations, but typically require
the construction and operation of an asset during the concession period including scheduled maintenance and capital expenditure.
The operation of the assets includes the provision of waste management services such as collection, recycling and disposal. Typically
at the end of concession periods the assets are returned to the concession owner. There have not been any significant changes to these
arrangernents in the period. The construction of the infrastructure for West Sussex County Council was funded by the Councii and
therefore falls outside of the scope of IFRIC 12 and no financial asset or intangible has been recognised. A financial asset of £3.4m

has beenrecognised in relation ta the Leicester City Council contract (Note 193.

These cantracts generated revenue of £45.7m in the 52 weeks ended 27 March 2020 (2019: £49.6m). The contract with Leicester City
Council is loss making and a return to profitability is not expected and as such an onerous contract provision has been recognised.

36. Non-principal Subsidiary Undertakings
The following entities complete the full list of the Company’s subsidiary undertakings. All subsidiaries are 100% owned and consolidated
unless otherwise stated.

Name Country of incorporation  Activity Shareholding
Wasteholdco 1 Limited***® Jersey Holding company 100%
Wasteholdco 2 Limited*® Jersey Holding company 100%
Biffa Group Holdings Limited*? Jersay Holding company 100%
Biffa Group Limited™! England and Wales Holding company 100%
GS Equity Co® Cayman Islands Holding corpany 100%
GS Acquisitions Limited™ England and Wales Holding company 100%
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Name Country of incorporation  Activity Shareholding
Biffa GS Holdings Limited*’ England and Wales Holding company 100%
Material Recovery Norninees Limited™*? England and Wales Dormant 100%
Biffa 6S UK Holdings Limited*! England and Wales Holding company 100%
Biffa G5 (LPP) Limited*! England and Wales Waste management  100%
Biffa GS Environmental Limited™ England and Wales Waste management  100%
Biffa GS {RUR) Limited*! England and Wales Dormant 100%
Biffa GS Environmental Recycling Limited*t England and Wales Waste management  100%
Biffa GS (M&B] Limited* England and Wales Waste management  100%
Biffa GS (FCJ Limited*! England and Wales Waste management  100%
Biffa (WES) Limited** England and Wales Waste management  100%
Biffa Group Holdings [UK] Limited*! England and Wales Holding company 100%
Biffa Corporate Services Limited™ England and Wales Dormant 100%
Biffa Corporate Holdings Limited*! England and Wales Holding company 100%
Biffa Netherlands BV.* Netherlands Holding company 100%
Biffa Servicios de Energia Mexico SA de CV.** Mexico Waste management 100%
Empresa de Servicios Espezialoados en Generacidn de Ener-gia, S.A.de CV.**  Mexico Waste management  100%
Biffa Waste Limited*! England and Wales Waste management  100%
Biffa Holdings [Jersey) Limited*? Jersey Holding company 100%
Biffa UK Group Limited™? England and Wales Dormant 100%
Biffa UK Limited*! England and Wales Dormant 100%
Biffa (UK) Holdings Limited*! England and Wales Waste management  100%
UK Waste Management Holdings Lirnited* England and Wales Wastemanagement  100%
A Smith & Sons [Waste Disposal) Limited* England and Wales Dormant 100%
Biffa [Land] Limited*® Guernsey Waste management  100%
Pilmuir Waste Disposal Limited** England and Wales Dormant 100%
Biffa (Roxby) Limited*! England and Wales Waste management  100%
Norwaste Limited* England and Wales Dormant 100%
Loristan Services Ltd England and Wales Dormant 100%
Biffa West Sussex Holdco Limited*! England and Wales Dormant 100%
Bray 2008 (Malta) Limited*” Malta Holding company 100%
Reclamation & Disposal Limited*! England and Wales Dormant 100%
Biffa Holdings Limited* England and Wales Holding company 100%
Biffa (Jersey) Limited*? Jersey Holding company 100%
Richard Biffa (Reclamation] Limited*! England and Wales Dormant 100%
M Joseph & Son [Birmingham] Limited*! England and Wales Dormant 100%
Biffa Pension Scherne Trustees Limited*! England and Wales Dormant 100%
Cressex Insurance Services Limited™ England and Wales Dormant 100%
White Cross Limited* England and Wales Dormant 100%
Wastedrive Limited*? England and Wales Dormant 100%
Wastedrive [Manchester] Limited! England and Wales Waste management  100%
Amber Engineering Limited** England and Wales Waste management  100%
0'Brien Waste Recycling Solutions Holdings Limited*! England and Wales Holding company 100%
O0’Brien Waste Recycling Solutions Limited** England and Wales Waste management  100%
SWR Plastics Limited™ England and Wales Dormant 100%
SWR Waste Management Limited™' England and Wales Dormant 100%
Srash & Grab Glass Recycling Limited*! England and Wales Dormant 100%
Wastecutter Limited*! England and Wales Dormant 100%
New Star Environmental Limited*! England and Wales Waste management  100%
SWR Equipment Limited*' England and Wales Dormant 100%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

36. Non-principal Subsidiary Undertakings continued

Name Country of incorporation  Activity Shareholding
SWR Smash & Grab Limited* England and Wales Waste management  100%
RUR3 Environmental Limited* England and Wales Waste management  100%
National Waste Collection Limited* England and Wales Dormant 100%
SWR Just Bins Limited** England and Wales Dormant 100%
SWRNewstar Lirmnited*! England and Wales Dormant 100%
Protos Investco Limited England and Wales Waste management  100%
Newhurst ERF Holding Limited**® England and Wales Waste management  50%
Newhurst ERF Limited**® England and Wales Waste management  50%
* Financial year ended 27 March 2020.
** Financial year ended 31 December 2018
***Directly held by Biffa plc.
1 Registered at Coronation Road, Cressex, High Wycombe, Buckinghamshire HP12 3TZ.
2 Registered at 44 Esplanade, St Helier, Jersey, JE4 9WG.
4 Registered at Strawinskylaan 3127, 8e verdieping, 10772X Amsterdarmn.
5 Registered at Intertrust Carporate Services (Cayman) Limited, 190 Elgin Avenue, George Town, Grand Cayman KY18005
8 Registered at PO Box 113, Martello Court, Admiral Park, St Peter Port, Guernsey, GY13EHL
7 Registered at Development House, 5t Anne Street, Floriana, Malta.
8 Registered at Suite 1, 3rd Floor 13-12 5t. James's Square, London, England, SW1Y 4LB
37, Assets and liabilities related to contracts with customers
The Group has recognised the following contract assets and liabilities related to contracts with customers:
2020 2019
£m £m
Current contract assets 56.2 54.2
Current contract liabilities [17.8) [17.8)

'The timing ot payments received from custoraers, relative to the recording of revenue, can have a signiticant irapact on the contract-related
assets and liabilities recorded on the Group's Statement of Financial Position.

Contract liability is what was previously referred to as deferred income under IAS 18. Included within contract liability is £0.1m (2019: £0.1m)
in relation to Government grants which will be recognised in less than one year.

Certain contracts have payment terms based an contractual milestones, which are not necessarily aligned to when revenue is recognised,
particularly for those contracts with revenue recognised over-time by reference to the stage of completion. Where work is carried out and
revenue recognised in advance of the custorner being invoiced this creates a contract asset. Where revenue is received in advance of work
carried out and therefore the revenue recognised a contract liability arises.

The contract assets prirmarily relate to the Group's right to consideration for work completed but not invoiced at the Statement of Financial
Position date. The contract assets are transferred to trade receivables when the amounts are agreed by the customer. On most contracts,
certificates and agreement is by the customer on a monthly basis. All contract assets held at 27 March 2020 are expected to be invoiced
and transferred 1o trade receivables within the next 12 months, The movernent in contract assets relates to £66.2m performance obligations
satisfied in the year and recognised as revenue £54.2m which has been transferred to trade receivables.

None of the contract assets at the end of the reporting period are past due, and, taking into account the historical default experience
and the future prospects in the industry, the directors consider that no contract assets are impaired.

The contract liabilities primarily relate to the advance consideration received from customers in respect of performance obligations which
have not yet been fully satisfied and for which revenue has not been recognised. All contract liabilities held at 27 March 2020 are expected
to satisfy performance obligations in the next 12 months. The movernent in contract liabilities relates to £17.6m performance obligations
satisfied and recognised as revenue in the year and £17.8m cash received for performance obligations not satisfied.

38. Dividends
As announced in the COVID-19 update on 25 March 2020 the Board recommended there will be no final dividend for the year ended
27 March 2020. An interim dividend of 2.47p per share was paid on 20 December 2019, All dividends were paid from distributable reserves.

39. Post balance sheets
There have been no post balance sheet events.
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Parent Company Statement of Financial Position

The parent company statements are prepared under FRS 101 and relate to the Company and not to the Group. The accounting policies which
have been applied to these accounts can be found on page 155 and a separate independent auditor's report on page 88-101.

2020 2018
Notes £m £m
Asseats
Non-current assets
Investments 2 255.8 2657
Trade and other receivables 3 34.3 29
290.1 254.4
Current assets
Other receivables 3 - 34.0
Cash and cash equivalents 4 0.1 0.1
Current liabilities
Derivatives financial instruments 5 (1.3) [0.7]
Trade and other payables B (33.6) [29.3)]
Net current assets/(liabilities) (34.8) 41
Netassets 256.3 262.7
Equity
Called up share capital 7 25 25
Share premivm 235.3 235.3
Retained earnings 19.8 20.2
Hedging and other reserves 2.3) 47
Total surplus/[deficit) attributable to shareholders 255.3 262.7
Retained profit for the year was £17.9m (2019: £27.6rm].
The Financial Staternents on pages 153 to 154 were approved by the Board and signed on its behalf by:
T
-
Ao
Richard Pike
Director
Biffa plc
Registered no: 10336040
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Parent Company Statement of Changes in Equity

Retained
Called up Share Hedging and earnings/ Total
share capital premium other reserves (deficit) equity
£m £rn £rn £m £m
As at 30 March 2018 25 2353 18 9.8 249.2
Profit for the period - - - 276 276
Cashflow hedges - - (0.4) - (0.43
Value of ernployee service in respect of share option
schemes and share awards - - 3.3 - 3.3
Dividends paid - - - (17.0) (17.0)
As at 29 March 2019 2.5 235.3 4.7 20.2 282.7
Profit for the period - - - 17.9 17.9
Cashflow hedges - - (C.B) - [0.6])
Shares purchased by employee beneift trust - - (8.8) - (8.8])
Value of employee service in respect of share option
schemes and share awards - - 24 - 24
Dividends paid - - - (18.3) (18.3]
As at 27 March 2020 2.5 235.3 2.3) 19.8 255.3

As permitted by section 408 of the Companies Act 2006, the Company has not presented its own income staternent or statement of comprehensive
income. The profit of the Company for the year attributable to shareholders was £17.9m.

The Cornpany's distributable reserves amount to £19.8m (2018: £20.2m) at the end of the period. The Company regularly reviews its distributable
reserves and makes dividend recapitalisations as and when necessary to ensure it can make all expected dividend payments. The company
has suificient subsidiary reserves to enable recapitalisation in 2021 and going forward.
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Accounting Policies to the Parent Company Financial Statements

Basis of Preparation
These Financial Staternents relate to Biffa plc, a publicly traded company incorporated and domiciled in England and Wales. The registered
address is Coronation Road, Cressex, High Wycombe, Buckinghamshire, HP12 3TZ.

These Financial Statements present the results of the Company as an individual entity and are prepared on the going concern basis,
in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 101 'Reduced Disclosure Framework' (FRS 101) and the Companies Act 2006.

The Company is part of a larger group and participates in the Group’s centralised treasury and banking arrangements. The Company
is expected to generate positive cash flows to continue to operate in the foreseeable future.

The Cormpany has not presented its own income statement or statement of cornprehensive incormne as permitted by section 408
of the Companies Act 2006.

The Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting policies set out below, which have been consistently
applied to all the years presented except where the Company has elected to take the following exemptions under FRS 101:

m The requirements of IAS 7 ‘Staternent of Cash Flows'
w The requirements of paragraph 17 of IAS 24 ‘Related Party Disclosures’ in respect of key management personnel.
®» Requirements of [AS 24 'Related Party Disclosures' to disclose transactions between wholly owned members of the Group.

® The requirements of IFRS 7 ‘Financial Instruments: Disclosures), as equivalent disclosures are provided in the consolidated Financial
Statements of the Group to which the Company belongs.

m The requirernents of IFRS 2 ‘Share-based Paymaents’

m The requirernents of paragraphs 91 to 99 of IFRS 13 ‘Fair Value Measurements', as equivalent disclosures are presented ir the consolidated
Financial Statements.

Areas of Judgement and Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty
Judgement
Due to the uncertainty following COVID-19 the company considers Expected Credit Loss (ECL) on inter-company balances to be a key judgement.

Estimation
The Company does not have any key assumptions concerning the future, or other key areas of estimation uncertainty in the reporting period
that may have a significant risk of causing material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets and liabilities within the next financial vear.

Investments

Investments are initially stated at cost. Investments are tested for impairment when an event that might affect asset value has occurred.

An irmpairment loss is recognised to the extent that the carrying amounts cannot be recovered either by selling the asset or by the discounted
future cash flows from the investment.

Dividend Distribution
Final dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is recognised as a liability in the Company’s Financial Statements in the period
in which the dividends are approved by the Company's shareholders. Interim dividends are recognised when paid.

Other Receivables
Other receivables are recognised initially at fair value less any provision for expected credit loss. They are subsequently held at amortised
costless any provision for expected credit loss.
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Accounting Policies to the Parent Company Financial Statements continued

Dearivative Financial Instruments and Hedging Activities

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered into and subsequently remeasured at fair value
at each balance sheet date. The method of recognising the resulting gain or loss depends on whether the derivative is designated as a hedging
instrument and, if so, the nature of the item being hedged.

The Company designates certain derivatives as either a) fair value hedge (hedges of the fair value of recognised assets or liabilities);
or b) cash flow hedge [hedges of a particular risk associated with a recognised asset or liability or a highly probable forecast transaction);
or ¢ net investrent hedge (hedges of net investments in foreign operations).

The Company documents the transaction relationship between the hedging instruments and hedged items at inception. At inception and
at each reporting date the Cornpany assesses whether the derivatives used have been highly effective in offsetting changes in the fair value
of hedged items.

The fair values of derivative instruments used for hedging are shown in Note 5. Movements in the hedging reserve are shown in the statement
of changes in equity.

At the reporting date the Gompany has no fair value hedges or net investment hedges.

Cash Flow Hedge

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated as cash flow hedges are recognised in equity. The Company's
cash flow hedges in respect of forward foreign exchange contracts result in recognition in either profit and loss or in the hedging reserve.

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, or when the hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, any cumulative gain or
loss in equity at that time remains in equity and is recognised when the forecast transaction eccurs, When a farecast transaction is no longer
expected ta occur, the cumulative gain or loss that was reported in equity will be transferred to the income statement.

Changes in the fair value of any derivative ingtruments that do not qualify for hedge accounting are recognised immediately in the income staterment.
Other Payables

Accounts payable are classified as current liabilities if payment is due within one year or less. If not, they are presented as non-current
liabilities.

Share Capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity and are recorded at par value of proceeds received. Where shares are issued above par value,
the proceeds in excess of par value are recorded in the share premium account net of direct issue costs.
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Notes to the Parent Company Financial Statements

1. Employees and Directors
Details of the remuneration received by Directors of Biffa plc are included in the Directors’' Remuneration Report on pages 66 to 83. Biffa plc
has two employees [2019: two).

2. Investments

2020

£m

As at 29 March 2018 266.7
Movements relating to share options granted/[issued) on behalf of subsidiary employses 0.1
As at 27 March 2020 2558

There have been no indicators of impairment during the year and no requirement for impairment. The Directors believe that the carrying
value of the investments is supported by their underlying net assets.

Disclosure of the Company’s subsidiaries is given in Notes 31 and 36 of the Group Financial Statements.

3. Trade and Other Receivables

2020 2019
£m £
Amounts falling due within one year
Amounts due from subsidiary undertaking - 34.0
Amounts falling due after more than one year
Amounts due from subsidiary undertaking 34.0 -
Other receivables 03 29
Total 343 2.9

During the year armounts due from subsidiary undertakings was reclassified to falling due after more than one year due to managements assessrment.

The Directors consider that the carrying amount of trade receivables approximates their fair value.

4. Cashand Cash Equivalents

2020 2019
£m £m
Cash at bank and in hand 0.1 0.1
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Notes to the Parent Company Financial Statements continued

5, Fair Value of Financial Assets and Liabilities

2020 2019

Book value Fair value Back value Fair value

Financial assets and liabilities £m £m £m £m
Derivative asset (.33 (1.3) (0.7) (0.7

Trade and other receivables 34.3 34.2 389 36.9

Cash and cash equivalents 0.1 D4 01 01
Trade and other payables {33.6) [33.8) (29.2) [29.3)

Total financial assets and liabilities (0.5) [0.5) 7.0 7.0

Derivative financial instruments

Full details of the derivative financial instruments are disclosed in Nete 19 of the Group Consoclidated Staternents. The fair value and the

notional amounts are as follow:

2020 2019

Fair value Notional Fair value Notional

£m £m £m £m

Forward foreign exchange contracts 0.4 10.9 07 16.0

Interest rate swaps 1.6) 200.0 - -

6. Trade and Other Payables
2020 2019
£m fm
Non-current

Amounts payable to subsidiary undertakings (33.8) (29.3)

Other - -
Total trade and other payablas (33.6) (29.3)

All creditors are unsecured.

The fair value of non-derivative financial assets and liabilities are determined based on discounted cash flow analysis using current market

rates for similar instruments.

7. Called up share capital

Nurnber of Called up

shares share capital

Ne £
As at 27 March 2020 and 29 March 2019 250,000,000 2,500,000

8. Related Party Transactions
There have been no material related party transactions in the 52 weels ended 27 March 2020 {2019: nil] excapt for key management compansation
as set put in the report of the remmuneration committee,
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9. UKRegistered Subsidiaries Exempt from Audit
The following UK subsidiaries will take advantage of the audit exemption set out within section 479A of the Companies Act 2006 for the

period ended 27 March 2020. Unless otherwise stated, the undertakings listed below are 100% owned, either directly or indirectly, by Biffa plc.

Name Proportion of shares held by subsidiary (%) Cornpany nurmber
GBS Acquisitions Limited 100% 07255980
Bitfa G5 Holdings Limited 100% 04802885
Materials Recovery Norninees Limited 100% 05186581
Biffa GS UK Holdings Limited 100% 04631832
Biffa GS (LPP) Limited 100% 02276396
Biffa GS Environmental Limited 100% 03446693
Biffa GS (RUR) Limited 100% 04594882
Biffa GS Environmental Recycling Limited 100% 04786413
Biffa GS (M&B] Limited 100% 01173507
Biffa GS (FC) Limited 100% 04800628
Biffa Group Holdings (UK] Limited 100% 04081901
Reclaration and Disposal Limited 100% 00873315
Biffa Waste Limited 100% 04084432
Biffa UK Group Limited 100% 03650457
Biffa UK Limited 100% 03650459
Biffa (UK) Holdings Limited 100% 03248158
UK Waste Management Limited 100% 01362615
A_Smith & Sons (Waste Disposal) Limited 100% 01346573
Pilmuir Waste Disposal Limited 100% 01829739
Biffa Waste Management Limited 100% 01138022
Biffa (Roxby) Limited 100% 02031961
Norwaste Limited 100% 01041912
White Cross Limited 100% 01537810
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

9. UK Registered Subsidiaries Exempt from Audit continued

Narne Proportion of shares held by subsidiary (%) Company nurnber
Wastedrive Limited 100% 01396771
Wastedrive (Manchester) Limited 100% 01517244
Biffa Holdings Limited 100% 01032104
Richard Biffa (Reclamation] Limited 100% 00823000
Barge Waste Management Limited 100% 02849409
Island Waste Services Limited 100% 01562751
M. Joseph & Son (Birmingham] Lirnited 100% 00440100
Amber Engineering Lirnited 100% 01067283
0'Brien Waste Recycling Solutions Limited 100% 09362987
0'Brien Waste Recyeling Solutions Holdings Limited 100% 09560589
Weir Recycling Services Limited 100% 9390664
Weir Waste Services Limited 100% 03777183
SWR Equipment Limited 100% 06974078
SWR Plastics Limnited 100% 07800637
SWR Waste Management Limited 100% 07800679
Smash & Grab Glass Recycling Limited 100% 07800734
Wastecutter Limited 100% 08212454
National Waste Collection Limited 100% 09700337
SWR Just Bins Limited 100% 10060304
SWRNewstar Limited 100% 11098385
UK Waste Management Holdings Limited 100% 02536345
Protos Investco Limited 100% 12215502
Biffa [WES) Limited 100% 02729807
Biffa West Sussex Holdco Lirmnited 100% 07001231
New Star Environmental Lirmited 100% 07306131
SWR Smash & Grab Limited 100% 05667032
RUR3 Environmental Limited 100% 08304761
Loristan Services Limited 100% 01390714
Newhurst ERF Holding Limited 50% 11998817
Newhurst ERF Limnited 50% 12006738

In accordance with section 479C of the Cornpanies Act 2006, the Company will guarantee the debts and liabilities of the above UK subsidiary

undertakings. As at 27 March 2020 the total surn of these debts and liabilities is £33.7 million.
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Glossary

A

Acquisition Acquisition Net Revenue Growth in any period FTSE Financial Times Stock Exchange
NetRevenue represents the Net Revenue Growth in the - -
Growth relevant period from (i) acquisitions completed FY Financial Year
in the relevant period and (ii) acquisitions
completed in the 12 months ended to the G
start of the relevant period up to the 12 month - -
anniversary of the relevant acquisition date GDPR General Data Protection Regulation
[to the extent such Net Revenue falls in the GHG Greenhouse gas
current period). Acquisition Revenue Growth is
calculated on the same hasis, using revenue in H
place of Net Revenue
Anaerobic Anaerobic digestion, a process that generates HDPE High-density palyethylene
Digestion renewable electricity using biogas created from
biodegradable waste material (primarily food I
waste) in the absence of oxygen - - "
18C Industrial and commercial business
Admission The Company's adrission of its shares to the UK — - -
Listing Authority’s Official List and listing on the 1PO Initial Public Offering
Main Market of the London Stock Exchange on
20 October 2016 I(
APM Alternative Performance Measures KPIs Key Performance Indicators
C ktns or kt Thousand tonnes
(H Carbon dioxide equivalent is a standard L
;feléﬁrﬁgﬁigugzsaf,ifigféﬁt;ﬁ?f;:;ﬂ Leverage Ratio of Reported Net Debt to Underlying EBITDA
reductions and carbon credits Ratio
LTI Lost Tirne Injury Frequency rate, a safety

benchmarking measure calculated as the
nurmber of lost time injuries occurring in

Efw Energy from waste, typically from the a workplace per 100,000 hours worked
incineration of RDF
ERF Energy recovery facility M
ESG Environmental, Social and Governance MSA Mergers & acquisitions
ESOS Energy Savings Opportunity Scheme - MBT Mechanical and biclogical treatment
amandatory energy assessment scheme MRF M ial ling facilit
for organisations in the UK that meet the aterials recycling facility
qualification criteria MW Megawatt
EV Electric Vehicle MWh Megawatt hour
EVP Engineered into the void permanently, related N
to the use of certain material at a landfill site,
placed at specifisd depths immediately below National Grid High-voltage electric power transmission
the geomembrane layer at the top of a landfill network in the UK
cell, for use in capping the site
Net Capex Cash capex less proceeds from disposal of
tangible assets
Net Revenue  Statutory Revenue excluding landfili tax,
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Glossary continued

0

U

Organic Net
Revenue
Growth

The increase/(decrease) in net revenue in the
period excluding net revenue from acquisitions
completed in the period and net revenue from
acquisitions completad in the prior period up

to the anniversary of the relevant acquisition
date, to the extent such net revenue falls in the
current period. Organic net revenue growth can
be expressed both as an absolute financial value
and as a percentage of prior period revenue

Underlying
Earnings per
Share

Underlying Earnings per Share is exprassed
as underlying profit after tax dividend by the
weighted average nurnber of shares in the year

UN United Nations

Underlying Profit before depreciation and amortisation,

EBITDA exceptional iterns, impact of real discount rate
changes to landfill provisions, finance costs and
taxation. Divisional underlying EBITDA is stated
after allpcation of shared services costs

Underlying The net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash

Free Cash equivalents excluding dividends, restructuring

Flow and exceptional items, acquisitions, movernent
in financial agsets and movements in borrowings
or share capital {but including finance lease
principat payments)

Underlying Proiit before exceptional items, amortisation of

Operating acquisition intangibles, impact of real discount

Profit rate changes to landfill provisions, finance costs
and taxation. Divisional underlying operating
profit is stated after allocation of shared
service costs

Underlying Underlying Profit after tax is the profit or loss

Profit after for the period as adjusted for non-underlying

Tax operating items (exceptional items, amortisation
of acquisition intangibles and impact of real
discount rate changes to landfill provisions],
non-underlying net interest items and
non-underlying taxation

Underlying Underlying Operating Profit margin is expressed

Operating as Underlying Operating Profit as a percentage of

Profit Margin  Statutory Revenue

viogs Video blogs

Void Measure of potential capacity of a landfill site
incubic metres

WEEE Waste Electronic and Electrical Equipment

Working Working Capital Muveinenl tepresenls the

Capital movement from the previous period in relation

Movement to inventorias, trade and other receivables, trade

and other payables and provisians adjusted far
the impact of acquisitions on these balances

PET Polyethylene terephthalate

PSP Performance Share Plan

RCF Revolving credit facility

RDF Refuse-derived fuel, produced by processing
solid waste to segregate largely combustible
components for incineration

Recyclate Raw material sent to, and processed in, a waste
recycling plant or materials recycling facility

Reported Net Debt excluding the EVP preference instrument

_Net pebt

Return on Operating Profit excluding exceptional iterns

Capital and impact of real discount rate changes to

Employed landfill provisions divided by the average of

(ROCE) opening and closing shareholders’ equity plus
Net Debt (including finance leases), pensions
and environmental provisions

Returmon Underlying Operating Profit divided by the

Operating average of opening and closing Tangible Fixed

Assets [RO0A) Assets plus net working capital

RIDDOR Reporting of Injuries, Diseases and Dangerous
Occurrences Regulations 2013

ROC Renewable Obligations Certificate

SDGs Sustainable Development Goals — a collection
of 17 glohal goals (set by the UN) designed to
be a "blueprint to achieve a better and more
sustainable future for all”

Section 172 Section 172 of the Companies Act 2006

or 5172

SHEQ Safety, health, environment and quality

SIP Share Incentive Plan

SWR Speciatist Waste Services
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Forward-looking statements

Certain statements made in this Annual Report are forward-looking
and are based on current expectations. The statements are subject
to assumptions, inherent risks and uncertainties, many of which
are beyond the Company's control and which could cause actual
results to differ significantly from those expected. Unless required
by law, regulations or accounting standards, the Company does

not undertake to update or revise any forward-looking staternent,
whether as a result of new information or future developments. Any
forward-looking statements made by or on behalf of the Group speak
only as of the date that they are made and are based on knowledge
and information available to the Directors an the date of this Annual
Report. Nothing in this Annual Report should be regarded as a profit
forecast or constitute an offer to sell or an invitation to buy any
shares in Biffa plc.

Website

The Company's website www.biffa.co.uk gives additional information
on the business. Notwithstanding the references made in the Annual
Report to the website, none of the information made on the website
constitutes part of this Annual Report or is deemed to be incorporated
by reference herein.
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